DRAFT LETTER OF OFFER
July 18, 2023
For Eligible Equity Shareholders only

A AdVik

Capital Limited

ADVIK CAPITAL LIMITED

Our Company was originally incorporated as ‘Quick Credit Limited’ in New Delhi on November 14, 1985 as a public limited company under the Companies Act,
1956, and was granted the certificate of incorporation by the Registrar of Companies, Delhi and Haryana at New Delhi. Our Company was granted the Certificate
for Commencement of Business on November 20, 1985 by the Registrar of Companies, Delhi and Haryana at New Delhi. Subsequently, the name of our Company
was changed to ‘DU-Lite Industries Limited’ and a fresh Certificate of Incorporation was granted by the Registrar of Companies, Delhi and Haryana at New Delhi
on September 20, 2010. The name of the Company was changed again to ‘Advik Industries Limited’ and our Company received a fresh certificate of incorporation
which was granted by the Registrar of Companies, Delhi and Haryana at New Delhi on February 24, 2011. Finally, the name of our Company was changed to
‘Advik Capital Limited” and a fresh certificate of incorporation consequent upon change of name was granted by the Registrar of Companies, Delhi at Delhi on
July 7,2017.

Corporate Identity Number: L65100DL1985PLC022505
Registered Office: G-3, Vikas House, 34/1, East Punjabi Bagh, Sec — I1I, West Delhi, New Delhi, India - 110026
Contact person: Deepika Mishra, Company Secretary and Compliance Officer
Telephone: +91 92891 19980 | E-mail id: advikcapital@gmail.com | Website: https://advikgroup.com/ail/

PROMOTERS OF OUR COMPANY: MR. VIKAS GARG & MS. SEEMA GARG
FOR PRIVATE CIRCULATION TO THE ELIGIBLE EQUITY SHAREHOLDERS OF ADVIK CAPITAL LIMITED (OUR "COMPANY" OR

THE "ISSUER") ONLY
WE HEREBY CONFIRM THAT NONE OF OUR PROMOTERS OR DIRECTORS IS A WILFUL DEFAULTER OR A FRAUDULENT
BORROWER AS ON DATE OF THIS DRAFT LETTER OF OFFER

ISSUE OF UP TO [e¢] FULLY PAID UP EQUITY SHARES OF FACE VALUE OF ¥1 EACH OF OUR COMPANY (THE "EQUITY SHARES") FOR
CASH AT A PRICE OF X [e] PER EQUITY SHARE (INCLUDING A PREMIUM OF X [¢] PER EQUITY SHARE) AGREEGATING UPTO 34995
LAKHS? ON A RIGHTS BASIS TO THE ELIGIBLE EQUITY SHAREHOLDERS OF OUR COMPANY IN THE RATIO OF [e¢] EQUITY SHARE
FOR EVERY [e]| FULLY PAID-UP EQUITY SHARES HELD BY THE ELIGIBLE EQUITY SHAREHOLDERS ON THE RECORD DATE, THAT
IS [e] (THE "ISSUE"). THE ISSUE PRICE FOR THE EQUITY SHARES IS [¢] ([*]) TIME THE FACE VALUE OF THE EQUITY SHARES. FOR
FURTHER DETAILS, PLEASE REFER TO "TERMS OF THE ISSUE" BEGINNING ON PAGE 199 OF THIS DRAFT LETTER OF OFFER.
# Assuming full subscription.

GENERAL RISKS

Investment in equity and equity-related securities involve a degree of risk and investors should not invest any funds in the Issue unless they can afford to take
the risk with such investment. Investors are advised to read the risk factors carefully before taking an investment decision in the Issue. For taking an investment
decision, investors shall rely on their own examination of our Company and the Issue including the risks involved. The securities being offered in the Issue
have not been recommended or approved by the Securities and Exchange Board of India ("SEBI") nor does SEBI guarantee the accuracy or adequacy of this
Draft Letter of Offer. Specific attention of the investors is invited to "Risk Factors" beginning on page 22 of this Draft Letter of Offer before making an
investment in this Issue.

Our Company, having made all reasonable inquiries, accepts responsibility for and confirms that this Draft Letter of Offer contains all information with regard
to our Company and the Issue, which is material in the context of the Issue, and that the information contained in this Draft Letter of Offer is true and correct in
all material aspects and is not misleading in any material respect, that the opinions and intentions expressed herein are honestly held and that there are no other
facts, the omission of which makes this Draft Letter of Offer as a whole or any such information or the expression of any such opinions or intentions misleading
in any material respects.

The existing Equity Shares are listed on BSE Limited ("BSE") (hereinafter referred as "Stock Exchange"). Our Company has received ‘in-principle’ approvals
from the BSE for listing the Rights Equity Shares to be allotted pursuant to this Issue vide letters dated [e]. Our Company will also make applications to the
Stock Exchange to obtain their trading approvals for the Rights Entitlements as required under the SEBI circular bearing reference number
SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/CIR/P/2020/13 dated January 22, 2020. For the purpose of this Issue, the Designated Stock Exchange is BSE Limited.

\s

IFast Track Finsec Private Limted
IB-502, Statesman House, 147 Barakhamba Road, New Delhi- 110001
Teleph 011-43029809; Website: www.ftfinsec.com

MANAGER TO THE ISSUE REGISTRAR TO THE ISSUE

P ey
Fastrack Finsec S kxl ine

Financial e Services Pvt. Lid.
Category- Merchant Banken

Skyline Financial Services Private Limited

D-153A, 1st Floor, Okhla Industrial Area, Phase-I, New Delhi-110020
Telephone: 011-40450193/97

Email: ipo@skylinerta.com, Website: www.skylinerta.com

Investor grievance e-mail: grievances@skylinerta.com

[Email: Vikasverma@ftfinsec.com SEBI Registration No.: INR000003241; Validity of Registration:
ISEBI Registration No.: INM000012500 Permanent
ICIN: U65191DL2010PTC200381 Contact Person: Mr. Anuj Rana

IContact Person: Mr. Vikas Kumar Verma
ISSUE PROGRAMME

ISSUE OPENS ON LAST DATE FOR ON MARKET RENUNCIATIONS* ISSUE CLOSES ON*
| [o] | [o] | [o] |
* Eligible Equity Shareholders are requested to ensure that renunciation through off-market transfer is completed in such a manner that the Rights Entitlements are credited to the demat
account of the Renounce(s) on or prior to the Issue Closing Date.
# Our Board or a duly authorized committee thereof will have the right to extend the Issue period as it may determine from time to time but not exceeding 30 (thirty) days from the Issue
Opening Date (inclusive of the Issue Opening Date). Further, no withdrawal of the Application shall be permitted by any Applicant after the Issue Closing Date.

D EE Pl KA Digitally signed

by DEEPIKA

MISHRA MisHrA


mailto:advikcapital@gmail.com
https://advikgroup.com/ail/
http://www.ftfinsec.com/
mailto:Vikasverma@ftfinsec.com
mailto:ipo@skylinerta.com
http://www.skylinerta.com/
mailto:grievances@skylinerta.com

This place has been left blank intentionally



TABLE OF CONTENT

SECTION It GENERAL ......ooiiiiiiiiiiiii e e e s s 1
DEFINITIONS AND ABBREVIATIONS .....c.ooiiiiiiiiiiii e 1
NOTICE TO INVESTORS......ooiiiiii et st 9
PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL AND OTHER INFORMATION..........ccociiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiic i 12
FORWARD LOOKING STATEMENTS......cooiiiiiiiiiiiiiii e 14
SECTION II- SUMMARY OF DRAFT LETTER OF OFFER ........cccccoooiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiccecccc 17
SECTION III- RISK FACTORS ...ttt e 22
SECTION IV — INTRODUCTION ......cooiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiie s s e 43
THE ISSUE .ot s et st s s saa e eaeeenae s 43
GENERAL INFORMATION ......oiiiiiiiiiiiii e s e e 45
CAPITAL STRUCTURE .......ooiiiiiiiiiiiiiii et s s s 51
OBJECTS OF THE ISSUE......coiiiiiiiiiiiii e s 54
STATEMENT OF SPECIAL TAX BENEFITS ......cooiiiiiiiiiii e 59
SECTION V — ABOUT THE COMPANY ......cooiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiii e s 62
INDUSTRY OVERVIEW ..ottt s 62
OUR BUSINESS ... ettt 87
OUR MANAGEMENT .....ooiiiiiiiiii et 91
OUR PROMOTER ..ottt e e 100
RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS.......ooiiiiiiiiiii e 102
DIVIDEND POLICY ..ottt e et s s 103
SECTION VI — FINANCIAL INFORMATION........coiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiii e 104
RESTATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ......oiiiiiiiiiiii s 104
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF ......coooiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiicicc e 180
FINANCIAL POSITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS.........ccooiiiiiiiiiiiiiiii i 180
MARKET PRICE INFORMATION .......coiiiiiiiiiiiiii i e 184
SECTION VII - LEGAL AND OTHER INFORMATION........ccocciiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiic e 186
OUTSTANDING LITIGATIONS AND DEFAULTS .......oiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiici e 186
GOVERNMENT AND OTHER STATUTORY APPROVALS.......c.cooiiiiiiiiiiiiiccc 190
OTHER REGULATORY AND STATUTORY DISCLOSURES .......ccccooiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiicc e 191
SECTION VII — ISSUE INFORMATION ......cccooiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiii e 199
TERMS OF THE ISSUE ..ottt e e 199
RESTRICTIONS ON FOREIGN OWNERSHIP OF INDIAN SECURITIES .........ccccooiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiie, 229
SECTION IX — STATUTORY AND OTHER INFORMATION..........cocciiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiccicic e 231
MATERIAL CONTRACTS AND DOCUMENTS FOR INSPECTION ........cccccooiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiicciccec 232

DECLARATION ...ttt e s st st 233



SECTION I: GENERAL
DEFINITIONS AND ABBREVIATIONS

This Draft Letter of Offer uses the definitions and abbreviations set forth below, which you should consider
when reading the information contained herein. The following list of certain capitalised terms used in this Draft
Letter of Offer is intended for the convenience of the reader/prospective investor only and is not exhaustive.

References to any legislation, act, regulation, rules, guidelines or policies shall be to such legislation, act,
regulation, rules, guidelines or policies as amended, supplemented, or re-enacted from time to time and any
reference to a statutory provision shall include any subordinate legislation made from time to time under that
provision.

In this Draft Letter of Offer, unless otherwise indicated or the context otherwise requires, all references to
‘the/our Company’, ‘we’, ‘our’, ‘us’ or similar terms are to Advik Capital Limited as the context requires, and
references to ‘you’ are to the Eligible Equity Shareholders and/ or prospective Investors in this Right Issue of
Equity Shares.

The words and expressions used in this Draft Letter of Offer but not defined herein, shall have, to the extent
applicable, the meaning ascribed to such terms under the Companies Act, 2013, the SEBI ICDR Regulations,
the SCRA, the Depositories Act, Takeover Regulations, or the rules and regulations made thereunder.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, terms used in "Statement of Special Tax Benefits" and "Financial Statements"
beginning on pages 59 and 104, respectively of this Draft Letter of Offer, shall have the meaning given to such
terms in such sections.

Company and Industry Related Terms

Term Description

"Our Company" or "the  Advik Capital Limited incorporated under the Companies Act 1956.
Company" or "the Issuer”

"Articles of Association" The articles of association of our Company, as amended from time to time.

or "Articles"

“Audit Committee” The committee of the Board of Directors constituted as our Company’s audit
committee in accordance with Regulation 18 of the Securities and Exchange Board
of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as
amended (“SEBI Listing Regulations”) and Section 177 of the Companies Act,

2013.
"Board" or "Board of The Board of Directors of our Company or a duly constituted committee thereof or
Directors" its duly authorised individuals.

“Company Secretary and Ms. Deepika Mishra, the Company Secretary and the Compliance Officer of our
Compliance Officer” Company.

Directors Directors on the Board, as may be appointed from time to time

Equity Shareholders Holders of Equity Share(s), from time to time

Equity Shares Equity shares of face value of %1 each of our Company

Independent Director Independent directors on the Board, who are eligible to be appointed as independent

directors under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the SEBI Listing
Regulations. For details of the Independent Directors, see "Our Management"
beginning on page 91 of this Draft Letter of Offer

Key Managerial The Key Managerial Personnel of our Company as per the definition provided in

Personnel Regulation 2(1) (bb) of the SEBI ICDR Regulations

Materiality Policy A policy adopted by our Company for identification of material litigation(s) for the
purpose of disclosure of the same in this Draft Letter of Offer

Memorandum of The memorandum of association of our Company, as amended from time to time

Association or

Memorandum

Promoter The promoter of our Company is Mr. Vikas Garg & Ms. Seema Garg.

Promoter Group The companies, individuals and entities (other than companies) as defined

under Regulation 2(1) (pp) of the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, 2018, and



Term

Registered and Corporate
Office or Registered
Office

Restated Financial
Statements

Statutory Auditors
Issue Related Terms

Term

2009 ASBA Circular
2011 ASBA Circular
2020 ASBA Circular
2022 ASBA Circular

"Abridged Letter of Offer"

or "ALOF"

Additional Rights
Equity Shares /
Additional Equity
Shares

"Allotment", "Allot" or
"Allotted"

Allotment Account(s)

Allotment Account
Bank(s)

Allotment Advice

Allotment Date
Allottee(s)
Applicant(s) or Investors

Application

Description

which are disclosed by the Company to the Stock Exchange from time to time.
As on the date of this DLOO Ms. Sukriti Garg covered under the promoter group
of the Company.

The Registered Office of our company which is located at G-3, Vikas House,
34/1, East Punjabi Bagh, Sec — III, West Delhi, New Delhi, India — 110026.

Our restated Ind AS summary statement of assets and liabilities as at March 31, 2023,
March 31, 2022, and as at March 31, 2021, and restated Ind AS summary statement
of profit and loss, restated Ind AS summary statement of changes in equity and
restated Ind AS summary statement of cash flows for the year ended March 31, 2023,
March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021, together with the annexures, notes and other
explanatory information thereon, derived from the annual audited financial
statements as at and for year ended March 31, 2023, March 31, 2022 and March 31,
2021, prepared in accordance with Ind AS and restated in accordance with Section
26 of Part 1 of Chapter III of the Companies Act, 2013, the SEBI ICDR Regulations
and the Guidance Note on “Reports in Company Prospectuses (Revised 2019)”
issued by the ICAL

M/s. KSMC & Associates, Chartered Accountants

Description
The SEBI circular SEBI/CFD/DIL/ASBA/1/2009/30/12 dated December 30, 2009

The SEBI circular CIR/CFD/DIL/1/2011 dated April 29, 2011
The SEBI Circular SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/CIR/P/2020/13 dated January 22, 2020
The SEBI Circular SEBI/HO/CFD/SSEP/CIR/P/2022/66 dated May 19, 2022

Abridged Letter of Offer to be sent to the Eligible Equity Shareholders with respect
to the Issue in accordance with the provisions of the SEBI ICDR Regulations and
the Companies Act, 2013

The Rights Equity Shares applied or allotted under this Issue in addition to the
Rights Entitlement

Allotment of Equity Shares pursuant to the Issue

The account(s) opened with the Banker(s) to this Issue, into which the Application
Money lying credit to the Escrow Account(s) and amounts blocked by Application
Supported by Blocked Amount in the ASBA Account, with respect to successful
Applicants will be transferred on the Transfer Date in accordance with Section
40(3) of the Companies Act, 2013

Bank(s) which are clearing members and registered with SEBI as bankers to an
issue and with whom the Allotment Accounts will be opened, in this case being,
HDFC Bank Limited.

The note or advice or intimation of Allotment, sent to each successful Investor who
has been or is to be Allotted the Equity Shares after approval of the Basis of
Allotment by the Designated Stock Exchange

Date on which the Allotment is made pursuant to this Issue

Person(s) who is Allotted Equity Shares pursuant to Allotment

Eligible Equity Shareholder(s) and/or Renounce(s) who are entitled to apply or
make an application for the Equity Shares pursuant to the Issue in terms of this
Draft Letter of Offer

Application made through (i) submission of the Application Form or plain paper
Application to the Designated Branch of the SCSBs or online/ electronic
application through the website of the SCSBs (if made available by such SCSBs)
under the ASBA process, to subscribe to the Equity Shares at the Issue Price



Term

Application Form

Application Money

"Application Supported
by Blocked Amount" or
"ASBA"

ASBA Account

ASBA Circulars

ASBA Bid

Banker(s) to the Issue
Banker to the Issue
Agreement

Basis of Allotment

Consolidated Certificate

"Controlling Branches" or
"Controlling Branches of
the SCSBs"

Designated Branches

Designated Stock
Exchange
Depository(ies)

Draft Letter of
Offer/DLoF/DLOF
Eligible Equity
Shareholder (s)
IEPF

Investor(s)
ISIN

Issue / Rights Issue

Description

Unless the context otherwise requires, an application form or through the website
of the SCSBs (if made available by such SCSBs) under the ASBA process used by
an Investor to make an application for the Allotment of Equity Shares in the Issue

Aggregate amount payable at the time of application i.e. X [®] in respect of the
Equity Shares applied for in the Issue at the Issue Price

Application (whether physical or electronic) used by an ASBA Investor to make
an application authorizing the SCSB to block the Application Money in the ASBA
Account maintained with the SCSB

Account maintained with the SCSB and specified in the Application Form or the
plain paper Application by the Applicant for blocking the amount mentioned in the
Application Form or the plain paper Application

Collectively, SEBI circular bearing reference number
SEBI/CFD/DIL/ASBA/1/2009/30/12 dated December 30, 2009, SEBI circular
bearing reference number CIR/CFD/DIL/1/2011 dated April 29, 2011 , SEBI
circular bearing reference number SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/CIR/P/2020/13 dated
January 22, 2020 and SEBI Circular bearing reference number
SEBI/HO/CFD/SSEP/CIR/P/2022/66 dated May 19, 2022

A Bid made by an ASBA Bidder including all revisions and modifications thereto
as permitted under the SEBI ICDR Regulations.

the Allotment Account Bank(s) to the Issue

Agreement dated [e] amongst our Company, the Registrar to the Issue and the
Banker(s) to the Issue for collection of the Application Money from
Applicants/Investors making an application for the Equity Shares

The basis on which the Equity Shares will be Allotted to successful Applicants in
consultation with the Designated Stock Exchange under this Issue, as described in
"Terms of the Issue" beginning on page 199 of this Draft Letter of Offer

The certificate that would be issued for Rights Equity Shares Allotted to each folio
in case of Eligible Equity Shareholders who hold Equity Shares in physical form.
Such branches of the SCSBs which co-ordinate with the Registrar to the Issue and
the  Stock  Exchanges, a list of which is available on
http://www.sebi.gov.in/sebiweb/other/OtherAction.do?doRecognised=yes

Such branches of the SCSBs which shall collect the Application Form or the plain
paper application, as the case may be, used by the ASBA Investors and a list of
which is available on
http://www.sebi.gov.in/sebiweb/other/OtherAction.do?doRecognised=yes
BSE Limited

NSDL and CDSL or any other depository registered with SEBI under the Securities
and Exchange Board of India (Depositories and Participants) Regulations, 2018 as
amended from time to time read with the Depositories Act, 1996.

This draft letter of offer dated July 18, 2023 filed with the Stock Exchanges

Holder(s) of the Equity Shares of our Company as on the Record Date

Investor Education and Protection Fund

Eligible Equity Shareholder(s) of our Company on the Record Date, [e] and the
Renouncee(s)
International  securities
INE178T01024

Issue of upto [¢] Equity Shares of face value of 1 each of our Company for cash
at a price of X [e] per Rights Equity Share not exceeding X [e] lakhs on a rights
basis to the Eligible Equity Shareholders of our Company in the ratio of [¢] Rights
Equity Shares for every [o] Equity Shares held by the Eligible Equity Shareholders
of our Company on the Record Date i.e. [e].

identification number of the Company being


http://www.sebi.gov.in/sebiweb/other/OtherAction.do?doRecognised=yes
http://www.sebi.gov.in/sebiweb/other/OtherAction.do?doRecognised=yes
http://www.sebi.gov.in/sebiweb/other/OtherAction.do?doRecognised=yes
http://www.sebi.gov.in/sebiweb/other/OtherAction.do?doRecognised=yes

Term

Issue Closing Date
Issue Opening Date
Issue Period

Issue Price

Issue Proceeds or Gross
Proceeds

Issue Size

Letter of Offer or LOF

Listing Agreement

Fraudulent Borrower

Multiple Application
Forms

Net Proceeds

Off Market Renunciation

On Market Renunciation

"Qualified Institutional
Buyers" or "QIBs"

Record Date

Refund Bank (s)
Registrar to the Issue /

Registrar
Registrar Agreement

Renouncee (s)

Renunciation Period

RE ISIN

Description

[e]

[e]

The period between the Issue Opening Date and the Issue Closing Date, inclusive
of both days, during which Applicants can submit their applications, in accordance
with the SEBI ICDR Regulations

2 o] per Equity Share

Gross proceeds of the Issue

Amount aggregating up to 34,995 Lakhs”
*Assuming full subscription

The final Letter of Offer to be issued by our Company in connection with this
Issue

The listing agreements entered into between our Company and the Stock
Exchanges in terms of the SEBI Listing Regulations.

Company or person, as the case may be, categorized as a fraudulent borrower by
any bank or financial institution (as defined under the Companies Act, 2013) or
consortium thereof, in accordance with the guidelines on fraudulent borrower
issued by RBI

Multiple application forms submitted by an Eligible Equity Shareholder/Renounce
in respect of the Rights Entitlement available in their demat account. However
supplementary applications in relation to further Equity Shares with/without using
additional Rights Entitlement will not be treated as multiple application

Issue Proceeds less the Issue related expenses. For further details, see "Objects of
the Issue" beginning on page 54 of this Draft Letter of Offer

The renunciation of Rights Entitlements undertaken by the Investor by transferring
them through off-market transfer through a depository participant in accordance
with the SEBI Rights Issue Circulars and the circulars issued by the Depositories,
from time to time, and other applicable laws

The renunciation of Rights Entitlements undertaken by the Investor by trading
them over the secondary market platform of the Stock Exchanges through a
registered stock broker in accordance with the SEBI Rights Issue Circulars and the
circulars issued by the Stock Exchanges, from time to time, and other applicable
laws, on or before [@].

Qualified institutional buyers as defined under Regulation 2(1) (ss) of the SEBI
ICDR Regulations

Designated date for the purpose of determining the Eligible Equity Shareholders
eligible to apply for Equity Shares, being [e].

The Banker(s) to the Issue with whom the Refund Account(s) will be opened, in
this case being [e].

Skyline Financial Services Private Limited

Agreement dated [e] between our Company and the Registrar to the Issue in
relation to the responsibilities and obligations of the Registrar to the Issue
pertaining to this Issue

Person(s) who has/have acquired Rights Entitlements from the Eligible Equity
Shareholders

The period during which the Investors can renounce or transfer their Rights
Entitlements which shall commence from the Issue Opening Date. Such period
shall close on [e] in case of On Market Renunciation. Eligible Equity Shareholders
are requested to ensure that renunciation through off-market transfer is completed
in such a manner that the Rights Entitlements are credited to the demat account of
the Renouncee on or prior to the Issue Closing Date

ISIN for Rights Entitlement i,e. [®]



Term

Rights Entitlement(s)

Rights Entitlement Letter
Self-Certified

Syndicate Banks or
SCSB(s)

Stock Exchanges
Transfer Date

Wilful Defaulter/
Fraudulent Borrower

Working Day(s)

Description

The number of Rights Equity Shares that an Eligible Equity Shareholder is entitled
to in proportion to the number of Equity Shares held by the Eligible Equity
Shareholder on the Record Date, being [e] Rights Equity Shares for [e] Equity
Shares held on [e], [e].

The Rights Entitlements with a separate ISIN: [@] will be credited to your demat
account before the date of opening of the Issue, against the equity shares held by
the Equity Shareholders as on the record date.

Pursuant to the provisions of the SEBI ICDR Regulations and the SEBI Rights
Issue Circular, the Rights Entitlements shall be credited in dematerialized form in
respective demat accounts of the Eligible Equity Shareholders before the Issue
Opening Date

Letter including details of Rights Entitlements of the Eligible Equity Shareholders.
Such branches of the SCSBs which shall collect the ASBA Forms submitted by
ASBA Bidders, a list of which is available on the website of SEBI
at
http://www.sebi.gov.in/sebiweb/other/OtherAction.do?doRecognisedFpi=yes&in
tmlId=35 , updated from time to time, or at such other website as may be prescribed
by SEBI from time to time.

Stock exchanges where the Equity Shares are presently listed, being BSE.

The date on which the Application Money blocked in the ASBA Account will be
transferred to the Allotment Account(s) in respect of successful Applications, upon
finalization of the Basis of Allotment, in consultation with the Designated Stock
Exchange

A Company or person, as the case may be, categorized as a willful defaulter or a
fraudulent borrower by any bank or financial institution or consortium thereof, in
accordance with the guidelines on willful defaulters issued by the RBI, including
any company whose director or promoter is categorized as such

In terms of Regulation 2(1)(mmm) of SEBI ICDR Regulations, working day means
all days on which commercial banks in Delhi are open for business. Further, in
respect of Issue Period, working day means all days, excluding Saturdays, Sundays
and public holidays, on which commercial banks in Delhi are open for business.
Furthermore, the time period between the Issue Closing Date and the listing of
Equity Shares on the Stock Exchanges, working day means all trading days of the
Stock Exchanges, excluding Sundays and bank holidays, as per circulars issued by
SEBI
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Conventional and General Terms/Abbreviations

Term
ll?ll’ IIRS' Yl’ YlRupeesH OI'
IIINRII

Adjusted loans and
advances

AIF(s)

AUM

AY

BSE

CAGR

CDSL

CIN

Companies Act, 1956
Companies Act, 2013
COVID-19

CRAR

CrPC
Depositories Act
Depository

Depository Participant / DP

DP ID
DIN
EBITDA

EGM

EPS

FCNR Account
FDI Circular 2020

FEMA

FEMA Rules

"Financial Year", "Fiscal
Year" or "Fiscal"

FIR

FPIs

Fugitive Economic
Offender

FVCI

GAAP

GDP

"Gol" or "Government"
GST

HFC

HUF

IBC

Description

Indian Rupees

Adjustment in the nature of addition to the loans and advances made in relation to
certain loans which are treated as investments under Ind AS, but considered as loans
by our Company

Alternative investment funds, as defined and registered with SEBI under the
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Alternative Investment Funds)
Regulations, 2012

Assets under management

Assessment year

BSE Limited

Compound annual growth rate

Central Depository Services (India) Limited

Corporate identity number

Erstwhile Companies Act, 1956 along with the rules made thereunder

Companies Act, 2013 along with the rules made thereunder

A public health emergency of international concern as declared by the World
Health Organization on January 30, 2020 and a pandemic on March 11, 2020
Capital adequacy ratio/Capital to risk assets ratio

Code of Criminal Procedure, 1973

Depositories Act, 1996

A depository registered with SEBI under the Securities and Exchange Board of
India (Depositories and Participant) Regulations, 1996

A depository participant as defined under the Depositories Act

Depository participant’s identification

Director Identification Number

Profit/(loss) after tax for the year adjusted for income tax expense, finance costs,
depreciation and amortization expense, as presented in the statement of profit and
loss

Extraordinary General Meeting

Earnings per Equity Share

Foreign currency non-resident account

Consolidated FDI Policy dated October 15, 2020 issued by the Department for
Promotion of Industry and Internal Trade, Ministry of Commerce and Industry,
Government of India

Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999, together with rules and regulations
thereunder

Foreign Exchange Management (Non-debt Instruments) Rules, 2019

Period of 12 months ended March 31 of that particular year, unless otherwise stated

First information report

Foreign portfolio investors as defined under the SEBI FPI Regulations

An individual who is declared a fugitive economic offender under Section 12 of the
Fugitive Economic Offenders Act, 2018

Foreign venture capital investors as defined under and registered with SEBI
pursuant to the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Foreign Venture Capital
Investors) Regulations, 2000 registered with SEBI

Generally accepted accounting principles

Gross domestic product

Government of India

Goods and Service Tax

Housing finance companies

Hindu Undivided Family

Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016



Term

ICAI
Income Tax Act
Ind AS

IFRS

Insider Trading Regulations

ITAT
LTV
MCA
Mutual Fund

"Net Asset Value per

Equity Share" or "NAV per

Equity Share"
Net Worth
NBFC
NCD(s)

NHB

NPAC(s)

NRE Account
NRI

NRO Account
NSDL

"OCB" or "Overseas
Corporate Body"

PAN

PAT

QP

RBI

RBI Act
Regulation S
RoC

RTGS

Rule 144A
SCRA
SCRR

SEBI

SEBI Act
SEBI AIF Regulations

SEBI FPI Regulations

SEBI Listing Regulations

SEBI Relaxation Circulars

Description

Institute of Chartered Accountants of India

Income-Tax Act, 1961

Indian accounting standards as specified under section 133 of the Companies Act
2013 read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules 2015, as amended
International Financial Reporting Standards

Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading)
Regulations, 2015

Income Tax Appellate Tribunal

Loan to value ratio

Ministry of Corporate Affairs

Mutual fund registered with SEBI under the Securities and Exchange Board of
(Mutual Funds) Regulations, 1996

Net Worth/ Number of Equity shares subscribed and fully paid outstanding as at
March 31

Aggregate of Equity Share capital and other equity
Non-banking financial company(ies)

Non-convertible debentures

National housing bank

Non-performing assets

Non-resident external account

A person resident outside India, who is a citizen of India and shall have the same
meaning as ascribed to such term in the Foreign Exchange Management (Deposit)
Regulations, 2016

Non-resident ordinary account

National Securities Depository Limited

A company, partnership, society or other corporate body owned directly or
indirectly to the extent of at least 60% by NRIs including overseas trusts, in which
not less than 60% of beneficial interest is irrevocably held by NRIs directly or
indirectly and which was in existence on October 3, 2003 and immediately before
such date had taken benefits under the general permission granted to OCBs under
FEMA

Permanent account number

Profit after tax

Qualified purchaser as defined in the U.S. Investment Company Act

Reserve Bank of India

Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934

Regulation S under the U.S. Securities Act

Registrar of Companies, NCT Delhi & Haryana

Real time gross settlement

Rule 144A under the U.S. Securities Act

Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956

Securities Contracts (Regulation) Rules, 1957

Securities and Exchange Board of India

Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992

Securities and Exchange Board of India (Alternative Investment Funds)
Regulations, 2012

Securities and Exchange Board of India (Foreign Portfolio Investors) Regulations,
2019

Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015

SEBI circular bearing reference number SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/CIR/P/2020/78
dated May 6, 2020, read with SEBI circulars bearing reference numbers
SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL1/CIR/P/2020/136 ~ dated  July 24, 2020 and
SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL1/CIR/P/2021/13 dated January 19, 2021,
SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/CIR/P/2021/552 dated April 22, 2021 and



Term

SEBI Rights Issue Circulars

SEBI ICDR Regulations

Stock Exchange

STT

Supreme Court

TAT

Takeover Regulations

Total Borrowings

UPI

"U.S.$","USD" or "U.S.
dollar"

U.S. Investment Company
Act

U.S. Person

U.S. QIB

"USA", "U.S. " or "United
States"

U.S. SEC

U.S. Securities Act

VCF

WHO

Description
SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/CIR/P/2021/633 dated October 01, 2021.

Collectively, SEBI circular, bearing reference number
SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/CIR/P/2020/13 dated January 22, 2020, bearing reference
number SEBI/HO/CFD/CIR/CFD/DIL/67/2020 dated April 21, 2020 and the SEBI
circular bearing reference number SEBI/HO/CFD/SSEP/CIR/P/2022/66 dated May
19, 2022 and any other circular(s) issued by SEBI in this regard

Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2018

BSE

Securities transaction tax

Supreme Court of India

Turnaround time

Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and
Takeovers) Regulations, 2011

Aggregate of debt securities, borrowings (other than debt securities) and
subordinated liabilities

Unified Payments Interface

United States Dollar, the legal currency of the United States of America

Investment Company Act of 1940, as amended

U.S. persons as defined in Regulation S under the U.S. Securities Act or acting for
the account or benefit of U.S. persons (not relying on Rule 902(k)(1)(viii)(B) or Rule
902(k)(2)(i) of Regulation S)

Qualified institutional buyer as defined in Rule 144A under the U.S. Securities Act

United States of America

U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission

U.S. Securities Act of 1933, as amended

Venture capital fund as defined and registered with SEBI under the Securities and
Exchange Board of India (Venture Capital Fund) Regulations, 1996 or the SEBI
AIF Regulations, as the case may be

World Health Organization



NOTICE TO INVESTORS

The distribution of this Draft Letter of Offer, Letter of Offer, the Abridged Letter of Offer, Application Form and
Rights Entitlement Letter and the issue of Rights Entitlement and Rights Equity Shares to persons in certain
jurisdictions outside India may be restricted by legal requirements prevailing in those jurisdictions. Persons into
whose possession this Draft Letter of Offer, the Abridged Letter of Offer or Application Form may come are
required to inform themselves about and observe such restrictions.

Our Company is making this Issue on a rights basis to the Eligible Equity Shareholders and will dispatch through
email and courier this Draft Letter of Offer/ Letter of Offer, Abridged Letter of Offer, Application Form and
Rights Entitlement Letter only to Eligible Equity Shareholders who have a registered address in India or who
have provided an Indian address to our Company. Further, this Draft Letter of Offer will be provided, through
email and courier, by the Registrar on behalf of our Company to the Eligible Equity Shareholders who have
provided their Indian addresses to our Company or who are located in jurisdictions where the offer and sale of
the Rights Equity Shares is permitted under laws of such jurisdictions and in each case who make a request in
this regard. Investors can also access this Draft Letter of Offer, Letter of Offer, the Abridged Letter of Offer and
the Application Form from the websites of the Registrar, our Company, the Stock Exchanges. Those overseas
shareholders who do not update our records with their Indian address or the address of their duly authorized
representative in India, prior to the date on which we propose to dispatch the Issue Materials, shall not be sent
any Issue Materials.

No action has been or will be taken to permit the Issue in any jurisdiction where action would be required for
that purpose. Accordingly, the Rights Entitlements or Rights Equity Shares may not be offered or sold, directly
or indirectly, and this Draft Letter of Offer, Letter of Offer, the Abridged Letter of Offer or any offering materials
or advertisements in connection with the Issue may not be distributed, in whole or in part, in any jurisdiction,
except in accordance with legal requirements applicable in such jurisdiction. Receipt of this Draft Letter of Offer
or the Letter of Offer or the Abridged Letter of Offer will not constitute an offer in those jurisdictions in which
it would be illegal to make such an offer and, in those circumstances, this Draft Letter of Offer, Letter of Offer
and the Abridged Letter of Offer must be treated as sent for information purposes only and should not be acted
upon for subscription to the Rights Equity Shares and should not be copied or redistributed. Accordingly, persons
receiving a copy of this Draft Letter of Offer or the Letter of Offer or the Abridged Letter of Offer or Application
Form should not, in connection with the issue of the Rights Equity Shares or the Rights Entitlements, distribute
or send this Draft Letter of Offer or the Letter of Offer or the Abridged Letter of Offer to any person outside
India where to do so, would or might contravene local securities laws or regulations. If this Draft Letter of Offer
or the Letter of Offer or the Abridged Letter of Offer or Application Form is received by any person in any such
jurisdiction, or by their agent or nominee, they must not seek to subscribe to the Rights Equity Shares or the
Rights Entitlements referred to in this Draft Letter of Offer or the Letter of Offer or the Abridged Letter of Offer
or the Application Form.

Any person who makes an application to acquire the Rights Entitlements or the Rights Equity Shares offered in
the Issue will be deemed to have declared, represented, warranted and agreed that such person is authorised to
acquire the Rights Entitlements or the Rights Equity Shares in compliance with all applicable laws and
regulations prevailing in his jurisdiction. Our Company, the Registrar or any other person acting on behalf of our
Company reserves the right to treat any Application Form as invalid where they believe that Application Form
is incomplete or acceptance of such Application Form may infringe applicable legal or regulatory requirements
and we shall not be bound to allot or issue any Rights Equity Shares or Rights Entitlement in respect of any such
Application Form.

Neither the delivery of this Draft Letter of Offer or the Letter of Offer the Abridged Letter of Offer, Application
Form and Rights Entitlement Letter nor any sale hereunder, shall, under any circumstances, create any
implication that there has been no change in our Company’s affairs from the date hereof or the date of such
information or that the information contained herein is correct as at any time subsequent to the date of this Draft
Letter of Offer , Letter of Offer and the Abridged Letter of Offer and the Application Form and Rights Entitlement
Letter or the date of such information.

THE CONTENTS OF THIS DRAFT LETTER OF OFFER SHOULD NOT BE CONSTRUED AS
LEGAL, TAX OR INVESTMENT ADVICE. PROSPECTIVE INVESTORS MAY BE SUBJECT TO
ADVERSE FOREIGN, STATE OR LOCAL TAX OR LEGAL CONSEQUENCES AS A RESULT OF
THE ISSUE OF RIGHTS OF EQUITY SHARES OR RIGHTS ENTITLEMENTS. ACCORDINGLY,
EACH INVESTOR SHOULD CONSULT THEIR OWN COUNSEL, BUSINESS ADVISOR AND TAX



ADVISOR AS TO THE LEGAL, BUSINESS, TAX AND RELATED MATTERS CONCERNING THE
ISSUE OF EQUITY SHARES. IN ADDITION, OUR COMPANY IS NOT MAKING ANY
REPRESENTATION TO ANY OFFEREE OR PURCHASER OF THE EQUITY SHARES
REGARDING THE LEGALITY OF AN INVESTMENT IN THE EQUITY SHARES BY SUCH
OFFEREE OR PURCHASER UNDER ANY APPLICABLE LAWS OR REGULATIONS.

NO OFFER IN THE UNITED STATES

The Rights Entitlements and the Rights Equity Shares have not been and will not be registered under the
Securities Act or the securities laws of any state of the United States and may not be offered or sold in the United
States of America or the territories or possessions thereof ("United States™), except in a transaction not subject
to, or exempt from, the registration requirements of the Securities Act and applicable state securities laws. The
offering to which this Draft Letter of Offer relates is not, and under no circumstances is to be construed as, an
offering of any Rights Equity Shares or Rights Entitlement for sale in the United States or as a solicitation therein
of an offer to buy any of the Rights Equity Shares or Rights Entitlement. There is no intention to register any
portion of the Issue or any of the securities described herein in the United States or to conduct a public offering
of securities in the United States. Accordingly, this Draft Letter of Offer/Letter of Offer, Abridged Letter of Offer
and the enclosed Application Form and Rights Entitlement Letters should not be forwarded to or transmitted in
or into the United States at any time. In addition, until the expiry of 40 days after the commencement of the Issue,
an offer or sale of Rights Entitlements or Rights Equity Shares within the United States by a dealer (whether or
not it is participating in the Issue) may violate the registration requirements of the Securities Act.

Neither our Company nor any person acting on our behalf will accept a subscription or renunciation from any
person, or the agent of any person, who appears to be, or who our Company or any person acting on our behalf
has reason to believe is in the United States when the buy order is made. Envelopes containing an Application
Form and Rights Entitlement Letter should not be postmarked in the United States or otherwise dispatched from
the United States or any other jurisdiction where it would be illegal to make an offer, and all persons subscribing
for the Rights Equity Shares Issue and wishing to hold such Equity Shares in registered form must provide an
address for registration of these Equity Shares in India. Our Company is making the Issue on a rights basis to
Eligible Equity Shareholders and this Draft Letter of Offer / Letter of Offer, Abridged Letter of Offer and
Application Form and Rights Entitlement Letter will be dispatched only to Eligible Equity Shareholders who
have an Indian address. Any person who acquires Rights Entitlements and the Rights Equity Shares will be
deemed to have declared, represented, warranted and agreed that, (i) it is not and that at the time of subscribing
for such Rights Equity Shares or the Rights Entitlements, it will not be, in the United States, and (ii) it is
authorized to acquire the Rights Entitlements and the Rights Equity Shares in compliance with all applicable
laws and regulations.

Our Company reserves the right to treat any Application Form as invalid which: (i) does not include the
certification set out in the Application Form to the effect that the subscriber is authorised to acquire the Rights
Equity Shares or Rights Entitlement in compliance with all applicable laws and regulations; (ii) appears to us or
our agents to have been executed in or dispatched from the United States; (iii) where a registered Indian address
is not provided; or (iv) where our Company believes that Application Form is incomplete or acceptance of such
Application Form may infringe applicable legal or regulatory requirements; and our Company shall not be bound
to allot or issue any Rights Equity Shares or Rights Entitlement in respect of any such Application Form.

Rights Entitlements may not be transferred or sold to any person in the United States.

The Rights Entitlements and the Equity Shares have not been approved or disapproved by the US Securities and
Exchange Commission (the "US SEC"), any state securities commission in the United States or any other US
regulatory authority, nor have any of the foregoing authorities passed upon or endorsed the merits of the offering
of the Rights Entitlements, the Equity Shares or the accuracy or adequacy of this Draft Letter of Offer.

Any representation to the contrary is a criminal offence in the United States.

The above information is given for the benefit of the Applicants / Investors. Our Company and the Advisor to the
Issue are not liable for any amendments or modification or changes in applicable laws or regulations, which may
occur after the date of this Draft Letter of Offer. Investors are advised to make their independent investigations
and ensure that the number of Rights Equity Shares applied for do not exceed the applicable limits under the
applicable laws or regulations.
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THIS DOCUMENT IS SOLELY FOR THE USE OF THE PERSON WHO RECEIVED IT FROM OUR
COMPANY OR FROM THE ADVISOR TO THE ISSUE OR FROM THE REGISTRAR. THIS
DOCUMENT IS NOT TO BE REPRODUCED OR DISTRIBUTED TO ANY OTHER PERSON.

ENFORCEMENT OF CIVIL LIABILITIES

The Company is a Public Limited (Listed) Company under the laws of India and all the Directors and all Executive
Officers are residents of India. It may not be possible or may be difficult for investors to affect service of process
upon the Company or these other persons outside India or to enforce against them in courts in India, judgments
obtained in courts outside India. India is not a party to any international treaty in relation to the automatic
recognition or enforcement of foreign judgments.

However, recognition and enforcement of foreign judgments is provided for under Sections 13, 14 and 44 A of the
Code of Civil Procedure, 1908, as amended (the “Civil Procedure Code”). Section 44A of the Civil Procedure
Code provides that where a certified copy of a decree of any superior court (within the meaning of that section)
in any country or territory outside India which the Government of India has by notification declared to be a
reciprocating territory, is filed before a district court in India, such decree may be executed in India as if the decree
has been rendered by a district court in India. Section 44A of the Civil Procedure Code is applicable only to
monetary decrees or judgments not being in the nature of amounts payable in respect of taxes or other charges of
a similar nature or in respect of fines or other penalties. Section 44A of the Civil Procedure Code does not apply
to arbitration awards even if such awards are enforceable as a decree or judgment. Among others, the United
Kingdom, Singapore, Hong Kong and the United Arab Emirates have been declared by the Government of India
to be reciprocating territories within the meaning of Section 44 A of the Civil Procedure Code.

The United States has not been declared by the Government of India to be a reciprocating territory for the purposes
of Section 44A of the Civil Procedure Code. Under Section 14 of the Civil Procedure Code, an Indian court shall,
on production of any document purporting to be a certified copy of a foreign judgment, presume that the judgment
was pronounced by a court of competent jurisdiction unless the contrary appears on the record; but such
presumption may be displaced by proving want of jurisdiction.

A judgment of a court in any non-reciprocating territory, such as the United States, may be enforced in India only
by a suit upon the judgment subject to Section 13 of the Civil Procedure Code, and not by proceedings in
execution. Section 13 of the Civil Procedure Code, which is the statutory basis for the recognition of foreign
judgments (other than arbitration awards), states that a foreign judgment shall be conclusive as to any matter
directly adjudicated upon between the same parties or between parties under whom they or any of them claim
litigating under the same title except where:

e  The judgment has not been pronounced by a court of competent jurisdiction;

e The judgment has not been given on the merits of the case;

e The judgment appears on the face of the proceedings to be founded on an incorrect view of international
law or a refusal to recognize the law of India in cases where such law is applicable;

e The proceedings in which the judgment was obtained are opposed to natural justice;

e  The judgment has been obtained by fraud; and/or

e  The judgment sustains a claim founded on a breach of any law in force in India.

A suit to enforce a foreign judgment must be brought in India within three years from the date of the judgment in
the same manner as any other suit filed to enforce a civil liability in India. It is unlikely that a court in India would
award damages on the same basis as a foreign court if an action is brought in India. In addition, it is unlikely that
an Indian court would enforce foreign judgments if it considered the amount of damages awarded as excessive or
inconsistent with public policy or if the judgments are in breach of or contrary to Indian law. A party seeking to
enforce a foreign judgment in India is required to obtain prior approval from the Reserve Bank of India to
repatriate any amount recovered pursuant to execution of such judgment. Any judgment in a foreign currency
would be converted into Rupees on the date of such judgment and not on the date of payment and any such amount
may be subject to income tax in accordance with applicable laws. The Company cannot predict whether a suit
brought in an Indian court will be disposed of in a timely manner or be subject to considerable delays.
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PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL AND OTHER INFORMATION
Certain Conventions

All references to "India" contained in this Draft Letter of Offer are to the Republic of India and its territories and
possessions and all references herein to the "Government", "Indian Government", "Gol", Central Government"
or the "State Government" are to the Government of India, central or state, as applicable.

Unless otherwise specified or the context otherwise requires, all references in this Draft Letter of Offer to the
‘US’ or ‘U.S.” or the ‘United States’ are to the United States of America and its territories and possessions.

Unless otherwise specified, any time mentioned in this Draft Letter of Offer is in Indian Standard Time ("IST").
Unless indicated otherwise, all references to a year in this Draft Letter of Offer are to a calendar year.

A reference to the singular also refers to the plural and one gender also refers to any other gender, wherever
applicable.

Unless stated otherwise, all references to page numbers in this Draft Letter of Offer are to the page numbers of
this Draft Letter of Offer.

Financial Data

Unless stated otherwise or the context otherwise requires, the financial information and financial ratios in this
Draft Letter of Offer has been derived from our Restated Financial Statements. For details, please see "Restated
Financial Information" beginning on page 104 of this Draft Letter of Offer. Our Company’s financial year
commences on April 1 and ends on March 31 of the next year. Accordingly, all references to a particular financial
year, unless stated otherwise, are to the twelve (12) month period ended on March 31 of that year.

The Gol has adopted the Ind AS, which are converged with the IFRS and notified under Section 133 of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with the Ind AS Rules. The Restated Financial Statements of our Company for the
Financial Years ended March 2021 and March 2022 and Year ended March 31, 2023 have been prepared in
accordance with Ind AS read with the Ind AS Rules and other the relevant provisions of the Companies Act,
2013 and restated in accordance with the SEBI ICDR Regulations and the Guidance Note on Reports in Company
Prospectuses (revised), 2019, issued by the ICAL

The Restated Financial Statements of our Company for the Financial Years ended March 2023, 2022 and 2021
prepared in accordance with Ind AS as prescribed under Section 133 of Companies Act read with the Ind AS
Rules and other the relevant provisions of the Companies Act and restated in accordance with the SEBI ICDR
Regulations and the Guidance Note on Reports in Company Prospectuses (revised), 2019, issued by the ICAIL
Our Company publishes its financial statements in Rupees.

In this Draft Letter of Offer, any discrepancies in any table between the total and the sums of the amounts listed
are due to rounding off and unless otherwise specified all financial numbers in parenthesis represent negative
figures. Our Company has presented all numerical information in the Restated Financial Statements in whole
numbers and in this Draft Letter of Offer in “lakh’ units or in whole numbers where the numbers have been too
small to represent in lakh. One lakh represents 1,00,000 and one million represents 1,000,000.

There are significant differences between Ind AS, US GAAP and IFRS. We have not provided a reconciliation
of the financial information to IFRS or US GAAP. Our Company has not attempted to also explain those
differences or quantify their impact on the financial data included in this Draft Letter of Offer, and you are urged
to consult your own advisors regarding such differences and their impact on our financial data. Accordingly, the
degree to which the financial information included in this Draft Letter of Offer will provide meaningful
information is entirely dependent on the reader’s level of familiarity with Indian accounting policies and
practices, Ind AS, the Companies Act and the SEBI ICDR Regulations. Any reliance by persons not familiar
with these accounting principles and regulations on our financial disclosures presented in this Draft Letter of
Offer should accordingly be limited. For further information, see “Financial Information” beginning on page
104 of this Draft Letter of Offer.
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Certain figures contained in this Draft Letter of Offer, including financial information, have been subject to
rounded off adjustments. All figures in decimals (including percentages) have been rounded off to one or two
decimals. However, where any figures that may have been sourced from third-party industry sources are rounded
off to other than two decimal points in their respective sources, such figures appear in this Draft Letter of Offer
rounded-off to such number of decimal points as provided in such respective sources. In this Draft Letter of
Offer, (i) the sum or percentage change of certain numbers may not conform exactly to the total figure given;
and (ii) the sum of the numbers in a column or row in certain tables may not conform exactly to the total figure
given for that column or row. Any such discrepancies are due to rounding off.

Currency and Units of Presentation

All references to:

. “Rupees” or “X” or “INR” or “Rs.” are to Indian Rupee, the official currency of the Republic of India;
and
. “USD” or “US$” or “$” are to United States Dollar, the official currency of the United States of America.

Our Company has presented certain numerical information in this Draft Letter of Offer in “lakh” or “Lac” units
or in whole numbers. One lakh represents 1,00,000 and one million represents 1,000,000. All the numbers in the
document have been presented in lakh or in whole numbers where the numbers have been too small to present in
lakh. Any percentage amounts, as set forth in “Risk Factors”, “Our Business”, “Management’s Discussion and
Analysis of Financial Conditions and Results of Operation” beginning on pages 22, 87, and 180 and elsewhere
in this Draft Letter of Offer, unless otherwise indicated, have been calculated based on our Financial Information.

Exchange Rates

This Draft Letter of Offer contains conversions of certain other currency amounts into Indian Rupees that have
been presented solely to comply with the SEBI ICDR Regulations. These conversions should not be construed
as a representation that these currency amounts could have been, or can be converted into Indian Rupees, at any
particular rate or at all.

The following table sets forth, for the periods indicated, information with respect to the exchange rate between
the Indian Rupee and other foreign currencies:

(in%)
Sr. No. Name of the Exchange rate as on
Currency March 31,2023 March 31, 2022 March 31,2021  March 31, 2020
1. United States 82.21 75.80 73.53 75.38
Dollar

(Source: www.rbi.org.in and www.fbil.org.in)
Industry and Market Data

Unless stated otherwise, industry and market data used in this Draft Letter of Offer has been obtained or derived
from publicly available information as well as industry publications and sources.

Industry publications generally state that the information contained in such publications has been obtained from
publicly available documents from various sources believed to be reliable but their accuracy and completeness
are not guaranteed and their reliability cannot be assured.

Although we believe the industry and market data used in this Draft Letter of Offer is reliable, it has not been
independently verified by us. The data used in these sources may have been reclassified by us for the purposes
of presentation. Data from these sources may also not be comparable. Such data involves risks, uncertainties and
numerous assumptions and is subject to change based on various factors, including those discussed in “Risk
Factors” beginning on page 22 of this Draft Letter of Offer. Accordingly, investment decisions should not be
based solely on such information.

The extent to which the market and industry data used in this Draft Letter of Offer is meaningful depends
on the reader’s familiarity with and understanding of the methodologies used in compiling such data. There
are no standard data gathering methodologies in the industry in which the business of our Company is
conducted, and methodologies and assumptions may vary widely among different industry sources.
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FORWARD LOOKING STATEMENTS

This Draft Letter of Offer contains certain “forward-looking statements”. Forward looking statements appear
throughout this Draft Letter of Offer, including, without limitation, under the chapters titled “Risk Factors”, “Our
Business” and “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” and
“Industry Overview”. Forward-looking statements include statements concerning our Company’s plans,
objectives, goals, strategies, future events, future revenues or financial performance, capital expenditures,
financing needs, plans or intentions relating to acquisitions, our Company’s competitive strengths and weaknesses,
our Company’s business strategy and the trends our Company anticipates in the industries and the political and
legal environment, and geographical locations, in which our Company operates, and other information that is not
historical information. These forward-looking statements generally can be identified by words or phrases such as

[T L RT3 LR N3 113 2

aim”, “anticipate”, “believe”, “continue”, “can”, “could”, “expect”, “estimate”, “intend”, “likely”, “may”,

“objective”, “plan”, “potential”, “project”, “pursue”, “shall”, “seek to”, “will”, “will continue”, “will pursue”,
9 <

“forecast”, “target”, or other words or phrases of similar import. Similarly, statements that describe the strategies,
objectives, plans or goals of our Company are also forward-looking statements.

However, these are not the exclusive means of identifying forward-looking statements. All statements regarding
our Company’s expected financial conditions, results of operations, business plans and prospects are forward-
looking statements. These forward-looking statements include statements as to our Company’s business strategy,
planned projects, revenue and profitability (including, without limitation, any financial or operating projections
or forecasts), new business and other matters discussed in this Draft Letter of Offer that are not historical facts.
These forward-looking statements contained in this Draft Letter of Offer (whether made by our Company or any
third party), are predictions and involve known and unknown risks, uncertainties, assumptions and other factors
that may cause the actual results, performance or achievements of our Company to be materially different from
any future results, performance or achievements expressed or implied by such forward-looking statements or other
projections.

Actual results may differ materially from those suggested by the forward-looking statements due to risks
or uncertainties associated with our expectations with respect to, but not limited to, regulatory changes pertaining
to the industry in which our Company operates and our ability to respond to them, our ability to
successfully implement our strategy, our growth and expansion, the competition in our industry and markets,
technological changes, our exposure to market risks, general economic and political conditions in India and
globally which have an impact on our business activities or investments, the monetary and fiscal policies of India,
inflation, deflation, unanticipated turbulence in interest rates, foreign exchange rates, equity prices or other
rates or prices, the performance of the financial markets in India and globally, changes in laws, regulations and
taxes, incidence of natural calamities and/or acts of violence. Important factors that could cause actual results
to differ materially from our Company’s expectations include, but are not limited to, the following:

. Uncertainty of the continuing impact of the COVID-19 pandemic on our business and operations;

. As an NBFC, we are subject to periodic inspections by the RBI. Non-compliance with observations made
by RBI during these inspections could expose us to penalties and restrictions;

. We operate in a highly competitive industry and our inability to compete effectively may adversely affect
our business;

. Our business will require substantial funds, and any disruption in funding sources would have a material
adverse effect on our liquidity and financial condition;

. We are affected by volatility in interest rates for both our lending and fund raisings operations, which

could cause our net interest income to decline and adversely affect our results of operations and
profitability; and

. We depend on the accuracy and completeness of information about customers and counterparties for
certain key elements of our credit assessment and risk management process. Any misrepresentation,
errors in or incompleteness of such information could adversely affect our business and financial

performance.

. Any increase in the levels of NPAs in our loan portfolio, for any reason whatsoever, would adversely
affect our business and results of operations;

. Any volatility in interest rates which could cause our gross spreads to decline and consequently affect
our profitability;

. Changes in the value of Rupee and other currency changes;
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. The outcome of any legal or regulatory proceedings we are or may become a party to;

. Changes in Indian and/or foreign laws and regulations, including tax, accounting, banking, securities,
insurance and other regulations;

. Changes in the pricing environment in India; and regional or general changes in asset valuations;

. Any changes in connection with policies, statutory provisions, regulations and/or RBI directions in
connection with NBFCs, including laws that impact our lending rates and our ability to enforce our
collateral;

. Emergence of new competitors;

. Potential mergers, acquisitions or restructurings;

. Occurrence of natural calamities or natural disasters affecting the areas in which our Company has
operations;

. Availability of adequate debt and equity financing at commercially acceptable terms;

. General, political, economic, social and business conditions in Indian and other global markets;

. Significant competition in our businesses may limit our growth and prospects;

. Dependence on a number of key management personnel and senior management personnel and our

ability to attract and retain qualified personnel;

. Our risk management and internal controls, as well as the risk management tools available to us, may
not be adequate or effective in identifying or mitigating risks to which we are exposed; and
. Claims by clients or actions by regulators or both for alleged mis-selling.

For further discussion of factors that could cause the actual results to differ from our estimates and expectations,
see "Risk Factors", "Our Business" and "Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Position and
Results of Operations" beginning on pages 22, 87 and 180 respectively, of this Draft Letter of Offer. By their
nature, certain market risk disclosures are only estimates and could be materially different from what actually
occurs in the future. As a result, actual gains or losses could materially differ from those that have been estimated.

We cannot assure investors that the expectations reflected in these forward-looking statements will prove to be
correct. Given these uncertainties, investors are cautioned not to place undue reliance on such forward-looking
statements and not to regard such statements as a guarantee of future performance.

Forward-looking statements reflect the current views of our Company as of the date of this Draft Letter of Offer
and are not a guarantee of future performance. These statements are based on the management’s beliefs and
assumptions, which in turn are based on currently available information. Although we believe the assumptions
upon which these forward-looking statements are based are reasonable, any of these assumptions could prove to
be inaccurate, and the forward-looking statements based on these assumptions could be incorrect. Neither our
Company, our Directors, our Promoter, the Syndicate Member(s) nor any of their respective affiliates or advisors
have any obligation to update or otherwise revise any statements reflecting circumstances arising after the date
hereof or to reflect the occurrence of underlying events, even if the underlying assumptions do not come to
fruition.

In accordance with the SEBI ICDR Regulations, our Company will ensure that investors are informed of material

developments from the date of this Draft Letter of Offer until the time of receipt of the listing and trading
permissions from the Stock Exchange.
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SECTION II- SUMMARY OF DRAFT LETTER OF OFFER

The following is a general summary of the terms of this Issue, and should be read in conjunction with and is
qualified by the more detailed information appearing in this Draft Letter of Offer, including the sections titled
“Risk Factors”, “The Issue”, “Capital Structure”, “Objects of the Issue”, “Industry Overview”, “Our Business”,
“Outstanding Litigation and Defaults” and “Terms of the Issue” beginning on pages 22, 43, 51, 54, 62, 87, 186
and 199 respectively of this Draft Letter of Offer.

1.

Summary of Industry

Non-Banking Financial Institutions form an integral part of the Indian financial ecosystem. They provide
underbanked/unbanked individuals and MSMEs an opportunity to be a part of the financial mainstream.
They have been successful in bridging the credit gap for the entire spectrum of customers ranging from
high ticket structured loans to corporates/HNIs to microfinance customers, due to their higher risk
underwriting capacity, superior credit assessment skills and deep understanding of customers. They have
emerged as a vehicle for financing business activities that Banks neglected due to regulatory restrictions
such as credit exposure constraints and sector concentration norms.

NBFC is a Financial Institution that is into Lending or Investment or collecting monies under any scheme
or arrangement but does not include any institutions which carry on its principal business as agriculture
activity, industrial activity, trading and purchase or sale of immovable properties. A company that carries
on the business of accepting deposits as its principal business is also an NBFC.

India has a diversified financial sector undergoing rapid expansion, both in terms of the strong growth of
existing financial services firms and new entities entering the market. The sector comprises commercial
banks, insurance companies, non-banking financial companies, co-operatives, pension funds, mutual
funds, and other smaller financial entities. The banking regulator has allowed new entities such as
payments banks to be created recently thereby adding to the types of entities operating in the sector.
Sources: https://www.legalserviceindia.com/legal/article-5832-an-overview-of-non-banking-financial-
service-institutions.html

For details, please refer to chapter titled “Industry Overview” on page 62 of this Draft Letter of Offer.
Summary of Business

We are a Non-Deposit Accepting Non-Banking Financial Company (NBFC) registered with RBI to carry
on the NBFC activities under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 bearing Registration
no. B- 14.00724 dated January 07, 2003 and August 24, 2017. Our Company is engaged primarily in the
business of providing financial loans and in providing ancillary services related to the said business
activities.

For details, please refer to chapter titled “Our Business” on page 87 of this Draft Letter of Offer.

Our Promoter

The Promoter of our Company is Mr. Vikas Garg & Ms. Seema Garg*
* Company was acquired by abovementioned promoters through Share Purchase Agreement (SPA) dated May 18, 2022, and Letter
of Offer dated February 6, 2023 in terms of Regulation 3(1) and Regulation 4 of SEBI (SAST) Regulations, 2011.

For further details please see chapter titled “Our Promoters” beginning on page 100 of this Draft Letter
of Offer.

Objects of the Issue
The Net Proceeds are proposed to be used in the manner set out in the following table:
<in lakhs)

S. Particulars Total estimated amount
No. to be utilized (% in lakhs)
1.  To augment our capital base for our Company 3,675.00
2. General Corporate Purposes 1,225.00
Total 4,900.00

For further details, please see chapter titled “Objects of the Issue” beginning on page no 54 of this Draft
Letter of Offer.
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Intention and extent of participation by our Promoter and Promoter Group in the Issue

Our Promoters had expressed their intention to subscribe, jointly and/ or severally to the extent of our
Rights Entitlement and subscribe to the full extent of any Rights Entitlement that may be renounced in
favour one promoter by another promoter of our Company. Accordingly, in terms of the SEBI ICDR
Regulations, the requirement of minimum subscription to the Issue become not applicable.

Further, we may renounce a part of Our Rights Entitlement in favour of third parties as well. The extent of
renouncement in favour of third party, if any, shall be finalized before the filing of ‘Letter of Offer’ with
Stock Exchanges. In the event, if we decide to renounce our Right Entitlement in favour of third parties,
the minimum subscription condition as stipulated under Regulation 86 (1) of the SEBI ICDR Regulations
might apply to the Issue.

Summary of Financial Information

Following are the details as per the Restated Consolidated Financial Information as at and for Financial
Years ended on March 31, 2023, March 31, 2022, and for year ended March 31, 2021:

(Tin lakhs)
Particulars March 31,2023 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Authorised Share Capital* 2500.00 2500.00 458.74
Paid-up Capital 2201.93 458.74 458.74
Net Worth attributable to Equity 5859.63 957.8 916.05
Shareholders**
Total Revenue 60,428.92 4645.90 625.86
Profit after tax 935.50 44.37 7.34
Total other comprehensive (896.82) - -
income/(loss) for the year
Total Comprehensive income/(Loss) 38.68 44.37 7.34
for the year
Earnings per Share (basic & diluted) 0.10 0.10 0.02
(in )
Net Ass et Value per Equity Share 2.66 2.09 2.00
(in )
Total Borrowings 7512.69 469.02 282.92

*Authorized share Capital has been increased from 50 Cr. to 75 Cr. through the Postal Ballot Notice Dated 11/04/2023.
** Net worth attributable to Equity Shareholders are excluded the Non-Controlling interest.

Following are the details as per the Restated Standalone Financial Information as at and for Financial
Years ended on March 31, 2023, March 31, 2022, and for year ended March 31, 2021:

Particulars March 31,2023 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Authorised Share Capital™* 2500.00 2500.00 458.74
Paid-up Capital 2,201.93 458.74 458.74
Net Worth attributable to Equity 5,865.45 944.22 905.48
Shareholders

Total Revenue 34,927.11 3,949.52 47.71
Profit after tax 954.61 38.74 3.61
Total other comprehensive income (896.82) - -
Total Comprehensive 57.79 38.74 3.61
Income/(Loss) for the period

Earnings per Share (basic & diluted) 0.03 0.08 0.01
(in )

Net Asset Value per Equity Share 2.66 2.06 1.97
(in )

Total Borrowings 7,259.20 288.70 -

*Authorized share Capital has been increased from 50 Cr. to 75 Cr. through the Postal Ballot Notice Dated 11/04/2023.
** Net worth attributable to Equity Shareholders are excluded the Non-Controlling interest
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Summary of Outstanding Litigations:

A summary of outstanding litigation proceedings involving our Company, our Directors, our Promoter
and Subsidiaries as on the date of this Draft Letter of Offer is provided below:

(Zin lakhs)
Nature of Cases Number of outstanding Amount Involved*
cases
Litigation involving our Company
Criminal proceedings against our Company Nil Nil
Criminal proceedings by our Company Nil Nil
Material civil litigation against Company Nil Nil
Material civil litigation by our Company Nil Nil
Actions by statutory or regulatory authorities Nil Nil
Direct and indirect tax proceedings Nil Nil
Litigation involving our Directors
Criminal proceedings against our Directors Nil Nil
Criminal proceedings by our Directors Nil Nil
Material civil litigation against our Directors Nil Nil
Material civil litigation by our Directors Nil Nil
Actions by statutory or regulatory authorities Nil Nil
Direct and indirect tax proceedings Nil Nil
Litigation involving our Promoter
Criminal proceedings against our Promoter Nil Nil
Criminal proceedings by our Promoter Nil Nil
Material civil litigation against our Promoter Nil Nil
Material civil litigation by our Promoter Nil Nil
Actions by statutory or regulatory authorities Nil Nil
Direct and indirect tax proceedings Nil Nil
Litigation involving our Subsidiaries
Criminal proceedings against Promoter Nil Nil
Criminal proceedings by Promoter Nil Nil
Material civil litigation against Promoter Nil Nil
Material civil litigation by Promoter Nil Nil
Actions by statutory or regulatory authorities Nil Nil
Direct and indirect tax proceedings Nil Nil

* To the extent quantifiable.

For details, please refer to chapter titled “Qutstanding Litigations and Defaults” on page 186 of this
Draft Letter of Offer.

Risk Factors:

For details of potential risks associated with our ongoing business activities and industry, investment in
Equity Shares of the Company, material litigations which impact the business of the Company and other
economic factors please see “Risk Factors” on page 22 of this Draft Letter of Offer.

Summary of Contingent Liabilities

Following are the details as per the Restated Consolidated Financial Information for the Year ended
March 31, 2023, March 31, 2022, and March 31, 2021.

(Zin lakhs)
Particulars As at As at As at
March 31,2023 | March 31,2022 | March 31, 2021
Claims against the Company not Nil Nil Nil
acknowledged as debt
Collateral Security against 142.84 142.84 Nil
subsidiaries
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10.

11.

12.

Other money for which the Nil Nil Nil
Company is contingently liable
Commitments Nil Nil Nil

Following are the details as per the Restated Standalone Financial Information for the Year ended March

31, 2023, March 31, 2022, and March 31, 2021.

(%in lakhs)

Particulars As at As at As at

March 31, March 31, March 31,

2023 2022 2021
Claims against the Company not acknowledged Nil Nil Nil
as debt
Collateral Security against subsidiaries 142.84 142.84 Nil
Other money for which the Company is Nil Nil Nil
contingently liable
Commitments Nil Nil Nil

Summary of Related Party Transactions

Please refer “Financial Information” beginning on page 104 of the Financial Information in this Draft

Letter of Offer.

Issue of equity shares made in last one year for consideration other than cash

Our Company has not made any issuances of Equity Shares in the last one year for consideration other

than cash.

Split or consolidation of Equity Shares in the last one year

Our Company has not carried any split or consolidation of Equity Shares in last one year.

20



This place has been left blank intentionally

21



SECTION III- RISK FACTORS

An investment in the Equity Shares involves a high degree of risk. You should carefully consider all the information
in this Draft Letter of Offer, including the risks and uncertainties described below, before making an investment
in the Equity Shares. In making an investment decision, prospective investors must rely on their own examination
of us and the terms of the Issue including the merits and risks involved. The risks described below are not the only
ones relevant to us, our Equity Shares, the industry or the segment in which we operate.

Additional risks and uncertainties, not presently known to us or that we currently deem immaterial may arise or
may become material in the future and may also impair our business, results of operations and financial condition.
If any of the following risks, or other risks that are not currently known or are now deemed immaterial, actually
occur, our business, results of operations, cash flows and financial condition could be adversely affected, the
trading price of our Equity Shares could decline, and as prospective investors, you may lose all or part of your
investment. You should consult your tax, financial and legal advisors about particular consequences to you of an
investment in this Issue. The financial and other related implications of the risk factors, wherever quantifiable,
have been disclosed in the risk factor mentioned below. However, there are certain risk factors where the
financial impact is not quantifiable and, therefore, cannot be disclosed in such risk factors.

To obtain a complete understanding, you should read this section in conjunction with the sections “Industry
Overview”, “Our Business” and “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Position and Results of
Operations” on pages 62, 87 and 180 of this Draft Letter of Offer, respectively. The industry-related information
disclosed in this section has been derived from publicly available documents from various sources believed to be
reliable, but their accuracy and completeness are not guaranteed and their reliability cannot be assured. Neither
our Company, nor any other person connected with the Issue, has independently verified the information in the
industry report or other publicly available information cited in this section. This Draft Letter of Offer also contain

forward-looking statements that involve risks, assumptions, estimates and uncertainties. Our actual results could
differ materially from those anticipated in these forward-looking statements as a result of certain factors,

including the considerations described below and, in the section titled “Forward-Looking Statements” on page
14 of this Draft Letter of Offer

Unless specified or quantified in the relevant risk factors below, we are not in a position to quantify the financial
or other implications of any of the risks described in this section. Unless the context requires otherwise, the
financial information of our Company has been derived from the Financial Information and the Limited Review
Financial Information, prepared in accordance with Ind AS, the Companies Act and SEBI ICDR Regulations.

Materiality:

The Risk Factors have been determined on the basis of their materiality. The following factors have been
considered for determining the materiality of Risk Factors:

*Some events may not be material individually but may be found material collectively;
*Some events may have material impact qualitatively instead of quantitatively, and
*Some events may not be material at present but may have a material impact in future.

The financial and other related implications of risks concerned, wherever quantifiable have been disclosed in the
risk factors mentioned below. However, there are risk factors where the impact may not be quantifiable and hence,
the same has not been disclosed in such risk factors. The numbering of the risk factors has been done to facilitate
ease of reading and reference and does not in any manner indicate the importance of one risk over another.

In this Draft Letter of Offer, any discrepancies in any table between total and sums of the amount listed are due
to rounding off.

EIINYS

In this section, unless the context requires otherwise, any reference to “we”, “us” or “our” refers to Advik Capital
Limited.

The risk factors are classified as under for the sake of better clarity and increased understanding.
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INTERNAL RISK FACTORS
BUSINESS RELATED RISKS

1. As an NBFC, we are subject to periodic inspections by the RBI. Non-compliance with observations made
by RBI during these inspections could expose us to penalties and restrictions

Under section 45N of the Reserve Bank of India, 1934 (“RBI Act”) we are subject to periodic inspections
by the RBI to verify correctness or completeness of any statement, information or particulars furnished to
the RBI for the purpose of obtaining any information or particulars which our Company has failed to furnish
on being called upon to do so. While we may respond to RBI and address such observations; there can be no
assurance that the RBI will not make similar or other observations in the future. If we are unable to resolve
such deficiencies to RBI’s satisfaction, our ability to conduct out business may be adversely affected.
Imposition of any penalty or adverse findings by the RBI during the ongoing or any future inspections may
have an adverse impact on our business prospects, financial condition and results of operations. NBFCs in
India are subject to strict regulation and supervision by the RBI. We require certain approvals, licenses,
registrations and permissions for operating our business. Such approvals, licenses, registrations and
permissions must be maintained / renewed over time and we may have to comply with certain conditions in
relation to these approvals. Moreover, the applicable requirements may change from time. We are required
to obtain and maintain a license for carrying on business as an NBFC. If we fail to obtain or retain any of
these approvals or licenses, or renewals thereof, in a timely manner, or at all, our business may be adversely
affected. RBI has the authority to change these norms/ criteria as and when required. Inability to meet the
prescribed norms/ criteria, can adversely affect the operations and profitability of our Company.

2.  We operate in a highly competitive industry and our inability to compete effectively may adversely affect
our business.

We operate in a highly competitive industry. Given the diversity of our businesses, and the products and
services offered by us, we face competition from the full spectrum of public sector banks, private sector
banks (including foreign banks), financial institutions, captive finance affiliates of players in various
industries, small finance banks and other NBFCs who are active in SME, retail and individual lending. Many
of our competitors may have greater resources than we do, may be larger in terms of business volume and
may have significantly lower cost of funds compared to us. They may also have greater geographical reach,
long-standing partnerships and may offer their customers other forms of financing that we may not be able
to provide. Competition in our industry depends on, amongst others, the ongoing evolution of government
and regulatory policies, the entry of new participants and the extent to which there is consolidation among
banks and financial institutions in India. We cannot assure you that we will be able to react effectively to
these or other market developments or compete effectively with new and existing players in our increasingly
competitive industry and our inability to compete effectively may adversely affect our business.

3. Our business will require substantial funds, and any disruption in funding sources would have a material
adverse effect on our liquidity and financial condition.

Our liquidity and profitability are, in large part, dependent upon our timely access to, and costs associated
with raising capital including both debt and equity. Our business depends and will continue to depend on
our ability to access diversified low-cost funding sources. As a financial services company, we face certain
additional regulatory restrictions on our ability to obtain financing from banks. Further, under Indian Law,
foreign investors are subject to investment restrictions that may limit our ability to attract foreign investors
or capital from overseas investors.

Pursuing our growth strategy and introducing new product offerings to our customers will have an impact
on our long-term capital requirements. With the growth of our business, we may be increasingly reliant on
funding from debt capital markets. The market for such funds is competitive and our ability to obtain funds
at competitive rates will depend on various factors. If we are unable to access funds at an effective cost that
is comparable to or lower than our competitors, we may not be able to offer competitive interest rates for our
loans. Our ability to raise funds on acceptable terms and at competitive rates continues to depend on various
factors, including the regulatory environment and policy initiatives in India, lack of liquidity in the market,
developments in the international markets affecting the Indian economy, investors’ and/or lenders’
perception of demand for debt and equity securities of NBFCs, and our current and future results of
operations and financial condition. If we are unable to obtain adequate financing or financing on terms

23



satisfactory to us and in a timely manner, our ability to grow or support our business and to respond to
business challenges could be limited and our business prospects, financial condition and results of operations
would be materially and adversely affected.

We are affected by volatility in interest rates for both our lending and fund raisings operations, which
could cause our net interest income to decline and adversely affect our results of operations and
profitability.

A significant component of our revenue is the interest on loans and other financing activity we receive from
the loans we disburse. Our net interest margins are affected by any volatility in interest rates in our lending
operations. Interest rates are highly sensitive to many factors beyond our control, including competition from
other banks and NBFCs, the monetary policies of the RBI, deregulation of the financial sector in India,
domestic and international economic and political conditions and other factors, which have historically
generated a relatively high degree of volatility in interest rates in India. Persistently high inflation in India
may discourage the Government from implementing policies that would cause interest rates to decrease.
Moreover, if there is an increase in the interest rates we pay on our borrowings that we are unable to pass to
our customers, we may find it difficult to compete with our competitors, who may have access to funds at a
lower cost or lower cost deposits. To the extent our borrowings are linked to market interest rates, we may
have to pay interest at a higher rate than lenders that borrow only at fixed interest rates. Further, our ability
to pass on any increase in interest rates to borrowers may also be constrained by regulations implemented
by the Government or the RBI. In a declining interest rate environment, if our cost of funds does not decline
simultaneously or to the same extent as the yield on our interest-earning assets, it could lead to a reduction
in our net interest income and net interest margin.

We depend on the accuracy and completeness of information about customers and counterparties for
certain key elements of our credit assessment and risk management process. Any misrepresentation,
errors in or incompleteness of such information could adversely affect our business and financial
performance.

In deciding whether to extend credit or enter into other transactions with customers, for certain key elements
of the credit assessment process, we rely on information furnished to us by or on behalf of customers
(including in relation to their financial transactions and past credit history). We may also rely on certain
representations from our customers as to the accuracy and completeness of that information. For ascertaining
the creditworthiness and encumbrances on collateral we may depend on the respective registrars and sub -
registrars of assurances, credit information companies or credit bureaus, and on independent valuers in
relation to the value of the collateral, and our reliance on any misleading information given, may affect our
judgement of credit worthiness of potential borrowers, and the value of and title to the collateral, which may
affect our business, prospects, results of operations and financial condition. We may receive inaccurate or
incomplete information as a result of negligence or fraudulent misrepresentation. Our risk management
measures may not be adequate to prevent or deter such activities in all cases, which may adversely affect our
business prospects, financial condition and results of operations.

High levels of customer defaults or delays in repayment of loans could adversely affect our business,
financial condition and results of operations.

Our business involves lending money and accordingly we are subject to customer default risks including
default or delay in repayment of principal and/or interest on our loans. Customers may default on their
obligations to us as a result of various factors including bankruptcy, lack of liquidity, lack of business and
operational failure. If borrowers fail to repay loans in a timely manner or at all, our financial condition and
results of operations will be adversely impacted. Although we believe that our risk management controls are
sufficient, we cannot be certain that they will continue to be sufficient or that additional risk management
policies for individual borrowers will not be required. Failure to continuously monitor the loan contracts,
could adversely affect our credit portfolio which could have a material and adverse effect on our results of
operations and financial condition.
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We may not be able to recover, on a timely basis or at all, the full value of collateral or amounts which are
sufficient to cover the outstanding amounts due under defaulted loans.

The value of the security provided to us, may be subject to reduction in value on account of other extraneous
reasons. Consequently, the realizable value of the security for the loans provided by us, when liquidated, may
be lower than principal amount outstanding along with interest and other costs recoverable from such
customers.

Although we believe that we generally maintain a sufficient margin in the collateral value, if we have to
enforce such pledges and if at the time of such enforcement, due to adverse market conditions, the market
value of the pledged securities have fallen to a level where we are unable to recover the monies lent by us,
along with interest accrued thereon and associated costs, the results of our operations would be adversely
affected. In case of any shortfall in margins in connection with the securities pledged as collaterals, we
typically call upon the relevant customer to provide further collateral to make up for the deficit in such
margins. Furthermore, enforcing our legal rights by litigating against defaulting customers is generally a slow
and potentially expensive process in India. Accordingly, it may be difficult for us to recover amounts owed
by defaulting customers in a timely manner or at all.

Our Company’s inability to obtain, renew or maintain the statutory and regulatory permits and approvals
which are required to operate its existing or future businesses may have a material adverse effect on its
business, financial condition, cash flows and results of operations.

NBFCs in India are subject to regulations and supervision by the RBI. In addition to the numerous conditions
required for the registration as an NBFC with the RBI, we are also required to comply with certain other
regulatory requirements for its business imposed by the RBI. In the future, there could be circumstances
where our Company may be required to renew applicable permits and approvals and obtain new permits and
approvals for its current and any proposed operations or in the event of a change in applicable law and
regulations. There can be no assurance that RBI or other relevant authorities will issue any such permits or
approvals in the time-frame anticipated by our Company, or at all. In addition, we require several
registrations to operate our branches in the ordinary course of business. These registrations include those
required to be obtained or maintained under applicable legislations governing shops and establishments,
professional tax, GST registrations etc. Some of these approvals may have expired in the ordinary course,
and our Company has either applied, or is in the process of applying for renewals of them. Failure by our
Company to renew, maintain or obtain the required permits or approvals may result in an interruption of its
operations and may have a material adverse effect on its business, financial condition, cash flows and results
of operation.

Our borrowers may transfer loan balances to other banks or financial institutions, resulting in a loss of
expected interest income expected from such loans.

If interest rates rise, borrowers with variable interest rates on their loans are exposed to increased equated
monthly instalments (“EMIs”) when the loans’ interest rate adjusts upward. Such borrowers may seek to
refinance their loans through balance transfer to other banks and financial institutions to avoid increased EMIs
that result from an upwards adjustment of the loans’ interest rate. Even if interest rates do not increase, our
borrowers may seek to transfer loans to banks or other financial institutions that offer lower interest rates.

Loan balance transfers result in a loss of interest income expected from such loans over the course of their
tenure. All NBFCs and HFCs are prohibited from charging pre-payment penalties on any floating rate term
loan sanctioned for purposes other than business to individual borrowers. Even where we are allowed to
charge a prepayment penalty, the amount of such penalty will not make up for all of the loss of interest income
expected from such loans. Some of our borrowers may be able to find balance transfer options at comparably
lower interest rates or other financing alternatives, which could have an adverse effect on our business, results
of operations and financial condition.

We may experience difficulties in expanding our products.
Expanding our products portfolio with new or existing products can be costly and require significant
management time and attention. Additionally, as our operations grow in size, scope and complexity and our

product offerings increase, we will need to enhance and upgrade our systems and infrastructure to offer an
increasing number of enhanced solutions, features and functionality. The expansion of our systems and
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infrastructure will require us to commit substantial financial, operational and technical resources in advance
of an increase in the volume of business, with no assurance that the volume of business will increase. We
will need to recruit new employees, who will have to be trained and integrated into our operations. We will
also have to train existing employees to adhere properly to internal controls and risk management procedures.
Failure to train our employees properly may result in an increase in employee attrition rates, require
additional hiring, erode the quality of customer service, divert management resources, increase our exposure
to high -risk credit and impose significant costs on us.

We may experience difficulties in expanding our business into new regions and markets in India

Historically, our distribution networks is concentrated in New Delhi. As part of our growth strategy, we
strive to evaluate attractive growth opportunities to expand our business into new regions and markets in
India. Factors such as competition, culture, regulatory regimes, business practices & customs and customer
requirements in these new markets may differ from those in our current markets and our experience in our
current markets may not be applicable to these new markets. In addition, as we enter new markets and
geographical regions, we are likely to compete with other banks and financial institutions that already have
a presence in those geographies and markets and are therefore more familiar with local regulations, business
practices and customs and have stronger relationships with customers. Our business may be exposed to
various additional challenges including obtaining necessary governmental approvals, successfully gauging
market conditions in local markets with which we have no previous familiarity; attracting potential
customers in a market in which we do not have significant experience or visibility; being susceptible to local
taxation in additional geographical areas of India and adapting our marketing strategy and operations to
different regions of India in which different languages are spoken. Our inability to expand our current
operations may adversely affect our business prospects, financial conditions and results of operations.

We are exposed to operational and credit risks which may result in NPAs, and we may be unable to control
or reduce the level of NPAs in our portfolio.

Our Company’s inability to control the number and value of its NPAs may lead to deterioration of the quality
of its loan portfolio and may adversely impact its business. Further, if our customers default in their
repayment obligations, our business, results of operations, financial condition and cash flows may be
adversely affected.

We may face asset-liability mismatches, which could affect our liquidity and consequently may adversely
affect our operations and profitability.

Assets and liability mismatch (“ALM”) represents a situation when financial terms of an institution’s assets
and liabilities do not match. ALM is a key financial parameter indicative of an NBFC’s performance. We
cannot assure you that we will be able to maintain a positive ALM always. We may rely on funding options
with short term maturity periods for extending long term loans, which may lead to a negative ALM. Further,
mismatches between our assets and liabilities are compounded in case of prepayment of financing facilities
we grant to customers. Any mismatch in our ALM, may lead to a liquidity risk and have an adverse effect
on our business prospects, financial condition, results of operations and profitability.

The novel coronavirus pandemic (COVID-19 Pandemic) outbreak and steps taken to control the same
have significantly impacted our business, results of operations, financial condition and cash flows and
further impact will depend on future developments, which are highly uncertain.

The rapid outbreak of the COVID-19 Pandemic, resulted in an unpredictable chain of events across the globe.
With reduced production and consumption, every economy witnessed a fiscal crunch like never before. The
pandemic shook the Indian economy, which was already under the effects of demonetisation and GST
enforcement. As Covid-19 Pandemic swiftly made its way into the nation, the Indian Government imposed
a strict nationwide lockdown. Trade and travel restrictions along with shutdown of business activities led to
a GDP contraction of 23.9%.

The financial year 2020-21 began with ongoing COVID-19 Pandemic that led to nationwide lockdown. The
lockdown was relaxed in a phased manner depending upon the severity and magnitude of the spread of the
pandemic. The cases started declining after reaching peak levels in September 2020. With revival of
economic activities due to easing of lockdown, economy rebounded. However, the resurgence of COVID-
19 Pandemic impacted the nascent economic revival that was taking shape. The most vulnerable category of
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15.

borrowers are individual borrowers, small businesses and MSMEs.

Our Company also lends to MSMEs. In order to mitigate the stress caused by the Covid-19 Pandemic on
several sectors across the country, the Government has announced an Emergency Credit Line Guarantee
Scheme ("ECLGS"). The ECLGS aims to provide 100 percent guaranteed coverage to the banks, non-
banking financial institutions (NBFCs) and other lending institutions in order to enable them to extend
emergency credit to business entities that have suffered due to the COVID-19 Pandemic and are struggling
to meet their working capital requirements. The scheme aimed to provide Rs 3 lakh crore worth of collateral-
free, government-guaranteed loans to micro, small and medium enterprises (MSMESs) across India to
mitigate the distress caused by the coronavirus-induced lockdown.

RBI took several standard and innovative measures to ensure liquidity in the system. RBI permitted lending
institutions to provide relief to the borrowers for a period of six months starting from 1st March 2020 to 31st
August 2020 from EMI payments and working capital interest payments. It also announced relief measures
including new restructuring guidelines to retain loans from banks and NBFCs’ to such qualifying loans
classified as standard within the regulatory framework. RBI also declared Resolution Framework for
COVID-19 Pandemic related stress through which a window to enable lenders to implement a resolution
plan in respect of eligible corporate exposures without change in ownership, and personal loans, while
classifying such exposures as Standard, subject to specified conditions. Reserve Bank of India vide its
circular dated 7th April 2021 instructed all lending institutions to refund / adjust ‘interest on interest’ to all
borrowers including those who had availed of working capital facilities during the moratorium period,
irrespective of whether moratorium had been fully or partially availed or not availed.

Given that the COVID -19 Pandemic and its impact on the Company, the actual impact on our Company’s
loans and advances will also depend on future developments, including, among other things, any new
information concerning the severity of the COVID -19 Pandemic and any action to contain its spread or
mitigate its impact. While, our Company continue to monitor the developments of the COVID-19 Pandemic
situation closely, assess and respond proactively to minimize any adverse impacts on the financial position,
cash flows and operating results of our Company, it is possible that the Company’s business, financial
condition and results of operations could be adversely affected due to the COVID-19 Pandemic. If the
COVID-19 Pandemic situation persists or worsens, it may adversely impact our Company’s business and
the financial condition.

As these are unforeseen circumstances, it may give rise to risks that we may not have anticipated. If the
outbreak of any of these pandemic or other severe pandemic, continues for an extended period, occur again
and/or increases in severity, it could have an adverse effect on economic activity worldwide, including India,
and could materially and adversely affect our business, cash flows, financial condition and results of
operations.

Our indebtedness and the conditions and restrictions imposed by our financing agreements could restrict
our ability to conduct our business and operations in the manner we desire.

We may incur additional indebtedness in the future. Many of our financing agreements include various
restrictive conditions and covenants restricting certain corporate actions, and our Company may be required
to take the prior approval of the lender before carrying out such activities. Our indebtedness could have
several important consequences, including our cash flows being used towards repayment of our existing
debt, which will reduce the availability of our cash flow to fund our working capital, capital expenditures
and other general corporate requirements. Moreover, our ability to obtain additional financing or renewal of
existing facilities, in the future at reasonable terms may be restricted or our cost of borrowings may increase
due to sudden adverse market conditions, including decreased availability of credit or fluctuations in interest
rates. There could be a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations
if we are unable to service our indebtedness or otherwise comply with financial and other covenants specified
in the financing agreements and we may be more vulnerable to economic downturns, which may limit our
ability to withstand competitive pressures and may reduce our flexibility in responding to changing business,
regulatory and economic conditions.
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17.

18.

19.

Our business is based on the trust and confidence of our customers; any damage to that trust and
confidence may materially and adversely affect our business, future financial performance and results of
operations.

We are dedicated to earning and maintaining the trust and confidence of our customers and we believe that
the good reputation is essential to our business. The reputation of our Company could be adversely affected
by any threatened and/or legal proceedings and/or any negative publicity or news articles in connection with
our Company. As such, any damage to our reputation could substantially impair our ability to maintain or
grow our business. If we fail to maintain brand recognition with our target customers due to any issues with
our product offerings, a deterioration in service quality, or otherwise, declines the our market perception and
customer acceptance of our brands may also decline.

System failures or inadequacy and security breaches in computer systems may adversely affect our
business.

Our financial, accounting or other data processing systems may fail to operate adequately or become disabled
as a result of events that are wholly or partially beyond our control including a disruption of electrical or
communications services. Our ability to operate and remain competitive will depend in part on our ability to
maintain and upgrade our information technology systems on a timely and cost-effective basis. Our
operations also rely on the secure processing, storage and transmission of confidential and other information
in our computer systems and networks. Our computer systems, software and networks may be vulnerable to
unauthorized access, computer viruses or other malicious code and other events that could compromise data
integrity and security. Any failure to effectively maintain or improve or upgrade our management
information systems in a timely manner could materially and adversely affect our competitiveness, financial
position and results of operations. Moreover, if any of these systems do not operate properly or are disabled
or if there are other shortcomings or failures in our internal processes or systems, it could affect our
operations or result in financial loss, disruption of our businesses, regulatory intervention or damage to our
reputation. In addition, our ability to conduct business may be adversely impacted by a disruption in the
infrastructure that supports our businesses and the localities in which we are located.

If we are unable to comply with the capital adequacy requirements stipulated by the RBI in connection
with our lending business, our business, results of operations and cash flows may be materially and
adversely affected.

Our lending business, is subject to various regulations relating to the capital adequacy of NBFCs, which
determine the minimum amount of capital we are required to maintain. There can be no assurance that we
will be able to maintain CRAR within the regulatory requirements. Further, as we grow our lending business
loan portfolio, we will be required to raise additional Tier I and Tier II capital in order to continue to meet
applicable capital adequacy ratios with respect to such business. There can be no assurance that we will be
able to raise adequate additional capital in the future on favourable terms, or at all. This could result in
noncompliance with applicable capital adequacy ratios, which could have a material adverse effect on our
business, results of operations and cash flows. Also, there is no assurance that RBI will not take any action
for breaches in capital adequacy norms by our Company in the future. This could materially adversely affect
our business, prospects, results of operations, financial condition and cash flows and could impair our ability
to continue current operations and in extreme case, may lead to suspension/ cancellation/ withdrawal of our
license to operate as an NBFC.

Our measures to prevent money laundering may not be completely effective and we may be subject to
scrutiny and penalties by the RBI for failure to implement effective measures.

Our Company is required to comply with applicable anti-money-laundering and anti-terrorism laws and other
regulations in India. Our measures to prevent money laundering as required by the RBI and other KYC
compliance applicable in India, including the Reserve Bank of India (Know Your Customer) Master
Directions, 2016 dated February 25, 2016, as amended ("KYC Directions") and the adoption of anti-money
laundering policies and compliance procedures may not be completely effective. In the event, if any
regulatory authorities believes that we are not complying with required money laundering compliances
and/or KYC Compliances, there may be civil and criminal penalties for non-compliance and our business
and results of operations could be adversely affected.
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21.

22,

23.

24.

Logo used by us are currently not registered in the name of our Company. The logo is registered
trademark in the name of our Subsidiary Company i.e. Advik Optoelectronics Limited. Failure to protect
our intellectual property rights may adversely affect our competitive business position, financial condition
and profitability.

Our logo is registered trademark under the provisions of Trademark Act, 1999 in the name of our Subsidiary
Company, Advik Optoelectronics Limited and therefore may be subject to counterfeiting or imitation which
would adversely impact our reputation and lead to loss of customer confidence, reduced sales and higher
administrative costs. we do not enjoy any statutory protection under the Trade Marks Act, 1999 for the
aforesaid trademark which is important to retain our brand image. Further even if our trademarks are
registered, we cannot assure that third parties will not infringe on our intellectual property, thereby causing
damage to our business prospects, reputation and goodwill.

Company does not have previous RBI registration certificate in records.

Company was registered as a Non-Banking Financial Company vide certificate of registration dated January
07, 2003 bearing No. B-14.00724 under section 45 I(A) of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 in the name
of Quick Credit Limited. The certificate has not been in the records of the Company.

However, in the year 2017, RBI has issued the new certificate of registration dated August 24, 2017 bearing
no. B-14.00724 under section 45 I(A) of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 in the name of Advik Capital
Limited.

Our success depends in large part upon key personnel and our ability to attract, train and retain such
persons.

Our ability to sustain our rate of growth depends significantly upon our ability to manage key issues such as
selecting and retaining key operations personnel, developing managerial experience to address emerging
challenges and ensuring a high standard of client service. In order to be successful, we must attract, train,
motivate and retain highly skilled employees. Failure to train and motivate our employees properly may
result in an increase in employee attrition rates, divert management resources and subject us to incurring
additional human resource related expenditure.

Our Promoters and Directors may have interests in our Company other than reimbursement of expenses
incurred or remuneration or benefits.

Our Promoters and Directors may be deemed to be interested in our Company, in addition to the regular
remuneration or benefits, reimbursements of expenses, Equity Shares held by them or their relatives, their
dividend or bonus entitlement, benefits arising from their directorship in our Company. Our Promoters and
Directors may also be interested to the extent of any transaction entered into by our Company with any other
company or firm in which they are directors or partners.

There can be no assurance that our Promoters, and Directors will exercise their rights as shareholders to the
benefit and best interest of our Company. Our Promoters and members of our Promoter Group will continue
to exercise significant control over our Company, including being able to control the composition of our
Board of Directors and determine decisions requiring simple or special majority voting of shareholders, and
our other sharecholders may be unable to affect the outcome of such voting.

Our Promoters and members of the Promoter Group have significant control over the Company and have
the ability to direct our business and affairs; their interests may conflict with your interests as a
shareholder.

Our Promoters and members of the Promoter Group have significant control over the Company and have the
ability to direct our business and affairs. So long as the Promoters have a majority holding, they will be able
to elect the entire Board and control most matters affecting us, including the appointment and removal of the
officers of our Company, our business strategy and policies and financing. Further, the extent of the
Promoters’ shareholding in our Company may result in the delay or prevention of a change of management
or control of our Company, even if such a transaction may be beneficial to the other shareholders of our
Company.
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25.

26.

27.

We do not own registered office which is used by us currently.

Our registered office is owned by Mr. Nand Kishore Garg (member of the Promoters’ Group) father of Mr.
Vikas Garg (Director and Promoter) He had, vide letter dated April 15, 2023 granted their no objection to
Company for use the said office premises, as our Registered Office.

In the event, the permission to use under which we occupy the aforementioned premises or certain terms and
conditions that are unfavourable to us are imposed on us in relation to the afore referred to premises, or if
we are otherwise unable to occupy such premises, we may suffer a disruption in our operations, which could
have an adverse effect on our business and financial results.

We have in the past entered into related party transactions and may continue to do so in the future, which
may potentially involve conflicts of interest with the equity shareholders.

We have entered into various transactions with related parties. While we believe that all such transactions
have been conducted on an arm‘s length basis and contain commercially reasonable terms, we cannot assure
you that we could not have achieved more favourable terms had such transactions been entered into with
unrelated parties.

The new bankruptcy code in India may affect our rights to recover loans from borrowers.

The Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 ("Bankruptcy Code") was notified on August 5, 2016. The
Bankruptcy Code offers a uniform and comprehensive insolvency legislation encompassing all companies,
partnerships and individuals (other than financial firms). It allows creditors to assess the viability of a debtor
as a business decision, and agree upon a plan for its revival or a speedy liquidation. The Bankruptcy Code
creates a new institutional framework, consisting of a regulator, insolvency professionals, information
utilities and adjudicatory mechanisms, which will facilitate a formal and time-bound insolvency resolution
and liquidation process.

In case insolvency proceedings are initiated against a debtor to our Company, we may not have complete
control over the recovery of amounts due to us. Under the Bankruptcy Code, upon invocation of an
insolvency resolution process, a committee of creditors is constituted by the interim resolution professional,
wherein each financial creditor is given a voting share proportionate to the debts owed to it. Bankruptcy
Code provides a 180-day timeline which may be extended by 90 days when dealing with insolvency
resolution applications. Subsequently, the insolvency resolution plan prepared by the insolvency
professionals has to be approved by 66% of voting share of financial creditors, which requires sanction by
the adjudicating authority and, if rejected, the adjudicating authority will pass an order for liquidation. Any
resolution plan approved by committee of creditors is binding upon all creditors, even if they vote against it.
In case a liquidation process is opted for, the Bankruptcy Code provides for a fixed order of priority in which
proceeds from the sale of the debtor’s assets are to be distributed. Before sale proceeds are distributed to a
secured creditor, they are to be distributed for the costs of the insolvency resolution and liquidation processes,
debts owed to workmen and other employees. Further, under this process, dues owed to the Central and State
Governments rank at par with those owed to secured creditors. Moreover, other secured creditors may decide
to opt out of the process, in which case they are permitted to realise their security interests in priority.

Accordingly, if the provisions of the Bankruptcy Code are invoked against any of the borrowers of our
Company, it may affect our Company’s ability to recover our loans from the borrowers and enforcement of
our Company’s rights will be subject to the Bankruptcy Code.

Further, the Gol vide notification dated March 24, 2020 ("Notification") has amended section 4 of the
Bankruptcy Code due the lingering impact of the COVID-19 pandemic. Pursuant to the said Notification,
Gol has increased the minimum amount of default under the insolvency matters from %1,00,000 to
%1,00,00,000. Therefore the ability of our Company to initiate insolvency proceedings against the defaulters
where the amount of default in an insolvency matter is less the 1,00,00,000 may impact the recovery of
outstanding loans and profitability of our Company.
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31.

32.

The fund requirement and deployment mentioned in the Objects of the Issue have not been appraised by
any bank or financial institution.

The fund requirement and deployment is based on internal management estimates and has not been appraised
by any bank or financial institution. The management will have significant flexibility in applying the
proceeds received by us from the Issue.

The deployment of funds is entirely at our discretion and as per the details mentioned in the chapter titled
"Objects of the Issue".

As the Issue size is not more than 310,000 lakhs, under Regulation 82 of the SEBI ICDR Regulations it is
not required that a monitoring agency be appointed by our Company, for overseeing the deployment and
utilisation of funds raised through this Issue. Therefore, the deployment of the funds towards the Objects of
this Issue is entirely at the discretion of our Board of Directors and is not subject to monitoring by external
independent agency. Our Board of Directors along with the Audit Committee will monitor the utilisation of
Issue proceeds and shall have the flexibility in applying the proceeds of this Issue. However, the management
of our Company shall not have the power to alter the objects of this Issue except with the approval of the
Shareholders of the Company given by way of a special resolution in a general meeting, in the manner
specified in Section 27 of the Companies Act, 2013. Additionally, the dissenting shareholders being those
shareholders who have not agreed to the proposal to vary the objects of this Issue, our Promoters shall
provide them with an opportunity to exit at such price, and in such manner and conditions as may be specified
by the SEBI, in respect to the same.

As the Equity Shares of our Company are listed on BSE, our Company is subject to certain obligations
and reporting requirements under SEBI Listing Regulations. Any non-compliances/delay in complying
with such obligations and reporting requirements may render us/our promoter liable to prosecution
and/or penalties.

Our Company is subject to the obligations and reporting requirements under SEBI Listing Regulations. In
the past, our Company had not complied with certain provisions of the SEBI Listing Regulations. Though
our Company endeavours to comply with all such obligations/reporting requirements, there have been certain
instances of non-compliance and delays in complying with such obligations/reporting requirements. Any
such delays or non-compliance would render our Company to prosecution and/or penalties. Although our
Company have not received any further communication from the Stock Exchange or any authority in this
regard, there could be a possibility that penalties may be levied against our Company for certain instances
of non -compliance and delays in complying with such obligations/reporting requirements.

In the past, there have been instances of delayed or erroneous filing of certain forms which were required
to be filed as per the reporting requirements under the Companies Act, 1956 and Companies Act, 2013 to
RoC by our Company and our Subsidiaries.

In the past, there have been certain instances of delay in filing of statutory forms as per the reporting
requirements under the Companies Act, 1956 and Companies Act, 2013 with the RoC, which have been
subsequently filed by payment of an additional fee as specified by RoC by our Company and our
Subsidiaries.

No show cause notice in respect to the above has been received by our Company or our Subsidiaries till date
and except as stated in this Draft Letter of Offer, no penalty or fine has been imposed by any regulatory
authority in respect to the same. The occurrence of instances of delayed or erroneous filings in future may
impact our results of operations and financial position.

Our ability to pay dividends in the future may be affected by any material adverse effect on our future
earnings, financial condition or cash flows.

Our ability to pay dividends in future will depend on our earnings, financial condition and capital
requirements. We may be unable to pay dividends in the near or medium term, and our future dividend policy
will depend on our capital requirements and financing arrangements in respect of our operations, financial
condition and results of operations.
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33. We have not commissioned an industry report for the disclosures made in the chapter titled "Industry

Overview" and made disclosures on the basis of the data available on the internet and such third-party
data has not been independently verified by us.

We have neither commissioned an industry report, nor sought consent from the quoted website source for
the disclosures which need to be made in the chapter titled "Industry Overview" of this Draft Letter of Offer.
We have made disclosures in the said chapter on the basis of the relevant industry related data available
online for which relevant consents have not been obtained. We have not independently verified such third-
party data. We cannot assure you that any assumptions made are correct or will not change and, accordingly,
our position in the market may differ from that presented in this Draft Letter of Offer. Further, the industry
data mentioned in this Draft Letter of Offer or sources from which the data has been collected are not
recommendations to invest in our Company. Accordingly, investors should read the industry related
disclosure in this Draft Letter of Offer in this context.

Issue Specific Risks

34.

3s.

We will not distribute this Draft Letter of Offer, the Letter of Offer, the Abridged Letter of Offer,
Application Form and Rights Entitlement Letter to overseas Shareholders who have not provided an
address in India for service of documents.

In accordance with the SEBI ICDR Regulations and SEBI Rights Issue Circulars our Company will send,
only through email, this Draft Letter of Offer, the Letter of Offer, the Abridged Letter of Offer, the Rights
Entitlement Letter, Application Form and other issue material to the email addresses of all the Eligible
Equity Shareholders who have provided their Indian addresses to our Company or who are located in
jurisdictions where the offer and sale of the Rights Equity Shares permitted under laws of such
jurisdictions and in each case who make a request in this regard. The Issue Materials will not be
distributed to addresses outside India on account of restrictions that apply to circulation of such materials
in overseas jurisdictions. However, the Companies Act, 2013 requires companies to serve documents at
any address which may be provided by the members as well as through e-mail. Presently, there is lack
of clarity under the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder with respect to distribution of
Issue Materials in overseas jurisdictions where such distribution may be prohibited under the applicable
laws of such jurisdictions. While we have requested all the shareholders to provide an address in India
for the purposes of distribution of Issue Materials, we cannot assure you that the regulator or authorities
would not adopt a different view with respect to compliance with the Companies Act, 2013 and may
subject us to fines or penalties.

SEBI has recently, by way of circulars dated January 22, 2020, May 6, 2020, January 19, 2021, April
22, 2021 and May 19, 2022 streamlined the process of rights issues. You should follow the instructions
carefully, as stated in such SEBI circulars and in this Draft Letter of Offer.

The concept of crediting Rights Entitlements into the demat accounts of the Eligible Equity Shareholders
has recently been introduced by the SEBI in 2020. Accordingly, the process for such Rights Entitlements
has been recently devised by capital market intermediaries. Eligible Equity Shareholders are encouraged
to exercise caution, carefully follow the requirements as stated in the SEBI circulars dated January 22,
2020, May 6, 2020 and January 19, 2021 , April 22, 2021 and May 19, 2022, as applicable (“SEBI
Rights Issue Circular”) and ensure completion of all necessary steps in relation to providing/updating
their demat account details in a timely manner. For details, see "Terms of the Issue" on page 199.

In accordance with Regulation 77A of the SEBI ICDR Regulations read with the SEBI Rights Issue
Circular, the credit of Rights Entitlements and Allotment of Rights Equity Shares shall be made in
dematerialized form only. Prior to the Issue Opening Date, our Company shall credit the Rights
Entitlements to (i) the demat accounts of the Eligible Equity Shareholders holding the Equity Shares in
dematerialized form; and (ii) a demat suspense escrow account opened by our Company, for the Eligible
Equity Shareholders which would comprise of Rights Entitlements relating to (a) Equity Shares held in
a demat suspense account pursuant to Regulation 39 of the SEBI Listing Regulations; or (b) Equity
Shares held in the account of IEPF authority; or (c) the demat accounts of the Eligible Equity
Shareholder which are frozen or details of which are unavailable with our Company or with the Registrar
on the Record Date; or (d) credit of the Rights Entitlements returned/reversed/failed; or (e) the
ownership of the Equity Shares currently under dispute, including any court proceedings.
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36.

37.

38.

39.

The Rights Entitlement of Eligible Equity Shareholders holding Equity Shares in physical form
(""Physical Shareholder") may lapse in case they fail to furnish the details of their demat account to
the Registrar.

In accordance with the SEBI Circular SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/CIR/P/2020/13 dated January 22, 2020, the
credit of Rights Entitlement and Allotment of Equity Shares shall be made in dematerialised form
only. Accordingly, the Rights Entitlements of the Physical Shareholders shall be credited in a
suspense escrow demat account opened by our Company during the Issue Period. The Physical
Shareholders are requested to furnish the details of their demat account to the Registrar not later than
two Working Days prior to the Issue Closing Date to enable the credit of their Rights Entitlements in
their demat accounts at least one day before the Issue Closing Date. The Rights Entitlements of
the Physical Shareholders who do not furnish the details of their demat account to the Registrar
not later than two Working Days prior to the Issue Closing Date, shall lapse. Further, pursuant
to a press release dated December 3, 2018 issued by the SEBI, with effect from April 1,2019, a
transfer of listed Equity Shares cannot be processed unless the Equity Shares are held in
dematerialized form (exceptin case of transmission or transposition of Equity Shares).

Failure to exercise or sell the Rights Entitlements will cause the Rights Entitlements to lapse without
compensation and result in a dilution of shareholding.

The Rights Entitlements that are not exercised prior to the end of the Issue Closing Date will expire and
become null and void, and Eligible Equity Shareholders will not receive any consideration for them. The
proportionate ownership and voting interest in our Company of Eligible Equity Shareholders who fail
(or are not able) to exercise their Rights Entitlements will be diluted. Even if you elect to sell your
unexercised Rights Entitlements, the consideration you receive for them may not be sufficient to fully
compensate you for the dilution of your percentage ownership of the equity share capital of our Company
that may be caused as a result of the Issue. Renouncees may not be able to apply in case of failure in
completion of renunciation through off-market transfer in such a manner that the Rights Entitlements are
credited to the demat account of the Renouncees prior to the Issue Closing Date. Further, in case, the
Rights Entitlements do not get credited in time, in case of On Market Renunciation, such Renouncee will
not be able to apply in this Issue with respect to such Rights Entitlements. For details, see “Terms of the
Issue” on page 199.

Any future issuance of Equity Shares, or convertible securities or other equity-linked securities by our
Company may dilute your shareholding and any sale of Equity Shares by our Promoter or members
of our Promoter Group may adversely affect the trading price of the Equity Shares.

Any future issuance of the Equity Shares, convertible securities or securities linked to the Equity Shares
by our Company may dilute your shareholding in our Company; adversely affect the trading price of the
Equity Shares and our ability to raise capital through an issue of our securities. In addition, any
perception by investors that such issuances or sales might occur could also affect the trading price of the
Equity Shares. We cannot assure you that we will not issue additional Equity Shares. The disposal of
Equity Shares by any of our Promoter and Promoter Group, or the perception that such sales may occur
may significantly affect the trading price of the Equity Shares. We cannot assure you that our Promoter
and Promoter Group will not dispose of, pledge or encumber their Equity Shares in the future.

Investors may be subject to Indian taxes arising out of capital gains on the sale of the Equity Shares.

Under current Indian tax laws, unless specifically exempted, capital gains arising from the sale of equity
shares of an Indian company are generally taxable in India. Accordingly, you may be subject to payment
of long-term capital gains tax in India, in addition to payment of STT, on the sale of any Equity Shares
held for more than 12 months. STT will be levied on and collected by a domestic stock exchange on
which the Equity Shares are sold. Further, any gain realized on the sale of listed equity shares held for
a period of 12 months or less will be subject to short-term capital gains tax in India. Capital gains arising
from the sale of the Equity Shares may be partially or completely exempt from taxation in India in cases
where such exemption is provided under a treaty between India and the country of which the seller is a
resident. Generally, Indian tax treaties do not limit India’s ability to impose tax on capital gains. As a
result, residents of other countries may be liable for tax in India as well as in their own jurisdiction on
gains made upon the sale of the Equity Shares.
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41.

42.

43.

Applicants to this Issue are not allowed to withdraw their Applications after the Issue Closing Date.

In terms of the SEBI ICDR Regulations, Applicants in this Issue are not allowed to withdraw their
Applications after the Issue Closing Date. The Allotment in this Issue and the credit of such Equity
Shares to the Applicant’s demat account with its depository participant shall be completed within such
period as prescribed under the applicable laws. There is no assurance, however, that material adverse
changes in the international or national monetary, financial, political or economic conditions or other
events in the nature of force majeure, material adverse changes in our business, results of operation, cash
flows or financial condition, or other events affecting the Applicant’s decision to invest in the Equity
Shares, would not arise between the Issue Closing Date and the date of Allotment in this Issue.
Occurrence of any such events after the Issue Closing Date could also impact the market price of our
Equity Shares. The Applicants shall not have the right to withdraw their applications in the event of any
such occurrence. We cannot assure you that the market price of the Equity Shares will not decline below
the Issue Price. To the extent the market price for the Equity Shares declines below the Issue Price after
the Issue Closing Date, the shareholder will be required to purchase Equity Shares at a price that will be
higher than the actual market price for the Equity Shares at that time. Should that occur, the shareholder
will suffer an immediate unrealized loss as a result. We may complete the Allotment even if such events
may limit the Applicants’ ability to sell our Equity Shares after this Issue or cause the trading price of
our Equity Shares to decline

You may not receive the Equity Shares that you subscribe in the Issue until fifteen days after the date
on which this Issue closes, which will subject you to market risk.

The Equity Shares that you subscribe in the Issue may not be credited to your demat account with the
depository participants until approximately 15 days from the Issue Closing Date. You can start trading
such Equity Shares only after receipt of the listing and trading approval in respect thereof. There can be
no assurance that the Equity Shares allocated to you will be credited to your demat account, or that
trading in the Equity Shares will commence within the specified time period, subjecting you to market
risk for such period.

There is no guarantee that our Equity Shares will be listed in a timely manner or at all which may
adversely affect the trading price of our Equity Shares.

In accordance with Indian law and practice, final approval for listing and trading of the Equity Shares
will not be granted by the Stock Exchanges until after those Equity Shares have been issued and allotted.
Approval will require all relevant documents authorizing the issuing of Equity Shares to be submitted.
There could be a failure or delay in listing the Equity Shares on Stock Exchanges. Any failure or delay
in obtaining the approval would restrict your ability to dispose of your Equity Shares. Further, historical
trading prices, therefore, may not be indicative of the prices at which the Equity Shares will trade in the
future which may adversely impact the ability of our shareholders to sell the Equity Shares or the price
at which shareholders may be able to sell their Equity Shares at that point oftime.

Holders of Equity Shares could be restricted in their ability to exercise pre-emptive rights under Indian
law and could thereby suffer future dilution of their ownership position.

Under the Companies Act, any company incorporated in India must offer its holders of equity shares
pre-emptive rights to subscribe and pay for a proportionate number of shares to maintain their existing
ownership percentages prior to the issuance of any new equity shares, unless the pre-emptive rights have
been waived by the adoption of a special resolution by holders of three-fourths of the shares voted on
such resolution, unless our Company has obtained government approval to issue without such rights.
However, if the law of the jurisdiction that you are in does not permit the exercise of such pre-emptive
rights without us filing an offering document or registration statement with the applicable authority in
such jurisdiction, you will be unable to exercise such pre-emptive rights unless we make such a filing.
We may elect not to file a registration statement in relation to pre-emptive rights otherwise available by
Indian law to you. To the extent that you are unable to exercise pre-emptive rights granted in respect of
the Equity Shares, your proportional interests in us would be reduced.
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45.

46.

47.

Fluctuation in the exchange rate between the Indian Rupee and foreign currencies may adversely
affect the value of our Equity Shares, independent of our operating results.

On listing, our Equity Shares will be quoted in Indian Rupees on the Stock Exchanges. Any dividends
in respect of our Equity Shares will also be paid in Indian Rupees and subsequently converted into the
relevant foreign currency for repatriation, if required. Any adverse movement in currency exchange
rates during the time that it takes to undertake such conversion may reduce the net dividend to foreign
investors. In addition, any adverse movement in currency exchange rates during a delay in repatriating
outside India the proceeds from a sale of Equity Shares, for example, because of a delay in regulatory
approvals that may be required for the sale of Equity Shares may reduce the proceeds received by equity
shareholders. For example, the exchange rate between the Rupee and the U.S. dollar has fluctuated
substantially in recent years and may continue to fluctuate substantially in the future, which may
adversely affect the trading price of our Equity Shares and returns on our Equity Shares, independent of
our operating results.

Sale of Equity Shares by our Promoter or other significant shareholder(s) may adversely affect the
trading price of the Equity Shares.

Any instance of disinvestments of equity shares by our Promoter or by other significant shareholder(s)
may F significantly affect the trading price of our Equity Shares. Further, our market price may also be
adversely affected even if there is a perception or belief that such sales of Equity Shares might occur.

Investors will not have the option of getting the allotment of Equity Shares in physical form.

In accordance with the SEBI ICDR Regulations, the Equity Shares shall be issued only in dematerialized
form. Investors will not have the option of getting the allotment of Equity Shares in physical form. The
Equity Shares Allotted to the Applicants who do not have demat accounts or who have not specified their
demat details, will be kept in abeyance till receipt of the details of the demat account of such Applicants.
For details, see “Terms of the Issue” on page 199. This may impact the ability of our shareholders to
receive the Equity Shares in the Issue.

Rights of shareholders under Indian laws may be more limited than under the laws of other
Jjurisdictions.

Indian legal principles related to corporate procedures, directors’ fiduciary duties and liabilities, and
shareholders’ rights may differ from those that would apply to a company in another jurisdiction.
Shareholders’ rights including in relation to class actions, under Indian law may not be as extensive as
shareholders’ rights under the laws of other countries or jurisdictions. Investors may have more
difficulty in asserting their rights as shareholder in an Indian company than as shareholder of a
corporation in another jurisdiction.

External Risk Factors

48.

Significant differences exist between Ind AS, Indian GAAP and other accounting principles, such as
US GAAP and International Financial Reporting Standards ("IFRS"), which investors may be more
familiar with and consider material to their assessment of our financial condition.

Summary statements of assets and liabilities as at March 31, 2022 and summary statements of profit and
loss (including other comprehensive income), cash flows and changes in equity for the Fiscals 2022 have
been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards notified under Section 133 of the
Companies Act, 2013, read with the Ind AS Rules and, the SEBI Circular and the Prospectus Guidance
Note.

We have not attempted to quantify the impact of US GAAP, IFRS or any other system of accounting
principles on the financial data included in this Draft Letter of Offer, nor do we provide a reconciliation
of our restated financial statements to those of US GAAP, IFRS or any other accounting principles. US
GAAP and IFRS differ in significant respects from Ind AS and Indian GAAP. Accordingly, the degree
to which the Financial Information included in this Draft Letter of Offer will provide meaningful
information is entirely dependent on the reader’s level of familiarity with Ind AS, Indian GAAP and the
SEBI ICDR Regulations. Any reliance by persons not familiar with indian accounting practices on the
financial disclosures presented in this Draft Letter of Offer should accordingly be limited.
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Political, economic or other factors that are beyond our control may have adversely affect our business
and results of operations.

The Indian economy is influenced by economic developments in other countries. These factors could
depress economic activity which could have an adverse effect on our business, financial condition and
results of operations. Any financial disruption could have an adverse effect on our business and future
financial performance.

We are dependent on domestic, regional and global economic and market conditions. Our performance,
growth and market price of our Equity Shares are and will be dependent to a large extent on the health
of the economy in which we operate. There have been periods of slowdown in the economic growth of
India. Demand for our services may be adversely affected by an economic downturn in domestic, regional
and global economies.

Economic growth is affected by various factors including domestic consumption and savings, balance of
trade movements, namely export demand and movements in key imports, global economic uncertainty
and liquidity crisis, volatility in exchange currency rates, and annual rainfall which affects agricultural
production.

Consequently, any future slowdown in the Indian economy could harm our business, results of operations
and financial condition. Also, a change in the government or a change in the economic and deregulation
policies could adversely affect economic conditions prevalent in the areas in which we operate in general
and our business in particular and high rates of inflation in India could increase our costs without
proportionately increasing our revenues, and as such decrease our operating margins.

A slowdown in economic growth in India could cause our business to suffer.

We are incorporated in India, and all of our assets and employees are located in India. As a result, we are
highly dependent on prevailing economic conditions in India and our results of operations are
significantly affected by factors influencing the Indian economy. A slowdown in the Indian economy
could adversely affect our business, including our ability to grow our assets, the quality of our assets,
and our ability to implement our strategy.

Factors that may adversely affect the Indian economy, and hence our results of operations, may include:
. Any increase in Indian interest rates or inflation;

Any scarcity of credit or other financing in India;

Prevailing income conditions among Indian consumers and Indian corporations;

Changes in India’s tax, trade, fiscal or monetary policies;

political instability, terrorism or military conflict in India or in countries in the region or
globally, including in India’s various neighboring countries;

Prevailing regional or global economic conditions; and

. Other significant regulatory or economic developments in or affecting India

Any slowdown in the Indian economy or in the growth of the sectors we participate in or future volatility
in global commodity prices could adversely affect our borrowers and contractual counterparties. This in
turn could adversely affect our business and financial performance and the price of our Equity Shares.

Changing laws, rules and regulations and legal uncertainties, including adverse application of
corporate and tax laws, may adversely affect our business, prospects and results of operations.

The regulatory and policy environment in which we operate is evolving and subject to change. Such
changes, including the instances mentioned below, may adversely affect our business, results of
operations and prospects, to the extent that we are unable to suitably respond to and comply with any
such changes in applicable law and policy.

The Government of India has issued a notification dated September 29, 2016 notifying Income
Computation and Disclosure Standards (“ICDS”), thereby creating a new framework for the computation
of taxable income. The ICDS became applicable from the assessment year for Fiscal 2018 and subsequent
years. The adoption of ICDS is expected to significantly alter the way companies compute their taxable
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income, as ICDS deviates from several concepts that are followed under general accounting standards,
including Indian GAAP and Ind AS. In addition, ICDS shall be applicable for the computation of income
for tax purposes but shall not be applicable for the computation of income for minimum alternate tax.
There can be no assurance that the adoption of ICDS will not adversely affect our business, results of
operations and financial condition.

. The General Anti Avoidance Rules (“GAAR”) have been made effective from April 1, 2017.
The tax consequences of the GAAR provisions being applied to an arrangement could result in
denial of tax benefit amongst other consequences. In the absence of any precedents on the
subject, the application of these provisions is uncertain. If the GAAR provisions are made
applicable to our Company, it may have an adverse tax impact on us.

. A comprehensive national GST regime that combines taxes and levies by the Central and State
Governments into a unified rate structure, which came into effect from July 1, 2017. We cannot
provide any assurance as to any aspect of the tax regime following implementation of the GST.
Any future increases or amendments may affect the overall tax efficiency of companies
operating in India and may result in significant additional taxes becoming payable.

In addition, unfavorable changes in or interpretations of existing, or the promulgation of new laws, rules
and regulations including foreign investment laws governing our business, operations and group structure
could result in us being deemed to be in contravention of such laws or may require us to apply for
additional approvals. We may incur increased costs and other burdens relating to compliance with such
new requirements, which may also require significant management time and other resources, and any
failure to comply may adversely affect our business, results of operations and prospects. Uncertainty in
the applicability, interpretation or implementation of any amendment to, or change in, governing law,
regulation or policy, including by reason of an absence, or a limited body, of administrative or judicial
precedent may be time consuming as well as costly for us to resolve and may affect the viability of our
current business or restrict our ability to grow our business in the future.

Any increase in taxes and levies, or the imposition of new taxes and levies in the future, could increase
the cost of production and operating expenses. Taxes and other levies imposed by the central or state
governments in India that affect our industry include customs duties, excise duties, sales tax, income tax
and other taxes, duties or surcharges introduced on a permanent or temporary basis from time to time.
The central and state tax scheme in India is extensive and subject to change from time to time. Any
adverse changes in any of the taxes levied by the central or state governments may adversely affect our
competitive position and profitability.

Financial instability in both Indian and international financial markets could adversely affect our
results of operations and financial condition.

The Indian financial market and the Indian economy are influenced by economic and market conditions
in other countries, particularly in emerging market in Asian countries. Financial turmoil in Asia, Europe,
the United States and elsewhere in the world in recent years has affected the Indian economy. Although
economic conditions are different in each country, investors’ reactions to developments in one country
can have an adverse effect on the securities of companies in other countries. A loss in investor confidence
in the financial systems of other emerging markets may cause increased volatility in in the Indian
economy in general. Any global financial instability, including further deterioration of credit conditions
in the U.S. market, could also have a negative impact on the Indian economy. Financial disruptions may
occur again and could harm our results of operations and financial condition.

The Indian economy is also influenced by economic and market conditions in other countries. This
includes, but is not limited to, the conditions in the United States, Europe and certain economies in Asia.
Financial turmoil in Asia and elsewhere in the world in recent years has affected the Indian economy.
Any worldwide financial instability may cause increased volatility in the Indian financial markets and,
directly or indirectly, adversely affect the Indian economy and financial sector and its business.

Although economic conditions vary across markets, loss of investor confidence in one emerging
economy may cause increased volatility across other economies, including India. Financial instability in
other parts of the world could have a global influence and thereby impact the Indian economy. Financial
disruptions in the future could adversely affect our business, prospects, financial condition and results of
operations. The global credit and equity markets have experienced substantial dislocations, liquidity
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disruptions and market corrections.

There are concerns that a tightening of monetary policy in emerging markets and some developed
markets will lead to a moderation in global growth. In response to such developments, legislators and
financial regulators in the United States and other jurisdictions, including India, have implemented a
number of policy measures designed to add stability to the financial markets. However, the overall long-
term impact of these and other legislative and regulatory efforts on the global financial markets is
uncertain, and they may not have had the intended stabilizing effects. Any significant financial disruption
in the future could have an adverse effect on our cost of funding, loan portfolio, business, future financial
performance and the trading price of the Equity Shares.

Inflation in India could have an adverse effect on our profitability and if significant, on our financial
condition.

Inflation rates in India have been volatile in recent years, and such volatility may continue in the future.
India has experienced high inflation in the recent past. Increased inflation can contribute to an increase
in interest rates and increased costs to our business, including increased costs of salaries, and other
expenses relevant to our business.

High fluctuations in inflation rates may make it more difficult for us to accurately estimate or control our
costs. Any increase in inflation in India can increase our expenses, which we may not be able to pass on
to our customers, whether entirely or in part, and the same may adversely affect our business and financial
condition. In particular, we might not be able to reduce our costs or increase our rates to pass the increase
in costs on to our customers. In such case, our business, results of operations, cash flows and financial
condition may be adversely affected.

Further, the GOI has previously initiated economic measures to combat high inflation rates, and it is
unclear whether these measures will remain in effect. There can be no assurance that Indian inflation
levels will not worsen in the future.

Foreign investors are subject to foreign investment restrictions under Indian law that limits our ability
to attract foreign investors, which may adversely impact the market price of the Equity Shares.

As an Indian Company, we are subject to exchange controls that regulate borrowing in foreign currencies,
including those specified under FEMA. Such regulatory restrictions limit our financing sources and
hence could constrain our ability to obtain financing on competitive terms and refinance existing
indebtedness. In addition, we cannot assure you that the required approvals will be granted to us without
onerous conditions, or at all. Limitations on foreign debt may adversely affect our business growth,
results of operations and financial condition.

Further, under the foreign exchange regulations currently in force in India, transfers of shares between
non- residents and residents are freely permitted (subject to certain exceptions) if they comply with the
pricing guidelines and reporting requirements specified by the RBI. If the transfer of shares, which are
sought to be transferred, is not in compliance with such pricing guidelines or reporting requirements or
fall under any of the exceptions referred to above, then the prior approval of the RBI will be required.
Additionally, shareholders who seek to convert the Rupee proceeds from a sale of shares in India into
foreign currency and repatriate that foreign currency from India will require a no objection/ tax clearance
certificate from the income tax authority. There can be no assurance that any approval required from the
RBI or any other government agency can be obtained on any particular terms or at all.

Any downgrading of India’s debt rating by an independent agency may harm our ability to raise
financing.

Any adverse revisions to India’s credit ratings international debt by international rating agencies may
adversely affect our ability to raise additional overseas financing and the interest rates and other
commercial terms at which such additional financing is available. This could have an adverse effect on
our ability to fund our growth on favourable terms or at all, and consequently adversely affect our
business and financial performance and the price of our Equity Shares.
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Changing laws, rules and regulations and legal uncertainties, including adverse application of tax
laws, may adversely affect our business, prospects and results of operations

The regulatory environment in which we operate is evolving and is subject to change. The Gol may
implement new laws or other regulations that could affect the insurance industry, which could lead to
new compliance requirements, including requiring us to obtain approvals and licenses from the Gol and
other regulatory bodies, or impose onerous requirements. New compliance requirements could increase
our costs or otherwise adversely affect our business, financial condition and results of operations.
Further, the manner in which new requirements will be enforced or interpreted can lead to uncertainty in
our operations and could adversely affect our operations. Accordingly, any adverse regulatory change in
this regard could lead to fluctuation of price points of various input costs and thereby increase our
operational cost.

The Taxation Laws (Amendment) Act, 2019, also prescribes certain changes to the income tax rate
applicable to companies in India. According to this Act, companies can henceforth voluntarily opt in
favour of a concessional tax regime (subject to no other special benefits/exemptions being claimed),
which would ultimately reduce the effective tax rate (on gross basis) for Indian companies from 34.94%
to approximately 25.17%. Any such future amendments may affect our ability to claim exemptions that
we have historically benefited from, and such exemptions may no longer be available to us. Any adverse
order passed by the appellate authorities/ tribunals/ courts would have an effect on our profitability. Due
to COVID -19 pandemic, the Government of India had also passed the Taxation and Other Laws
(Relaxation of Certain Provisions) Act, 2020, implementing relaxations from certain requirements under,
among others, the Central Goods and Service Tax Act, 2017 and Customs Tariff Act, 1975. Furthermore,
the Government of India announced the Union Budget for Fiscal 2023 (“Budget 2023”), pursuant to
which the Finance Bill 2023 (defined below) has proposed various amendments which will only come
into effect upon receipt of Presidential assent to the bill and notification in requisite acts. We have not
fully determined the impact of these recent and proposed laws and regulations on our business.

There can be no assurance that we will not be required to comply with additional procedures or obtain
additional approvals and licenses from the government and other regulatory bodies or that they will not
impose onerous requirements and conditions on our operations in connection with GST. While we are
and will comply with the GST rules and regulations, any failure to comply with the same may result in
noncompliance with the GST and may adversely affect our business and results of operations. The Gol
announced the union budget for fiscal year 2023, following which the Finance Bill, 2022 was introduced
in the Lok Sabha on February 1, 2022. Subsequently, the Finance Bill 2022 received the assent from the
President of India on March 30, 2022, and became the Finance Act, 2022 (“Finance Act 2022”). We
cannot predict whether the amendments made and yet to be notified pursuant to the Finance Act 2022
would have an adverse effect on our business, financial condition, future cash flows and results of
operations. Any changes in the Finance Act 2022 or interpretations of existing, or the promulgation of
new, laws, rules and regulations including foreign investment and stamp duty laws that are applicable to
our business and operations could result in us being deemed to be in contravention of such laws and may
require us to apply for additional approvals.

Changes in other laws may impose additional requirements, resulting in additional expenditure and time
cost. For instance, the Gol has announced four labour codes which are yet to come into force as on the
date of this Draft Letter of Offer, namely, (i) the Code on Wages, 2019, (ii) the Industrial Relations Code,
2020; (iii) the Code on Social Security, 2020; and (iv) the Occupational Safety, Health and Working
Conditions Code, 2020. Such codes will replace the existing legal framework governing rights of workers
and labour relations. While the rules for implementation under these codes have not been announced, we
are unable to determine the impact of all or some such laws on our business and operations which may
restrict our ability to grow our business in the future. For example, the Social Security Code aims to
provide uniformity in providing social security benefits to employees which were previously segregated
under different acts and had different applicability and coverage. The Social Security Code has
introduced the concept of workers outside traditional employer-employee work-arrangements, such as
“gig workers” and “platform workers” and provides for the mandatory registration of such workers in
order to enable these workers to avail themselves of various employment benefits, such as life and
disability cover, health and maternity benefits and old age protection, under schemes framed under the
Social Security Code from time to time. Any failure to comply may adversely affect our business, results
of operations and prospects. Uncertainty in the applicability, interpretation or implementation of any
amendment to, or change in, governing law, regulation or policy, including by reason of an absence, or
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a limited body, of administrative or judicial precedent may be time consuming as well as costly for us to
resolve and may impact the viability of our current businesses or restrict our ability to grow our
businesses in the future

The occurrence of natural or man-made disasters could adversely affect our results of operations,
cash flows and financial condition. Hostilities, terrorist attacks, civil unrest and other acts of violence
could adversely affect the financial markets and our business.

The occurrence of natural disasters, including cyclones, storms, floods, earthquakes, tsunamis, tornadoes,
fires, explosions, pandemic disease and man-made disasters, including acts of terrorism and military
actions, could adversely affect our results of operations, cash flows or financial condition. In addition,
any deterioration in international relations, especially between India and its neighbouring countries, may
result in investor concerns regarding regional stability which could adversely affect the price of the
Equity Shares. In addition, India has witnessed local civil disturbances in recent years and it is possible
that future civil unrest as well as other adverse social, economic or political events in India could have
an adverse effect on our business.

Such incidents could also create a greater perception that investment in Indian companies involves a
higher degree of risk and could have an adverse effect on our business and the market price of the Equity
Shares.

We are subject to regulatory, economic, social and political uncertainties and other factors beyond
our control.

We are incorporated in India and we conduct our corporate affairs and our business in India.
Consequently, our business, operations, financial performance will be affected by interest rates,
government policies, taxation, social and ethnic instability and other political and economic
developments affecting India.

Factors that may adversely affect the Indian economy, and hence our results of operations may include:

. Any exchange rate fluctuations, the imposition of currency controls and restrictions on the right
to convert or repatriate currency or export assets;

. Any scarcity of credit or other financing in India, resulting in an adverse effect on economic
conditions in India and scarcity of financing for our expansions;

. Prevailing income conditions among Indian customers and Indian corporations;

. epidemic or any other public health in India or in countries in the region or globally, including
in India’s various neighbouring countries;

. Hostile or war like situations with the neighbouring countries;

. Macroeconomic factors and central bank regulation, including in relation to interest rates
movements which may in turn adversely impact our access to capital and increase our borrowing
costs;

. Decline in India’s foreign exchange reserves which may affect liquidity in the Indian economy;

. Downgrading of India’s sovereign debt rating by rating agencies; and

. Difficulty in developing any necessary partnerships with local businesses on commercially
acceptable terms and/or a timely basis.

. Any slowdown or perceived slowdown in the Indian economy, or in specific sectors of the

Indian economy or certain regions in India, could adversely affect our business, results of
operations and financial condition and the price of the Equity Shares.

Financial instability in other countries may cause increased volatility in Indian financial markets.

The Indian market and the Indian economy are influenced by economic and market conditions in other
countries, particularly emerging market countries in Asia. Although economic conditions are different in
each country, investors’ reactions to developments in one country can have adverse effects on the
securities of companies in other countries, including India. A loss of investor confidence in the financial
systems of other emerging markets may cause increased volatility in Indian financial markets and,
indirectly, in the Indian economy in general. Any worldwide financial instability could also have a
negative impact on the Indian economy. Financial disruptions may occur again and could harm our
business, our future financial performance and the prices of the Equity Shares.
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The recent outbreak of Novel Coronavirus has significantly affected financial markets around the world.
Any other global economic developments or the perception that any of them could occur may continue
to have an adverse effect on global economic conditions and the stability of global financial markets, and
may significantly reduce global market liquidity and restrict the ability of key market participants to
operate in certain financial markets. Any of these factors could depress economic activity and restrict
our access to capital, which could have an adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results
of operations and reduce the price of our Equity Shares. Any financial disruption could have an adverse
effect on our business, future financial performance, shareholders’ equity and the price of our Equity
Shares.
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SECTION 1V - INTRODUCTION

THE ISSUE

This Issue has been authorized through a resolution passed by our Board at its meeting held on April 11, 2023 to
raise funds by issuance and allotment of equity shares for aggregate amount of up to Rs. 50 Crore (Rupees Fifty
Crore), by way of Right Issue, on such terms to be decided by the Board or a duly constituted committee of the
Board at a later date, subject to the approval of shareholders, thereafter, the same was approved via Postal Ballot

Notice dated April 11, 2023.

The terms and conditions of the Issue including the rights entitlement ratio, Issue Price, Record Date, timing of
the Issue and other related matters, have been approved by a resolution passed by the Board of Directors at its
meeting held on [@].The following is a summary of this Issue, and should be read in conjunction with and is
qualified entirely by, the information detailed in the chapter titled “Terms of the Issue” on page 199 of this Draft

Letter of Offer.

Particulars

Equity Shares proposed to be
issued

Rights Entitlement

Fractional Entitlement

Record Date
Face value per Equity Shares

Issue Price per Rights Equity
Shares
Issue Size

Voting Rights and Dividend

Equity Shares issued, subscribed
and paid up prior to the Issue
Equity Shares subscribed and
paid-up after the Issue (assuming
full subscription for and allotment
of the Rights Entitlement)

Equity Shares outstanding after
the  Issue  (assuming  full
subscription for and Allotment of
the Rights Entitlement)

Money payable at the time of
Application

Scrip Details

Use of Issue Proceeds

Details of Equity Shares
Up to [e] Equity Shares

[®] Equity Share for every [e®] fully paid-up Equity Share(s) held on the
Record Date

For Equity Shares being offered on a rights basis under the Issue, if the
shareholding of any of the Eligible Equity Shareholders is less than [e]
Equity Shares or is not in multiples of [e], the fractional entitlement of
such Eligible Equity Shareholders shall be ignored for computation of
the Rights Entitlement.

However, Eligible Equity Shareholders whose fractional entitlements
are being ignored earlier will be given preference in the Allotment of
one additional Equity Share each, if such Eligible Equity Shareholders
have applied for additional Equity Shares over and above their Rights
Entitlement, if any.

[e]

21

X [®] per Equity Share (including a premium of X [e] per Equity Share)

Issue not exceeding X [4995]% lakhs
*Assuming full subscription, to be adjusted as per the Rights Entitlement
ratio
The Equity Shares issued pursuant to this Issue shall rank pari passu in
all respects with the Equity Shares of our Company
22,01,93,280 Equity Shares. For details, see “Capital Structure”
beginning on page 51 of this Draft Letter of Offer
Upto [e] Equity Shares

[e]

X [e]

ISIN: INE178T01024

Rights Entitlement ISIN: [e]

BSE: 539773

For details, please refer to the chapter titled “Objects of the Issue” on
page 54 of this Draft Letter of Offer.
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Particulars Details of Equity Shares
Terms of the Issue For details, please refer to the chapter titled “Terms of the Issue” on
page 199 of this Draft Letter of Offer.

Please refer to the chapter titled “Terms of the Issue” on page 199 of this Draft Letter of Offer.

Issue Schedule

The subscription will open upon the commencement of the banking hours and will close upon the close of banking
hours on the dates mentioned below:

Event Indicative Date
Issue Opening Date [e]
Last Date for On Market Renunciation of Rights** [e]
Issue Closing Date* [e]

*The Board of Directors or a duly authorized committee thereof will have the right to extend the Issue period as it may
determine from time to time, provided that the Issue will not remain open in excess of 30 (thirty) days from the Issue Opening
Date.

** Eligible Equity Shareholders are requested to ensure that renunciation through off-market transfer is completed in such a
manner that the Rights Entitlements are credited to the demat account of the Renouncees on or prior to the Issue Closing Date.
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GENERAL INFORMATION

Our Company was originally incorporated as ‘Quick Credit Limited’ in New Delhi on November 14, 1985 as a
public limited company under the Companies Act, 1956, and was granted the certificate of incorporation by the
Registrar of Companies, Delhi and Haryana at New Delhi. Our Company was granted the Certificate for
Commencement of Business on November 20, 1985 by the Registrar of Companies, Delhi and Haryana at New
Delhi. Our Company was registered as Non-Banking Financial Company vide certificate of registration dated
August 24, 2017 bearing No. B- 14.00724 under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

In the beginning of the year 2010, our Company underwent change of Control in terms of Regulation 12 of
Securities Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition and Takeover of Shares) Regulation, 1997. Pursuant
to the change of Control, Mr. Virendra Kumar Aggarwal and Mr. Rishab Kumar Aggarwal became Promoters of
the Company and the then existing Promoter(s) ceased to be the Promoter(s) of the Company.

In year 2010, pursuant to scheme of amalgamation, under section 391 (2) and 394 of the Companies Act, 1956,
approved by Hon’ble High Court of Delhi, our Company was amalgamated with Du-Lite Safety Services Private
Limited which was engaged in the business of trading of electrical and safety devices.

Subsequently, the name of our Company was changed to ‘DU-Lite Industries Limited’ and a fresh Certificate of
Incorporation was granted by the Registrar of Companies, Delhi and Haryana at New Delhi on September 20,
2010. The name of the Company was changed again to ‘Advik Industries Limited’ and our Company received a
fresh certificate of incorporation which was granted by the Registrar of Companies, Delhi and Haryana at New
Delhi on February 24, 2011. Finally, the name of our Company was changed to ‘Advik Capital Limited’ and a
fresh certificate of incorporation consequent upon change of name was granted by the Registrar of Companies,
Delhi at Delhi on July 7, 2017. Further, the Company procured a Certificate of Registration from Reserve Bank
of India as a Non-Banking Financial Company on August 24, 2017 in the new name.

Thereafter, Company’s promoters Mr. Virender Agarwal and Mr. Shakul Kumar Agarwal entered into a Share
Purchase Agreement on May 18, 2022 with Mr. Vikas Garg, Mrs. Seema Garg (Acquirers) and Ms. Sukriti Garg
(PAQ)), to sell their entire stake of Advik Capital Limited (“the Company”). Afterward, an Open Offer was made
by the Acquirers to acquire upto 26% of the total Voting Shares of the Company from public shareholders vide
Letter of Offer dated February 06, 2023.

Pursuant to the completion of the said open offer, and the Share Purchase Agreement, the Company was acquired
by Mr. Vikas Garg, Mrs. Seema Garg (Acquirers) and Ms. Sukriti Garg (PAC) and they took over as Promoters
and Promoter Group of the Company.

Registered Office, CIN and registration number of our Company

Reg. Office: G-3, Vikas House, 34/1, East Punjabi Bagh, Sec — III,
West Delhi, New Delhi, India — 110026

CIN: L65100DL1985PLC022505

Tel: +91 92891 19980,

E-mail: advikcapital@gmail.com

Website: www.advikgroup.com

Registration Number: 022505

Address of the RoC

Our Company is registered with the RoC, Delhi, which is situated at the following address:
Registrar of Companies, Delhi

4th Floor, IFCI Tower,

61, Nehru Place,
New Delhi - 110019
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Company Secretary and Compliance Officer

Ms. Deepika Mishra

G-3, Vikas House, 34/1, East Punjabi Bagh, Sec — III,

West Delhi, New Delhi, India — 110026
Telephone: +91 92891 19980
E- mail: advikcapital@gmail.com

Chief Financial Officer
Mr. Pankaj

G-3, Vikas House, 34/1, East Punjabi Bagh, Sec — III,

West Delhi, New Delhi, India — 110026
Telephone: +91 92891 19980
E- mail: advikcapital@gmail.com

Board of Directors of our Company

Name Age Designation

Mr. Vikas Garg 50 Executive
Director

Mr. Karan 50 Whole-Time

Bagga Director & CEO

Mr. Pankaj 24 Whole-Time
Director & CFO

Mr. Devender 67 Independent
Kumar Garg Director

Ms. Gunjan Jha 37 Independent

Director
Ms. Sony 31 Independent
Kumari Director
Ms. Swati 28 Independent
Gupta Director

Address

House No. 7, Road No -41 , West
Punjabi Bagh, New Delhi-110026

House No B-10/7, Double Storey,
Near Mother Dairy, Ramesh Nagar,
Rajouri Garden, West Delhi-110015
House No 398/1 , Near Sewa Samiti
Ward NO 18 Teh Charkhi Dadri, Hira
Chowk, Bhiwani, Haryana 127306
G-801 La Lagune, Golf Course
Road, Sector 54, Gurgaon,
Chakarpur(74), Gurgaon Haryana-
122002

House No-191,4th Floor, School
Block, Shakarpur, L Corner Building,
Shakar Pur Baramad, East Delhi,
Delhi — 110092

E-30B, Flat No. 8, 2nd Floor,
Chhatarpur Extension Near Suman
Chowk, Chattarpur, South Delhi-
110074

F-722A, Street No. 24, Laxmi Nagar,
East Delhi, Delhi 110092

DIN
00255413

05357861

10140086

02316543

09270389

09270483

09652245

For detailed profile of our Directors, please refer to the chapter titled “Our Management’ beginning on page 91

of this Draft Letter of Offer.

Details of Key Intermediaries pertaining to this Issue of our Company:

Lead Manager to the Issue
FAST TRACK FINSEC PRIVATE LIMTED

B-502, Statesman House, 147 Barakhamba Road, New Delhi- 110001

Tel:011-43029809;

Website: www.ftfinsec.com

Email: Vikasverma@ftfinsec.com
Contact person: Mr. Vikas Kumar Verma
SEBI Registration No.: INM000012500
CIN: U65191DL2010PTC200381
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Registrar to the Company and the Issue:

Skyline Financial Services Private Limited

D-153A, 1st Floor, Okhla Industrial Area,

Phase-I, New Delhi-110020

Telephone: 011-40450193/97

Email: ipo@skylinerta.com

Website: www.skylinerta.com

Investor grievance e-mail: grievances@skylinerta.com
Contact Person: Mr. Anuj Rana

SEBI Registration No.: INR000003241

Validity of Registration: Permanent

Banker to the Issue: [°]

Statutory and Peer Review Auditor of the Issuer:
M/s. KSMC & Associates

G-5, Vikas House, 34/1, East Punjabi Bagh

New Delhi-110026

Contact Person: Mr. Sachin Singhal

Firm Registration Number: 003565N
Membership No.: 505732

Telephone Number: 011 — 4144 0483

E-mail: info@ksmec.in , admin@ksmc.in

Peer Review Certificate Number: 012973

Designated Intermediaries:
Self-Certified Syndicate Banks

The list of banks that have been notified by SEBI to act as SCSBs or the SBA Process is provided at the website
of the SEBI https://www.sebi.gov.in/sebiweb/other/OtherAction.do?doRecognised=yes and updated from time to
time. For details on Designated Branches of SCSBs collecting the Application Forms, refer to the website of the
SEBI https://www.sebi.gov.in/sebiweb/other/OtherAction.do?doRecognised=yes. On allotment, the amount will
be unblocked and the account will be debited only to the extent required to pay for the Rights Equity Shares
Allotted.

Inter-se Allocation of Responsibilities

Since Fast Track Finsec Private Limited is the sole Lead Manager to this Issue, a statement of inter se allocation
of responsibilities amongst Lead Managers is not required.

Expert Opinion
Except as stated below, our Company has not obtained any expert opinions:

Our Company has received written consent dated July 01, 2023 from the Statutory Auditors to include their name
as required under Section 26(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with SEBI ICDR Regulations in this Draft Letter
of Offer as an “Expert” as defined under Section 2(38) of the Companies Act, 2013 to the extent and in its capacity
as an independent Statutory Auditor and in respect of its (i) examination report dated July 01, 2023 on our Restated
Financial Statements for the financial years ended March 31, 2021, March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2023, and (ii)
Statement of Special Tax Benefits dated July 01, 2023 in this Draft Letter of Offer and such consent has not been
withdrawn as on the date of this Draft Letter of Offer.
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Investor Grievances

Investors may contact the Company Secretary and Compliance Officer for any pre-Issue/ post- Issue related
matters such as non-receipt of Letters of Allotment/ share certificates/ DEMAT credit/ Refund Orders/unblocking
of ASBA Account, etc.

Investors may contact the Registrar to the Issue or our Company Secretary and Compliance Officer for any pre-
Issue or post- Issue related matters. All grievances relating to the ASBA process may be addressed to the Registrar
to the Issue, with a copy to the SCSB (in case of ASBA process), giving full details such as name, address of the
Applicant, contact number(s), e-mail address of the sole/ first holder, folio number or DEMAT account, number
of Equity Shares applied for, amount blocked (in case of ASBA process), ASBA Account number and the
Designated Branch of the SCSB where the application Forms, or the plain paper application, as the case may be,
was submitted by the Investors along with a photocopy of the acknowledgement slip (in case of ASBA process).
For details on the ASBA process, "Terms of the Issue" beginning on page 199 of this Draft Letter of Offer

Credit Rating

As this is an Issue of Equity Shares, credit rating is not required.

Debenture Trustees

As this is an Issue of Equity Shares, appointment of Debenture Trustee is not required.
Monitoring Agency

As the net proceeds of the Issue will be less than Rs. 10,000 Lakhs, under the SEBI ICDR Regulations, it is not
required that a monitoring agency be appointed by our Company.

Filing

SEBI vide the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) (Fourth
Amendment) Regulations, 2020 has amended Regulation 3(b) of the SEBI ICDR Regulations as per which the
threshold for filing of Draft Letter of Offer with SEBI for rights issues has been increased. The threshold of the
rights issue size under Regulation 3 (b) of the SEBI ICDR Regulations has been increased from Rupees ten crores
to Rupees fifty crores. Since the size of this Issue falls below this threshold, the Draft Letter of Offer has been
filed with BSE Limited not with SEBI. However, the Draft Letter of Offer will be submitted with SEBI for
information and dissemination and will be filed with the Stock Exchanges.

Underwriting Agreement and Details

This Issue is not underwritten.

Changes in Auditors during the last three years

Name of Auditor | Address and E-mail Date of | Reason
Appointment/
Cessation
M/s. Garg Anil & | E-174, Lajpat Nagar-iv, 01/04/2018 Due to increase of level
Co, Chartered Amar Colony, New Delhi, 110024 | to of operation of the
Accountants 06/08/2022 Company
E-mail: anilgarg02@gmail.com
M/s. KSMC & G-5, Vikas Apartments, 34/1, East | 25/08/2022 to NA
Associates, Punjabi Bagh, New Delhi-110026 | 31/03/2027
Chartered
Accountants E-mail: info@ksmc.in
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Issue Schedule

Last Date for credit of Rights Entitlements [e]
Issue Opening Date [e]
Last date for On Market Renunciation of Rights Entitlements * [®]
Issue Closing Date* [e]
Finalization of Basis of Allotment (on or about) [e]
Date of Allotment (on or about) [e]
Date of credit (on or about) [e]
Date of listing or Commencement of trading (on or about) [e]

#  Eligible Equity Shareholders are requested to ensure that renunciation through off-market transfer is completed in such a manner that
the Rights Entitlements are credited to the demat account of the Renouncees on or prior to the Issue Closing Date.

*  Qur Board or a duly authorized committee thereof will have the right to extend the Issue Period as it may determine from time to time
but not exceeding 30 days from the Issue Opening Date (inclusive of the Issue Opening Date). Further, no withdrawal of Application
shall be permitted by any Applicant after the Issue Closing Date.

The above schedule is indicative and does not constitute any obligation on our Company or the Advisor to the
Issue.

Please note that if Eligible Equity Shareholders holding Equity Shares in physical form as on Record Date, have
not provided the details of their demat accounts to our Company or to the Registrar, they are required to provide
their demat account details to our Company or the Registrar not later than two Working Days prior to the Issue
Closing Date, i.e., [®] to enable the credit of the Rights Entitlements by way of transfer from the demat suspense
escrow account to their respective demat accounts, at least one day before the Issue Closing Date, i.c., [®].

Investors are advised to ensure that the Application Forms are submitted on or before the Issue Closing Date. Our
Company, the Advisors or the Registrar will not be liable for any loss on account of non-submission of
Application Forms on or before the Issue Closing Date. Further, it is also encouraged that the applications are
submitted well in advance before Issue Closing Date, due to prevailing COVID-19 related conditions. For details
on submitting Application Forms, see "Terms of the Issue - Procedure for Application" beginning on page 199
of this Draft Letter of Offer.

The details of the Rights Entitlements with respect to each Eligible Equity Shareholders can be accessed by such
respective Eligible Equity Shareholders on the website of the Registrar at https://www.skylinerta.com after
keying in their respective details along with other security control measures implemented thereat. For further
details, see "Terms of the Issue- Credit of Rights Entitlements in demat accounts of Eligible Equity
Shareholders" beginning on page 216 of this Draft Letter of Offer.

Please note that if no Application is made by the Eligible Equity Shareholders of Rights Entitlements on
or before Issue Closing Date, such Rights Entitlements shall get lapsed and shall be extinguished after the
Issue Closing Date. No Equity Shares for such lapsed Rights Entitlements will be credited, even if such
Rights Entitlements were purchased from market and purchaser will lose the premium paid to acquire the
Rights Entitlements. Persons who are credited the Rights Entitlements are required to make an application
to apply for Equity Shares offered under Rights Issue for subscribing to the Equity Shares offered under
Issue.

Minimum Subscription

If our Company does not receive the minimum subscription of at least 90% of the Issue, or the subscription level
falls below 90%, after the Issue Closing Date, our Company shall refund the entire subscription amount received
within 15 days from the Issue Closing Date. If, there is delay in making refunds beyond such period as prescribed
by applicable laws, our Company will pay interest for the delayed period at rates prescribed under applicable laws.
The above is subject to the terms mentioned under “Issue Information” on page 199.

Appraising Entity

None of the purposes for which the Net Proceeds are proposed to be utilized have been appraised by any banks or
financial institution or any other independent agency.
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Filing

SEBI vide the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) (Fourth
Amendment) Regulations, 2020 has amended Regulation 3(b) of the SEBI ICDR Regulations as per which the
threshold for filing of Draft Letter of Offer with SEBI for rights issues has been increased. The threshold of the
rights issue size under Regulation 3 (b) of the SEBI ICDR Regulations has been increased from Rupees ten crores
to Rupees fifty crores. Since the size of this Issue falls below this threshold, the Draft Letter of Offer has been
filed with BSE Limited and not with SEBI. However, the Draft Letter of Offer will be submitted with SEBI for
information and dissemination and will be filed with the Stock Exchanges.

50



CAPITAL STRUCTURE

The Equity Share capital of our Company, as on the date of this Draft Letter of Offer and after giving effect to the

Issue is set forth below:

Authorised Share Capital*

75,00,00,000 Equity Shares of .1/- each 75,00,00,000 -

Issued, Subscribed and Paid-Up Share Capital before the
*| Issue

22,01,93,280 Equity Shares of %.1/- each 22,01,93,280 -

Present Issue in terms of this Draft Letter of Offer

Offer of [®] Equity Shares of Face Value %1/- each at a Price
of Z [e] per Equity Share [o] [o]

Issued, subscribed and paid up Equity Share Capital after the
Issue

[e] Equity Shares X1.00/- each
(o]

Subscribed and paid up Equity Share Capital

[®] Fully paid up Equity Shares [e]

Securities Premium Account

E.| Before the Issue 3477.45

After the Issue [e]

# Assuming full subscription for and Allotment of the Equity Shares

(1) The present Issue has been authorized by the Board of Directors vide a resolution passed at its meeting held April 11, 2023.
(2) The Equity Share Capital after the Issue includes the full value of the Rights Equity Shares allotted in the Issue.

(3) Authorised share Capital has been increased from 25 Cr. to 75 Cr. through the Postal Ballot Notice Dated April 11, 2023.

Notes to Capital Structure

1. Details of outstanding instruments as on the date of this Draft Letter of Offer:

As on date of this Draft Letter of Offer, our Company has not issued any Equity Shares under any
employee stock option scheme or employee stock purchase scheme. Further, it has not issued any
convertible securities which are outstanding as of date of this Draft Letter of Offer.

Details of Equity Shares held by the promoters and promoter group including the details of lock-in pledge
of and encumbrance on such Equity Shares

The details of the Equity Shares held by our Promoters and members of our Promoter Group, including
details of Equity Shares which are locked-in, pledged or encumbered can be accessed
on the website of BSE

Details of Equity Shares acquired by the promoters and promoter group in the last one year prior to the
filing of this Draft Letter of Offer, except as mentioned below, no Equity Shares have been acquired by
the other Promoters or members of Promoter Group in the last (1) one year immediately preceding the
date of filing of this Draft Letter of Offer:

Name of the Promoter & | Date of Acquisition | Mode of Acquisition No. of Equity
Promoter Group Shares
Mr. Vikas Garg Pre-holding: Online:6,69,776 1,72,61,241
6,69,776
Offline Via Share Purchase
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March, 15, 2023: | agreement:86,92,000

78,99,465
Open offer:78,99,465
March 21, 2023:
86,92,000
Ms. Seema Garg Pre-holding: 4,600 Online:4,600 1,65,96,051
March 21, 2023: | Offline: Via Share
86,92,000 Purchase agreement:
86,92,000
March, 15, 2023: | Open offer 78,99,451
19,63,613
March 16, 2023:
59,35,838
Ms. Sukriti Garg Online 1,41,34,847

Intention and extent of participation by our Promoter and Promoter Group in the Issue:

Our Promoters had expressed their intention to subscribe, jointly and/ or severally to the extent of there
Rights Entitlement and subscribe to the full extent of any Rights Entitlement that may be renounced in
favour one promoter by another promoter of our Company. Accordingly, in terms of the SEBI ICDR
Regulations, the requirement of minimum subscription to the Issue become not applicable.

Further, we may renounce a part of Our Rights Entitlement in favour of third parties as well. The extent
of renouncement in favour of third party, if any, shall be finalized before the filing of ‘Letter of Offer’
with Stock Exchanges. In the event, if we decide to renounce our Right Entitlement in favour of third
parties, the minimum subscription condition as stipulated under Regulation 86 (1) of the SEBI ICDR
Regulations might apply to the Issue.

The ex-rights price of the Rights Equity Shares as per Regulation 10(4)(b) of the Takeover Regulations
is X [@] per equity share.

Shareholding Pattern of our Company as per the last filing with the Stock Exchanges in compliance
with the provisions of the SEBI Listing Regulations

(1) The shareholding pattern of our Company, as on June 30, 2023, can be accesed on the website
of the BSE https://www.bseindia.com/stock-share-price/advik-capital-
Itd/advikca/539773/shareholding-pattern/;.

(ii) The statement showing holding of securities (including Equity Shares, warrants, convertible
securities) of persons belonging to the category "Public" including Equity Shareholders holding
more than 1% of the total number of Equity Shares as on June 30, 2023, as well as details of
shares which remain unclaimed for public can be accessed on the website of the BSE
https://www.bseindia.com/corporates/shpPublicShareholder.aspx?scripcd=539773 &qtrid=118
.00&QtrName=June%202023.

At any given time, there shall be only one denomination of the Equity Shares of our Company.

Further, the Rights Equity Shares allotted pursuant to the Issue, shall be fully paid up
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OBJECTS OF THE ISSUE

The Issue comprises of an issue of up to [®] Equity Shares, aggregating up to X 4,995 lakhs by our Company. For
details see "The Issue " beginning on page 43 of this Draft Letter of Offer.

Our Company intends to utilize the proceeds of the Issue towards the following objects:

The objects of the issue are:

1. To augment our capital base and for increasing our operational scale with respect to our NBFC activities.
2. General Corporate Purposes.

(Collectively, referred to hereinafter as the "Objects")

We intend to utilize the gross proceeds raised through the Issue (the "Issue Proceeds") after deducting the Issue
related expense ("Net Proceeds") for the above-mentioned Objects.

The main Object Clause of Memorandum of Association of our Company enables us to undertake the existing
activities and the activities for which the funds are being raised by us through the present Issue. Further, we
confirm that the activities which we have been carrying out till date are in accordance with the Object Clause of
our Memorandum of Association.

The details of objects of the Issue

Particulars Amount (in lakhs)
Gross proceeds from the Issue 4,995.00*
Less: Issue related expenses 95.00
Net Proceeds of the Issue 4,900.00

*The issue size will not exceed X 4995.00 lakhs if there is any deduction on account of or at the time of finalisation of issue price and Rights
Entitlements Ratio the same will be adjusted against the amount for General Corporate Purpose.

Requirement of Funds:

S. No. Particulars Total estimated amount
to be utilized (R in lakhs)
1. To augment the capital base of our Company 3,675.00
2. General Corporate Purposes 1,225.00
3. Issue related expenses 95.00
Total 4,995.00

* The amount utilized towards general corporate purposes shall not exceed 25% of the Gross Proceeds.
Means of Finance

Our Company proposes to meet the entire requirement of funds for the proposed objects of the Issue from the Net
Proceeds. Accordingly, our Company confirms that there is no requirement to make firm arrangements of finance
through verifiable means towards at least 75% of the stated means of finance, excluding the amount to be raised
from the Issue.

Utilization of Net Proceeds

Our Company proposes to deploy the Net Proceeds in the aforesaid objects as follows:
(R in lakhs)

S. No. Particulars Total estimated amount
to be utilized
1. To augment the capital base of our Company 3,675.00
2. General Corporate Purposes 1,225.00
Total 4,900.00
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Schedule of Implementation and Deployment of Gross Proceeds
(Rs. In Lakhs)

. Amount Proposed to For FY 2023-24
Objects of the Issue be Funded from Net
Proceeds

To augment our capital base and for increasing

our operational scale with respect to our 3,675.00 3,675.00
NBFC activities

General corporate purposes 1,225.00 1,225.00
Issue expenses 95.00 95.00
Total * 4,995.00 4,995.00

* Assuming full subscription in the Issue and subject to finalization of the Basis of Allotment and to be adjusted per the Rights Entitlement
ratio.

In view of the competitive environment of the industry in which we operate, Our Company may have to revise its
business plan from time to time and consequently our fund requirements may also change. Our Company’s historical
expenditure may not be reflective of our future expenditure plans. Our Company may have to revise its estimated
costs, fund allocation and fund requirements owing to various factors such as economic and business conditions,
increased competition and other external factors which may not be within the control of our management. This may
entail rescheduling or revising the planned expenditure and funding requirements, including the expenditure for a
particular purpose at the discretion of the Company’s management.

The fund requirement and deployment are based on internal management estimates and our Company’s current
business plan and is subject to change in light of changes in external circumstances or costs, other financial
conditions or business strategy.

Any amount, deployed by our Company out of internal accruals towards the aforementioned objects till the
date of receipt of Issue Proceeds shall be recouped by our Company from the Issue Proceeds of the Issue. In case
of delays in raising funds from the Issue, our company may deploy certain amounts towards any of the above-
mentioned Objects through a combination of Internal Accruals or Loans (Bridge Financing) and in such case the
Funds raised shall be utilized towards repayment of such Loans or recouping of Internal Accruals. However, we
confirm that no bridge financing has been availed as on date, which is subject to being repaid from the Issue
Proceeds.

Details of the Objects of the Issue
The details in relation to objects of the Issue are set forth herein below.
1. To augment our capital base and for increasing our operational scale with respect to our NBFC activities.

Our Company is a RBI Registered NBFC primarily involved in the business of providing financial services
with a paramount focus on small business in both corporate as well as in non-corporate sector. We propose
to augment our capital base by Rs. 3,675.00 lakhs through this Issue and utilize the funds raised to further
increase the operational scale of its business of NBFC activities, including but not limited to expansion of
the financing business to provide for funding of fresh loans to our corporate customers. Our Company
proposes to expand its loan portfolio to target high net worth corporates with past credit track record to whom
our Company may advance funds both secured/ unsecured based on the risk profile and as envisaged in the
loan policy of our Company.

Further, to encash the available opportunity, our Company sometime make investment in the form of debt
and equity in various companies either directly or through its wholly owned subsidiary. We are not bound
by predefined restrictions in regard to our search for investment opportunities. We invest in companies in a
variety of markets and stages both listed and unlisted. Our management approach can take the form either of
driving change or partnership with existing owners.

No portion of the amount earmarked towards this object will be utilised for giving loans to our Promoters,
Subsidiaries, Associates, Group Companies and Promoter Group Companies.
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2. General Corporate Purpose
In terms of Regulation 62(2) of the SEBI ICDR Regulations, the extent of the Issue Proceeds proposed to be
used for General Corporate Purposes shall not in the aggregate exceed 25% of the Gross Proceeds of the Issue.
Our Board will have flexibility in applying the balance amount after utilizing the amount for acquisition of
business targets towards General Corporate Purposes, including repayment of outstanding loans, meeting our
working capital requirements, capital expenditure, funding our growth opportunities, including strategic
initiatives, meeting expenses incurred in the ordinary course of business including salaries and wages,
administration expenses, insurance related expenses, meeting of exigencies which our Company may face in
course of business and any other purpose as may be approved by the Board or a duly appointed committee
from time to time, subject to compliance with the necessary provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.
Our management will have flexibility in utilizing any amounts for General Corporate Purposes under the
overall guidance and policies of our Board. The quantum of utilization of funds towards any of the purposes
will be determined by the Board, based on the amount available under this head and the business requirements
of our Company, from time to time.
3. Expenses for the issue
The Issue related expenses consist of fees payable to Legal Counsel, processing fee to the SCSBs, Registrars
to the Issue, printing and stationery expenses, advertising expenses and all other incidental and miscellaneous
expenses for listing the Rights Equity Shares on the Stock Exchanges. Our Company will need approximately
[ e] lakhs towards these expenses, a break-up of the same is as follows:
(< in lakhs)
Activity Estimated % of Total As a % of
Expense Expenses Issue size
Fees payable to the intermediaries [o] [o] [o]
(including Legal Counsel fees, selling
commission, registrar fees and expenses)
Adpvertising, Printing, stationery and [®] [®] [®]
distribution Expenses
Statutory and other Miscellaneous Expenses [o] [o] [®]
Total 95.00 [o] [o]
Appraisal
None of the Objects of the Issue have been appraised by any bank or financial institution.
Source Of Financing and Deployment of Funds towards the Objects of the Issue
FUNDS ALREADY DEPOLYED
Particulars Amount (Rs. in Lakhs)
Out of Borrowings 53.00
Out of income proceeds 7.50
Total 60.50
Deployment of Funds
Particulars Amount (Rs. in Lakhs)
Payments to Ministry of Corporate Affairs 45.00
Payment to Advisors 13.00
Payment to Legal Advisors and Others 2.50
Total 60.50

We have incurred X 60.50 Lakhs up to July 1, 2023 towards the Objects of the Issue which has been certified
by M/s KSMC & Associates, vide his certificate dated July 1, 2023. The said amount has been met by the
Company from its own resources and the same will be adjusted against the issue proceeds.
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Bridge Financing Facilities

Our Company has not raised any bridge loans from any bank or financial institution as on the date of this Draft
Letter of Offer, which are proposed to be repaid from the Issue Proceeds.

Monitoring of Utilization of Funds

Since the proceeds from the Issue are less than 310,000 lakhs, in terms of Regulation 41(1) of the SEBI ICDR
Regulations, our Company is not required to appoint a monitoring agency for this Issue. However, as per SEBI
Listing Regulation, the Rights Issue Committee appointed by the Board would be monitoring the utilization of
the proceeds of the Issue. The Company will disclose the utilization of the Issue Proceeds under a separate head
in our balance sheet along with the relevant details, for all such amounts that have not been utilized. The
Company will indicate investments, if any, of unutilized Issue Proceeds in the Balance Sheet of the Company
for the relevant Financial Years subsequent to receipt of listing and trading approvals from the Stock Exchanges.

Pursuant to Regulation 32 of the SEBI Listing Regulation, the Company shall, on a quarterly basis, disclose to
the Audit Committee the uses and applications of the Issue Proceeds. In accordance with Regulation 32 of the
SEBI Listing Regulation, the Company shall furnish to the Stock Exchanges, on a quarterly basis, a statement
on material deviations, if any, in the utilization of the proceeds of the Issue from the objects of the Issue as stated
above. This information will also be published in newspapers simultaneously with the interim or annual financial
results after placing the same before the Audit Committee.

Interim Use of Proceeds

Our Company, in accordance with the policies formulated by our Board from time to time, will have flexibility
to deploy the Net Proceeds. Pending utilization of the Net Proceeds for the purposes described above, our
Company intends to deposit the Net Proceeds only with scheduled commercial banks included in the second
schedule of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 or make any such investment as may be allowed by SEBI from
time to time.

Interest of Promoters, Promoter Group and Directors, as applicable to the objects of the Issue
Our Promoters, Promoter Group and Directors do not have any interest in the objects of the Issue.
Clause for Promoter Subscription

Our Promoters vide its letter dated July 12, 2023 have expressed its intention to subscribe, jointly and/ or severally
to the extent of their Rights Entitlement and subscribe to the full extent of any Rights Entitlement that may be
renounced in favour one promoter by another promoter of our Company. Accordingly, in terms of the SEBI ICDR
Regulations, the requirement of minimum subscription to the Issue become not applicable.

Though, our Promoters in the aforesaid letter have also expressed the company that they may renounce a part of
their Rights Entitlement in favour of third parties as well. The extent of renouncement in favour of third party, if
any, shall be finalized before the filing of ‘Letter of Offer’ with Stock Exchanges. In the event of our Promoters
decide to renounce their Right Entitlement in favour of third parties, the minimum subscription condition as
stipulated under Regulation 86 (1) of the SEBI ICDR Regulations might apply to the Issue.

In accordance with Regulation 86 of the SEBI ICDR Regulations, if our Company does not receive minimum
subscription of at least 90% of the Equity Shares being offered under this Issue, on an aggregate basis our Company
shall refund the entire subscription amount received within 4 (four) days from the Issue Closing Date in accordance
with the SEBI circular bearing reference number SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL1/CIR/P/2021/47 dated March 31, 2021. If
there is a delay in making refunds beyond such period as prescribed by applicable laws, our Company will pay
interest for the delayed period at rate as prescribed under the applicable laws.

Further, in case of applicability of the minimum subscription condition as stipulated under Regulation 86 (1) of the
SEBI ICDR Regulations, and solely in the event of an under-subscription of the Issue, our Promoters may subscribe
to, either individually or jointly, for additional Rights Equity Shares, subject to compliance with the Companies Act,
the SEBI ICDR Regulations, the SEBI Takeover Regulations and other applicable laws.
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Additional subscription by the promoters shall be made subject to such additional subscription not resulting in 54
the minimum public shareholding of the issuer falling below the level prescribed in Regulation 38 of the SEBI
Listing Regulations/ SCRR. Our Company is in compliance with Regulation 38 of the SEBI Listing Regulations and
will continue to comply with the minimum public shareholding requirements pursuant to the Issue.

Strategic or financial partners

There are no strategic or financial partners attributed to the Objects of the Issue.
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STATEMENT OF SPECIAL TAX BENEFITS

KSMC & ASSOCIATES

\ Chartered Accountants

STATEMENT OF SPECIAL TAX BENEFITS

STATEMENT OF SPECIAL TAX BENEFITS AVAILABLE TO ADVIK CAPITAL LIMITED (“THE
COMPANY”) AND THE SHAREHOLDERS OF THE COMPANY UNDER THE APPLICABLE DIRECT
AND INDIRECT TAX LAWS IN INDIA

Date: July 01, 2023

To

The Board of Directors

Adyik Capital Limited

G-3, Vikas House, 34/1, East Punjabi Bagh
Sec — I1I, New Delhi West Delhi-110026

Dear Sirs,

Sub: Statement of possible Special Tax Benefits available to the Company and its shareholders under the
direct and indirect tax laws

We refer to the proposed Right issue offering of equity shares (the “Offer”) Advik Capital Limited (“the Company™).
We report that there are no possible special tax benefits that are available to the Company and its shareholders as per
the provisions of the Indian direct and indirect tax laws, including the Income Tax Act, 1961 (the “IT Act”), the
Central Goods and Services Tax Act, 2017, the Integrated Goods and Services Tax Act, 2017, the Union Territory
Goods and Services Tax Act, 2017, respective State Goods and Services Tax Act, 2017, the Customs Act, 1962 and
the Customs Tariff Act, 1975 (collectively referred to as “Taxation laws”) including the rules, regulations, circulars
and notifications issued in connection with the Taxation Laws, as presently in force and applicable to the assessment
year 2024-25 relevant to the financial year 2023-24 for inclusion in the Draft letter of offer as required under the
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018, as
amended (“ICDR Regulations”).

This statement is only intended to provide general information to guide the equity shareholders and is neither designed
nor intended to be a substitute for professional tax advice. In view of the individual nature of the tax consequences
and the changing tax laws, each equity shareholder is advised to consult their own tax consultants, with respect to the
specific tax implications arising out of their participation in the Offer. We are neither suggesting nor are we advising
the equity shareholders to invest or not to invest money based on this statement.

The contents of this certificate are based on the representations obtained from the Company and on the basis of our
understanding of the business activities and operations of the Company.

We do not express any opinion or provide any assurance whether:
* The Company or its Shareholders will obtain any special benefits in future; and
* The conditions prescribed for availing the benefits have been/would be met.

G-5, Vikas House, 34/1, East Punjabi Bagh, New Delhi-110026 (India)
Ph:0I1- 41440483, 42440483, 45140483 | E-mail : info@ksmc.in, admin@ksmc.in | Website : www.ksmc.in
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We hereby give our consent to include this report regarding the special tax benefits available to the Company and its
shareholders in the Draft letter of Offer which the Company intends to submit to the Securities and Exchange Board
of India and the Stock Exchange, provided that the below statement of limitation is included in the Draft Letter of
Offer.

LIMITATIONS

Qur views expressed in the enclosed certificate are based on the facts and assumptions indicated above. No assurance
is given that the revenue authorities/courts will concur with the views expressed herein. Our views are based on the
information, explanations and representations obtained from the Company and on the basis of our understanding of
the business activities and operations of the Company and the existing provisions of Taxation laws in force in India
and its interpretation, which are subject to change from time to time. We do not assume responsibility to update the
views consequent to such changes. Reliance on this certificate is on the express understanding that we do not assume
responsibility towards the Equity shareholders in the Right issue relying on this certificate. This statement has been
prepared solely in connection with the Offer of the Company under the ICDR Regulations.

NEW u[_‘-uy ‘)W}‘
\_/‘ AI:J‘ .

mbership No. 505732)

UDIN: 23S0€7 32 6 U H IWTAL40

Place: New Delhi
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SECTION V - ABOUT THE COMPANY
INDUSTRY OVERVIEW

The information contained in ‘Industry Overview’ in this section is derived from publicly available sources.
Neither we, nor any other person connected with the Issue has independently verified this information. Industry
sources and publications generally state that the information contained therein has been obtained from sources
generally believed to be reliable, but that their accuracy, completeness and underlying assumptions are not
guaranteed and their reliability cannot be assured. Industry publications are also prepared based on information
as of specific dates and may no longer be current or reflect current trends.

Shareholders should note that this is only a summary of the industry in which we operate and does not contain all
information that should be considered before investing in the Equity Shares. Before deciding to invest in the Equity
Shares, shareholders should read this Draft Letter of Offer, including the information in the sections "Risk
Factors" and "Financial Information" beginning on pages 22 and 104, respectively of this Draft Letter of Offer.
An investment in the Equity Shares involves a high degree of risk. For a discussion of certain risks in connection
with an investment in the Equity Shares, please see the section ‘Risk Factors’ beginning on page 22 of this Draft
Letter of Offer.

GOLBAL ECONOMY

The global economy is yet again at a highly uncertain moment, with the cumulative effects of the past three years
of adverse shocks—most notably, the COVID-19 pandemic and Russia’s invasion of Ukraine—manifesting in
unforeseen ways. Spurred by pent-up demand, lingering supply disruptions, and commodity price spikes, inflation
reached multidecade highs last year in many economies, leading central banks to tighten aggressively to bring it
back toward their targets and keep inflation expectations anchored.

Although telegraphed by central banks, the rapid rise in interest rates and anticipated slowing of economic activity
to put inflation on a downward path have, together with supervisory and regulatory gaps and the materialization
of bank-specific risks, contributed to stresses in parts of the financial system, raising financial stability concerns.
Banks’ generally strong liquidity and capital positions suggested that they would be able to absorb the effects of
monetary policy tightening and adapt smoothly. However, some financial institutions with business models that
relied heavily on a continuation of the extremely low nominal interest rates of the past years have come under
acute stress, as they have proved either unprepared or unable to adjust to the fast pace of rate rises.

The unexpected failures of two specialized regional banks in the United States in mid-March 2023 and the collapse
of confidence in Credit Suisse—a globally significant bank—have roiled financial markets, with bank depositors
and investors reevaluating the safety of their holdings and shifting away from institutions and investments
perceived as vulnerable. The loss of confidence in Credit Suisse resulted in a brokered takeover. Broad equity
indices across major markets have fallen below their levels prior to the turmoil, but bank equities have come under
extreme pressure (Figure 1.1). Despite strong policy actions to support the banking sector and reassure markets,
some depositors and investors have become highly sensitive to any news, as they struggle to discern the breadth
of vulnerabilities across banks and nonbank financial institutions and their implications for the likely near-term
path of the economy. Financial conditions have tightened, which is likely to entail lower lending and activity if
they persist.

Prior to recent financial sector ructions, activity in the world economy had shown nascent signs of stabilizing in
early 2023 after the adverse shocks of last year (Figure 1.2). Russia’s invasion of Ukraine and the ongoing war
caused severe commodity and energy price shocks and trade disruptions, provoking the beginning of a significant
reorientation and adjustment across many economies. More contagious COVID-19 strains emerged and spread
widely. Outbreaks particularly affected activity in economies in which populations had lower levels of immunity
and in which strict lockdowns were implemented, such as in China. Although these developments imperilled the
recovery, activity in many economies turned out better than expected in the second half of 2022, typically
reflecting stronger-than-anticipated domestic conditions.

Labor markets in advanced economies—most notably, the United States—have stayed very strong, with
unemployment rates historically low. Even so, confidence remains depressed across all regions compared with
where it was at the beginning of 2022, before Russia invaded Ukraine and the resurgence of COVID-19 in the
second quarter.
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With the recent increase in financial market volatility and multiple indicators pointing in different directions, the
fog around the world economic outlook has thickened. Uncertainty is high, and the balance of risks has shifted
firmly to the downside so long as the financial sector remains unsettled. The major forces that affected the world
in 2022—<central banks’ tight monetary stances to allay inflation, limited fiscal buffers to absorb shocks amid
historically high debt levels, commodity price spikes and geo-economic fragmentation with Russia’s war in
Ukraine, and China’s economic reopening—seem likely to continue into 2023. But these forces are now overlaid
by and interacting with new financial stability concerns. A hard landing— particularly for advanced economies—
has become a much larger risk. Policymakers may face difficult trade-offs to bring sticky inflation down and
maintain growth while also preserving financial stability.

Figure 1.17. Broad Eguity and Bank Eguity Indices for
Selected Major Economies
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Inflation Is Declining with Rapid Rate Rises but Remains Elevated amid Financial Sector Stress

Global headline inflation has been declining since mid-2022 at a three-month seasonally adjusted annualized rate
(Figure 1.3). A fall in fuel and energy commodity prices, particularly for the United States, euro area, and Latin
America, has contributed to this decline. To dampen demand and reduce underlying (core) inflation, the lion’s
share of central banks around the world have been raising interest rates since 2021, both at a faster pace and in a
more synchronous manner than in the previous global monetary tightening episode just before the global financial
crisis. This more restrictive monetary policy has started to show up in a slowdown in new home construction in

many countries. Inflation excluding volatile food and energy prices has been declining at a three-month rate—

although at a slower pace than headline inflation—in most (though not all) major economies since mid-2022.

Even so, both headline and core inflation rates remain at about double their pre-2021 levels on average and far
above target among almost all inflation-targeting countries. Moreover, differences across economies reflect their
varying exposure to underlying shocks. For example, headline inflation is running at nearly 7 percent (year over

year) in the euro area—with some member states seeing rates near 15 percent—and above 10 percent in the United
Kingdom, leaving household budgets stretched.

The effects of earlier cost shocks and historically tight labor markets are also translating into more persistent

underlying price pressures and stickier inflation. The labor market tightness in part reflects a slow post-pandemic
recovery in labor supply, with, in particular, fewer older workers participating in the labor force (Duval and others
2022). The ratios of job openings to the number of people unemployed in the United States and the euro area at
the end of 2022 were at their highest levels in decades. At the same time, the cost pressures from wages have so

far remained contained despite the tightness of labor markets, with no signs of a wage-price spiral dynamic—in

which both wages and prices accelerate in tandem for a sustained period— taking hold. In fact, real wage growth

in advanced economies has been lower than it was at the end of 2021, unlike what took place in most of the earlier
historical episodes with circumstances similar to those prevailing in 2021, when prices were accelerating and real
wage growth was declining, on average.

Inflation expectations have so far remained anchored, with professional forecasters maintaining their five-year
ahead projected inflation rates near their pre-pandemic levels. To ensure this remains the case, major central banks
have generally stayed firm in their communications about the need for a restrictive monetary policy stance,
signaling that interest rates will stay higher for longer than previously expected to address sticky inflation.

Figwre 1.3. Inflation Turming Dowwn or Plateauing?
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Indebtedness Staying High

As a result of the pandemic and economic upheaval over the past three years, private and public debt have reached
levels not seen in decades in most economies and remain high, despite their fall in 2021-22 on the back of the
economic rebound from COVID-19 and the rise in inflation. Monetary policy tightening—particularly by major
advanced economies—has led to sharp increases in borrowing costs, raising concerns about the sustainability of
some economies’ debts. Among the group of emerging market and developing economies, the average level and
distribution of sovereign spreads increased markedly in the summer of 2022, before coming down in early 2023.
The effects of the latest financial market turmoil on emerging market and developing economy sovereign spreads
have been limited so far, but there is a tangible risk of a surprise increase in coming months should global financial
conditions tighten further. The share of economies at high risk of debt distress remains high in historical context,
leaving many of them susceptible to unfavorable fiscal shocks in the absence of policy actions.

Feeble and Uneven Growth
Baseline Scenario

The baseline forecast is for global output growth, estimated at 3.4 percent in 2022, to fall to 2.8 percent in 2023,

0.1 percentage point lower than predicted in the January 2023 WEO Update (Table 1.1), before rising to 3.0
percent in 2024. This forecast for the coming years is well below what was expected before the onset of the
adverse shocks since early 2022. Compared with the January 2022 WEO Update forecast, global growth in 2023
is 1.0 percentage point lower, and this growth gap is expected to close only gradually in the coming two years.

The baseline prognosis is also weak by historical standards. During the two pre-pandemic decades (2000-09 and
2010-19), world growth averaged 3.9 and 3.7 percent a year, respectively.

For advanced economies, growth is projected to decline by half in 2023 to 1.3 percent, before rising to 1.4 percent
in 2024. Although the forecast for 2023 is modestly higher (by 0.1 percentage point) than in the January 2023
WEO Update, it is well below the 2.6 percent forecast of January 2022. About 90 percent of advanced economies
are projected to see a decline in growth in 2023. With the sharp slowdown, advanced economies are expected to
see higher unemployment: a rise of 0.5 percentage point on average from 2022 to 2024.

For emerging market and developing economies, economic prospects are on average stronger than for advanced

economies, but these prospects vary more widely across regions. On average, growth is expected to be 3.9 percent
in 2023 and to rise to 4.2 percent in 2024. The forecast for 2023 is modestly lower (by 0.1 percentage point) than
in the January 2023 WEO Update and significantly below the 4.7 percent forecast of January 2022. In low-income
developing countries, GDP is expected to grow by 5.1 percent, on average, over 202324, but projected per capita
income growth averages only 2.8 percent during 2023-24, below the average for middle-income economies (3.2
percent) and so below the path needed for standards of living to converge with those in middle-income economies.
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2000-2008 2011-2019 2021 2022 2023 2024 2024-2029 2030-2035

United States 24 22 59 21 07 0.4 17 16
Europe 23 16 55 35 0.6 10 09 08
Euro Area 21 12 5.1 33 08 10 08 07
Germany 15 17 26 18 -0.1 09 10 10
Italy 12 0.1 7.0 38 11 07 0.0 -02
France 19 14 6.8 26 08 12 11 10
United Kingdom 23 20 76 41 02 08 10 0.9
Japan 11 09 22 10 10 08 06 05
Other Mature Economies 40 28 5.6 28 13 20 26 22
Mature Economies 24 1.9 5.4 27 0.8 0.9 14 1.3
China 104 73 8.1 30 5.1 47 44 41
India 71 638 9.0 6.8 50 48 47 43
e 52 50 38 56 38 38 36 34
Letin America 34 12 6.9 37 10 13 17 16
Erazil 38 08 53 3.0 0.9 13 15 13
Mexico 22 24 49 31 24 10 19 15
Middle East & North Africa 49 31 48 56 27 39 24 25
Gulf region 52 37 | BT 8.2 20 47 24 26
Sub-Saharan Africa 59 36 47 36 30 30 35 35
Eu“fjéi Central Asia and S& 65 28 6.8 -0.6 0.6 24 18 17
Russia 7.0 18 46 -16 02 08 04 03
Turkey 50 56 16 5.4 15 23 31 29
E‘;‘:;%;igng'é‘;ﬁfnfi:‘; 6.3 48 6.9 38 36 38 3.6 3.4
World 40 33 6.2 33 23 25 2.6 26
Addenda
China (Alternative) 89 57 8.0 NA NA NA 30 28
India (Fiscal Year) 6.1 64 9.1 7.0 49 46 NA NA

[Source: The International Monetary Fund, World Economic Outlook April, 2023]
OVERVIEW OF NBFCS’ CREDIT
1. Introduction

The Indian banking industry is classified into scheduled and non-scheduled banks. Banks that are included in the
Second Schedule to the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 are called scheduled banks. These banks are then further
classified into scheduled commercial banks (“SCBs”) and scheduled co-operative banks. SCBs are banks that are
permitted to conduct the normal business of banking, which entails collecting deposits, sanctioning loans and
offering other banking services. SCBs are further divided into Public Sector Banks (“PSBs”), Private Banks
(“PVBs”), Foreign Banks and Regional Rural Banks (“RRBs”).

Apart from SCBs, there are non-banking financial companies (“NBFCs”) that also play an important role in the
Indian financial system by complementing and competing with banks, and by promoting efficiency and diversity
into financial intermediation. NBFCs have evolved considerably in terms of operations, heterogeneity, asset
quality and profitability, and regulatory architecture.

NBFCs can be classified on the basis of a) asset/liability structures; b) systemic importance; and c) the activities
they undertake, according to the RBI. In terms of liability structures, NBFCs are subdivided into deposit-taking
NBFCs (“NBFCs-D”) - which accept and hold public deposits - and non-deposit taking NBFCs (“NBFCs-ND”)
- which source their funding from markets and banks. Among NBFCs-ND, those with asset size of Rs. 5 billion
or more are classified as non-deposit taking systemically important NBFCs (“NBFCs- ND-SI””). As on July 31,
2022, there were 49 NBFCs- D and 415 NBFCs-ND-SI, according to RBIL.
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Since NBFCs cater to niche areas, they are also categorised on the basis of activities they undertake. Up until
February 21, 2019, NBFCs were divided into 12 categories. Thereafter, these categories were harmonized by the
RBI in order to provide NBFCs with greater operational flexibility. As a result, asset finance companies (“AFCs”),
loan companies (“LCs”) and investment companies (“ICs”) were merged into a new category called Investment
and Credit Companies (“NBFC-ICC”). Additionally, account aggregators has been added as category of NBFCs.
At present, there are 12 categories of NBFCs in the activity- based classification.

Types of NBFCs
Type of NBFC Nature of activity / Principal business
Investment and Credit | Lending and investments.
Company (ICC)
Infrastructure Finance | Providing loans for infrastructure development.
Company (IFC)

Infrastructure Debt Fund (IDF) | Facilitate flow of long-term debt to infrastructure projects.
Core Investment Company | Investment in equity shares, preference shares, debt, or loans of group companies.

(CIC).

NBFC- Micro Finance | Collateral free loans and advances to small borrowers.

Institution

(NBFC-MFI)

NBEC - Factor Factoring business i.e., financing of receivables.

Non-Operative Financial | For setting up new banks in private sector through its promoter/promoter groups.

Holding Company (NOFHC)
Mortgage Guarantee Company | Providing mortgage guarantees for loans.
MGC)
Asset Reconstruction Company | Acquiring and dealing in financial assets sold by banks and financial institutions.
(ARC)
Peer-to-Peer Lending platform | Providing an online platform to bring lenders and borrowers together to help mobilise
(P2P) funds

Account Aggregator (AA) Collecting and providing information about a customer’s financial assets in a
organised and retrievable manner to the customer or others as specified by the
customer.

Housing Finance Company | Financing for housing.
(HFC)
Source: RBI, CareEdge Research

In October 2021, RBI decided to classify NBFCs based on size and risk perception using Scale Based Approach
— The Filtering Process by segregating NBFCs into four categories namely NBFC Base Layer (BL), NBFC Middle
Layer (ML), NBFC Upper Layer (UL), and NBFC Top Layer (TL).

Classification of NBFCs

NBFC NBFCs with asset size of not more than Rs. 10 billion, Type 1 NBFC, Peer to Peer (P2P), Account

BL Aggregator (AA), and Non-Operative Financial Holding Company (NOFHC)

NBFC NBFC-ND that are systematically important (SI) having an asset size of less than Rs. 10 billion and also
ML NBFC-HFCs, IFCs, IDFs, CICs, and Standalone Primary Dealers irrespective of their asset size

NBFC Top NBFCs to be filtered based on their size & leverage, inter-connectedness, complexity, and superior
UL inputs (including group structure, liability mix, and segment penetration).

NBFC Top Layer will remain empty unless RBI takes a view on specific NBFCs in the Upper Layer

TL

Additionally, Investment and Credit Companies (NBFC-ICC), Micro Finance Institution (NBFC-MFI), NBFC-
Factors and Mortgage Guarantee Companies (NBFC-MGC) that can be classified under any layer of the
regulatory structure depending on the parameters of the scale based regulatory framework. Government owned
NBFCs can only be classified under base layer or middle layer.

Further, as per RBIs notification as on October 11, 2022 titled “Multiple NBFCs in a Group: Classification in

Middle Layer”. NBFCs that are part of a common Group or are floated by a common set of promoters are required
to be viewed on a consolidated basis. For the consolidation of assets of the NBFCs in a Group, the total assets of
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all the NBFCs in a Group shall be consolidated to determine the threshold for their classification in the Middle
Layer.

Recognition of NBFCs in Upper Layer:

NBFC categorization is based on an annual review. The paper recognizes two parameters; quantitative and
qualitative:

e The quantitative parameters will have 70% weightage.

e The qualitative parameters will have 30% weightage.

The table below represents quantitative and qualitative parameters as proposed:

Parameter [ Sub-parameter [ Sub weight [ Weights
Quantitative Parameters (70%)
Size & Leverage Size: Total exposure (on-and off-balance sheet) 20+15 35
Leverage: total debt to total equity
Interconnectedness i) Intra-financial system assets: 10 25
— Lending to Fls 10
— Securities of other Fls 5
— Mark to market REPO

— OTC derivatives

it) Intra-financial system liabilities

—Borrowings from FIs

— Marketable securities issued by the finance company to FI
— Mark to market OTC derivative with Fls

iii) Securities outstanding (issued by NBFC)

Complexity 1) Notional amount of OTC derivatives 5 10
— CCP centrally 5
— Bilateral OTC

ii) Trading and available for sale securities

Qualitative Parameters/Supervisory inputs (30%)

Nature and type of — Degree of reliance on short term funding 10 30
liabilities — Liquid asset ratios
— Callable debts

— Asset-backed funding Vs. other funding
— Asset liability duration and gap analysis
— Borrowing split (secured debt, CCPS, CPs, unsecured debt)

Group Structure — Total number of entities 10
— Total number of layers
— Total intra-group exposure

Segment Penetration | Importance of NBFC as a source of credit in a specific segment or area | 10

Source: RBI, CareEdge Research

Further, as per RBI’s notification as on June 06, 2022 titled “Provisioning for Standard assets by Non-Banking
Financial Company — Upper Layer”. NBFCs classified as NBFC-UL shall maintain provisions in respect of
‘standard’ assets at the following rates for the funded amount outstanding:

Category of Assets Rate of
Provisio
n
Individual housing loans and loans to Small and Micro
Enterprises (SMEs) 0.25%
2%, which will decrease to 0.4% after 1 year from the
Housing loans extended at teaser rates date on which the rates are reset at higher rates (if the

accounts remain ‘standard’)

Advances to Commercial Real Estate — Residential

Housing (CRE - RH) Sector 0.75%
Advances to Commercial Real Estate (CRE) Sector
(other than CRE-RH) 1%
As stipulated in the applicable prudential norms for
Restructured advances restructuringof advances
All other loans and advances not included above,
including loans to Medium Enterprises 0.4%
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1.2. Credit growth of SCBs and NBFCs

Credit disbursed by SCBs and NBFCs is broadly classified into two parts — food and non-food credit. Food credit
accounts for a fraction of total credit disbursed. Non-food credit makes up close to 99% of total credit extended
by SCBs and NBFCs and the movement in overall credit growth therefore hinges on the movement in non-food
credit growth.

SCBs' and NBFCs' Credit Deployed
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Source: CMIE, RBI, CareEdge Research, Data are provisional

Bank credit growth, including food and non-food credit growth, witnessed a slowdown in Fiscal 2020 on account
of a gradual slowdown in the economy and the resultant fall in demand. Credit growth declined to 6.1% as of
March 2020. The outbreak of COVID-19 led to a further easing of credit growth to 5.6% as of March 2021.
Following the end of COVID-19-related lockdowns, the credit growth registered a pick up and ended Fiscal 2022
at Rs. 118.9 trillion, 8.6% higher than at end of Fiscal 2021.

A default in debt repayments by a large NBFC in India in 2018 led to heightened investor focus around the health
of the broader NBFC sector as well as their sources of liquidity. This led to some tightening in liquidity available
to certain NBFCs and, as a result, it become more difficult for certain NBFCs to access debt and raise equity
capital. NBFCs recorded a similar trajectory in their credit growth over the past three years. NBFCs’ credit grew
by 9.6% in Fiscal 2021, it moderated to 5.6% as of March 2022 over March 2021. CareEdge Research believes
that the moderation was partly due to caution on the part of NBFCs in deploying credit while maintaining asset
quality, and largely due to the second wave of the pandemic, which impacted rural and semi-urban India — and
this demographic group forms the large chunk of NBFCs’ customer base.

Gross credit deployed by NBFCs
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To maintain the asset quality post the moratorium in the first half of FY22, NBFCs were more cautious while
deploying any fresh credit, which led to a slight decline in NBFCs’ total credit deployed. As of March 2022,
NBFCs’ credit deployed reached Rs. 28.5 trillion, this increase was on account of ramp-up in economic activity,
improved liquidity and strong balance sheets coupled with high provisions, which supported the asset quality and
credit growth for NBFCs.
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Retail Credit portfolio of SCBs & NBFCs
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As of March 2022, retail credit was approximately 26% of NBFCs’ gross credit deployed and nearly 29%
of SCBs’ gross credit deployed. Banks and NBFCs are shifting their focus towards retail lending due to an
increase in demand forretail credit. There has been a shift in consumer behaviour towards borrowing,
consumers want to create a better standardof living and are ready to borrow personal loans to fulfil those
needs.

1.3. Growth Drivers
Last mile financing & unbanked population

NBFCs have a strong presence in unorganized and under-served areas where banks may not have a strong
foothold. This is on account of the absence of necessary infrastructure of banks in these areas as well as an aversion
on the part of banks to disburse loans to smaller companies. The ease of internet access and affordable data packs
have not only contributed to increased spending and demand for retail credit from these areas, but have also
increased the potential consumer base of NBFCs.

Focus on informal customer base

Traditional banks may not be very keen on lending to retail borrowers from semi-urban and rural areas or small
companies with weaker credit scores and lack of documentation, when compared to larger borrowers. However,
in terms of volume, the number of potential customers in this category is higher and NBFC have created niche
segment by having customized credit assessment method based on cash flow assessment and field verification.
This gives NBFCs an opportunity to extend credit to the financially weaker set of customers, a growing customer
base in the informal customer segment opens up avenues for NBFCs’ growth.

Technological adoption and Co-lending arrangements:
NBFCs deploy technological solutions to develop innovative products and lower operational costs. Since NBFCs
are fairly new in the financial landscape as compared to most banks, they are more agile and better positioned to

leverage technology to enhance their reach while increasing efficiency.

NBFCs also partner with various alternative financiers and commercial banks, which enables them to diversify
their income avenues and reach their targeted customer base through different channels.

Shift in buying behaviour
Over the years, there has been significant change is perception of consumers towards borrowing. With the need

to improve lifestyle, more and more people especially the younger population are moving towards borrowing to
attain a certain standard of living.
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Rising demand from retail customers

Retail borrowers accounted for around 26% of total credit disbursed by NBFCs as on 31 March 2022, as per data
published by the RBI. Along with being a significant chunk of the customer base of NBFCs, the retail segment
has shown a consistent growth in credit demand throughout the pandemic. Going forward, CareEdge Research
believes that the demand for consumer durables, consumption of services, home loans and gold loans are likely
to support the growth in retail demand and, consequently, aid in the new business of NBFCs.

Increased demand from MSME and agriculture

Favourable Government policies aimed at boosting agriculture, small-scale industries and consumption are likely
to act as long-term growth catalysts in improving demand for MSME and agricultural credit. The “Make in India”,
“Start-up

India” initiatives, for example, are likely to support industrial activity and contribute to the demand for credit from
NBFCs. As on 28 November 2022, more than 12,244,823 micro, small and medium enterprises (MSMEs) have
registered on the Udyam portal, of which 11.778,071 are micro enterprises; 427,267 are small enterprises; and
39,485 are medium enterprises. Micro and small enterprises represent 99.7% of the total registered MSMEs as of
28 November 2022. The coverage of the formal banking system in MSMEs still remains low, which provides a
major opportunity to NBFCs to expand their reach.

1.4. Distribution between segments

Sectoral distribution of NBFCs' credit

% EEm 187 B 164

80%

60% 26.1 28.6 29.1 27.4

-~ M N N

20% - - n :
March March March March
2019 . 2020 Retail Service  m 2022

Source: RBI, CareEdge Research

Note: Industry includes credit to micro, small, medium and large enterprises; Retail loans are personal loans for housing loans,
consumer durables,auto loans, and other personal loans; Services include credit towards commercial real-estate, retail trade and
other such loans

The industry sector has remained the largest recipient of credit extended by NBFCs followed by retail loans,
services, other non-food credit, and agriculture & allied activities. Following the IL & FS crisis, NBFCs’ exposure
to the manufacturing declined, as per data published by RBI, as NBFCs were facing liquidity crunch and were
hesitant to deploy long term credit to industry. However, after recovering from the IL & FS crisis and the impact
of the COVID- 19 pandemic, NBFCs have improved liquidity and stronger balance sheets. NBFCs have increased
the amount of credit deployed to industry on account of an improved demand for credit amid the reopening of the
economy and resumption of manufacturing activities. As of March 2022, industry credit contributed to Rs. 11.1
trillion that is around 40% of NBFCs gross credit deployed, according to the RBI.

While NBFCs’ credit to industry is growing, their credit to services is declining majorly on account of the decline
in credit to the commercial real estate sector and retail trade. The commercial real estate sector and the retail trade
sector were highly impacted during the COVID-19 pandemic as the nationwide lockdown halted construction
activities and the movement of people and goods. However, in FY22 NBFCs credit to services has increased on
account of improved demand from transport operators, professional services and other NBFCs. As of March 2022,
as per data published by RBI, credit deployed to the service sector contributed to Rs. 4.4 trillion that is around
15.3% of NBFCs gross credit deployed.
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Retail loans comprise housing loans, vehicle loans, loans against gold, consumer durables loans and other such
personal loans. In 2019, retail credit accounted for around 26% of total credit deployed by NBFCs. As of March
2022, the contribution of retail loans increased to nearly a third of NBFCs gross credit deployed, which stood at
Rs. 28.5 trillion.

1.5. Outlook

CareEdge Research believes assets under management of NBFCs is expected to be higher at around 6-9% in Fiscal
2023 driven by an increased focus on extending credit to customers belonging to segments where the penetration
of bank credit is low, ease of access to internet and investments made in technology infrastructure due to the
COVID-19 pandemic. In terms of segmental growth, CareEdge Research expects the retail segment to continue
its growth momentum, while credit to industry will likely remain a laggard.

CareEdge Research believes that NBFCs are shifting their focus towards retail financing, which is anticipated to
show a healthy growth with a pick-up in economic activity and increased penetration of financial institutions
providing convenient financing options to borrowers.

The retail segment comprises vehicle loans, consumer durable loans, advances against golds, real estate loans and
other such individual loans. The retail segment is likely to significantly contribute to NBFCs’ growth, especially
in case of housing loans and vehicle loans. These segments are likely to continue their growth momentum on the
back of steady demand. Growth in vehicle segment is anticipated to see growth on the back of automotive
industry’s growth. In the near term, the growth is likely to be supported by new model launches and sustained
demand for vehicles during the first four months of FY23, supported by improved availability of semi-conductors.

Gold loans are a highly secured and liquid asset class that generates high returns with minimal credit losses and

encourages financial institutions to extend their credit towards gold loans. CareEdge Research believes that with
the rise in the price of gold amidst geopolitical unrest, a large geographic reach and the fast turnaround time on
loan application, the demand for gold loans to fund the working capital of micro enterprises and an individual’s
personal requirements will grow.

CareEdge Research believes that real estate financing will grow with the sustained demand for affordable housing.
However, the hike in interest rates and high property prices will continue to be a key monitorable for the real
estate finance segment as a whole.

In the coming months, CareEdge Research expects NBFCs to grow on account of improved demand for credit
that will facilitate disbursements. In addition to this, CareEdge Research expects high provisions against non-
performing assets and improved capital positions will aid this growth.

MSME
2.1. Introduction to MSMEs

The micro, small and medium enterprises (“MSME”) sector is a vibrant and dynamic sector with crucial linkages
to employment. The MSME sector is considered the growth engine of the Indian economy, with significant
contribution to the GDP, exports and employment generation. The sector contributes significantly in the economic
and social development of the country by fostering entrepreneurship and generating large employment
opportunities at comparatively lower capital cost, next only to agriculture.

MSME:s are complementary to large industries as ancillary units and the sector therefore contributes significantly
in the inclusive industrial development of the country. MSMEs are widening their domain across sectors of the
economy, producing a diverse range of products and services to meet demands of domestic as well as global
markets.
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In accordance with the provision of Micro, Small & Medium Enterprises Development (“MSMED”) Act, 2006
MSME:s are classified as follows:

Enterprise Investment in Plant & Machinery or Equipment Annual Turnover
Category
Micro 1 s
. Does not exceed 10 million Does not exceed Rs. 50 million
Enterprises
Small More than Rs. 10 million but does not exceed Rs. 100 | More than Rs. 50 million but does not exceed Rs.
Enterprises million 500 million
Medium More than Rs. 100 million but does not exceed Rs. 500 | More than Rs. 500 million but does not exceed Rs.
Enterprises million 2,500 million
Number of MSMEs in India
Micro 11,778,071
Small 4,27,267
Medium 39,485
Total 12,244,823

Source: Udyam portal, Data as of 28th November 2022.

As per the Udyam portal, around 12 million MSMEs are registered under Udyam portal, of which around 96.2%
enterprises are micro category and around 3.8% of the enterprises fall under small category and the remaining are
medium enterprises.

As per the National Sample Survey (NSS) 73rd round, conducted by National Sample Survey Office, Ministry of
Statistics & Programme Implementation during the period 2015-16, there were 63,388,000 unincorporated non-
agriculture MSME:s in the country engaged in different economic activities (manufacturing, electricity, trade and
other services). Of this, micro enterprises sector with 63,052,000 accounted for more than 99% of total estimated
number of MSMEs. While the small enterprise sector with around 3,31,000 makes up 0.52% of total estimated
number of MSMESs and the medium enterprise sector with around 5,00,000 that is around 0.01% of total estimated
MSMEs, respectively.

2.2. Credit to MSMEs

SCBs and NBFCs credit exposure to MSMEs

Outstanding NBFCs SCBs

as on Micro and Medium Total Micro and Medium Total

Small Enterprise Small Enterprise
Enterprise Enterprise
(R in billions)

March 2019 373.6 160.2 533.8 3,755.1 1,063.9 4,819.0
March 2020 3644 139.3 503.7 3,922.6 10,510.0 4,973.6
March 2021 442.9 150.4 5933 4,331.9 1,386.0 5,717.9
March 2022 445.7 1114 557.2 5,327.9 2,140.0 7,467.9

Source: RBI, CareEdge Research
Note: The credit exposure for MSMEs is NBFCs and SCBs credit exposure to "Micro & Small’ and "Medium’ enterprises under
‘Industrial Sector’ only.

NBFCs’ credit deployed to MSMEs engaged in the manufacturing sector as per RBI was on a downtrend and
stood at Rs. 503.7 billion as of March 2020 due to a combination of weakened demand from MSMEs and nagging
liquidity issues of NBFCs. NBFCs mainly deploy credit to MSMEs belonging to the services and agricultural
sectors. In comparison, bank credit to MSMEs witnessed a consistent growth. Bank credit deployed to MSMEs
witnessed an improvement in the year ending March 2021 and strengthened further in the first half of Fiscal 2022
on account of a resurgence in demand from MSMEs as well as support from the Central Government by way of
credit guarantee. The emergency credit line guarantee scheme or the Emergency Credit Line Guarantee Scheme
(ECLGS) announced by the Government in May 2020 after the pandemic hit the country in March 2020 revived
credit offtake by MSMEs. The scheme was introduced to help mitigate the economic distress faced by MSMEs
by providing them additional funding in the form of a fully guaranteed emergency credit line.
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The credit extended towards MSME has increased significantly as the Government encouraged banks to extend
credit to MSMEs and aid them to buffer the effects of the COVID-19 pandemic. AS micro and small enterprises
were more vulnerable, the credit towards them during the pandemic increased significantly during Fiscal 2021, as
per data published by the RBI. On the other hand, medium enterprises were able to buffer the effects of pandemic
to a certain extent. Although the credit towards medium enterprises increased over the previous Fiscal year, the
growth was moderate compared to growth in credit extended to micro and small enterprises.

2.3 Share of Banks & Non-Banks in MSME lending

Share of banks & NBFCs in MSME lending

100%

w

> 80%

2

= 2 60%

- T

25 40%

@

° 20%

0% 10.0% 9.2% 9.4% 6.9%
March 2019 March 2020 March 2021 March 2022
Outstanding as on mNBFCs mSCBs

Source: RBI, CareEdge Research
Note: The credit exposure for MSMEs is NBFCs and SCBs credit exposure to "Micro & Small’ and "Medium’
enterprises under ‘Industrial Sector’ only.

The MSME sector is underpenetrated by NBFCs and there is a huge unmet credit demand in the sector, primarily
due to lack of documentation and credit history required to access to financing from formal banking channels.
There is also a significant gap between the original credit requirement and the actual credit exposure of formal
channels to MSMEs, which provides a huge opportunity in MSME lending.

2.4. Asset Quality Trends for Banks

Bank-wise SMA distribution of MSME Portfolio

Public sector banks + Private sector banks

e O e ) SMA-1 SMA-2
March 2021 74.0% 7.3% 5.7% 2.2% 10.8%
June 2021 72.4% 8.6% 3.8% 3.4% 11.9%
September 2021 76.3% 6.6% 2.6% 3.1% 11.3%
December 2021 75.4% 8.8% 3.1% 2.3% 10.4%
March 2022 79.7% 6.4% 3.5% 1.1% 9.3%

Source: RBI, CareEdge Research

MSME:s have poor financial muscle and were severely impacted by the COVID-19 pandemic. Since most MSMEs
operate in the manufacturing sector, the nationwide lockdown, which impacted production as well as demand,
caused increased stress to MSMEs. Additionally, MSMEs likely witnessed delayed payments on orders serviced
and the inability to adopt digitization or accommodate higher costs on social distancing and limited workforce
impaired

MSMEs’ operations. Many went out of business and some struggled to tide over the crisis with cash flow issues,
which translated into a strain on their ability to repay banks.

MSME:s seeking loans from banks also struggled to meet their obligations due to uncertainty and the second wave

of the pandemic. As per data published by the RBI, GNPAs from the MSME segment witnessed a spike in Fiscal
2021 and rose further to 18.8% towards the end of June 2021, which coincided with the second wave of COVID-
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19. GNPAs declined at the start of September 2021 as operations returned back to normalcy. GNPAs have further
improved and declined to 9.3% in Fiscal 2022. CareEdge Research estimates GNPA levels to ease gradually over
the next fiscal year.

2.5. Outlook

The MSME sector is the driving force of the Indian economy and has major potential to spread industrialization
across the economy. However, this sector is small in terms of scale of operations, business size. MSMEs employ
a large number of people making the sector a key contributor to the economic development of the country. The
sheer number of work force engaged also results in this sector receiving Government support and benefits.

Apart from Government initiatives, the improved use of digital solutions adopted during the pandemic (such as
easy payments and marketing through digital platforms) increased demand for finished products have strengthen
the MSMEs and resulted in recovery of their business.

In addition to this the extension of Emergency Credit Line Guarantee Scheme (ECLGS), that assists MSMEs in
availing credit required to ensure recovery, until March 31, 2023 is likely to aid in the recovery and growth of this
sector. Besides, an additional Rs. 2,000 trillion provided by Government through the Credit guarantee trust for
micro and small enterprises (CGTMSE) are expected to further encourage growth of the sector. These initiatives
are expected to stimulate credit outreach to MSMEs, provide last-mile financial inclusion and promote job creation
in the sector.

The MSME sector is expected to help India achieve its goal of becoming a USD 5 trillion economy by 2025 and
in order to achieve this goal, MSMEs have to generate employment opportunities, improve performance,
transform their business operations and carry out technology-based production and invest in research and
development activities. In addition to this, MSMEs are expected to contribute more than 40% of India’s nominal
GDP by Fiscal 2025 for which it will require immense support from the Government, institutions and banks.

FY23 Results: NBFC Industry Snapshot

Balance Sheet Size Total Net Advances Total Borrowings' Shareholders Fund
o
X25.7L Crore X22.1L Crore X17.1L Crore %4.6L Crore
® A

18% YoY @) 17% Yoy €@ 21% Yoy @) 19% Yoy @)

(8] (o)
@ X2.9L Crores @ %1.3L Crore %0.2L Crore @ %0.6L Crore 3
22% Yoy @) 22% Yoy @ %C? 31% Yoy @ 39% Yoy @

5.4% Increased
@ & 2.5% Increased E_ by 58 bps

by 45 bps YoY e Yoy e

Profitability Balance Sheet

32.0% Increased m 2.9% Reduced by
by 197 bp YoY 6 90 bps YoY 6 5

Key Ratios

1. Total Borrowings include Debt Securities
Note: Growth is calculated for FY23 over FY22. Analysis has been made based on 29 NBFCs (10 HFCs, 2 Gold, 3 MFl and 14 Diversified NBFCs)

Summary Snapshot (/1)

« India's GDP grew at 7.2% in FY23, forecasted to grow between 5.3% to 6.5% YoY in FY24
« Most agencies have made upward revision of India's GDP forecast for FY24
« Major BFSI indicators, except insurance, grew at a healthy rate

« RBI hiked repo rate six times in the FY23, aggregating 250 bps to 6.5%
Macro Trends

« NBFCs post highest credit growth (17.3%) in last 5 years

« NIMs inched higher for lenders on account of higher yields and increased by 30 bps for both lenders;
PEOnN CIR increased marginally

"” « Profitability improved for NBFCs aided by record disbursals and improved asset quality

— « Most Banks/NBFCs reported lower GNPA; Credit costs also continue a downward trend

« Valuation for NBFCs remained flat in the last 1 year; However, Diversified NBFCs command higher
Banks vs NBFCs valuation than other categories

« Absolute profit for the NBFC sector increased 39% YOY in FY23 driven by Diversified (68%) and MFI
(220%) NBFCs

N,
0
Ny « Reduction in credit costs (38bps YoY) and higher NIM (37bps YoY) boosting sector profitability

Key Performance i Diversified (28%) and Micro Finance (33%) NBFCs driving credit growth for the overall sector (17%)
Indicators « Banks' lending to NBFCs is back, with share of bank’s lending to NBFCs ~2x during last 10 years
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Summary Snapshot (l1/11)

Asset quality of NBFCs is reaching pre-pandemic levels even as they are witnessing a huge jump in
57; credit demand

Asset quality improved for all NBFC segments except Gold loan NBFCs in FY23
NPA and Risk Despite few NBFCs opting to cut capital buffer, NBFC sector remains well capitalized to withstand
Management shocks

.

Diversified NBFCs commanding premium; most HFCs still trading at discount
Valuation

NBFCs diversifying funding resources, product portfolio (sectors) and service models
Issuance of NCDs by NBFCs almost doubled in FY23 and surpassed the FY20 levels
- Addition of newer products to drive growth
- Breaking traditional grid-locks with aid from FinTechs
Digital lenders are increasingly vying for NBFC license
Post the pandemic, an accelerated shift is witnessed in Digital adoption by NBFCs

Recent trends

Despite weak macro-economic conditions, Indian economy remains
one of the fastest growing economy in the world

Trend in real GDP growth YoY (%) Upwa;:r;izlsilzog lr:rmf):tz :(zglc’iegsrowth

Increase/Decrease
from last estimate

«— FY22:9.1% —> <— FY23:7.2%' —»

Q4FY23 growth figures were

stronger than expected,
indicating broad-based Nomura & 20bps
21.6% recovery across services,
manufacturing and i 50 bps
agriculture JP Morgan P

20 bps
13.1% IMF 5.9% ¥ 20bp
9.1% e Fitch 6.0 W 20bps

uBS 6.2% 70 bps 1

am 6.2% 30 bps :

-6.6% Goldman Sachs 6.3% b 30bps :

RBI 6.5% A 10bps H

Q = IN] ~ ~ ~ ) -~ ~ -~ §
N o N I ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ £
€ F € & & & & & & & SBI 6.7% 4 50bps :
o o o o o <o o <o g

Macro indicators
Most BFSI indicators except insurance, growing at healthy rate

UPI Mutual funds AUM (INR Tn)
UPI value & volume rose by 47% & 65%, respectively YoY in Mar23 = Mutual funds AUM increased by 5% YoY in Mar23
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9.6
41.6
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Key Performance Indicators
- Banks & NBFCs

Lenders post highest growth in 5 years after navigating through
multiple headwinds

Player-group wise y-o-y growth in advances

40 4 Global Financial Taper Demonetization IL&FS - Onset of Global
33% Crisis Tantrum' Liquidity Crisis: : Covid-19 economy
C downturn;
30 27% - ZE% 27% Ukraine War

25%

8%

6% 5%

%
0
2008 © 2009  2010: 2011 2012 : 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 12020 2021 2022 2023

=8— Bank Credit growth (YoY) == NBFCs AUM growth (YoY)

NIMs rising steadily for the lenders; CIR increased marginally

= Banks = NBFCs
1. NIM is calculated as (Interest Income - Interest Expense)/Average Assets 2 Cost to Income is calculated as Operation expense/ (net interest income + other income)
Operation Expense excludes “Net loss on fair value changes”, “Net loss on derecognition of financial instruments under amortized cost category", “Net Transaction Exchange Loss” and/or
“Loss/write-off on Repossessed Assets and Assets acquired in satisfaction of debt” ; NIM has been annualized 1
Note: Analysis has been made based on 29 NBFCs (10 HFCs, 2 Gold, 3 MFl and 14 Diversified NBFCs) and 35 Banks (12 PSU Banks, 10 Private-New, 9 Private-Old and 4 Small Finance Banks)

Net Interest Margin' (%) Cost to Income Ratio? (%)
50%
6 50 4% 475 48% 49%
5.4%
5 4.9% 4.9% 4.9% o1%
40 H
4 32% H
20 W%/ 3 y—32% E
3.2% %‘
o 28 2.9% 2.9% ¢
0= 20 H
FY19 FY20 FY21 FY22 FY23 FY19 FY20 FY21 FY22 FY23 g
B
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Resulting in improved profitability for both Banks and NBFCS

Return on Assets!

(%)
3
2.6%
5 | 2.4% 2.4% S~ /rr/
1.8%
1.1%
1 0.8%
0.0 0.6%
00—
-1
FY19 FY20 FY21 FY22 FY23

Return on Equity?

20

I 15%
12%
\%

-10
FY19 FY20 FY21 FY22 FY23

— Banks — NBFCs
1. Return on Assets is calculated as net profit/average assets 2. Return on Equity is calculated as net profit/average shareholders’ fund
Note: Analysis has been made based on 29 NBFCs (10 HFCs, 2 Gold, 3 MFI and 14 Diversified NBFCs) and 35 Banks (12 PSU Banks, 10 Private-New, 9 Private-Old and 4 Small Finance Banks);

Both ROA and ROE have been annualized
Source: Capitaline, Quarterly Results, Investor Presentation, Annual Report, BCG Analysis

- Banks & NBFCs

Most Banks & NBFCs reported lower GNPAs; Credit costs continue

the downward movement

\ %

GNPA (%)
(%)
10 9.2%
8.5%
8 7.4%
5.9%
6
% 3.9%
4 3.3% 3.5% 38
2.4% 2.9%
2
FY19 FY20 FY21 FY22 FY23

Credit Cost' (%)

0
FY19 FY20 FY21 FY22 FY23

= Banks = NBFCs

1. Credit Cost is calculated as provision and contingencies/average assets

Copyright © 2023 by Boston Consulting Group. All rights reserved.
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PSU Banks have outperformed peers and overall market since Apr21
Significant uptick in valuation seen across banks and NBFCs in the past 2-3 months

Index (weighted by market cap.) for PSU, Pvt Banks and NBFCs
200

150
139.0
107.9
100 103.9
50
Apr’21 Jun’21 Sept’21 Dec’21 Mar’22 Jun’22 Sept’22 Dec’22 Mar’23 May’23

== PSU Index == Pvt Banks Index == NBFCs Index
Total Return (%)

Copyright © 2023 by Boston Consulting Group. All rights reserved.

- Banks & NBFCs

Large NBFCs and Pvt Banks commanding premium; most Large PSUs
trading at discount

[_oelect Banks & NDFLS |

Price/Book for select PSUs, Pvt Banks and NBFCs

8.2 Large PSUs [l Pvt. Banks [l NBFCs

1.0 0.9 0.8 0.7 0.6 0.6

Bajaj Chola Kotak Sundaram HDFC ICICI HDFC Axis  Bandhan Muthoot MMFSL IDFC  Indusind SBI BoB Canara Indian Union PNB Bol
Finance Bank First

- Banks & NBFCs

Improved valuation for most PSUs in FY23 with record profitability

Price/Book fer PSUs

2.1
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R
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- Banks & NBFCs

Mixed performance in valuation for Pvt. Banks in FY23, however,
they continue to command premium valuation vs PSUs

Price/Bock for Private Banks
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Banks & NBFCs

Mixed performance for NBFCs, however, diversified NBFCs continue
to command premium valuation vs others

Price/Bock for NBFCs
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Note: Market Cap as on May 31, 2023

80



indicators

After a moderation in growth, NBFCs are back on track with a 39% YoY increase
in profits

Overall NBFC Sector

Growth
YoY'!
FY23 2,609 ...
INR Bn ” S8
4 .. 1518
1,272 1,032
-1,337 486 200 597
-228
Interest Interest NI Other Total income Opex PPOP Credit Cost Tax & Net profit
earned expense Income (Net) Other exp.
FY22 2,151
INR Bn
1 040 188 128
, — [ 859
-1 | 430
-369 —
B a2 [
Interest Interest NII Other Total income Opex PPOP Credit Cost Tax & Net profit
earned expense Income (Net) Other exp.

1. YoY growth FY23 vs. FY22
Analysis has been made based on 29 NBFCs (10 HFCs, 2 Gold, 3 MFl and 14 Diversified NBFCs)

indicators

Absolute profit for the NBFC sector increased 39% YOY in FY23 driven by
Diversified (68%) and MFI NBFCs (220%)

Values for FY23 and in INR Bn

B, Diversified NBFCs

1,065 1,333

. . 780 158 938 574
357 77 434 367 250 . E — . | 286
—_ — I —
| | | I [ | | T
-708 -67 52 4 -364 45 443
Int. Int. NI Oth  Total Opex PPOP Credit Tax PAT Int. Int. NIl Oth Total Opex PPOP Credit Tax PAT
inc.  exp. inc. inc. Cost inc.  exp. inc. inc. Cost.

@E@EEE@EEEEED @EDEEEEEEE @D

@ MFI NBFCs G Gold NBFCs

151

3 1@
— 27
= - . L . - 4
R i N N A e 1o
Int. Int. NI Oth Total Opex PPOP Credit Tax  PAT Int. Int. NI Oth Total Opex PPOP Credit Tax  PAT
inc.  exp. inc. inc. Cost inc.  exp. inc.  inc. Cost
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RoA driver tree: NBFCs’ ROA improved 45 bps in FY23 on higher
NIMs, lower credit costs

Particulars' UoM FY23  FY22 || FY23  Fy22 || FY23  Fy22 || Fy23 FY22 FY23  FY22
‘NetinterestMargin @ |1 28 2.7 ||T 7.9 73 |[d 9.9 1.0 || 7T 10.1 9.1 T 5.4 5.0 H
Fee + Other Income (%) 0.6 0.6 ||T 1.6 1.4 [|T 03 02 |[|T 2.4 11 [T 1.0 0.9
Operating expenses (%) 0.5 0.5 1T 37 3.2 1 3.7 3.4 5.1 5.1 T 2.1 1.8
Pre-Provision Profit2 @ |1 29 2.8 [|T 5.8 56 (|4 65 7.8 |[T 7.5 5.1 T 44 4.1
Credit costs @ |4 o4 05 [|4 15 24 || 01 02 |4 30 39 ||4 09 1.3 H
Tax ®% |+ 05 05 [|T 15 09 || 16 1.9 (|1 1.4 05 |1 1.0 0.7
Return on Assets ® [T 20 1.8 [T 29 21 || 48 56 ||T 3.7 1.4 ||T 25 2.1

1. All the above #s are as a % of Average Assets, 2. Pre-provision profit may not tally due to rounding off error 3. Other Expenses include “Net loss on fair
value changes”, “Net loss on derecognition of financial instruments under amortized cost category”, “Net Transaction Exchange Loss” and/or “Loss/write-off
on Repossessed Assets and Assets acquired in satisfaction of debt"

1. Note: Analysis has been made based on 29 NBFCs (10 HFCs, 2 Gold, 3 MFland 14 Diversified NBFCs)

indicators

Diversified (28%) and Micro Finance (33%) NBFCs driving credit growth for the
overall sector (17%)

(%)
. T T J T T
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Key performance

NBFCs across the spectrum post record disbursement in FY23 due to pick-up in
consumption

Disbursement trend (INR ‘000 Cr)
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Advances deep-dive
(select products)

Advances deep-dive: Strong growth seen across products in FY23; NBFCs
remain resilient amidst competition from banks

@ Housing loans O/S (INR Lakh Cr.) G@ Personal loans O/S (INR Lakh Cr.)
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Key performance’

indicators
Marginal increase in NIM over the last 5 years; CIR has remained stable
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= HFCs Diversified Infra Gold Loan NBFC Industry

Key performance’
indicators

Resulting in NBFC sector profitability following upward trajectory and reaching
pre-Covid levels
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Asset quality improved for all NBFC segments except Gold loan NBFCs in FY23 g
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Key Performance Indicators

Despite few NBFCs opting to cut capital buffer, NBFC sector remains
well capitalized to withstand shocks

Capital to Risk-weighted assets ratio of NBFC players (%)

Select NBFCs
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HFCs Diversified Gold Loan MFls
Emphasis on diversification across the NBFC sector
models

NBFCs diversifying funding resources, product portfolio (sectors) and service

Resource diversification
diversification

Product portfolio diversification

Addition of newer products to drive

Steady increase in NCD issuances
growth

Diversification from heavy
dependence on bank borrowings

Issuance of NCDs by NBFCs almost
doubled in FY23 and surpassed the
FY20 levels

Within NBFCs, retail focused
NBFCs and Infrastructure
financiers saw healthy growth in
NCD issuances

Securitisation volumes zoomed to
Rs 1.8 Tn in FY23 on account of
increase in funding requirement to
meet the demand

« Several NBFCs and HFCs are
diversifying the product portfolio
or adding new products that could
drive growth

« NBFCs are focusing on under
penetrated segments like
affordable housing, small business
loans and used vehicles

Deep-dive on next page

Recent Trends

Several NBFCs and HFCs are diversifying or adding new products to drive growth

Company name

Existing segments

New segments

Bajaj Diversified with presence in 2W/32, ¢, \pqp diversifying by entering new segments like LAP for SME, auto loan
Fi consumer, PL, LAP, mortgage and (non-captive), MFI, tractor financing and emerging corporate loans
inance commercial finance P ’ ’ 2 ging P
CIEC Vehicle finance, housing loan Further diversifying loan book with personal and professional loans, small
and SME enterprise loans and SME loans (expanding product categories)
Vehicle finance mainly in ties Getting into new segments such as SME, LAP, leasing and unsecured PL.
MMFS 3+ markets y Also, expanding the customer segment to include more affluent rural/
semi-urban customers
Piramal Wholesale/Home Loan (acquired . Dlve;.c_)lfled lr:jto Homehloar: post-bacc_]msmlon from DHFL. 31\t;er§1fylngl by
Enterprise from DHFL) aunching products such as large business loans, unsecured business loan,
used car, salaried personal loan and MFI
PNB HF Mortgage /wholesale Have started focusing on af_fordable housing and targeting salaried H
customer especially government employees H
LTFH Farm eqpt, MFI loans, mortgages, Got into consumer loans, SME finance in in last few years; launched new =
SME and wholesale products like rural LAP, agri-allied loan and rural household business loans g
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OUR BUSINESS

Some of the information in this section, including information with respect to our plans and strategies, contain
forward-looking statements that involve risks and uncertainties. Before deciding to invest in the Equity Shares,
Shareholders should read this entire Draft Letter of Offer. An investment in the Equity Shares involves a high
degree of risk. For the purpose of discussion of certain risks in connection with investment in the Equity Shares,
you should read "Risk Factors" beginning on page 22 of this Draft Letter of Offer, and for the purpose of
discussion of the risks and uncertainties related to those statements, as well as for the discussion of certain factors
that may affect our business, financial condition or results of operations, you should read restated "Financial
Statements" and "Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations"
beginning on pages 104 and 180, respectively of this Draft Letter of Offer. Our actual results may differ materially
from those expressed in or implied by these forward-looking statements. Unless otherwise stated, the financial
information used in this section is derived from our Restated Financial Statements.

Overview and History

Our Company was originally incorporated as ‘Quick Credit Limited’ in New Delhi on November 14, 1985 as a
public limited company under the Companies Act, 1956, and was granted the certificate of incorporation by the
Registrar of Companies, Delhi and Haryana at New Delhi. Our Company was granted the Certificate for
Commencement of Business on November 20, 1985 by the Registrar of Companies, Delhi and Haryana at New
Delhi. Our Company was registered as Non-Banking Financial Company vide certificate of registration dated
January 07, 2003. However, RBI has issued new certificate of registration dated August 24, 2017 bearing No. B-
14.00724 under section 45 I(A) of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 in the name of the Advik Capital Limited.

In the beginning of year 2010, our Company underwent change of Control in terms of Regulation 12 of Securities
Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition and Takeover of Shares) Regulation, 1997. Pursuant to the
change of Control, Mr. Virendra Kumar Aggarwal and Mr. Rishab Kumar Aggarwal became Promoter of the
Company and the then existing Promoter(s) ceased to be the Promoter of the Company.

In year 2010, pursuant to scheme of amalgamation, under section 391 (2) and 394 of the Companies Act, 1956,
approved by Hon’ble High Court of Delhi, our Company was amalgamated with Du-Lite Safety Services Private
Limited which was engaged in the business of trading of electrical and safety devices.

Subsequently, the name of our Company was changed to ‘DU-Lite Industries Limited’ and a fresh Certificate of
Incorporation was granted by the Registrar of Companies, Delhi and Haryana at New Delhi on September 20,
2010. The name of the Company was changed again to ‘Advik Industries Limited’ and our Company received a
fresh certificate of incorporation which was granted by the Registrar of Companies, Delhi and Haryana at New
Delhi on February 24, 2011. Finally, the name of our Company was changed to ‘Advik Capital Limited’ and a
fresh certificate of incorporation consequent upon change of name was granted by the Registrar of Companies,
Delhi at Delhi on July 7, 2017. Further, the Company procured a Certificate of Registration from Reserve Bank
of India as a Non-Banking Financial Company on August 24, 2017 in the new name.

Thereafter, Company’s promoters Mr. Virender Agarwal and Mr. Shakul Kumar Agarwal entered into a Share
Purchase Agreement on May 18, 2022 with Mr. Vikas Garg, Mrs. Seema Garg (Acquirers) andMs. Sukriti Garg
(PACQ), to sell their entire stake in Advik Capital Limited (“the Company”). Afterward, an Open Offer was made
by the Acquirers to acquire upto 26% of the total Voting Shares of the Company from public shareholders vide
Letter of Offer dated February 06, 2023.

Pursuant to the completion of the said open offer, and the Share Purchase Agreement, the Company was acquired
by Mr. Vikas Garg, Mrs. Seema Garg (Acquirers) and Ms. Sukriti Garg (PAC)) and they took over as Promoters
and Promoter Group of the Company.

Our Company is a non-deposit taking Non-Banking Financial Company registered with the RBI. Our Company
is engaged primarily in the business of providing financial loans and in providing ancillary services related to the
said business activities.

We work under the guidance of our Promoter cum Director, Mr. Vikas Garg, who has an experience of more than

25 Years in the Business Industry. He has been instrumental in evolving our business operations, growth and
future prospects.
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Our consolidated revenues from operations for Fiscals 2023, 2022 and 2021 were % 60,428.92, X 4645.90 lacs and
% 625.87 lacs , respectively.

Our consolidated EBITDA for the Fiscals 2023, 2022 and 2021 were % 60436.90 lacs, ¥ 4657.72 lacs and X 627.97
lacs, respectively.

Our consolidated profit after tax for Fiscals 2023, 2022 and 2021 were 3935.50 lacs, ¥ 44.37 lacs and %7.34 lacs,
respectively.

Corporate Structure

In year 2013, our Company formed a subsidiary in the name of Advik Optoelectronics Limited to further diversify
activities of trading and manufacturing of electronic products. Presently, our Company holds 57.99% of the total
issued and paid up share capital of the Advik Optoelectronics Limited.

Advik Optoelectronics Limited is engaged in the business of manufacturing of various kinds of emergency life
safety signage, evacuation system made of phosphorescent effect, photo luminescent, glow sign board, led board,
led electronic board, life safety apparels, road safety signage, lights, emergency lights and equipment.

Further, in year 2022, Our Company formed a wholly owned subsidiary in the name of Advikca Finvest Limited
to deal in the securities market and investment consultants. Presently, our Company holds 100% of the total issued
and paid up share capital of the Advikca Finvest Limited ( 6 Equity Shares held by the Nominess Shareholders)

Advikca Finvest Limited is engaged in the business to deal in shares, securities, right interests, obligation in
movable and immovable assets of all kind, with infinite technology, advanced techniques and to acquirer, buy,
sell, hold, trade, dispose of or otherwise deal in shares.

Lending Policy
The standard process adopted by the company from sourcing to collection is summarised as under:

1. Credit Appraisal Process — The credit appraisals are based on;

. Need for credit: the borrower’s need for credit will be assessed, as per the context of the product
segment. The intent is to ensure that the credit is targeted for use in a constructive way, to
improvements to the borrower’s earning or to improve the quality of life.

. Affordability: an assessment of the borrower’s ability to service the loan will be conducted in
all cases. While the assessment methodology may vary across product, the intent is always to
set product features such as the disbursal amount and tenure such that the loan is affordable
(within the context of the product).

. Credit rating: the borrower’s credit history, and track record in managing debt, will be
considered in all applications.

2. Credit Pricing - Credit will be priced after considering our cost of funds, expected credit cost and the
operational cost. Pricing may be varied through the term of the loan or credit facility, based on product
needs. In addition to fixed rate loans, interest rates may be floating and reset to reflect market conditions
during the term of the loan.

3. Credit Approval or Denials — Credit as approved under terms of clearly documented to leave an auditable
trail of credit considerations.

4. Security, insurance and charge — We may require creation of enforceable charge over the borrower’s/
third party assets in favour of our Company, before the disbursement of a loan.

5. Credit Documentation — We thereafter enter into credit documentation to clearly establish the debt
obligation of the borrower to our Company.

6. Credit Administration and Monitoring - We have a credit administration and monitoring framework

which enables us to effectively identify and mitigate risks associated with clients’ portfolios and mark
such account as early stressed account and if required limit the exposure and/or accelerate the repayment
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schedule of the loan of such client.

7. Collections and Recoveries — We except our clients to regularly serve the interest portion and /or the
Principal amount; failing which we are required to move legally against such defaulting client.

Our Business Strategy
Maintain and Expand Long-term Relationships with Clients

Our Company believes that business is a by-product of relationship. The business model is based on client
relationships that are established over period of time rather than a project-based execution approach. Our
Company believes that long-term client relationship fetches better dividends. Long-term relations are built on
trust and continuous satisfaction of the customers. It helps understanding the basic approach of our Company, its
products and its market. It also forms basis of further expansion for our Company, as we are able to monitor a
potential product/ market closely.

Leveraging of our Marketing Skills and Relationships

We continue to enhance our business operations by ensuring that our network of customers increases through our
marketing efforts. Our core competency lies in our deep understanding of our customers’ buying preferences and
behavior, which has helped us in achieving customer loyalty. We endeavor to continuously improve the product
mix offered to the customers as well as strive to understand and anticipate any change in the expectation of our
clients towards our products.

We seek to diversify our credit risk and ensure that no individual credit product contributes a large portion to our
overall credit book. We believe that this mitigates the risk of concentration to any particular product or sector and
helps us to manage our risk exposure in a more effective manner.

Diversify our assets and liabilities

We intend to remain diversified in our loan book by strategically focusing on adjacent high growth and profitable
lending businesses and further expand our lending and other businesses. We intend to continue to focus on
developing a diversified funding model to achieve optimal cost of funds while balancing liquidity and
concentration risks. As our cost of borrowings is determined by our financial discipline and business performance,
we intend to source funding at competitive rates. In particular, with respect to our credit business, a decrease in
cost of borrowings will enable us to price our products in a more competitive manner. We intend to further
diversify and strengthen our profile, strategically adding additional funding resources.

Growth of the business through increasing geographical presence across India

We intend to continue to grow our loan portfolio by expanding our network through the addition of new branches.
A good reach to customers is very important in our business. Increased revenue, profitability and visibility are the
factors that drive the branch network. Our strategy for branch expansion includes further strengthening our
presence in various parts of India by providing higher accessibility to customers.

Our Strength

Experienced Leadership Team

Our company is managed by people who have a proven track record of delivering results & they possess the right
acumen necessary in the build out phase of any organisation. Our senior management have diverse experience in
various financial services and functions related to our business. We believe that the knowledge and experience of
our senior and mid-level management team members provides us with a significant competitive advantage as we
seek to grow our business and expand to new geographies.

Strong Corporate Governance Standards

Creating an institution that is built to last requires strong corporate governance standards. The governance
standards are further strengthened by strong policies and processes enshrined in the Articles of Association and
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strong human resource. We have successfully placed process of credit evaluation, risk management, technology
upliftment and business development. Further, we believe in fair trade practices and follow high standards of
governance in managing the business of the Company.

Marketing

We have dedicated marketing teams who cater to the demands of the customers and ensure that tailor made
solutions are offered to attract and retain the customers.

Competition

We face competition from organized as well as unorganized players in the domestic market. The financial services
industry is highly competitive and we expect competition to intensify in the future. We face competition in the
lending business from domestic and international banks as well as other NBFCs, fintech lending platforms and
private unorganized lenders. Banks are increasingly expanding into retail loans in the rural and semi-urban areas
of India. We are exposed to the risk that these banks continue to expand their operations into the markets in which
we operate, which would result in greater competition and lower spreads on our loans. In particular, many of our
competitors may have operational advantages in terms of access to cost-effective sources of funding and in
implementing new technologies and rationalising related operational costs.

Employees

We believe our human capital is one of our most important strengths and a key driver of growth, efficiency and
productivity. We invest in developing our talent and leadership through various initiatives aimed at strengthening
the ability of our managers to bring together people, strategies, and execution to drive business results.
Corporate Social Responsibility

The Company’s CSR mission is to contribute to the social and economic development of the community through
a series of efforts. Company’s strategy is to integrate its activities in community development, social responsibility
and environmental responsibility and encourage each business unit or function to include these considerations
into its operations. The Company, for Corporate Social Responsibility activities, endeavours to promote education
and ensure environmental sustainability/ ecological balance etc.

Properties

Our registered office is on leased premises. Further, our Company owns a frechold immovable property at Sector
2, IMT Manesar, Gurgaon Haryana, which is being used as support office/branch office of the Company.

Insurance : NA
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OUR MANAGEMENT

As per the Articles of Association of our Company, we are required to have not less than 3 (Three) Directors and
not more than 15 (Fifteen) Directors on its Board, subject to provisions of Section 149 of Companies Act, 2013.
As on date of this Draft Letter of Offer, our Board consist of 7 (Seven) Directors, out of which 3 (Three) are
Executive Directors, 4 (Four) are Non-Executive Independent Directors.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, at least two-third of the total number of Directors,
excluding the Independent Directors, are liable to retire by rotation, with one-third of such number retiring at each
Annual General Meeting. A retiring director is eligible for re-appointment. Further, an Independent Director may
be appointed for a maximum of two consecutive terms of up to five years each.

Set forth below are details regarding our Board as on the date of this Draft Letter of Offer:

1. | Mr. Vikas Garg 00255413 | Executive Director

2."| Mr. Karan Bagga 05357861 | Executive Whole Time Director and CEO
3. | Mr. Pankaj 10140086 | Executive Whole Time Director

Chief Financial Officer

4. | Mr. Devender Kumar Garg | 02316543 | Non-Executive Independent Director

5. | Ms. Gunjan Jha 09270389 | Non-Executive Independent Director

6. | Ms. Sony Kumari 09270483 | Non-Executive Independent Director

7. | Ms. Swati Gupta 09652245 | Non-Executive Independent Director

The following table sets forth certain details regarding the members of our Company’s Board as on the
date of this Draft Letter of Offer:

S.No. | Name, DIN, Date of Birth, Qualification, Age Other Directorship
Designation, Occupation, Address, Nationality and
Term
1. Mr. Vikas Garg 49 1. VIKAS UTILITIES
PRIVATE LIMITED

DIN: 00255413
2. VIKAS POLYMERLAND

Date of Birth: 15-06-1973 PRIVATE LIMITED
Qualification: B.Com (Hons.) 3. VIKAS ECOTECH
LIMITED
Designation: Executive Director
4. GENESIS GAS
Address: House No. 7 , Road No-7, Road no 41, West SOLUTIONS PRIVATE
Punjabi Bagh, New Delhi-110026 LIMITED
Occupation: Business
Nationality: Indian
Tenure : May 17, 2028
Date of First Appointment: 22/03/2023
Date of Appointment as Exe. D: 22/03/2023
2. Mr. Karan Bagga 50 VNVN FINANCE PRIVATE
LIMITED

DIN: 05357861
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Date of Birth: 26-10-1972

Qualification: Mr. Karan Bagga has done Post
Graduation Diploma in Business Management from
Institute of Integrated Learning in Management
Designation: Whole Time Director and CEO
Address: House No B-10/7, Double Storey, Near
Mother Dairy, Ramesh Nagar, Rajouri Garden, West
Delhi-110015

Occupation: Business

Nationality: Indian

Term: From 15/04/2023 to 14/04/2026

Date of First Appointment: 22/03/2023

Date of Appointment as WTD and CEO: 15/04/2023

Mr. Pankaj

DIN: 10140086

Date of Birth: 24-08-1998
Qualification: CA, Member of ICAI

Designation: Whole Time Director
Chief Financial Officer

Address: House No 398/1, Near Sewa Samijt, Hira
Chowk Ward no 18 The Charkhi Dadri , Hira Chowk
Haryana 127306

Occupation: Business

Nationality: Indian

Term: From 21/06/2023 to 20/06/2028

Date of First Appointment: 21/06/2023

Date of Appointment as WTD: 21/06/2023

54

ADVIKCA FINVEST
LIMITED

Mr. Devender Kumar Garg
DIN: 02316543
Date of Birth: 21-10-1955

Qualification: B.com, Post-Graduation Diploma in
Personnel Management, CAIIB

Designation: Independent Director

Address: G-801 La Lagune, Golf Course Road, Sector
54, Gurgaon, Chakarpur(74), Gurgaon Haryana-122002

67

ZOMATO FINANCIAL
SERVICES LIMITED
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Occupation: Business

Nationality: Indian

Term: From 22/03/2023 to 21/03/2028
Date of First Appointment: 22/03/2023

Date of Appointment as 1.D: 22/03/2023

Ms. Gunjan Jha
DIN: 09270389

Date of Birth: 05-01-1986

Qualification: Chartered Accountant, Member of ICAI

Designation: Independent Director

Address: House No-191,4th Floor, School Block,
Shakarpur, L Corner Building, Shakar Pur Baramad,
East Delhi, Delhi - 110092

Occupation: Business

Nationality: Indian

Term: From 28/12/2021 to 27/12/2026

Date of First Appointment: 28/12/2021

Date of Appointment as I.D: 28/12/2021

37

INTEGRA ESSENTIA
LIMITED

Ms. Sony Kumari

DIN: 09270483

Date of Birth: 07-11-1991

Qualification: Company Secretary, Member of ICSI
Designation: Independent Director

Address: E-30B, Flat No. 8, 2nd Floor, Chhatarpur
Extension Near Suman Chowk, Chattarpur, South
Delhi-110074

Occupation: Business

Nationality: Indian

Term: From 28/12/2021 to 27/12/2026

Date of First Appointment: 28/12/2021

Date of Appointment as I.D: 28/12/2021

31

1. JUSTRIDE

ENTERPRISES LIMITED

2. INTEGRA ESSENTIA

LIMITED

3. JUST RIGHT LIFE

LIMITED
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Ms. Swati Gupta

DIN: 9652245

Date of Birth: 07-11-1991

Qualification: Chartered Accountant, Member of ICAI
Designation: Independent Director

Address F-722A, Street No. 24, Laxmi Nagar, East
Delhi, Delhi 110092

Occupation: Business

Nationality: Indian

Term: From 07/07/2022 to 06/07/2027
Date of First Appointment: 07/07/2022

Date of Appointment as I.D: 07/07/2022

28

1.JUSTRIDE
ENTERPRISES LIMITED

2.GI ENGINEERING
SOLUTIONS LIMITED

Past Directorship in Suspended Companies

None of our Directors are, or were a director of any listed company, whose shares have been, or were suspended
from being traded on any of the stock exchanges during the term of their directorships in such companies during the

last 5 (Five) years preceding the date of this Draft Letter of Offer.

Past Directorship in Delisted Companies

Further, none of our directors are or were a director of any listed company, which has been, or was delisted from
any stock exchange during the term of their directorship in such Company during the last 10(Ten) years preceding

the date of this Draft Letter of Offer.

KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL

Set forth below are the details of our senior management and key managerial personnel: -

Mr. Karan Bagga Whole Time Director and CEO 22/03/2023

Mr. Pankaj Whole Time Director and CFO 21/06/2023

Ms. Deepika Mishra Company Secretary 12/01/2023
Confirmations

1.

Neither Company nor our Directors are declared as fugitive economic offenders as defined in Regulation
2(1)(p) of the SEBI ICDR Regulations and have not been declared as a ‘fugitive economic offender’ under
Section 12 of the Fugitive Economic Offenders Act, 2018.

. None of the Directors of our Company have held or currently hold directorship in any listed company whose
shares have been or were suspended from being traded on any of the stock exchanges in the five years
preceding the date of filing of this Draft Letter of Offer, during the term of his/ her directorship in such
company.

None of our Directors of our Company are or were associated in the capacity of a director with any listed
company which has been delisted from any stock exchange(s) at any time in the past.




4. None of our Directors have been debarred from accessing capital markets by the Securities and Exchange
Board of India. Additionally, none of our Directors are or were, associated with any other company which
is debarred from accessing the capital market by the Securities and Exchange Board of India.

5. None of our Directors have been identified as a wilful defaulter or fraudulent borrower, as defined in the
SEBI Regulations and there are no violations of securities laws committed by them in the past and no
prosecution or other proceedings for any such alleged violation are pending against them

Management Organization Structure
The Management Organization Structure of the company is depicted from the following chart;

Management Organisation Structure

a
MANAGEMENT
STRUCTURE
] |
1 1 1 1 1 1
4 g g 4 4 g
Mr. Vikas Garg Mr. Karan Bagga Mr. Pankaj Mr. Devender Kumar Ms. Gunjan Jha Ms. Sony Kumari
. . " " " Garg
. (Whole Time Director (Whole Time Director (Independent (Independent
(Promoter & Director) (Independent Director) Director) Director)

Deepika Mishra Ms. Swati Gupta

(Independent
Director)

(Company Secretary &
Compliance Officer)
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Corporate Governance

The provisions of the SEBI Listing Regulations and the Companies Act with respect to corporate governance are
applicable to us.

We are in compliance with the requirements of the applicable regulations, including the SEBI Listing Regulations,
Companies Act and the SEBI ICDR Regulations, in respect of corporate governance including constitution of our
Board and Committees thereof. Our corporate governance framework is based on an effective independent Board,
separation of the Board’s supervisory role from the executive management team and constitution of the Board
Committees, as required under law.

Our Board undertakes to take all necessary steps to continue to comply with all the requirements of the SEBI
Listing Regulations and the Companies Act. Our Board functions either directly, or through various committees

constituted to oversee specific operational areas.

Committees of our Board

Our Board has constituted following committees in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act and
SEBI Listing Regulations:

1) Audit Committee
2) Nomination and Remuneration Committee
3) Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee

TERMS OF REFERENCE OF VARIOUS COMMITTEE:
1) Audit Committee

The following members forming a part of the said Committee:

Name Designation
1. Ms. Gunjan Jha Chairperson
2. Ms. Sony Kumari Member
3. Ms. Swati Gupta Member

The Company Secretary acts as the secretary of the Audit Committee.

The scope, functions and the terms of reference of our Audit Committee, is in accordance with Section
177 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 18 of the SEBI Listing Regulations which are as follows:

1) Oversight of the Company’s financial reporting process and the disclosure of its financial
information to ensure that the Restated Financial Statement is correct, sufficient and credible;
i) Recommendation for appointment, remuneration and terms of appointment of Auditors of the

Company;

iii) Approval of payment to Statutory Auditors for any other services rendered by the Statutory

Auditors;

iv) Reviewing, with the management, the annual financial statements and Auditor’s Report thereon
before submission to the Board for approval, with particular reference to:

a) Matters required to be included in the Director’s Responsibility Statement; to be
included in the Board’s Report in terms of clause (c) of subsection (3) of Section 134
of the Companies Act, 2013; changes, if any, in accounting policies and practices and
reasons for the same;

b) Changes, if any, in accounting policies and practices and reasons for the same;

c) Major accounting entries involving estimates based on the exercise of judgment by
management;

d) Significant adjustments made in the financial statements arising out of audit findings;

e) Compliance with listing and other legal requirements relating to financial statements;

f) Disclosure of any related party transaction;

g) Modified opinion(s) in the draft audit report;
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2)

vi)

vii)

viii)
ix)

xi)
Xii)

xiii)
Xiv)
XV)

XVi)
Xvii)

Xviii)
Xix)

XX)

XX1)

Reviewing, with the management, the quarterly Financial Statements before submission to the
Board for approval;

Reviewing with the management, the statement of uses / application of funds raised through an
issue (public issue, rights issue, preferential issue etc.), the statement of funds utilized for
purposes other than those stated in the offer document / prospectus / notice and the Report
submitted by the monitoring agency monitoring the utilisation of proceeds of a public or rights
issue, and making appropriate recommendations to the Board to take up steps in this matter;
Reviewing and monitoring the Auditor’s independence & performance, and effectiveness of
audit process;

Approval or any subsequent modification of transactions of the Company with related parties;
Scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments;

Valuation of undertakings or assets of the Company, wherever it is necessary;

Evaluation of internal financial controls and risk management systems;

Reviewing, with the management, performance of statutory and internal auditors, adequacy of
the internal control systems;

Reviewing the adequacy of internal audit function, if any, including the structure of the internal
audit department, staffing and seniority of the official heading the department, reporting
structure coverage and frequency of internal audit;

Discussion with internal auditors of any significant findings and follow up there on;
Reviewing the findings of any internal investigations by the internal auditors into matters where
there is suspected fraud or irregularity or a failure of internal control systems of a material nature
and reporting the matter to the Board;

Discussion with Statutory auditors before the audit commences, about the nature and scope of
audit as well as post-audit discussion to ascertain any area of concern;

To look into the reasons for substantial defaults in the payment to the depositors, debenture
holders, shareholders (in case of non-payment of declared dividends) and creditors;

To review the functioning of the Whistle—Blower mechanism;

Approval of appointment of Chief Financial Officer after assessing the qualifications,
experience and background, etc. of the candidate;

Reviewing the utilization of loans and/ or advances from/investment by the holding company
in the subsidiary exceeding rupees 100 Crores or 10% of the asset size of the subsidiary,
whichever is lower including existing loans / advances / investments existing as on the date of
coming into force of this provision;

Carrying out any other function as may be assigned to it by the board of director from time to
time.

Nomination and Remuneration Committee

The following members forming a part of the said Committee:

Name Designation
1. Ms. Swati Gupta Chairman
2. Ms. Gunjan Jha Member

3. Ms. Sony Kumari Member

The Company Secretary acts as the secretary of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee.

The scope, functions and the terms of reference of our Nomination and Remuneration Committee, is in
accordance with Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 19 of the SEBI Listing
Regulations which are as follows:

(1)

Formulation of the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence
of a director and recommend to the board of directors a policy relating to, the remuneration of
the directors, key managerial personnel ("KMP") and other employees;

For every appointment of an independent director, the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee shall evaluate the balance of skills, knowledge and experience on the Board and on
the basis of such evaluation, prepare a description of the role and capabilities required of an
independent director. The person recommended to the Board for appointment as an independent
director shall have the capabilities identified in such description. For the purpose of identifying
suitable candidates, the Committee may:
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a) Use the services of an external agencies, if required;

b) Consider candidates from a wide range of backgrounds, having due regard to diversity;
and

c) Consider the time commitments of the candidates.

(i1) Specification of manner and criteria for effective evaluation of performance of Board, its
committees and individual directors, to be carried out either by the board or by an independent
external agency and review its implementation and compliance.

(iii) Devising a policy on diversity of board of directors;

(iv) Identifying persons who are qualified to become directors and who may be appointed in senior
management in accordance with the criteria laid down, and recommend to the board of directors
their appointment and removal.

V) Whether to extend or continue the term of appointment of the independent director, on the basis
of the report of performance evaluation of independent directors.

(vi) Recommend to the board, all remuneration, in whatever form, payable to senior management.

3) Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee

The following members forming a part of the said Committee:

Name Designation
1. Ms. Sony Kumari Chairperson
2. Ms. Swati Gupta Member
3. Mr. Pankaj Member

The Company Secretary acts as the secretary of the Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee.

The scope, functions and the terms of reference of our Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee, is in
accordance with Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the SEBI Listing Regulations which are
as follows:

(1)

(i1)
(iii)
(iv)

v)

To consider and resolve the grievance of all the security holders related to transfer/ transmission
of shares, non-receipts of annual reports and non-receipts of declared dividends, issue of new
duplicate certificates, general meetings etc.;

To review the measures taken for effective exercise of voting rights by shareholders

To review the adherence to service standards adopted by the company in respect of various
services being rendered by the Share Transfer Agent.

To review various measures and initiatives undertaken by the company for reducing the
quantum of unclaimed dividends and ensuring timely receipt of dividend warrants/annual
reports/statutory notices by the shareholders of the company.

To review and act upon such other grievances as the Board of Directors delegate to the
Committee from time to time.

Our Key Managerial Personnel:

In addition to our Executive Director and Whole Time Director, whose details have been provided under paragraph
above titled ‘Brief Profile of our Directors’, set forth below are the details of our Key Managerial personnel as on
the date of filing of this Draft Letter of Offer:

Mr. Pankaj, Chief Financial Officer

Mr. Pankaj, is a Chief Financial Officer of the Company. He is associated member of the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India as well as he is Graduate from the Maharshi Dayanand University. He is a young, dynamic
and Qualified Chartered Accountant having good experience in the field of Accounts, Finance, Audits, and

Taxation Matters.

He also possesses knowledge of Corporate Law, Strategic/Financial Planning, Working Capital Management,
Statutory Compliances, Filings, and MIS among other aspects of corporate functioning
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Mr. Karan Bagga, Chief Executive Officer

Mr. Karam Bagga, is a Chief Executive Office of the Company. He has completed his Post Graduate Diploma in
Business Management. He has having more than 25 years of rich and extensive experience in Corporate or
Institutional Banking, Loan Syndication, Advisory for Debt restructuring under IBC, Capital Market, Foreign
Exchange Fund Raising, Financial Advisory, Financial Budgeting, Investor Relationship Management. He has
worked with Banks, DFI, NBFC and Corporates

Ms. Deepika Mishra, Company Secretary and Compliance Officer

Ms. Deepika Mishra is the Company Secretary and Compliance Officer of the Company. She has done Post
Graduation in Commerce. She is an Associate member of The Institute of Company Secretaries of India and has
prior experience in Corporate Secretarial practices, legal, Statutory Compliance, Corporate Governance and allied

matters.

Relationship of Key Managerial Personnel with our Directors, Promoter and / or other Key Managerial
Personnel

None of the Key Managerial Personnel are related in any capacity with the other Key Managerial Personnel of
the Company.
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OUR PROMOTER

Our Company confirms that the permanent account number, bank account number and passport number of our
Promoter shall be submitted to the Stock Exchanges at the time of filing this Draft Letter of Offer.

BRIEF PROFILE OF OUR PROMOTERS IS AS UNDER:

1. Mr. Vikas Garg

Mr. Vikas Garg is a business tycoon having experience 25 years of
experience in the field of Business Marketing, Strategic Planning and
Financial Strategy etc.

Age 49 years (15-06-1973)

PAN AAAPG8241P

Qualification Bachelor of Commerce (B. Com) Hons.

Personal Address H. No. 7 Road No. - 41, West Punjabi Bagh, Delhi — 110026
Directorship & Other Vikas utilities private limited

Ventures Vikas polymerland private limited

Vikas ecotech limited
Genesis gas solutions private limited

el

2. Mrs. Seema Garg

Mrs. Seema Garg, aged 47 Years, is the Promoter of our Company. She
holds the degree in Bachelor of Commerce (B. Com) by
Qualification. He is having more than 20 years of experience in the
Business Administration.

Age 47 years (06-07-1974)

PAN AAJPG3268R

Qualification Bachelor’s degree in commerce

Personal Address H. No. 7 Road No. - 41, West Punjabi Bagh, Delhi — 110026
Directorship & Other NIL

Ventures
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Confirmations

1. None of our Promoter has been declared as wilful defaulters by the RBI or any other governmental authority
and there are no violations of securities laws committed by them in the past or are currently pending against
them.

2. Our Promoter has not been declared as a Fugitive Economic Offender under Section 12 of the Fugitive
Economic Offenders Act, 2018.

3. None of our Promoter or Promoter Group entities have been debarred or prohibited from accessing or operating
in capital markets under any order or direction passed by SEBI or any other regulatory or governmental
authority. Our Promoter and members of the Promoter Group are not and have never been promoters, directors
or person in control of any other company, which is debarred or prohibited from accessing or operating in
capital markets under any order or direction passed by SEBI or any other regulatory or governmental authority.

4. there are no litigation or legal action pending or taken by any ministry, department of the Government or
statutory authority during the last 5 (five) years preceding the date of the Issue against our Promoter.
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
For details of the related party transactions, during the last three Fiscals, as per the requirements under Ind AS 24

read with SEBI ICDR Regulations and as reported in the Restated Financial Statements, see section titled
"Financial Information" at page 104 of this Draft Letter of Offer.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

The declaration and payment of dividends will be recommended by the Board of Directors and approved by the
Shareholders, at their discretion, subject to the provisions of the Articles of Association and applicable law,
including the Companies Act. The dividend, if any, will depend on a number of factors, including but not limited,
consolidated net operating profit after tax, working capital requirements, capital expenditure requirements, cash
flow required to meet contingencies, outstanding borrowings, and applicable taxes payable by our Company. In
addition, our ability to pay dividends may be impacted by a number of factors, including restrictive covenants
under loan or financing arrangements our Company is currently availing of or may enter into to finance our fund
requirements for our business activities.

We have not declared any dividend in the previous three (3) financial years immediately preceding this issue.
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SECTION VI - FINANCIAL INFORMATION

RESTATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S.No. Particulars Page No.
1. Restated Consolidated Financial Statements as at Financial Years ended | 105
March 31, 2023, March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021.
2. Restated Standalone Financial Statements as at Financial Years ended March | 144

31, 2023, March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021.
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ADVIK CAPITAL LIMITED

Regd Otfice: G-3 . vIKAS r@?%ﬁﬂﬂ%@ﬁh?%ﬁﬂ;:&?mmgrmpm New Delbe -110026
Annexure | :Restated Consolidated Statement of Assets and Liabilities (Rs. in lakhs)
Particulars Note As at As at s at
No. March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
L. ASSETS
Financial Assets
(a) Cash and Cash Egquivalents L1 142 86 26.06 Q46
[b) Bank Balances other than Cash and
Cash Tguivalents L2 123 1.15 1.08
{c} Trade Receivables 13 340.00 101.77 236.73
id) Leans L4 11.220.56 TER05 603,38
{e) Investrments 15 143303 - -
i) Others Financial Assets 16 24828 140,14 63.10
13,385.95 298.17 913.75
Mon Financial Assets
(&} Inventories L7 35037 35955 25389
(b) Current Tax Assets (net} LB ) 1.66
(c) Property, Plant & Equiprment's s 176,87 198,38 22002
(d) Capital Wark in Progress - - .
(e} Deferred Tax Assets 110 31348 1.10 258
1) ©ther Mon Financial Assets L1 Z29.66 111,54 ans7
. 870.38 67057 518.72
Tetal 14,256,323 1,668.74 1,432.47
I
Liabilities
Financial Liabilities

(a) Trade Payables
1i) Total Outstanding of MSME 2 ;
{ii} Tatal Cutstanding other than MSME 112 279.79 2437 10237

(B} Barrawings 113 751269 469.02 28292
{c) Other Financial Liabilities 114 116.61 56.63 7.40
7,909.09 580.02 392.69
HNon Finandial Liabilities

(8} Current Tax Liabilities (met) L& ZBE.3R [ 23] -
(bn) Cther Mon Financial Liabilities 115 8115 (] B.53
369.51 13.10 8.53

Equity
(a) Equity Share Capital L& 220193 458,74 458.74
{b) Other Equity L7

-Equity atiributanble 1o Shareholders of Company 3,657.70 459,06 45731
-Man controlling Intersst 11810 117.82 11520
5.9771.73 1,075.62 1,031.25
Total 14,256.33 1,668,74 1,432.47

For and on bahalf of the Bagrd of

Advik Capital Limited
\; / 1\\%
L N
Director (Wihole Time Directar cum CRETX
DIN:00255413 CIN040066
Placg: Deepika Mishra
Date: July 01, 2023 (Company Secretary!
PAN: ECZP4250E
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ADVIK CAPITAL LIMITED

Regd Office: G-3 VIKAS HOUSE | 34/1 , EAST PURJABI BAGH Punjabi Bagh , Mew Delhi - 110026
CIN; LES1000LT SA5PLEOZ250S | www, advikaroup com

Annexure II: Restated Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (Rs. i lakhs)
Particulars Mote Year ended Year ended Year ended
MNe, March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Interest Income £99.01 5410 477
Rental Income 6,00 900 %
Dividend Income 013
Fee and Commission Income 14,50
Sale of Securities 58,094.71 187192 -
Sale of Goods 629.07 696,38 57743
Other Operating Incomes A % 07z
I Revenue From Operations 60,428.92 4,645.90 625.86
. Other Incomes .1 798 11.82 21
. Total Income (1+I) 60,436.90 4,657.72 627,97
IV, Expenses
(#) Finance Costs 2 296.53 2051 21.85
(b)Provision for impairment on financial Instruments 9805 0.33 003
{c)loss in Fair Value Measurement 13 40,83 - -
(d) Cost of Materials Consumed 549 .45 56512 439.00
(e} Purchases of Stock in Trade 14 5793347 394410 .
{f) Change in Inventories of Finished Goods
Wark in Progress and Stock in trade 15 (44.76) (87.07) 7.00
(@) Employee Benefits Expenses .6 69.37 6361 6004
{h} Depreciation and Amartisation Expenses 07 2408 2343 1874
(i} Other Expenses na 186.63 56.79 7138
Tetal Expenses (IV) 59,153,865 4,596.82 618,04
V. Profit before exceptional items and tax (I0-IV) 1,2683.25 60.90 993
Exceptional items - :: -
V1. Prefit/ (Loss) Before Tax (V-VI) 126325 6090 993
VIl Tax Expense:
Current Tax 35849 15.06 233
Deferned Tax Liability / (Assets) (10.74) 1.47 0.26
VL Praofit/ (Loss) for the Period from Continuing Operations (VII-VID 935.50 44,37 7.34
IX. Profity (Loss) for from discontinuing Operations - - -
X. Profit/ (Loss) for the Period (VII-1X) 935.50 4437 T.34
XI. Other Comprehensive Income
(A} (i) Items that will not be reclassified to Profit and Loss (1.198.45)
(i) Income Tax effect on herein above 301.63

{B) (i) terns that will be classified to Profit and Loss
(i) Income Tax effect on herein above

Total other comprehensive income/(loss) for the year (B96.82) - -
XI. Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the year (X+XI) 38.68 44.37 7.34
ML Profit far the year attributable to Equity holders of the parent 3840 41,75 5.95
V. Profit for the year attribuntable to Non-controlling interest 0.28 2.62 139
Meminal Yalue Per Equity Share 1 1 1
Earning per Equity Share - Basic L) 010 010 002
Earning per Equity Share - Diluted IL] 010 0.0 002
Summary of significant accounting policies
Notes to Accounts
The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements,
Ag per our report of ever. date attached For and on behalf of the Board o
For KSMC B Asgociates - . Advik Capital Limited
o o (’{ \
AV JW-2N A

Vikas Garg Pankaj

Director {Whale Time Director cum CFO
o DIN-D0255413 DAN:10140086
M. )
Phaet: Mishra
Date: July 01, 2023 (Company Secretary)

PAM: ECZP4298R
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ADVIK CAPITAL LIMITED

Reqgd, Office G-3, VIKAS HOUSE, 3471, EAST PUNIABI BAGH Punjab Bagh , Mew Defhi - 110026
CIN: L65100DL1985PLC022505 | www advikgroup.com

Annexue III- Restated Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (Rs. in lakhs)
Particulars Year ended Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
(A) CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net Profity (Loss) before tax 1.283.25 6090 993
Adjustrments for
Depreciation and Amortisation Expenses 2408 2343 18,74
Lesss in fair value Maasurement 4083 - -
Prowision for impairment on financial Instruments 9B.05 033 003
Reserve for Bad & Doubtful Debts 7486 2.06 0.26
Finance Cost 290,53 2051 2185
{Profit)/ Loss on Sale of Fixed Assets 10.07) (0.25) (0.80)
Operating profit/ (loss) before working capital changes 1,817.53 106.98 50.01
Changes in working capital
(increasely decrease in Trade Receivable 134.96 {2341)
{increase)/ decrease in Loans {10,805.01) {126.00) {25.74)
(increase)f decrease in Other Financial Assets {344 BB) (26.56) (0200
{increase)l/ decrease in Other Bank Balances {007 [TV
{increase)/ decrease in Inventories (5.83) {105.66) 599
increase (decrease) in Other Current Assets 1081
(ncrease)/ decrease in Other Non Financial Assets 1075 (121.45) 6.58
increase/ (decrease) in Trade Payables {48.00) {14.01)
increase/ (decrease) in Other Financial Liabilities 285.39 4329 -
increase/ (decrease) in Other Non Financial Liabilities 080 164 (7.8%)
Cash generated from operations (B.B46.06) (161.38) (29.80)
Met income tax paid (Met of refunds) {6.00) (6.58) [2.49)
Met Cash from Operating Activities (B.852.05) (167.96) (32.29)
(B) CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from disposal of Property, Plant and Equipment 050 305
Purchase of Property, Plant and Equipment {2.56) (2043 (9.64)
Interest Income 007
{Increase), decrease in Investments (2,654.80)
{Increase)/ Decrease In Other Bank Balances {0.07) -
Net Cash Generated/(Used) In Investing Activities (2,657.36) (1.54) 16.59)
{C) CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from Issue of Eguity Share Capital 487843 - -
Increase/ (Decrease) in Boarrowings 704367 18610 40.33
Finance cost (295 88)
Met Cash from Financing Activities 11.626.22 186.10 40.33
Met increase/ (decrease) in Cash and cash equivalents (A+B+() 1680 16.60 145
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 2606 946 B
Cash & Cash Equival, at the end of the year 14286 26,06 9.46
Components of Cash and Cash Equivalents
Particulars As at As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Cash in hand 131 1963 7.78
Balances with banks and financial institutions
Balance with banks in current accounts 129.75 6,43 1.68
Deposit with Original Maturity of less than three months . - -
Total 142.86 26.06 2.46

The abowe statement of cash flows has been prepared wnder the indirect method as set out in Ind AS T "Statement of Cash Flows",

As per our report of even date attached For and on behalf of the Board of
fir Assh Advik Capital Limited

Vdngre e (X

rg Pan
Director Whale Time Director cum
DINADD255413 DIN-10140086
_ : i
Place: Delhi Deepika Mishra
Date: July 01, 2023 (Company Secretary)
Pa: ECZP42088




ADVI LIMITED

Regd Cffice. G-3, VIKAS HOUSE 3471, EAST PURLABI BAGH Panjabi Bagh _ Mew Delli - 110026
CIN: LE5 10000 1985PLO02 250 5 | www schikgroup oo

w G i b1 of Equity Share Capital 185, ey lakh)

&, Equity Share Capitsl
Particulars Mo, of Shares Ami
A5 an Aprd 01, 2020 4.56,73,600 FLEN
Changes o Equity Share Capital due to prior pericd emors - B
Restated balance at the beginning of the current mporting paricd 4 58 73 00 -lﬁ T

i) e eauity share capitsl duri - s
A5 at March 31, 2021 4,58,73,600 AEET4
Changis = Equity Share Capital due to prior period emors . -
Bestated balance at the begsnring of the currént reporting pericd 45073600 dERT4
As ot March 31, 2022 45878 600 5B
Changes in Equity Shane Capital due 1o priar period errors
Restated balance at 1he beginmng of the current reporting period 4,58, 73,600 458,74
C in i 17,4319, 680 174320
Ay at March 31, 2023 22,01,93 280 220193
8. Other Equity
Particulars Capital Security Ratalnsd Special Other Iems of

Riefirve Premium eafmings  Reserve as per Other
REl Norms  Comprehensive

s at Apel 01, 2020 150 357.20 39 700
PO BOF I Y - . S5 .
Transfer 1o Spacisl Reserve - 1078
Transfer 1o Contingency Reserve 2

Transfer 1o Reserve for Bad & Doubtful Debts - . 10.26) .
Transher droem Rethined Earnings - : - (i ] -
As wt March 31, 2021 1.60 35720 4630 .78 -
Profit for the Year - - 4175 B
Transfer 1o Specal Reserve - (8.23)
Transfer 1o Contingency Reserve 5

Transfer to Reserve for Bad & Doubtful Debts . (206}
Transfer from Retained Earnings
A3 at March 31, 20;

1, 2022 10 T30 TITE 01 =

Frofit for the Year - 93550

Received during the year 112035 -

Diher Comprehentie Income far the year . (896.82]
Dividends - -

Transfer to Special Rasenve - (19092}

Transfer to Contingency Resarve

Tranifer to Reserve for Bad & Doubtful Debis a

Transfer frorn Retaned Earnings - 190,82

s ot March 31, 2023 [ W] Sanas] era]  sws ] R

Particulars Amalgam-  Non Tastal
tion Reserve Controlling
Intarest

As ot April 01, 2020 4417 m'|13,a.1 56517
Profit for the Year . 139

Transfer to Special Rassne = .
Transfer 1o Contingency Reserve

Transfer to Reserve for Bad & Doulbtiul Debts

Tramsfer fram Betained Eamings - -

As at March 31, 2021 4407 11520 7251
Prodit for the Year 262 4437
Transter to Special Reserve : B23)
Transfer to Contingency Reserve -
Transfer to Reserve for Bad & Doubritful Debts.

Transfer fram Retained Eamnings - - BL23
As at March 31, 2022 [r i TiT.82 61688

Prodit for the Yesr 028 93578
Raceived during the year 312025
Oher Comprehansivg Incoma for the year {B9E.EZ)
Dividends E
Transfer to Speclal Reserve 190.82)
Transfer to Contingency Aeserg E
Transter to Reserve for Bad & Doubtful Debts -
Transter from Retaired Esrmings. 19052

As 1, & 4417

Tha accompanying notes form an inteqral part of the financial statements.

Fer and on bekald of the Board
Advik Capital Limited

_— Mishra
Date: July 01, 2023 [Comgany Secretary]
PAN: ECZP4208R
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ADVIK CAPITAL UMITED
Regd, Office: G-3, VIKAS HOUSE | 24/1, EAST PUMNIABI BAGH Punjabi Bagh , New Delhi - 110026
CIN: LBS100DL 1985PLO022505 | www advikgroup oo
Annexure -V Accounting Policies to restated Consolidated Financial Statements
1. STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE
The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (referred to as “Tnd A57) preseribes
under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companses indian Accounting Standards) Rulbes, a5 amended from time to time and other
rélivaand provisions of the Act.

2.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The significant accouming palicies apphied in preparation of the Standalone Financial Statements are a groen below

2.1 Basis of F ion of F 5

The consalidated financial statements have bean prepared under the historical cost convention with the exception of certain assets and liabilities that are
required 1o be carried at fair values by Ind A5,

Fair value is the price that would be received 1o sell an asset of paid to transler a lability in an orderty

tranzaction between market participants at the measurement date.

2.2 Basis of consolidation
The eansalidated financial statemments incorporate the financial statements of the Company and entities controlled by the Compary Le. its subsidiares. It
alen includes the Growp's share of prafits, net sisets and retsined post acquisition reserves of joint arrangements and associates that are consolidated
using the equity or proporionate method of eomsalidation, a as applicable.

Control is achieved whan the Company is exposed o, or has rights to the variable returns of the entity and the

ability to affect those retuns through its power to direct the relevant activities of the entity.

The results of subsidianies, jeint arrang ard i ired or dis off during the year are

included in the consolidated staterment of prafit and kods fraem the effective date of scquisition of up 1o the effectve date of disposal, as appropriate.
‘Wherevar necessary, adjustments are made to the financlal staterments of subsidiarkes, joént arrang and

assotiates to bring their accounting policies in line with thase usad by other members of the Group.

Intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses are eliminated on consolidation.

Man-centrolling irterests in the net assets of censolidated subsidiaries are identified separately fom the

Group's equity. The interest of non-controlling shareholders may be initially measured sither at fair value or at the non-controlling interests’
propartionsie share of the fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. The choice of measurernent bass = made on an acquisition-by acquisition
basis. Subsequent to acquisition, the carrying value of non-contralling ineresis is the amount of thase interests a2 initial recognition plus the non-
controding interests’ shane of subsequent changes in equity. Total comprehensie Income & attributed 10 non- cortrallng imerests even if it results in
the non-controlling nteresis having a deficit balance.

2.3 Basls of Measurement

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, axcept for certain financial instruments. that are measwred at fas values at the end
of each reparting period, defined benefit plan - plan assets measured at fair value, assets held for sale which is measured it lower of cost or fair value
bess cost of sale. Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given for goods and services.

Fair wakue measurements ane categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 a3 per Ind AS requirement, which are described a3 foliows

Level 1 inguts are gquoted prices junadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the

antity can access at the measurerment date;

Lavel 2 inputs are inputs, other than queted prices included within Lesel 1, that are observabile for the asset or Rability, either directly or indirectly, and
Larvel 3 inguts are unobserabile inputs for the asset or liability.

24 Property, Plant and Equipment and Investment Property
Ithom and

Pmp;ly, plant and aquipment held for use or for adminsrrathve pairpoces, are statad inthe halancs chest at rost lass annimailaten depeaciarion and
accurnulated impairmant lossas, The cost includes non-refundable tames, duties, freight and other incidental experses related to the acguisition and
installation of the respective assets, Assets having individual value of less than "5000/- are charged to statement of Profit and Loss in the year of
purchase.

Invwestment Propemy consists of building let cut 1o earn rentals. The Company follows cost moded Tor measurement of investment propey.

Daepreclation
Depraciation is provided using the written down valse method ower the useful life a5 prescribed under Schedule I to the Companies A, 2013
Depreciation is caloulated an pro-rata basis, including the manth of addition and axchuding the month of sale/disposal Leasehold improvements ane
amartied over the underlying lease term on a straight line basis. Residual value in respect of Buildings and Vehicles is considersd a4 5% of the cost and
in case of other assets 'NT,

The estimated useful lves, residual values and depreciation mathod are reviewed at the end of each
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regarting period, with the affect of any changes in estimate accounted for an a prospective basis

Dre-recognition

An fem of property, plant and equipment of investment property is de-recognized upon dispasal or when no future economic beneits are expected to
arize from the continued wse of the asset Any gain or loss arksing an the disposal or retement ol an ilem af property, plant and equipment ar
irwastmeent progery is determined

a5 the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and & recognised in profit

of loss.

Capital work-in-pragress
Capital work—in—-progress afe carried at cost, comprsing direct cost and related ncidental expenses to acquire property, plan and equiprmsent, Assets
that are not ready to intended use are Bleo shown under capital work- in-progress

2.5 Intangible Assets
gnition and ement

Intangibile assets are recognized at eost of scquisition which ncludes all expenditure that can be directly attributed or allocated on & reasonabile and

consistent hasis, to create, produce of making the asset ready lor its intended ule

Amortisation
Armartisation is recognised on a straight-fine basis over their estimated useful lives The estimated useful ife and amontsation methad are reviewed at
the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate being acceunted for on a prospective basis,

De-recognition

Anintangible asset is de<recognized on disposal, or when no future economic benefits are expecied from use or disposal Gains o kesses ariging from de-
recognition of an intangible asset, measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carmying amaunt of the asset, is recogned in
prodit or loss when the asset is de-recognized

2.6 Rewenue Recognition

Interest income on loans

The Company recognizes interest incorne ugng Effective Interest Rate (EIR) on all financial assets subsequently measured at amertized cost or fair value
through other comprehensive incame (FYOCT). EIR is calculated by considering any fees and all incremental costs that are directly attributabie 1o
acguisition of a financlal asset and it represents a rate that exactly discounts estirmated future cash paymentsfreceipts through the expected life of the
financial assat to the gross carying amaunt of a finandal asset or to the amortized cost of a fmancial Rability.

The Cormpany recognizes interest income by applying the EIR to the gross carnying amaunt of financial assets other than credit-impaired assats. In case
of credit-impaired financial assets reganded & 'Stage 3'the Company recognizes interest income on the net amortized cost of financial assets at EIR, If
financial asset s no longer credit-impaired Compary reverts tocalculating interest income on a gross basis.

Additicnal interest/foverdise imerest/penal changes are recognized anly when it s reasonably cenain that the uitimate collection will be made.

Sale of Product

Aevenue from sale of products s recognised when contral of the products has transterred, being when the products are delivered to the custormaer.
Delivery cocurs when the products have been shipped or delivered to the specific location s the case rmay be, the risk of 1053 has been transiered, and
either the cusiomer has accepted the preducts in accordance with the sales contract, or the Group has objective evidence that all oriteria for acceptance
havve been satisfied, Sale of products include related ancillary services, if any.

Commission income
Incame from business comespondent Senvices (s recopnized as and when the sanvices are rendered 85 per bgreed termd and conditiond of the contract

Rental Income

Remal inoome from im it property s g @ part of from operations in profit or loss on a straight line hasis over tha term of the
lease except where the rentals are structured o increase in Ene with eupected general inflation. Lease incertives granted ane recognized as an intagral
part of the total rental income, aver the term of the leae Rental income from sub-leasing i slia recognised in a gmilar manner and included wider
ather income.

Sale of Securities
Revenue from sale of securities is recognised 1o the extent that it can be reliably measured and is probable that the econamic benefits will flow to the
company.

Dividend Income
Dividend incoma is recognized a1 the time when the right to receive is established by the raporting date.

Miscellanecus Income
All ather income i recognized on an accrual basis, when there is no uncertainty in the uitimate realization, collection

2.7 Borrowing costs

Borrowing cots consists of interest and other cost that the Company incurmed n connecion with the barrowing of Turds. Barrowing costs charged 1o the
Stabement of Profit and Loss on the basis of effective interest rate method.

2.8 Income Taxes
Current tax
Current tax i 1 a1 the amount | to e pasd in respect of taxable income for the year in accordance with the Ingome Tax Act, 15967
Current tax comprises the tan payable an the taable income or loss for the year and any sdjustment to the tax payable in respect of previous years It is
measured using 1« rates enacted of substantively enacted at the reparting date.
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Current tax assets and liabiities are offsat when there is a legally enlarceable sight to set off the recognised amounts and there is an infention to setile
the assat and Bability an a net basis.

Deferred tax

Defermed tax is recagnised on termporary differences between the canmying amounts of assets and Rabilities in the financial statemerts and the
comesponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable income Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates bassd on the laws that have been ensled
or substantively snacted by the reporting date, based on the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying amount of assets/liabilities
Deferred tax assats and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enfarceable nght o set ol current tax assets against liabalities, and they relate to
incoame laxed levied by the same tax authority

A daferred tax liability s recognesed for all tzeable temporary differences. A deferred tax asset is recognised for

all deductible temiporary differences to the extent that it s probable that future taxable profits will be seailable against which the deductible temporary
difference can be utilised, Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced 1o the extent that it is no longer probable that the
relaied tax benefit will be realised

2.9 Employee benefits

Short term employes benefits

Shart term emplayes benefits are expensed as the related service is provided. & liabity is recognised for the amaunt expected 1o be paid i the
Company has & present legal or canstructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service provided by the employee and the cbfigation can
D estimated reliably,

‘Other long term employas benafits

Berefits under the Company's leave encashmens constitute other lang term employes benafits, The Company's net abligation in respect of leave
encashment is the amourt of future benefit that employees have presen valoe, and the fair value of any related assets i deducted. The calculation v
performed using the

projected unit credit method, Any gains or losses are recognized in profit o loss in the pered in which they

arise,

2.10 Cash and Cash Equivalent
Cash and comprizes cach on hand and dermand depasis. The Compary considers cash equivalents & all short- term balances [with an edginal maturity
of three months or less from the date of acquisition), heghly liqued investments that are readily comeertible inflo knawn amounts of cash and which ane
subject to an irsignificant risk of changes in vakue

2,11 Bquity Investrment in Subsidiaries
Imvestments representing equity interest in subsidiarkes are accocunted for at cost in accordance with Ind A% 27 Separate Finandal Statements

212 Provisions contingent assets and contingent liabilities

Prowisions are recognized only when there is 2 present obligation, as a result of past events, and when a refiable estimate of the amount of obligation
car be made a1 the reporting date. Thiie ettimates are reviewed ot sach reporting date and adjusted 1o reflect the current bedt stimates. Pravisions are
discounted to their present valves, where the time value of maney & material.

Cantingent Eability is disclosed for, Possible obdigations which will be condirmed only by future events not

whally within the control of the Company or Present obligations arising from past ewents where it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be
réquired to settle the igation or a relable ot of the amount of the abligation cannot be made,

Contingent assets are not recognized but disclosed where an nflow of econemic benefits is probable. aa

2.13 Leases
Leases are classified as finance leases whenaver the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the ks and rewards of canership to the lessee. All other
Ieases are cassified as operating leases,

The Company as lessor

Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are recognised as receivables at the amount of the Company's net investment in the leases. Finance
lease income is allocated to accounting periods 5o as to reflect a constant periodic rate of return on the Comparny's net investmient outstanding in
respect of tha leases.

Remtal incomme from operating beases is generally recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Where the rentals are structured
solely 10 increase in ling with expected general inflation to compensate for the Company's expected Inflationarny cost increases, such increases are
recagnised in the year in which such berefits accrue,

The Company as lesses

Remal expense from aperating leases is generally recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant bease. Where the rentals ara structured
solely 1o increase in line with expected general inflation to compensate for the lessor's expeced inflationary cost increases, such increases are recognised
in the year in which such benefits accnue, Contingent rentals arising under operating laases are recognised as an expanse in the period in which they are
incuitéd.

2.14 Foreign currency

Functional And presentation currency

Ttems included in the financial of the Company are d using the currency of the primary eccnomic envirgnment in which the entity
operates (the functional aurrency’). The financial statements have been prepared and presented in Indian Rupeses (IMNR), which is the Company’s
functional and presantation currency.

Transaction and Balances

Fergign currency transactions are trarslated inbo the functional currency, by applying the exchange rates on the foreign curenty amourts at the date
of the (ransaction. Foreign cusrency monetary items outstanding at the balance sheet date are converted to functional cumancy wsing the dosing rate.
Mon- manetary items denaminated in 3 foraign curency which are casried at historical uging the exchange rate i the date of the
trantaction, 3.
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Exchange differences arising on monetary items on setllement, of restaterment as at reporting date, at rates
different fram those at which they were initially recorded. are recognized in the Staternent of Prafit and Loss in the year in which they arise

2.15 Segment reporting

The Compary identifies segment bass of the internal organczation and management structure. The operating segments are the segments foe which
separate financial information is available and for whichoperating prafit/loss amounts are regularly reviewad by the CODM (ehiel sperating decision
maker) and in assessing perfarmance. The accounting policies adopted for segment reparting are in ling with the accounting policies of the Company
Segmant revenue, sepment expenses, segment assets and segment liabilities have been identified to segments on the basisof their relatignship with the
oparating activities of the segment.

2.16 Use of Judgements and Estimates

In preparing these financial statemenis, management has made judgements, estimates and assumptions that

affext the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets and liabilities mcluding contingent lisbilises and asiets) as on the date
of the linancial staterments and the reported income and expenses for the reporing period. Management balleves that the estimates used in the
preparation of the financial sttements are pruden ard ressonable, Actual results may differ from these astimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongong basks. Revisions 10 Sccounting estimates afe recognised praspectively

2.17 Earning Per Share

HEIC eMMINgE per equity share 15 caloulabed by deideng the net  profil or loss attributable to eguity shareholders of the Compary by the
weighted average number of equity shares outstanding dusing the

financial year.

Ta calculate diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period atiributable to eguity shareholders

and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects of all diluthe potential equity shaes

2.18 Dividends
Final dividends ane recorded a5 a kability on the date of appeaval by the shareholdirs and intesien dividends are
recorded as @ liabilty on the date of declaration by the Boand of Denectors of the Company

2.19 Impairment of Non-Financial Assets

At esch reporting date, the Company assessaes whether there is any indication that an asset may be impaired. If any such indication ewsts, the Company
estimates the recoverable amount of the asset. Recoverable amount is higher of an asset’s net selling price and its value in wse. If such recoverabie
amount of the asset or the recowerable amaount of the cash generating unit to which the asset I;uk:nl;s is bess than it:.l;.‘lnying amount, the carrying
amount |s reduced to its recoverable amaunt. The reduction is teated as an impairment las and is recognized in the Statemant of Prafit and Logs, I 1
the reporting date there |s an indication that if a previously assessed impairment loss no (DRger ests, the recoverable Mot 1S reassessed and the
asset is reflected at the recoverable ameunt Impalrment losses are recognised in profit and loss. An impairment loss is reversed only to

the extent thet the asset’s carying amount does not esceed the carying amaunt that would have been determined, net of depreciation or smontisation,
il no impairment loss had been recogned

2.20 Impairmant of Financial Assets

The Carmgany recognises impairment allowances for ECL on all the financial assets that are not measured at

FVTPL:

Financial assets that are debt instrumems Lease receivables

Financial guarantes contracts issued Loan commitment issued

Mo impabment loss is recognised on equity vestments

ECL are probability weighted estimate of credit losses. They are measured as follows:

Financial assets that are not oredit impaired- as the present value of all cash shortfalls that are possible within

12 months after the reporting date,

Financial assets with significant increase in oredit risk but not credit impaired — & the present value of all cash

chamiallz rhat rasid fraen 8l poctible dafaln seants ousr the spernad lils of tha financial e

Financial assets that anz credit impaired - 3s the difference between the gross camying amount and the prasent

value of estimatad cash flows

With respect to trade receivables and other financial assats, the Company measures the loss allowance at an

amount egqual 1o litetime sxpected credit losses,

Loss allowarces for financial assets rmeasured at amortised cost are deducted (rom the gross canrying

amount of the aisets. For financial assets at FVTOCK the loss aBowance is recognised in OCL

Loan assets- The Cormpany follows & three—siage’ model for impairrent based on changes in credit quality

singe initial recognition as sufmmarized below:

Stage 1 includes loan assets that have not had a significant increase in credit dsk since initial recognition or that have low credit risk at the reporting
date.

Stage 2 includes loan assets that have had a significant increase in credit risk since mitial recognition but that do not have objective evidence o
imipairment.

Stage 3 includes loan astets that have abjective evidence of impairment at the reparting date.

The Expected Credit Loss (ECL] is measwred a1 12-month ECL for Stage 1 loan assets and at lifetime ECL for Stage 2 and Stage 3 boan assets.

Write-off
Financial assets are written off either partialty or in their entinety to the sdent that there is no realistic prospect of recovery. Any subsequent recoveries
are eredited 1o impaitment on financial instrument on statermer of profit and loss.

221 Financial instrumants
A Financial instrurnent is ary contract that gives rise 1o & financial asset of one entity and

& or equity instrurnent of ancther entity.
Inktlal recognition and D?‘
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Finarcial gets and financial liabilties are recognized when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions af the linancal instrument and
are measured initially ot fair value adjusted for ransaction costs. Subsequent measurament of finandal assets and fnancial liabilities is described below

(A} Non-derivative financial assets
Subsequent Measurement

Financlal assets carvied at amortized cost - & financial asset is measured at the amortized costif bath the fallowing conditions are mat

The asset is held within a business model whose objective is 1o hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows, and

Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash fiows that are sobely payments of principal and mtenes (SPPT) onthe prncipal amount
outstanding,

After initial measurermen, such financial sssets are subsequently measured at amonized cost using the effective

interest rate (EIR) methad. Amortized cost i calculated by taking into account any discount or premivm on acquisition and fees or costs that are an
integral pant of the EIR. The EIR amortization is included in irerest income in the Statement of Profit and Loss

Financial assets (debt instruments ¢.9. loans) are measured at FVOCT when both of the following conditlons

are met:

The instrursent s held within & business madel the objective of which is achieved by both collecting contractual cash

figws and sefling financial assets.

The contractual terms of the finandial asset meet the SPPT test.

FVOC] deibt instrurments are subsequently measured at fair value with gains and losses arising due o changes in fair

walue recogmized in OCL Imterest income are recognized in profit or [oss in the same manner as for financial assets measured at amartized cost.

Financial assets measured at FYPL ~ FVPL is 4 residual category for debt instrurnants, Any debt instrument, which
SBs HM meel the oriteria far cuegaﬁwiun a4 a1 amortised cost o a8 FVTOCL i8 classified as &1 PVTPL, with all zr\.mge-s mmgnusa im he PEIL

Derecegnition of Financial Assets

Financial assets (or whena applicable, a part of financial asset or part of a group of gimilar financial assets) are de- recognized [ie. removed from the
Comparny's balance sheet) when the contractual rights 1o receive the cash flows froen the financial stset have expired, or when the financial asset and
substantially all the risks and rewards are trarsferred. Funher, if the Company has not retained contral, it shall also de—recognize the financial asset and
recognuize separately a5 assers o liabilities any rights and obligations created or retained in the transler

(B} Mon Derfvatives Financial Liabilities
Subsequent Measurement
Subsequent 1o initial recognition, &l non—derrvative financial abilities ane measured 8t amontized cost using the effectve interest methad.

nilthen of Financial Liabilities
A financial Babllity Is de-recognized when the obligation under the lability s discharged or canceled or expired. When an existing financial liability is
replaced by anather from the same lender on substantialy different terms, or the terms of an existing Rability are substantially moddied, such an
exchange or modification is treated a5 the de- recognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective
carrying amourts is recognized in the Staterment of Profit and Loss,

2.22 Fair value measurement

The Company measures financial instruments at fair value at each balance sheet date using valustion techniques. Fair vabue is the price that would be
received 1o Lol an aiset or paid 1o trander a Eability in a0 ardery transaction between market panicipants 8t the measurement date. The falr value
meksurernent is based on the presumption that the ransaction 1o sell the asset or transher the liabdity takes place either

al  Inthe principal market for the asset or liability, or

[+] Im the absence of a principal market, in the most advantagecus markat for the asset or liablity,

The Company uses valuation techniquaes that are appropriate in the circurmestances and for which anflicient dats are avadlable 1o meadins (i valie,
maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and minimizing the use of uncbsendable inguts, All assets and lisbsties for which falr walue is reasured
are categorized with fair value hievarchy into Level [ Level 1 and Leved T based on level of input.

2.23 Offsetting of finandial instruments
Financial assets and financial fiabilities are offset and the net amount is reported inthe balance sheet when the Compary has a legally enforceable right
1o offset the recognised amounts and there i an intention Lo settle on a net basks, or realize the asset and settle the liabify simulaneously.
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ADVIK CAPITAL LIMITED

Regd, Office; G-3 . VIKAS HOUSE . 3471, EAST PUNABI BAGH Punjabi Bagh . hiew Oelhi 110026
CIN: LESTD0DL1985PLO022505 | vevews achikaroap Som

Annexure -V Notes to d lidated Financlal S s
L.1: Restated Cash and Cash Equivalents (Rs. in lakhs)
Particulars As at As st As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Cashiin hand 131 1963 778
Balance with banks
[ current account 129.75 643 168
Daposit with Original Maturity of bess than three months - = o
Total 142.86 26.06 9.46
1.2: Restated Bank Balances other than Cash and Cash Egquivalents {Rs. in lakhs)
Particulars As at As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Deposits held a8 margin money 123 1.15 1.08
Deposits with Original maturity of more than three month but less than
twelve months
Total 1.23 1.18 1.08
L.3: Restated Trade Receivables (R in lakhs)
Particulars Az at As at As ar
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Secured
Outstanding for a period exceeding 6 months
Outstanding for a period not exceeding & months
Unsecured, considered good
Cutstanding for a period exceeding & months naz -
Cuestanding for a period not exceeding & manths 340,00 100,85 236,73
Total 340,00 101.77 236.73
Trade Receivable Ageing Schedule
Particulars As at As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Trade receivables, Unsecured disputed, considered good
Trade receivables, Unsecured Undisputed considered good
Less than & months 10085 236.73
& months- 1 Years 340,00 052 .
1-2 Years - -
2-3 Years
More Than 3 Years - - -
Total 340,00 10,77 236.73
There are no outstanding receivables due from directors or other o#cers of the Company.
1.4: Restated Loans {fis. in lakhs)
Particulars As at As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Amortisad cost
Unsecured, considered good
Lowng repayable on demand B8,850.56 T31.00 605,00
Term loans 2470.00 - -
Total 1132056 Ti1.00 605,00
Less: Impairment loss allowance 100,00 195 162
At fair value through other comprehensive income
Loans repayable on demand
11,220.56 T29.05 603.38
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Annexure -V Notes to dC lidated Financial 5 15
a) Other Details
Particulars As at As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Secured by property, plant and equipment including land and building . . N
Secured by book debts, inventories, margin money and ather working £
capital items
Unsecured 11,220.56 729.05 B03.38
Total 11,220.56 729.05 603.38
Loans in India
Public Sector
Others 11,220.56 729.05 £03,38
Total 11,220.56 729.05 603.38
b} Loans with specified parties:
Particulars As at As st As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Promoders ] Nil il
Directors Mil Mil il
Key management Personals il Nl Mil
Other Related Perties il il il
Total il Hil il
L5: | Investmants
Particulars As a1 As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Investrment in Equity Instruments 143303 - -
Irvestrent in Other Instruments -
Total 1,433.03 - A
a) Investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures
Particulars As at As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Inwestments measured at Amortise Cost
(&) Quoted
-Sarveshwar Foods Limited-Quated 121.80
Add/Less:Fair Value gain/Tloss) on remeasuremnet through P&L-Quon (23.33)
{b) Unquoted
(i) Subsidiaries
(ii) Assoicates
(iii} Joint Ventures
(iii} Others
-Bri] Gopal Construction Private Limited 2,533.00
Add/Less:Fair Value gain/{loss) on remeasuremnat through OC) (1,158.45)
T 1,433.03 - -
(i) Irvestrents. in India 143303 -
{il) Investments outside India -
Total 1.433.03 - -
b} Carrying value and market value of quoted and unguoted Investments are as below:
Particulars As at As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
(#) Investrnent in subsidiary companies
Aggregate carrying value of quoted imvestmaents 5
Aggregate market value of quoted investments - -
Aggregate carrying value of unguated investments -
(b} Imvestment In associate companies -
() bm in Others 1433.03 =
Total 1,433.03 - -
1.6: Restated Other Financial Assets (Rs. in lakhs)
Particulars s at As at As at
March 21, 2023 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Advance [considered good)
-To wihers 67.66
Security Deposits 9934 775 17.27
Accrued Income 81.26 48.70 4383
Advances to Suppliers - 2369 -
H 200

Oither il
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Annexure -V1 Notes to restated Consolidated Financial Siatements

Net 248.28 140.14 63.10
L7 : Restated Inventories (Rs. in lakhs)
Particulars As at As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
(s vakued and certified by the managemant)
Raw Matarials 148,47 20.22 182.42
Waork in Progress = ¥
Finished Goods 8855 64,46 69,02
Stoves and Others. 1.05 2.24 245
Securities held for trade 112,30 9163 5
Total 35037 359,55 253.89
LE: Restated Current Tax (Assets)/ Liabilities (net) {Rs. im lakhs]
Particulars As at As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Income Tax (Assets)/ Liabilities (net) 288.36 B.B1 (1.66)
288.36 6.81 {1.66)

Teotal
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Annexure -VI Notes to restated C:

ADVIK CAPITAL LIMITED

Regd Office: G-3, VIKAS HOUSE 34/1, EAST PUNUABI BAGH Punjabi Bagh . New Delhi -110026
CIN: LES1000L1585PLO022505 | www.advikgroup.com

L9: Property, Plant & 's {Rs. in lakhg)
Gross Block Tangible Assets Intangible Total
Land Building Plant&  Computer  Furniture and Office Vehides Total Assets (A+B)
Machinery Fixtures Equipment's (A) (B)
As at April 1, 2020 11128 18145 1351 653 1249 8054 405.80 405.80
Addition = 059 = 053 842 964 964
Disposals - . . 4316 43.16 43.16
As at March 31, 2021 1m.28 182.14 13.51 6.53 13.02 45,80 iTz.28 - 372.28
Addition - 016 188 - 204 2.04
Disposals - 038 - - - - 0.38 0.38
As at March 31, 2022 - 111.28 181.92 13.51 6.53 14.90 45.80 373.94 - 373.94
‘Addition = - 0.74 E 165 p 238 018 256
Disposals i 5 2 b ? 7 7
As at March 31, 2023 111.28 181.92 14.25 6.53 16.55 45.80 376.32 0.18 376.50
Accumulated Depreciation Tangible Assets Intangible Total
Land Building Plant & Computer  Furniture and Office Vehicles Total Assets
Machinery Fixtures uipment's (A) (B)
As at April 1, 2020 - 9679 9.09 532 768 55.56 174.44 174.44
for the period - - 1104 052 019 073 625 1873 18.73
Adjustments = = = = - 4091 40.91 40.91
As at March 31, 2021 - 107.83 9.61 551 841 20.90 152.26 - 15226
for the period - 270 1036 17 018 203 645 2343 23.43
Adjustments : 013 - ) - - 013 0.13
As at March 31, 2022 2.70 118.06 11.32 5.69 10.44 27.35 175.56 E 175.56
for the period - 6,19 889 133 016 262 4.78 2397 0.1 2408
Adjustments - B . - - -
As at March 31, 2023 B89 126.95 12.65 5.85 13.06 3213 199.53 0.11 199,64
Net Carrying Value Tangible Assets Intangible Total
land  Building Plant&  Computer  Furniture and Office Vehicles Total Assets
Fixtures Equipment's (A (B)
As at March 31, 2021 1Y i Qg L 102 461 24590 220.02 220.02
As at March 31,202 bl \ 2.19 0.84 4.46 18.45 198.38 - 198.38
As at March 31 L { 1.60 0.68 3.48 13.67 176.80 0.07 176.87
aN__ Vo
*
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Annexure -V1 Motes to restated Consolidated Financial Statements

110 : Restated Deferred Tax (Assets)/ Liability (Net) (Rs. in lakhs)
Particulars Asg at As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

(2] Deferred Tax Assets
Employee benefits and Other Expenses u/s 438 -

(256)

On Account of Depreciation of Property Plant and Equipment 500 o
On account of Fair Value Changes through GCL 30163
Others 685
(b) Deferred Tax Liability
Net deferred tax asset/ (liability) (a-b) 313.48 {1.10) {2.58)
1.11 Restated Other Non Financial Assets (Rs. in lakhs)
Particulars As at As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Unsecured, considared good
Balance with government authorities
Goods and Service Tax 178 2167 2iTe
Others 1426 1681
Advances with Trade Payable 1542 *
Prepaid Expenses 4465 -
Others 11,85 15.54 -
Total 29.66 111.54 40.57
Security deposits ane primarily in relation to public utility services andjor with depositories, exchange and other similar entities,
There are no outstanding debts from directors or other officers of the Company.
1.12: Restated Trade Payables (Fa in lalkhs)
Particulars As at As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Unsecured, considered good
i) Micro and Small Enterprises - . -
i) Others 279,79 5437 10237
Total 279.79 54.37 102.37
Trade Payables sging schedule
Particulars As st As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Micro and Small Enterprises
Disputed-MSME - - -
Undisputed- MSME - - -
Other than Micro and Small Enterprises
Disputed -
Lest than 1 Yaars [ = -
1-2 Years 8.54 B54 B.54
2-3 Years - - &
Mare Than 3 Years & n =
934 B.54 854
Undisputed Other than Micro and Small Enterprises
Less than 1 Years
1-2 Years 27045 45.83 9383
2-3 Years
More Than 3 Years
27045 4583 93.83
Total 275.78 54,37 102.37
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Annexure -VT Notes ta r i Consolidated Financial 5
113 ;Restated Borrowings {Rs. m lakhs)
Particulars As at s at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Long Term Borrowings
Sacured Loans (Term Loans)
Wehicles Loans from Banks 13.24 19.88 2608
Ungecured Loans (Term Loans)
{a) Loan form Related Party
Directors 183.70 10870 41.00
Inter-Corporate Losns 4020
Others 4,00
(k) Loan farm Others
Loan form Banks 42.40 4068
Intercorporate 131575 481 1184
Others
Total T.512.69 175.79 163.84
Less Short term Borrowings 497725 3344
Less | Current Maturities BTS 34.39
Total (4) 2,528.69 175.79 129.45
Short Term Borrowings
Unsacured Loans, Repayable on demand
Woarking Capital Loans from bank 11323 119,08
Intercorparate Loans 4,862.00 180,00 -
Current Maturities 122.00 33.44 3439
Total (B) 4,984.00 326.67 153.47
Total (A+B) 7.512.69 502.46 282.92
{a) Term Loans 2,535.44 4583
{b) Repayable an Demand* 497725 445,14 28292
Total 7.512,69 454.97 282.92
{a) With in India 151268 469,02 28252
{b} Outside India = - =
Taotal 7.512.69 469.02 282,92

*Loans without specifying any terms or period of repayment are considered as repayable on demand

a) Principal Amount of instalment due in next following year on long term debts are separately dischosed under Shom Term Borrowings as Current

Maturities on Long Term Debts.
bivehical Loans ane secured with respective vehicles.

c)The Company's bormowings are secured by (A) Primary Securities : (i) Hypothecation of the entire movable fiked assets of the company (i) Hypothecation
of the Current Assets, (B) Collateral Security of chasge on Commercial land and Building situated at Unit No.308-B, 3rd Floor Tower-L, Secior-2, IMT

Manesar Haryana (Element %) 122052 of Holding Comparny “Advik Capital Limited",

L14 : Restated Other Financial Liabilities (Rs. in lakhs)

Particulars Az st Az at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Creditors for other Liabilities/Expenses 023 265 487

Cheques Bssued but not realised 45.50

Interest Payable 7393

Salary and Bonus Fayable 795 2100 133

Security Received - 084

Expences Payable 130 -

Audit Fees Payable 141 ;

Statutory Dues Payable 379 563 1,20

116.61 56.63 T.40
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Ageing
Particulars Ay As at Az at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 3803 March 31, 2021
Disputed -MSME Hil Hil ]
Dispuied -Others M Hil hal
Undripuied - MEME Ml Nl wil
Undigrned - Others
(Cutstanding for Tolkowing penods from due dats of paymant)
Luss thas 1 year T FEATS AR7
1.3 ywan. il Bl il
2 Iyman ral il it
More than 3 years nil i il
Total T8 4010 4.87
L15: Renated Other Nen Finencal Lishiligies iR in laki)
Particulars As at 1] Az ad
Mareh 31, J02% March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Advances recetved lomm ousiomerns B 430
Provmion for Bad & Doubtiul Debis@ [iRE] L) 4.23
Total .15 =] B.E3
L16: mu“wﬂm&lﬂ R in ke
At Asat s ad
Azt March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2031
Authorized Share Capital
FH00,00,000 Equity $haes (Previous Year 4.50.73,600)
[Par Value of Each Ecpify Share is R0/ 2,500.00 2,500000 A53 T4
2,500.00 2,500.00 458.74
lssued Share Capital
22,00,33, 780 Bquay Shases (Peivious Year 4 5873600
Par Vplue of Each Equity Share Is Re. 1/ 220193 450,74 A58, 74
2,201.9% ASE.T4 A58.74
Subseribed and Fully Pald-up
200,93 580 Equity Shares (Previous Year, 4,50, 73,600)
[Par Valug ol Each Ecrity Share is R0/ 220153 45814 A58 74
TOTAL 2,300.95 A58 74 450,74
a) Tha datails af Shareholders halding more than 5% shares 1
Hame of the Sharshaldsr At Asat Az ai
March 39, 2023 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
N of shares % hebd Mo, of shares % hald Mo of shares % bl
Wirandis Kumas Agarwal 738,000,000 008k 17236800 HETR
Shakoul Kumar Agansal 3584000 TE% 3584 000 TH1%
Menju dgarwal 3396000 TADR
Wirkndes Kumar Agarwal HUF 2 g 2397500 520
Wikas Garg 17250241 TA%
Supma Garg 1505 1ha%
Sukriti Garg 141,34847 A2%
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Birnexure -V Motes to restated Consolldated Finamelal Staisments

Sharehalding af of the v
Mume of the Sharehalder i at %) of s at %) af st
March 31, 2023 change during March B, 2022 changs disring March 31, 2021
M. of shares & hald tha year  No. of thames. % hoelad bk s Hew el shares % held

Virerder Eumar Aganval 3008 1.38,00,000 00K (L) 1,72, 36,600 75
Shaliul Kumar Agarwal Mm% 35,854,000 TEIE 5,00.000 FIE S
Manju Aganwal : " (780} 3396000 7ark
Virerader Kufmar Aguarwal HUF 52k 23,097,500 EFE
Rishab Bumar Agarwal (105 482036 105
Vikas Garg 17251,241 TR bE:": Y

Sesma Gang 16586051 EASE Y 1%

Sukriti Garg AL BT EAIR Al

Thee Compit's pramoten M, Virender Agarwal and Mr. Shakul Eumar garsal enbered into a Shane Purchase Agreesent on May 15, 2022 with kr. Wik Garg and Mrs. Seema Garg (hevsraltor
raferied a8 Acquirers) and bs. Sukniti Garg (hereinabier referred a5 Person Acting in Concert|, collectivily known & Acquinen to sl their entine slake in Advik Capitel Limibed ["the Company™)
Therealter. an Open Offer was made by the Acquirers 10 scquire upte 26% of 1he 10t Vating Shase of the Cempany fram public sharsholdern vide Letter of Offer dated Febraary 09, 2023

Puriuan! 15 the completion of the said open offer, and the Share Purchase Agrecmend, the Company was acquised by Mr Vikis Garg, M. Seema Gang and Ms. Sulkriti Garg [ the soquinen| and They

ook gver 35 Promoters of the Company.

o) The reconciliation of the numbar of shares outstanding ss a1 yeer and is st ot below :

Particulars: Axat s at asat

Misreh B1, 2023 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
N, of shares Ne. of shares M. of shares

Eqityy Shares at the beginning of the year A 5873600 45073800 45871600

Agd - Fresh Equity Shares allotted during the year (EEERLT ]

Asdd - Benus Shaves alotled during She year

Liess - Bquity Shases larsited/ bought buck during th yaer - .

Equity Shares at the end ef the year 22,01,53,280 4,58,73,600 4.58.73,600

) The Company has not lssued any Bomis Sharefs) during the Lt e Financial Vi
) The Company hes not by back any Share(s) during the last five Francial Years

) The Compay has net iorfaited Shane(s) during the Ligt five Firancisl Years

g The comaany has nol isseed any seourities convertible into shares.

iy Terms attached ts Equity Shares

Thee rights, powers and prederence: relating to eech class of Share and the qualilications §mitations and restrictions thereod are concained in the Memorandum and Arficks o Assoialion

of the Company.

The company has only one class of Bquity Shases hawing a par value of Rs. 10 per shares. Each holder of eguity shares is endithed 10 one vole per shame &ny sharehalder whose name = eninied in
the Regiater of Membars of thi oo pay shall segey the same fighls and b sulspec) o th das lisbilities o3 8l other shanshalden of e same i

T diidand propased by the Board of Direcion i subject 1o the approval of Bhe shaseholders in the ensusg Annusl General Meeting

In the event of winding un/ liquidation of the company, Equity Sharehalders will be enditled to recese remaining assets of the company, afier distnbution of 2l preferental smounts For the said
PUrpase, the BquIdatne may 50t SUCh value a5 hi SEEmE 160 Updn a0y DIOReTy [0 B divided and miy Senermnd Now such disision shall De carmied Ol Benween the memBers
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L17: Restated Other Equity {Rs. in lakhs}
Particulars As at As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
(M) Reserves and Surplus
() Amalgamation Reserve
Opening Balance 4417 4417 4417
Add : Received/ utilised during the Year - - a
Total (a) 44,17 4417 4417
(b) Security Premium
Opening Balance 35720 35720 35720
Add : Recenved/ utilised during the Year 312024 = -
Tetal (b) 347744 357.20 357.20
(c) Retained Earnings
Balance at the beginning of the year 8008 46,56 41.39
Acdd : PrafitdiLogs) for the year 93533 4175 595
Less : Special Resarve 19092 B.23 078
Tatal (C) 82438 80,08 46.56
(d) Special Reserve”
Opening Balance 16.01 7.78 7.00
Add : Recerved/ utilised during the Year 190.92 823 078
Total (d) 206.93 16.01 7.78
(g) Capital Reserve
Opening Balance 160 1.60 160
Add ; Recetved! utilised during the Year - = a
Total (g) 1.60 1.60 1.60
Total (a+b+c+d+e+f+g) 4,554,52 499,06 457.1
(B) Equity Instruments through Other Comprehensive Incomes
Opening Balance =
Add; Changes during the year (B96,82)
TOTAL(B) (896.82)
(C) Other Items of Other Comprehensive Incomes = = o
(D) Mon Controlling Interest 1re 115.20 113.81
Add: Profit for the year o0.2a 262 1.39
TOTAL{D) 118.10 117.82 11520
Total (A+B+C+D) 3,775.80 616.88 572,51

*Special Reserve as per RBI Norms

Asg per Section 45-1C (1) of Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934, every non-banking financial company shall create a reserve fund and transfer therein a sum
not less than twenty per cent. of its net profit every year as disclosed in the the profit and loss account and before any dividend is declared.

® Raserve for Bad & Doubtful Debts As per Income Tax Provisions

Reserve for Bad & doubtful debits has been Created as per provisions of Section 36(1)(vila)(d) of Income Tax Act1961

! Contingent Reserve
The provision towards standard assets based on IRACP norms of RBL
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Annexure -VI Motes to Financial
m1- ‘Other Incomes (Rs. in Lakhs)
Year ended Year ended Wear andad
Rarficdari March 31, 2023 Mareh 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Profit on sale of Fooed Assats [F3 080
Other non Operating INComes 7.60 1006 122
Interest on Income Tax Refund 0.1
Interest Income y
Froem Banks 118 e
From Cthers 008 ooy
Fafelgn Exchangs Fluctultion Gain (Net) 017 02s .
Total T8 11.82 zn
11.2. Restated Finance Costs {Rs. in lakhs)
Year ended Year ended Year ended
Parfiniam March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Intengst on Loans 28482 1946 2075
Other Financial Costs 171 105 110
Total 296.53 20.51 21.85
1.3 Restated Met galn/(loss) on falr value changes** {Rs. in lakhs)
Particulars Wear ended Year ended
A nded
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 i RoiE
&) Met gain{loss) on financial mstruments a1 fair value through profit or loss
(B} Others{ o be specified)
~Sepurity Deposits 17.50
<Change in Fair Value of Investments 2333
Total Net gain/{Gain) on fair value changes 40,83 -
Fair Value Changes:
-Realised
~Linrealised 4083
Total Met galn/(Gain) on fair value changes 40,83
*= Fair Value Changes in the schedule are other than those ansing on account of accured interest income/expense.
11.4- Restated Purchases of Stock-in-Trade {Rs. in lakhs)
Year ended Year ended Year ended
I March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Purchases of Securities 5793347 354410
Total 5793347 3.944.10 -
ns- Change in of Finished Goods, WIP and Stock-in-Trade {Rs. in lakhs)
Year ended Year ended Year ended
Particuleen March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Opening Stock
Finished Gaads 446 6502 1602
Work in Progress - H
Sequrities held for trade 91,63 - =
156,09 6502 1602
Cloging Stock
Finlshed Goods BA.55 6446 [
Waork in Progress : - -
Securities held for trade 112.30 91.63 .
200.85 15609 a502
Total (44.76) (B7.0T) 7.00
e - Employes Benefit Exp {Rs. in lakhs)
Year ended Year anded
oo March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Salaries, Wages and Bonus 3489 3095
Director Remuneration 2700 2100
Stafl Welare and Other Expense 172 209
Tatal 63,61 G004
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11.7- Restated Depreclation and Amertisation Expenses (Fs. in lakhs)
. Year ended Year ended Year ended
s March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
[repreciation on tangible assets 2408 2343 1874
Amaortigation on intangible assets - . £
Total 24.08 2343 16.74
11.8- Restated Other Expenses _[As. in lakhs)
Year ended Year ended Year ended
fartiaare March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Consumption of Stores and Spares 230 101 341
Power and Fuel 640 o221 1004
Repair & Maintenance 1o Building 052 050 .
Repair & Maintenance to Machinary [N] 276 0.24
Repair & Maintenance 1o others 04z o8 7.75
Rent 628 1408 1364
Insurance Expenses (NF] [FEH 142
Rates and Taxes 2069 113 639
Other Marudacturing Experses 10,80 1248 10.77
Audit Fee an a2 046
Reserve for Bad & Doubtful Debts 7486 2086 026
Adveniserment Experses 114
Business Promotional Expanses 030 110 148
‘Commissian - 064
Donations - 0.08
Drernate Expenses 0os . -
Fee and Subscriptions 160 ER | 048
Frelght outward 033 .03 159
Professional, Consultancy and Legal Expanses ELiey ] 253 256
Raobate and Discourt 008 161 -
Sequrity Changes o8 &0z 042
Telephone and Internet Expenses 074 0.B5 022
Travelling and Cormveyance 314 1.58 0,95
Vehicle Running & Maintenance 335 455 578
Other Miscellaneous Expendes in 458 1.59
Total 186,63 6679 7138
Note: P t to statutery audi
Particulars Year ended Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2023 Il_lﬂh 31, 2022 March 31l 2021
Statutory audit 3.21 az2i
Tax Audit
Other Matters 0.11 -
Total 352 021 0.00
N.9-Restated Earning per Share
Farticulars Year ended Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Basic
‘Weighted average no. of Equity Shares outstanding 22,01,93.280 4,58,73,600 458,713,600
Mt Profit After Tax (Re. in Lakhg) 835,22 4113 EX: 7]
Basic Earnings per Share (Rs) 042 0o oo
Diluted Earnings per Share
‘Weightad average no. of Diluted Equity Shares 22,00,93,280 4,58,73,600 4,58,73.600
Adjusted Profit After Tax (Rs. in Lakhs) 935.22 4113 3ga
Dlluted Earnings per Share (s} (111 ] oo
Hominal Value per Share (Rs.) 1.00 1.00
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Annexure -V Notes to restated Consolidated Financial Statements
m.2:

Restated Details of dues to Micre and Small Enterprises as defined under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises
Development Act, 2006,

IRs. in lakhsh

Particulars As at As at s at

March 31, 2023 Mareh 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Principal amount remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of the il il il
accounting year,
Interest due therean remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of Nil il il
the accounting year.
The amount of interest paid along with the amounts of the payment Mil il il
made to the supgplier beyond the appointed day .
The anvouwnt of intenest dwe and payalile fur e yearn il M [T
The amount of interest acerued and remaining unpaid at the end of il il il
the accounting year.
The amaount of further interest due and payable even in the succeeding Mil il Hil

year, until such date when the interest dues as above are actually paid.

IIL3: Restated Capital Manag -
The primary objective of the Company's capital management policy is to ensure that the Company complies with capital adequacy
requirements required by the Reserve Bank of India and maintain strong credit ratings and healthy capital ratios in erder lo suppert its
bassingss and to maximize shareholder value.

The Company’s capital management objectives are

-to ensure the Company's ability te continue as a going concern

~to comply with externally imposed capital requirement and maintain strong credit ratings
-to provide an adequate return to shareholders

Management assesses the Company’s capital requirements in order to maintain an efficient overall financing structure while avoiding
excessive leverage. This takes into account the sub—ordination levels of the Company's various classes of debt. The Company manages
the capital structure and makes adjustments to it in the light of changes in economic conditions and the risk characteristics of the
underlying assets (including investments in Subsidiary companies). In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company
may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new shares, or sell assets to reduce
debt.

Particulars As at As at As at

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Met Debt* 744253 44181 27238
Total Equity £977.73 1,076.24 103125
Net debt to equity ratic 125 0.41 026

* Net debt includes debt securities + borrowings other than debt securities + sub-ordinated liabilities + imterest accrued - cash and
cash equivalents — bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents.
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110 -Restated Contingent liabilities and commitments {to the extent not provided for) [Rs. in lakhs)
Particulars As at As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Contingent liabilities
Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debt il il il
Collateral Security against subsidiaries 142 B4 142,84 il
Other maney for which the Company is contingently liable Nil Nil il
Commitments il Mil il
I.11-Restated Foreign Currency Transactions Details {Rs. in lakhs)

Particulars Az at Az at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
CIF Values of Imports:
Travelling Exp 3404 9215 14979
Professional and Consultancy Mil Mil Ml
Other matters: il Wil Ml
Expenditure in Foreign Currency:
Trawalling Exp il il il
Professional and Consultancy il il il
Cither matters il Wil il
Earming In Foreign Currency:
Professional and Consultancy Ml Mil Ml
Other matters il il il
IIL.1 Restated Tax E
Particulars m_::;m Year ended Year ended
. Mareh 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Current Tax 358,50 14.44 233
Incorme Tax for Earfier years
Deferred Tax (Credit)/ charge (10.75} 147 0.26
Tax Expenses reported in the Statement of profit and Loss Account 347.75 15.91 2.59

The major components of tax expense and its reconciliation to expected tax expense based on the enacted tax rate applicable to the Company
is 25.168% (March 31, 2021: 25.168%) and the reported tax expense in statement of profit and loss are as follows:

Particulars Year ended

Year ended Year ended

e 3 2053 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Accounting (loss)]profit before tax expense 1.283.25 63.29 979
Income tax rate 25.168% 25.168% 25.1668%
Expected tax expense 32297 1553 245
Tax effect of adjustments to reconcile expected income tax
expense to reported Income 1ax expense
Tax Impact due to tempaorary differences 10,75
Tax Impact due to Permanent differences 2454
Tax impact of expenses which is non deductible
Tax impact on items exempt under income tax
Impact of change in tax rates
Income tax for earlier years -
Others (10.75) (0.02) 013
Tax expense 347.01 15.91 2.59
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Annexure -V Notes to restated Consolidated Financial Statements
m.2:

Restated Details of dues to Micre and Small Enterprises as defined under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises
Development Act, 2006,

IRs. in lakhsh

Particulars As at As at s at

March 31, 2023 Mareh 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Principal amount remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of the il il il
accounting year,
Interest due therean remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of Nil il il
the accounting year.
The amount of interest paid along with the amounts of the payment Mil il il
made to the supgplier beyond the appointed day .
The anvouwnt of intenest dwe and payalile fur e yearn il M [T
The amount of interest acerued and remaining unpaid at the end of il il il
the accounting year.
The amaount of further interest due and payable even in the succeeding Mil il Hil

year, until such date when the interest dues as above are actually paid.

IIL3: Restated Capital Manag -
The primary objective of the Company's capital management policy is to ensure that the Company complies with capital adequacy
requirements required by the Reserve Bank of India and maintain strong credit ratings and healthy capital ratios in erder lo suppert its
bassingss and to maximize shareholder value.

The Company’s capital management objectives are

-to ensure the Company's ability te continue as a going concern

~to comply with externally imposed capital requirement and maintain strong credit ratings
-to provide an adequate return to shareholders

Management assesses the Company’s capital requirements in order to maintain an efficient overall financing structure while avoiding
excessive leverage. This takes into account the sub—ordination levels of the Company's various classes of debt. The Company manages
the capital structure and makes adjustments to it in the light of changes in economic conditions and the risk characteristics of the
underlying assets (including investments in Subsidiary companies). In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company
may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new shares, or sell assets to reduce
debt.

Particulars As at As at As at

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Met Debt* 744253 44181 27238
Total Equity £977.73 1,076.24 103125
Net debt to equity ratic 125 0.41 026

* Net debt includes debt securities + borrowings other than debt securities + sub-ordinated liabilities + imterest accrued - cash and
cash equivalents — bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents.
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IV.1 Maturity Analysis OF Assets And Liabilities
The table below shows an analysis of assets and liabilities analyzed according to when they are expected to be recovered or settled. Deswvatives have bean
classified to mature andfor be repaid within 12 manths, regardiess of the sctual contractual maturities.

Regel Office G 5 WIKAS HOUSE | 3477 | EAST PLIRIAR] BAGH Punjski Bagh , New Delfi 110026

{Rs, in Lakhs)
As at March 31, 2023 Az at March 31, 2022 A st March 31, 2021
Particulars Within 12 manths After 12 Within 12 months After 12 Within 12 months Aftar 12
manths miont| meniths.
ASSETS
Financial Assets
{a) Cash and Cash Equivalents 14285 26.08 SA46
(b) Barik Balances other than Cash and Cash 1.23 1.15 108
(€] Trade Receivables 34000 - m.rr A36.73
{d) Loans 4,363,348 685718 72005 BO3 38
() Imvestmerits 1.43303 L
{f) Dthers Financial Assets 148,94 99.34 7239 5175 4583 127
4,996.41 8,389.54 930,42 67.75 #3648 1727
Non Financial Assets
() Inverteries X037 350.55 23385
(b} Currant Tax Assets (net) - - 166 .
(c) Property, Plant B Equipment's 17657 - 19838 22002
(d) Capital Wiark in Progress - . 3
(e} Defurred Tax Assets 348 - 110 258
(f) Cther Non Financisl Assets 2966 111.54 - 4057
380.03 490.35 471.09 159.48 206,12 222,60
TOTAL ASSETS 537644 BETS.EY 1.401.51 267.23 1,192.60 230.E7
(s in lakhs)
As at March 31, 2023 As 8t March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021
Particulars Within 12 menths After 12 Within 12 months. After 12 Within 12 manths After 12
months minths months
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Liabilities
Financial Liabilities
() Tracle Payables
(i} Total Outstanding of MSME 5
{ii} Total Outstanding other than M5SME 27978 54.37 023y
b} Baorrowings 4,384.00 252869 43537 3385 230,30 5262
{c] Oiher Financial Liabilities 11651 - 5663 740
5,380.40 2,528.69 546.37 ILES 340,07 52.62
Mo Financlal Liabilities
{8} Curfent Tax Liabilities (net) R 619
() Deferred Tax Liabilities (Mot} i
icl Cther Mon Anancial Liabilities 8115 6.29 .53
363.51 - 1248 - B.53 -
Total Liabilitites 5.788.81 252868 SERAS 3168 4R A %2 67
et Equity (373.4T) 6,351.20 B42.66 233.58 844,00 187.25
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Annexure VI Nates to restated Consolidated Financlal Statements

W.1: Related Party Disclosures
] List of related parties and relationship (s idemtified by the management].

11 Subsidiaries
Iidvik Optoalecironics Lid
Aciloca Finvest Lid

ill Key Management Personnel's (KMP) :

Mr Virendir Eumar Agarssl
Mr. Weendar Eumar Agarwal
Mr. Achwini Kumar

MAr. Shaloul Kumar Aggareal
Mir. Shakul Kumar Aggareal
Peirs. Marius Agarwal

M. Mlargis Agarwsl

Por, Madkur Bansal

Mir. Rishabh Agoareal

Mir. Rishabh Aggarwal

Wi, Madhar Bansal

s Rashika Gupta
Mr. Karan Bagga
M. Deepika Mishea

i} Enterprise over which KMP and their relathees exercise signlficast influsscs

Akl Glabal Limited
Vikas Ecotech Limited

Genesis Gas Solutions Frvaie Limited
Alralte Dectro Signs Prvate Limited

(Diwector, Advic Capial Limited, Ceased we | 22.03 2023)

(Dacar, Advik Oplosleciranics Limded)

(e Tirmee Disecos & CFOL woe F 0007 2022y

(Ewcocuth Dinecter, Advik Capital Limited, Cessed woe F 22012023
(Retative of Directar, Adwk OPtoeiactianics Limied)

[Dinector, Advik Capital Ceased woe [ 22.03 2023)

(Cirectar, Advik Opioslectronics Lmsed]

[Dirwctar, w.e ! O7.04.2022)

[Chief financial offices, Achik Capital Lmitedl. comed from 0704 2022y
[Directar, Advik Optoslctiomcs Liriti ]

[Chief finandial afficer, weef from 07 042022 coased weel 0107 3033
(Directon, w.el 2203.2023)

[Cirecior, w.e.d 22032023

ACAmpany Seoreany, ceasad lieen 28172021

(Company Secretary, wal feom 38 12 2021, ceased woe 107 01.2025)
|Dinectos, w.ef 22.03.3023)

(Company Secretary wef 12012005

Arvore Signg Privale Lemiled
Transactions with related Hlﬂ!: (®s. i lakhs)
Nature of Transaction Trasaction with Year ended Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31,2022 March 31, 2021
Remunerations M. Virender Kurnar Aganwal 1500 1200 1200
. Shalul Ewmar Aganwal 00 1.50 600
. Rishabh Agarwal Q00 1050 600
Mr. Ashawind Kuomas 12,46
W5, Manju Aganwal 4.5 400 a00
Bdr. Wikas Garg el
s, Poanam Mehta 1.10 107
s, Rashika Gupta 461 130 ]
Interest an Unsecured Loan Ieir. Warender Kumar Agansal 4489
Birs. Manju Agarwal 192
Recelveing of Loan br, Virender Kumar Agarwal 142 14020 1600
rs, Manju Agarwal 4400 2003 500
Adlvie LIgEal Lt v
Aot Electro Sigre Private Lir 500
Repayment of Loan e, Virender Kumar Agarwal naz 9250 5.00
bars, Manju Agarwal 900 A0 100
Advik Global Limited 9.00 1450
Alolite Electro Signs Private | 500 2570
Rental Expenses M. Shakul Kurnar Agarwal am 1200 1200
Subscription of Shares Achikca Firveest Limited 1500
Security Deposit Received tram Advik Optoelectronics Lid 250
Secu Deposit Repakd 1o Advik Optaelectronics Lid 250
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Annexure -Vl Notes to [ Financial §
€] Ealance as at the end of the year; [Fis. in lakis)
Nature of Balance Az ar As at As at
March 31, 2023  March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Remuneration Payable
M5, Manju Aganwal 025 02s
r. Shaloul Kumar Agarwal H 050
Mr. Rishabih Agarwal 100 1.00 050
Ms. Poonam Mehta on
M. Rashika Gupta 043
Mr, Vikas Garg 0.20
PI7, Ashwini Kurmar 7
MAr. Virender Eumar Aganwal 495
Interest on Unsecured Loan
Mir. Virender Kumar Aganwal A&%
WATS. Miarjus Aganwal 15
Unsecured Loan
Mr, Virerides Kumar Agansal (Rl [k 4100
Mrs. Manju Agarwal 5500 2000 400
Advik Global Limeted 1450
Altodite Electro Signs Private Limited 2570
Security Deposit
M. Shakul Kumar Agaresl 1600 1600
Advik Optoelectronics Ltd, - 250
V.2: Financial Instruments
(A) Financial assets and llabilities
The carryang amourits of financal instruments by categary are as follows:
Particulars MNote No. A5 at Az at Az at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Financial assets measured &t fair value NIL ML
Investments 15 143303
Security Depokits 325
Financial assets measured at amortized cost
Cash and cash equivalents (A 142 86 26.06 46
Bank Balances other than Cash and Cash Equivalents L 123 115 1.08
Trade Receivabie L3 34000 .7 23613
Loans L4 1122056 T3a05 60338
Irrvestments - -
Onthers Finandal Assets L& 21578 140014 6310
Tortal 1338595 998.17 91375
Financial Ulabidlity measured at fair vaiue
Financial liabilities measured at amoriized cost
Teads Payable Lz Fribe] 5437 10237
Barrowings ni 151269 46802 28292
Dither Financial Liabdities 114 11661 5663 740
Total 7.909.08 580.02 39269

(B} Falr values hlerarchy

Fnanclal assets and financial Eabilities are measured at Lair value in the financial statements and are grouped into three levels of a faw value hierarchy, The three levels are

defined based on the abservability of significant inputs to the measunement, as fallows:
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The categories used ane as folows:

Level 1: Quated prices (unadjusted) for identical instruments in an active marker,

Lewel 2: Directly (Le. as prices) or indirectly e, derived from prices) observable market inputs, ather than Level 1 inguls:
and

Level 3 Inputs which are not based on abservable rarket data unobservable inguts)

Valuation technique used to detarmine falr vale

The fair vaiue of a financial instrument on initial recognition is normally the transaction price [lair value of the consideration given or received). Subseguent to iritial recognition,
the Company determines the tair value of financial instruments that are quoted in active markets using the guoted bid prices (fnancial susts held) or quoted ask prices (financial
labilities held) and wiing valuation techniques for other instruments. Valuation techniques incude disoounted cash fiew method, market comparable method, recent trangsctions
happened in the Company and other valuation madels. The Company uses valiation techiniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data is
rvailable 1 measure falr value, madmizing the use of relevant chservable mputs and miremizing the use of unobsenvable inguits.

Valuation process and technique used to determine fair value
Specific valuation technigues used to value financial irstruments incude:

Eligibde loans valued by discounting the aggregate future cash flows (both principal and interest cash flows) with credit risk-adjusted discounting rate for the remaining portiobe
tence. The Company has considerad the average valustion impact arrived using risk free, cost of funds and yeeld free securitization approach,

The use of net asset value for certficate of deposits and mutual funds on the basis of the statement received from investee party,
(€} Falr value of instruments measured at amortized cost

Fair value of irstruments measured a1 amartized cost for which fair value is disclosed is as follows, these (air values are calculated using Level 3 inputs:
Financial assets maasured at amortized east

Particulars As st March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021
Carrying value Fair valug Carrying value Fair value Carrying value Fair vslue
Cash and cash equivalents 142 86 142,85 2606 26,06 846 845
Bank Balances othar than Cash and Cash | 123 123 115 118 108 108
Trade Recenable 340000 340,00 1077 1ma7 23671 23673
Lgans 1,.200.56 11.220.56 TRR.058 705 603,38 60338
Imvestments: -
Others Financial Assets 21578 21578 140014 140,14 E310 6310
Total 11.920.43 11,920043 BT 50817 513,75 813,75
Financial Liabilities d at amertlzed cost
Particulars As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021
Carrying value Falr valus Carrying value Fair valus Carrylng value Fair walue
Trade Fayable 27979 21979 5437 5437 10237 0237
Bormrawings 151268 151266 450,02 465.02 28242 28282
Other Firancial Liabilities 11661 11661 S6.63 5663 140 740
Total T.009.09 7.909.09 SE0L02 580.02 39269 389265
Financlal Assets Maasured o Fair Value
[Partculars As at March 31, 2023
Carrying wale Falr Value

Tatal Level 1 — Lewelz Lawal 3 ot |
Inastmants LESEED FEAR 1,334.55 143303
Security Depasits La06 32.50 150
Total 2,704.80 58.45 1,367.08 1,465,538
Finamcial Assots Maasured b Fair Value
|Particulars A= a1 March 31, 2022

Carrying value Fair Valug

Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Tartal = S

The management assassed that fair values of cash and cash equivalents, ather bank balances, trade receivalbles and trade payables approdmate their respective canyirg
amoynts, largely due 1o the short-term maturities of these instruments,

l.\.d-

ey
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Annexure -VI Notes to restated Consclidated Financial Statements

V.3 Financial Risk Management

The Company's activities expose it to market risk, liquidity risk and credit risk. The Company's board of
directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company risk management
framework. The Company manages the risk basis policies approved by the board of directors. The board
of directors provides written principles for overall risk management.

A) Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk that the Company will incur a loss because its customers or counterparties fail
to discharge their contractual obligations. The Company’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly
by cash and cash equivalents, other bank balances, investments, loan assets, trade receivables and
other financial assets. The Company continuously monitors defaults of customers and ather
counterparties and incorporates this information into its credit risk controls,

Credit Risk Management

Based on business environment in which the Company operates, a default on a financial asset is
considered when the counter party fails to make payments within the agreed time period as per
contract. 'The Company assesses and manages credit risk based on internal credit rating system.
Internal credit rating is performed for each dlass of financial instruments with different characteristics
The Company has established a credit quality review process to provide early identification of
possible changes in the creditworthiness of counterparties, including regular collateral revisions. The
Company assigns the following Credot ratings to each class of financial assets based on the
assumption, Input and factor specific to the class of financial assets.

i) Low credit risk
{ii) Moderate credit risk
{iii} High credit risk

The company provides for expected credit loss based on the following:

Nature Assets covered Basis of expected credit loss

Low credit risk Cash and cash equivalents (excluding cash on hand),  Life time expected credit loss
other bank balances, investments, loans, trade or 12 month expected credit
receivables and other financial assets loss

Moderate Loans and other financial assets Life time expected credit loss

credit risk or 12 month expected credit

loss
High credit  Loans Life time expected credit loss
risk or fully provided for

B) Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations
associated with its financial liabilities (other than derivatives) that are settled by delivering cash or
another financial asset. The Company's approach to managing liquidity is to ensure as far as
possible, that it will have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when they are due.

The Company maintains flexibility in funding by maintaining availability under committed credit
lines. Management monitors the Company's liquidity positions (also comprising the undrawn
borrowing facilities) and cash and cash equivalents on i5 of expected cash flows. The
Company also takes into account liquidityof

i

&
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Annexure -V1 Notes to restated Consclidated Financial Statements

V.1 Segment Reporting

The Cormpany operates in two reportabie segrment i.e. financing and Trade in securities, for the purpose of Ind AS 108 *Operating segments®
infromations related to such business segments have given below. The Company derives its major revenues from financing activities and its

customers are widespread. Further, the Company operates ondy in India which is considered as a single geographical segment.

Segment Reproting for the year Ended March 31, 2023 {Rs in lakhs)
(a) related to Bal Shaet items:
Particulars Loans Trade in Elec 3 ery  Un-allocabl Total
Securithes
Az on March 31, 2022 58623 8713 B3
Segment Assels 11.301.82 291.13 11,693
Unallocable Asgels 1.990 1,990
Total Assets 11,301.82 29113 5B6.23 87.13 1,990.03 14,256.33
Segment Liabilities A5 1,454,654 40573 imn 7943
Unallocable Liabilities 631311 6,313
Total Lisbilities | B1.15 TA54.64 405.73 171 631311 14,256.33 |
[b) Infromation Related to Profit and Loss items:
Particulars Loans Trade in Electronics  Machinery  Un-allnrahls Towal
Securities
Interest Income 698.94 - o7 63501
Rental Inscome - - 600 G00
Fee and Commissaon Income - -
Dividend Income 013 013
Sale of Securities - 554.50 457 629.07
Sale of Goods 5808471 58,084.71
L Revenue From Operations 638,94 59,004.85 554,50 7457 607 60,428.92
m.  Other Incomes 794 1.98
W.  Total income (1+10) 698.94 59,094 85 554.50 74.57 14.05 60,436.90
.  Experces
(3} Finance costs 278m 11493 597 114 25705
(R)Pravision for impairment on financial Ins 98.0% 94.05
fe)loss in Fair Value Measurement 2333 17.50 A0.83
(d) Cost of Material Consumed AT5.42 a0z 549,45
(e} Purchases of stock-in-trade 57193347 57.93347
(M} Changes in irventories of stock-in-trade (20.67) 24.09) [44.76)
(g) Employes benafits expenses 2245 302 4384 69.36
(h} Depreciation and amortization exepenses 1387 261 760 2408
(i) Others expenses 74,85 2112 3837 4.85 47.53 186.73
Total Expenses (IV) 17291 58,235.26 537.99 50.48 117.61 59,154.25
V.  Profit/ (Loss) Bafore Tax (V-V1) 526.03 BE9.59 1651 115.91) (103.56) 1,282 66
VL. Tax Expense: 34776
VI Profity (Loss) for the Period (VII-1X) §34.89
Ce 5 P g for the year Ended March 31, 2022
(a) inframation related to Balanee Sheet items: {Rs. im Lakhs)
Particulars Loans Trade in Un-allecable Total
Securities
As on March 31, 2022
Segment Assels Ta.40 11143 892,83
Unallocsble Assets 77785 TT1.86
Total Assets Ta1.40 11143 T7T 86 1,6T065
Segmant Liabilities 10904 EDBE 169.89
Unallocable Liabiities 39633 306,33
Total Liabilities 10904 [i-E] 39633 585.22
(k) Infromal Related to Profit and Loss items: {Fs. in Lakhs)
Partieulars Loans Trade in Un-allocable Taotal
Securities
Interest Income: 5490 3410
Rental Income 8.00 .00
Fea and Commission [ncome 1450 14,50
Sade of Securities 387182 387192
Sale of Goods 65638 69638
L Revenus From Operations 54.10 3aT.92 23.50 4,645.90
o Gther Incomes - 11.82 - 11.82
jus Total Income (1+11) 54.10 3,883.74 23.50 4,657.72
|8 Expenses
(a) Finance costs ooz 2049 2051
(biProvision for irmpairment on finandal Instruments
(chass in Fair Vakse Measurement
(dh Cost of Material Consumed 565.12 56512
(€) Purchases of stock-in-trade iz 334410
() Changes in inventories of stock-in-trade - 458 (&7.05)
(g} Employes benefis expendes 1 NEVIRELHI 53.32 6361
M) Depreciation and amortization exepensi| ~ | 2343 2343
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Annexure -Vl Notes to restated Consolidated Financlal Statements

(i) Others expenses 040 292 61,40 64,72
Tatal Expenses (V) 3.68 3EBE2AZ T28.34 4,594.43
v Profit/ (Loss) Before Tax (W-V1) 5042 21.32 1704 84] 63.29
WL Tant Expense: 1591
v Profit/ {Loss) for the Periad (V-V1) 4738
Consolidated Segment Reproting for the year Ended March 31, 2021 {Rs. in lakhs)
{a) Inf ion related to Bal Sheet items:
Particulars Loans Trade in Others Un-allocable Tatal
_Securities
As on March 31, 2021
Segment Assets 650,45 - 664.16 - 131861
Unallocable Assets - - - 11548 11548
Total Assets 650.45 - 115.48 1.434.0%
Segment Liabilities 285 - 33313 = 396,02
Unallocabbe Liabilities - - : 0.87 057
Total Liabilities 2.89 - 0.97 396.99
(b} Infr Related to Profit and Loss items:
Particulars Loans Trade in Others Un-allocable Total
Securities
Interest Income 411 - - 4771
Rental Income - = . .
Firtr and Commiggion [neome
Sale of Securities ; - -
Sale of Goods - - 57815 - 578,15
I.  Revenue From Operations 477 - 578.15 - 625,86
IL  Cther Incomes = = 1.30 080 210
nl.  Total Income (1+10) 47.71 - 57945 0.ED 627.96
V. Expenses
{a} Finance Costs . 21.84 - 21.84
8] Cost af Materials Consumed . - 433,00 - 433.00
{€) Purchases of Stock in Trade - - - - -
{d] Change in Invantories. - = 699 : 639
{e) Employee Benefits Expenses 1T - 27.89 24.44 6005
) Depreciation and Armortisation Expenses - - 1862 012 18.74
{g) Other Expenses 1.56 - 60,51 548 71.55
Total Expenses (IV) 9.28 = 574.85 34,04 61817
V.  Profit/ (Loss) Before Tax (V-VI) 3843 - 4.60 133.24) 979
VI Tax Expense: 259
il Profit/ (Loss) for the Period (VII-1X) T.20

V1.2; Significant Accounting Ratios
5. MNo. Particulars As at As at As 8t
March 31,  March 31, 2022  March 31, 2021
2023

18] Cumvent Ratio, 0.54 358 437
(b} Debt-Equity Ratio, 1.26 a3 027
(£} Debt Service Coverage Ratic, 540 5231 23
{d)  Raturn on Equity Ratio, .16 [ila2] .0
(&} Inwentary turnaver ratio, Ba.65 1292 247
iy Trade Receivables tumaover ratio, 6839 4565 2,64
(o) Trade payables turnover ratia, 85,69 B5.45 &.11
{hy  Met capital turnover ratio, -181.80 438 067
il et profit ratko, 0oz oo oo
() Return on Capital employed, 019 009 .04
Methadology:

1. Current Ratio = Current Asset / Current Liability

2. Debi-Equity Ratio = Total Debt / (Total Equity)

3. Debt Service Coverage Ratio = EBITD / Finance Cost
4, Returm on Equity Ratio = (Profit After Tax-Cantingent Reserve) / (Total Equity-Contingent Reserve)
5. Inventory Tumnever Ratio = Revenue from Operations f (Inventary)

6. Trade Recaivable Turnover Ratio = Revenue from Operations f Trade Receivable

7. Trade Payable Tumower Ratio = Revenue from Operations / Trade Payable

B Net Capital Tumower Ratio = Revenue from Operations / (Current Asset - Current Liability]
9 Net Prafit Ratia = Prafit After Tax f Total Incoma

10 Return on Cagital Employed = EBIT (Total Assets-Cumrent Liabilities)
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VIL1: Additional Regulatory Information

i

i

il

i

il

xiii

The Company has neither any capital work in progress of Property, Plant and Equipment nor any intangible
assets under development.

During the year, the Group have a working capital limit from Indusind bank.

Dunng the year, the company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment's.

During the year, no proceedings have been initiated or pending against the company for holding any benami
property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made there under.

The Company has not provided any Loan to any person on behalf of other person other than its ordinary
course of its NBFC business, hence disclosure under section 186 is nat applicable to the campany

During the year, the company has not been declare wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution ar any
other lender.

There is charge on movable property amount to Rs, 350000 whose satisfaction is yet to be registered with
There have been no material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the company
The Company does not have any Scheme of Arrangements, which has been approved by the Competent
Authority in terms of sections 230 to 237 of the Companies Act, 2013,

The company has utilized funds raised from the issue of securities or borrowings from banks & financial
institutions for the specific purposes, for which they were issued/taken.

The company has not advanced or Icaned or in\rve-sted funds to any other persan{s} or entity(ies) including

i Dlrectly or mclnrectmend or invest in other pe:sons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on
i, Provide ¢ any guamnlees. securities or the like or on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries

During the year, the company has not traded, invest or perform any transaction in crypto or other virtual
In the opinion of the management, the realizable value of current assets, loans & advances, in the ordinary
course of business, would not be less than the amount at which they are stated.

There have been no material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the company
occurring after the end of the financial year.

Capital to Risk Aszets Ratio (CRAR):

Particulars Mar-23 Mar-22
(a) capital to risk weighted assets ratio: 0% 0%
(b) Tier I CRAR 0% 0%
{c)Tier 1 CRAR

(d) Liguidity Coverage Ratio# 446% N/A

Note: In computing the above information certain estimates, assumpmom and ad_]ustments have been made

# Estimated cash inflows meeds the estimated cash outflows for the year ended March 2022 over the next 30
Metl'nodologr

{a} capital to risk weighted assets ratio-(Tier | Capital+ Tier Il capital)/Total Risk Weighted Assets

(b) Tier I CRAR-Tier | Capital/Total Risk Weighted Assets

(c)Tier Il CRAR-Tier Il capital,/Total Risk Weighted Assets

(d) Liquidity Coverage Ratio-High Quality Liquid Assets/Net Cash flow over 30 days period

There have been no material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the company
occurring after the end of the financial year, . -
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VL 1:

Disclosure of Expected Credit Loss and Provisions Required as per Income Recognition and Asset Classification Norms

Asset Classification as per RBI Asset  Gross Carrying Loss Net Carrying Provisions  Difference

Norms classifica Amount as per Allowances Amount required as between Ind
tion as Ind AS (Provisions per IRACP AS 109
per Ind ) as norms provisions
AS 109 required and IRACP

under Ind norms
AS 109

Performing Assets

Standard Stage-1 11,320.56 100.00 11,220.56 100.00

Subtotal 11.320.56 100.00 11,220.56 100.00 -

Mon-Performing Assets (NPA)

Substandard Stage-3 -

Doubtful - up to 1 year Stage-3 -

110 3 years Stage-3 - = -

More than 3 years Stage-3 s =

Subtotal for doubtful Stage-3 - =

Loss Stage-3 i = = =

Subtotal for NPA - - - " i

Other items such as guarantees, loan  Stage-1 z o . . 3

commitments, etc. which are in the Stage-2 "

scope of Ind AS 109 but not covered Stage-3 R

under current Income Recagnition,

Asset Classification and Provisioning

D ATDY e

Subtotal - - = " &

Total 11.320.56 100.00 11,220.56 100.00 -

VII.2: Disclosures Related to Non performing Assets

(a) Sector wise Non performing Assets

Particulars

As at
March 31, 2023

(Percentage of NPAs to total advance to that sector)

As at
March 31, 2022

As at
March 31, 2021

1 Agriculture and allied activities
2 MSME

3 Corporate borrowers

4 Services

5 Unsecured personal loans

6 Auto loans

7 Other personal loans

(b) Movement of NPAs

Particulars

Year ended
March 31, 2023

Year ended
March 31, 2022

Year ended
March 31, 2021

i) Met NPAs to net advance (%)
iy Movemnent of NPAs
a) Opening balance
b) Addition during the year
) Reductiony write off during the year
d) Closing balance
iii) Movement of provisions for NPAs
a) Opening balance
b) Addition during the year
c) Reduction/ write off during the year
d) Closing balance
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(€) Detail of non-performing financial asset purchased/sold

The Company has not purchased/sold non-perferming financial asset in the current and previous year.

IX.1: Additional Disclosures for RBI

[a) OQuerseas assets (for those with Joint Ventures and subsidiaries abeoad) - Nil (Previous year Nil)

[b) Draw down from resenves:- Nil (Previous yeas Mil)
(¢} Disclosure of Penalties impased by RBI & other regulators: Nil (Previcus year. Nil)
[d) Registration abtained fram other financial sector regulators:

The Company 1§ registered with fallowing cther financial sector regulators:

(i) Ministry of Corporate Affairs [MCA)]

(ii) Ministry of Finance (Financial Intelligence Unit)

(iif) Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI)

(iv) Central Registry of Securitization Asset Reconstruction and Security Interest of India (CERSAI

(&) Detalls of financing of parent Company product
This dischosure is not applicable as the Company does not have any holding/parent Company.
ifi Exposures
(i} Exposure to real state sector—is per Table Below
Loans & Advances Year ended Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Amount Amount Amount
BASANT PROJECTS LTD T449.56 -
FUIN CITY DEVELOPERS PVT LTD 275.00 =
Gohana Sonepat Highway Pyt Ltd 2470.00
INDIAN REALTORS PVT LTD 200,00
JIND GOHAMA HIGHWAY PVT LTD 4, 0000
J P SHASTRI COMSTRUCTION PVT LTD 80.00
MNEW HORIZON BUILWELL PVT LTD 350,00
TARVINDER BUILDER PVT LTD 190,00
LMIEXCEL DEVELOPERS PUT LTD 95,00
{ii) Exposure to capital market-Nil (Prewiows Year Mil
1%.2: Others

(@) Pursuant to section 135 of the Companss Act 2013, C5R is applicable to every company having net worth of Rs 500 crore or
more, or & turnover of RS 1,000 crore or more of 3 net peolit exceeding Rs 5 crore in immedzately preceding financial year, Since
the Cormpary has not exceeded the limits specified above in immediantely preceding financial yeas provishans of Section 135 of

tive Comoanies Act. 2013 is not apolicable to the Company.

(B The Company does not have any transactions with companies struck off under section 248 of the Companies Act, 2013 or

section 560 of Companies Act, 1956

(c) The company does not have any transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts but has been surrendered or
. {d) The company has utilized the borrowed funds for the purpese for which it has been borrowed

(e} Oiher additional information pursuant io Schedule 1 ta the Companies Act 2013 are either nil or not applicable.
(fy The Previous year's figures have been reclassified fre-grouped and / or rearranged wherever considered neceszary.

(e} Figures have been rounded off to the nearest lakh and two decimal therect.
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Annexure ¥: Reconciliation

(A)
Reconcilation between audited profit and restated profit

AT ar AT AT L AT |
March 31, | March 31, | March 31,
Particulars 2023 2022 2021
A Profit after tax (as per audited financial statements) 3806 4738 6.15
B. Addf{Less): Adjustments o account of-
1.Provision of Income Tax for Prior Period {0.62)
2 Provision for impairment on financial Instruments {0.33) (003)
3. Reserve for Bad & Coubtful Debts (2.06)
4. Transfer to Special Reserve 079
5. Other Financial Charges 0.52
6. Other Miscellaneous Expenses ({11 043
062 (3.01) 1.19
C.Restated profit after Tax (A+B) 38.68 4437 7.34
(B)
Reconciliation of the Opening Balance of Surplus of Profit and Loss under Reserves and Surplus for the
F.Y. 20-21
TS OIT AT
Particulars 1,2020
A. Opening Balance of Surplus 48.51
B. Add/(Less): Adjustments o account of-
1.Pravision of Income Tax for Priar Periad [(UEEY]
2 Transfer to contengency reserve (1.59)
3, Mon Controlling Interest (5.70)
Tatal Adjustment (B) (7.12)
C.Restated Opening Balance of Surplus (A+B) 41.39

(C) Material Regrouping

Appropriate regroupings have been made in the Restated Statement of Assets and
Liahilities, Restated Statement of Profit and Loss and Restated Statement of Cash Flows,
wherever required, by reclassification of the corresponding items of income, expenses,
assets, liabilities and cash flows, in order to bring them in line with the accounting
paolicies and classification as per Ind AS financial information of the Company for the
period ended March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021 prepared in accordance with
Schedule T of Companies Act, 2013 and other applicable Ind AS principles and the
requirements of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital &

Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2018, as amended,
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Annewure -X1 RESTATED STATEMENT OF CAPITALISATION

Pre Bssue
Particulars 31.03.2023 Pt Issue
Diebt
Short Term Debt 4,984.00 [*l
Long Term Debt 2,528.69 -l
Tatal Debi ' I#|
Shareholders' Fund (Equity)
Shase Capital 2,201.93 i+l
Reserves & Surplus 3,775.80 [*]
Total Shareholders' Fund {Equity) 5497773 1#l
Loag Term DebtEquity 042 [*l
Tatal il 1.26 Il

Mades:

1. Short term Diebis represent which are expected 1o be pad/payable within |2 months

2. Long term Debts represent debts other than Short term Debits a5 defined above

3.The figures discloacd above are based on restated statement of Aseets and Liabilities of the Company as st 31.03 2023

In terms of our geport of even date annexed hereto For and on behall of the Board of
S 4 Advik Capital Limited

\jwﬁge oA

Vikas Garg

tvhale Time Derector cum CROY
[HND0255413 MM 131 40088

el

Dafte: April 28, 2023

LIDIM: Deeplika Mishra
(Company Secretary)
PAN: ECZP42588
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RESTATED STANDALONE FINANCIALS

KSMC & ASSOCIATES

Chartered Accountants

Auditors' Report on the restated summary statements of assets and liabilities as at March 31, 2023,
March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021, summary statement of profits and losses (including other
comprehensive income), summary statement of cash flows and changes in equity for the period
ended March 31, 2023 and each of the years ended March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021 of Advik
Capital Limited (collectively, the "Restated Summary Statements")

To
The Board of Directors
Advik Capital Limited.

Dear Sirs:

I. We have examined the attached Restated Summary Statements of Advik Capital Limited (the®
Company”) annexed to this report and prepared by the Company for the purpose of inclusion in the Letter
of Offer in connection with its Right Issue. The Restated Summary Statements, which have been approved
by the Board of Directors of the Company, have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of:

a) Sub-section (1) of Section 26 of Part I of Chapter 111 of the Companies Act 2013 (the "Act™);

b) Relevant provisions of The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018, as amended ("ICDR Regulations"); and

¢) The Guidance Note on Reports in Company Prospectuses (as amended) issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI”), (the “Guidance Note”)

Management's Responsibility for the Restated Summary Statements

2. The preparation of the Restated Summary Statements, which are to be included in the Offer documents
is the responsibility of the Management of the Company. The Management's responsibility includes
designing, implementing and maintaining adequate internal control relevant to the preparation and
presentation of the Restated Summary Statements. The Management is also responsible for identifying
and ensuring that the Company complies with the ICDR Regulations.

Auditors' Responsibilities
3. We have examined such Restated Summary Statements taking into consideration:
a. The terms of reference and terms of our engagement agreed with you vide our engagement letter
dated June 20, 2023, requesting us to carry out the assignment, in connection with the proposed Right

Issue of the Company;

b. The Guidance Note; The Guidance Note also requires that we comply with the ethical requirement
of the Code of Ethics issued by the ICAL

(_1 5, Vi.kns I iou-%e‘ 34/1, East Punjabi Bagh, New Delhi-1 10026 (India)
Ph:011-41440483, 42440483, 45140483 | E-mail : info@ksmc.in, admin@ksme.in | Website : www.ksmc.in
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c. Concepts of test checks and materiality to obtain reasonable assurance based on the verification of
evidence supporting the Restated Unconsolidated Summary Statements; and

d. The requirements of Section 26 of the Act and the ICDR Regulations;

Our work was performed solely to assist you in meeting your responsibilities in relation to your Compliance

with the Act, the ICDR Regulations and the Guidance Note in connection with the proposed Right Issue.
Restated Summary Statements as per audited Financial Statements
4. These Restated Summary Statements have been compiled by the management of the Company from:

a. Audited financial statements of the Company as at and for the year ended March 31, 2023, March 31,
2022 and March 31,2021, which were prepared in accordance with Ind AS as prescribed under section
133 of the Act, read with relevant rules thereunder and other accounting principles generally accepted
in India, which have been approved by the Board of Directors at their meeting held on April 29,2023,
May 28, 2022 and June 26, 2021 respectively; and

5. For the purpose of our examination, we have relied on:

- Auditors’ reports issued by us dated 29 April 2023 on the financial statements of the company for the
year ended March 31, 2023 as referred in Paragraph 4(a) above and

- Auditor’s Report dated May 28, 2022 and June 26, 2021 issued by the previous auditor, on the
financial statements of the Company as at and for the years ended March 31, 2022 and 2021 as referred
in Paragraph 4(a) above;

6. Based on the above and according to the information and explanations given to us, we report that the
Restated Summary Statements of the Company, as attached to this report read with basis of preparation
and respective significant accounting policies have been prepared in accordance with the Act, [CDR
Regulations, Guidance Note, and these Restated Summary Statements:

i. have been made after incorporating adjustments and regroupings for the material amounts in the
respective financial year to which they relate;

ii. does not have any qualifications in the auditors' reports on the audited financial statements of the
company as at March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021 which require any adjustments to the Restated
Consolidated Financial Information.

7. In accordance with the requirement of Section 26 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with
Companies (Prospectus and Allotment of Securities) Rules 2014, the SEBI Regulations, the Guidance
Note, as amended from time to time and in terms of our engagement agreed with you, we further report
that:

i The Restated Statement of Assets and Liabilities as at March 31, 2023, 2022 and 2021 examined
by us, as set out under Annexure to this report, read with the ‘Basis of Preparation and Significant
Accounting Policies of the Restated Financial Statements’ are after making such adjustments and
regrouping/re-classification as in our opinion we zor oL ey and are more fully described in the
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12.

statement of Material Adjustments to the Financial Statements. As a result of these adjustments,
the amounts reporting in the above-mentioned statements are not necessarily the same as those
appearing in the audited financial statements of the Company for the relevant financial years.

i) The Restated Statement of Profit and Loss of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2023,
2022 and 2021 examined by us, as set out under Annexure to this report, read with the ‘Basis of
Preparation and Significant Accounting Policies of the Restated Financial Statements are after
making such adjustments and regrouping/re-classification as in our opinion we re-appropriate and
are more fully described in the statement of Material Adjustments to the Financial Statements. As
a result of these adjustments, the amounts reporting in the above-mentioned statements are not
necessarily the same as those appearing in the audited financial statements of the Company for the
relevant financial years.

iii) ~ The Restated Statement of Cash flows of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2023, 2022
and 2021 examined by us, as set out under Annexure to this report, read with the ‘Basis of
Preparation and Significant Accounting Policies of the Restated Financial Statements are after
making such adjustments and regrouping/re-classification as in our opinion were appropriate and
are more fully described in the statement of Material Adjustments to the Financial Statements. As
a result of these adjustments, the amounts reporting in the above-mentioned statements are not
necessarily the same as those appearing in the audited financial statements of the Company for the
relevant financial years.

. We have not audited any financial statements of the Company for period ending March 31, 2022 and

March 31, 2021. Accordingly, we express no opinion on the financial position, results of operations, cash
flows and statement of changes in equity of the Company for period ending March 31, 2022 and March
2021,

. The Restated Summary Statements do not reflect the effects of events that occurred subsequent to the

audited financial statements mentioned in paragraph 4 above.

. This report should not in any way be construed as a reissuance or re-dating of any of the previous audit

reports issued by the Previous Auditors, nor should this report be construed as a new opinion on any of
the financial statements referred to herein.

. We have no responsibility to update our report for events and circumstances occurring after the date of

the report.

In our opinion, the above Restated Financial Information contained in Annexure to this report read along
with the Basis of Preparation and Significant Accounting policies after making adjustments and
regrouping/re-classification as considered appropriate and have been prepared in accordance with the
provisions of Section 26 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Prospectus and Allotment
of Securities) Rules 2014, to the extent applicable, the SEBI Regulations, the Guidance Note issued in
this regard by the ICAI, as amended from time to time, and in terms of our engagement agreed with you.

. Our report is intended solely for use of the Board of Directors for inclusion in the Offer documents to be

filed with recognized Stock Exchange in connection with the proposed Right Issue. Our report should not
be used, referred to, or distributed for any other purpose except with our prior consent in writing.
Accordingly, we do not accept or assume any liability or any duty of care for any other purpose or to any
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other person to whom this report is shown or into whose hands it may come without our prior consent in

writing.

For KSMC & Associates

*
w ||

(\:
\-t \’2
\ b5
& *
) Accy

UDIN: 2 2S0SF32REUHWFEET)

M. No: 505732

Place: New Delhi
Date: 01.07.2023
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ADVIK CAPITAL LIMITED

Regd. Office: G-3, Vikas House, 34/1, East Punyabi Bagh, New Deln- 110026
CiN: 16517001 1 985FLLCD22505 | www.advikgroup.com

Annexure [ ds t of Assets and Liabilities (Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars Note As at As at As at
. No. March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
1. ASSETS
Firancial Assets
ta) Cash and Cash Equivalents il 13421 6.79 161
(9) Ban: Balance other than Cash and cash equivalents -
() Trad= Receivables - -
{c) Loar:s 12 11,220.56 729.05 603.38
{e) Investments L3 1,497.99 14844 148.44
(f) Other Financial Assets id 220.76 100.79 48.80
13,073.52 985.07 802.23
Non-Financial Assets
(a) Inventories L5 11230 9163 =
(b) Current Tax Assets (Net) L6 - J 258
(<) Deferred Tax Assets |Net) L7 303.19
(d) Property, Plant and Equipment 18 104.08 109.11 112.00
(e) Capital Work-in-Pregress - - -
(f) Other Non-Financial Assets 19 14.76 66.23 -
534.33 266.97 114.58
Total Assets 13,607.85 1,252.04 916.81
0. LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Liabilities
inancizi Liabilities
(a) Trade Payables
{i) Tctal outstanding dues of MSME -
(ii) Total outstarding dues other than MSME 110 0.80 .
(b) Borrowings L1 7,259.20 288.70 -
‘c) Other Firancial Lizbilities 112 11293 7.09 3.96
7.372.93 295.79 3.96
Nen: Financial Liabilitie:
:a) Current Tax Lia L6 288.32 3N -
.0) Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net) L7 203 0.64
{c) Other Non-rinar:cial Liabilities 113 81.15 629 6.73
369.47 12.03 1.37
Equity
(a) Equity Share Capival 114 2,201.93 458.74 458.74
(b) Otner Equity 115 3,663.52 485.48 446.74
5,865.45 944.22 905.48
Total Liabilities and Equity 13,607.85 1,252.04 916.81

As per our refyurt of Wren date atroched

) “FlaceyDelhi
Date: July 01, 2023

For and on behalf of th
Advik Capital Limited

o

Vikas Garg
Director
DIN:00255413

( ﬁ )g‘ﬁ/
Deepika Mishra
(Company Secretary}

PAN" ECZP4298B

e Board of

,/ I
<oy

(Whole Time Director cum CFQ)

DIN:10140086
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ADVIK CAPITAL LIMITED

Rega Office’ G-3. Vikas House, 34/1, East Punjabi Bagh, New Delhi-110026
CIN: L65100DL1985PLC022505 | www.advikgroup.com

Annexure II- Restated Statement of Profit and Loss (Rs. ini Lakhs)
Particulars Note No. Year ended Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

I.  Revenue from Operations

Interest Income 698.94 54.10 471
Dividend Income 0.13
Rental Income 6.00 9.00 -
Fees and Commission Income - 14.50 -
Sale of Securities 34,222.04 3,871.92 -
Total Revenue from Operations 34,927.11 3,949.52 47.711
1.  Other Income 14 7.15 ~ 0.80
II. Total Income (I+II) 34,934.26 3,949.52 48.51
V. Expenses
(a) Finance costs 12 277.73 0.02
(b)Provision for impairment on financial Instruments 98.05 033 0.03
(c) Loss in fair value Measurement 13 17.50 - -
(d) Purchases of stock-in-trade 14 33,066.35 394410 -
(e) Changes in inventories of stack-in-trade 15 (20.67) (91.63) =
(f) Employee benefits expenses e 43.85 31.15 32.15
(g) Depreciation and amortization exepenses 1.7 7.59 289 0.12
(h) Others expenses 18 134.87 11.07 11.30
Total Expenses (IV) 33,625.27 3,897.93 43.60
V.  Profit/(Loss) before exceptional items and tax (IlI-1V) 1,30899 51.59 491
VI. Exceptional items - -
VIL. Profit/ (Loss) before tax (V-VI) 1,308.99 51.59 491
VIII. Tax Expense:
Current tax 357.98 11.46 1.29
Deferred tax liability/(assets) (3.60) 1.39 0.01
IX. Profit/ (Loss) for the period from continuing operations (VII-VIII) 954.61 38.74 3.61
X.  Profit/ (Loss) from discontinued operations - -
XI. Profit/ (Loss) for the period (IX+X1li) 954.61 38.74 3.61
XII. Other Comprehensive Income
(A) (i) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss (1,198.45)
(i) Income Tax effect on herein above 301.63
(B) (i) Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss -
(ii) Income Tax effect on herein above - -
Total Other Comprehensive Income (A+B) (896.82) - -
XIII. Total Comprehensive Income/ (Loss) for the period (XI+XII) 57.79 38.74 3.61
Nominal Value per Equity Share 1 1 1
Earning per Equity Share - Basic K] 003 008 0.01
Earning per Equity Share - Diluted 19 003 0.08 0.01

For and on behalf of the Board of
Advik Capital Limited

P \
AV JSU -hg e f‘(‘“%
Vikas Garg Pankaj
N P Director (Whole Time Director cum CFO)
. No. 505732 Y AC DIN:00255413 DIN:10140086
Plage: Delhi = s
e: July 01, 2023 %FS
Deem

(Company Secretary)
PAN: ECZP4298B
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ADVIK CAPITAL LIMITED

Regd. Office: G-3, Vikas House, 34/1, East Punjabi Bagh, New Delhi-110026
CIN: L65100DL1985PLC022505 | www.advikgroup.com

Annexue III- Restated Statement of Cash Flows

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars

Year ended
March 31, 2023

Year ended
March 31, 2021

Year ended
March 31, 2022

(A) CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Net Profit/ (Loss) before tax 1308.99 5159 491
Adjustments for: - . -
Provision for impairment on financial Instruments 98.05 033 0.03
Loss in fair value Measurement 17.50 - 0.00
Reserve for Bad & Doubtful Debts 74.86 2.06 0.26
Finance Cost 27773 0.02 0.00
Depreciation and Amortisation Expenses 759 2.89 0.12
(Profit)/ Loss on Sale of Fixed Assets 0.00 - -0.80
Operating profit/ (loss) before working capital changes 1784.72 56.89 4.52
Changes in working capital:
(increase)/ decrease in Loans (10,589.56) (126.00) (25.74)
(increase)/ decrease in Other Financial Assets (137.47) (51.99) 2011
(increase)/ decrease in Inventories (20.67) (91.63) -
(increase)/ decrease in Other Non-Financial Assets 5147 (66.23) 1.10
increase/ (decrease) in Other Financial Liabilities 105.84 313 (0.94)
increase/ (decrease) in Other Non-Financial Liabilities - (2.50) 2.50
increase/ (decrease) in Trade Payable 0.80 -
Cash generated from operations (8,805.67) (278.33) 1.55
Net income tax paid (Net of refunds) (72.57) (5.17) (3.88)
Net Cash from Operating Activities (8,878.24) (283.50) (2.33)
(B) CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from disposal of Property, Plant and Equipment - - 3.05
Purchase of Property, Plant and Equipment (2.56) -
(Increase)\ decrease in Investments (2,548.00) -
(Increase)/ Decrease in Other Bank Balances - =
Net Cash Generated/(Used) In Investing Activities (2,550.56) - 3.05
(C) CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from Issue of Equity Share Capital 4863.45 = -
Increase/ (Decrease) in Borrowings 6970.50 288.70 -
Finance Cost -277.73 (0.02) 0.00
Net Cash from Financing Activities 11556.22 288.68 0.00
Net increase/ (decrease) in Cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) 127.42 518 072
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 6.79 1.61 0.89
Cash & Cash Equivalents at the end of the year 134.21 6.79 1.61

Components of Cash and Cash Equivalents

Particulars As at March 31, 2023 As at Ma:ch 31, 2022As at March 31, 2021
Cash in hand 10.35 407 124
Balances with banks and financial institutions
Balance with banks in current accounts 123.86 2.72 037
Deposit with Original Maturity of less than three manths - - -
Total 134.21 6.79 1.61
As per our {eport\pf even date attached For and on behalf of the Board of
For KSMC Advik Capital Limited

Ctr:arﬂ@c‘
(Sachin Singhal) B _
P er {

. No. 505732

Placg: Delhi
Date: July 01, 2023

b i

7 g \
' ,@L
Pankaj
(Whole Time Director cum CFO

DIN:10140086

Director
DIN:00255413

Geigre
Deepika Mishra
(Company Secretary)

PAN: ECZP4298B
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ADVIK CAPITAL LIMITED

Regd Office: G-3, Vikas House, 34/1, East Punjabi Bagh, New Delhi-110026
CIN: L651000L198SPLCOZ2505 | www advrkgroup.com

Annexure IV -Restated Statement of Equity Share Capital

A Equity Share Capital {Amount in Rs.)
Particulars. No. of Shares Amount
s at April 01, 2020 45873600 as874
Changes in Equity Share Capital due to prior period errors B
Restated balance at the beginning of the current reporting period 45873600 25874
Changes in the equity share capital during the year -

s at March 31, 2021 4,58,73,600 45874

Changes in Equity Share Caprtal due to prior period errors
Restated balance at the beginning of the current reporting period

Changes in the equity share capital during the year :
As at March 31, 2022 4,58,73,600 458.74

Changes in Equity Share Capital due to prior period errors
Restated balance at the beginning of the current reporting period 458,73,600 45874
Changes in the equity share capital during the year 17,43,19,680 174320
As at March 31, 2023 22,01,93,280 2,20193
5. Other Equity
Particulars Amalgamation Security Retained Special Reserve  Other items of Total
Reserve Premium Earnings as per RBL Other

) —(B) ©) (0) —(E) (AtOE)
As at April 01, 2020 a7 35720 W76 7.00 - 44313
Profit for the Year 361 - 361
Transfer to Special Reserve = = 1078) - & (0.78)
Transfer from Retained Eamings - - 078 - 078
A5 at March 31, 2021 a7 35720 3759 7.78 - 44674
Profit for the Year - - 3874 - - 3874
Transfer to Special Reserve - - (823) - 823)
Transfer from Retained Eamings - - - 823 - 823
As at March 31, 2022 LYK} 357.20 68.10 16.01 - 48548
Profit for the Year - 95461 - - 95461
Received during the year - 312025 - - 312025
Other Comprehensive Income for the year (896.82) 1896.62)
Dividends. - =4 . .
Transfer to Special Reserve - - (19092) - (190.92)
Transfer from Retained Eamings 19092 19092
As at March 31, 2023 A7 347745 831.79 206.93 (896.62) 3,663.52

For and on behalf of the Board of
Advik Capital Limited

- g \
\J = ltm g
Vikas Garg Pankaj

Director (Whole Time Director cum CFOI

//
4 3 DIN:00255413 DIN-10140086
Mg
Dme'ttfym. 2023 C@—"/
Deepika Mishra

(Company Secretary)
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ADVIK CAPITAL LIMITED
Regd. Office: G-3, Vikas House, 34/1, East Punjabi Bagh, New Delhi- 110026
CIN: L65100DL1985PLC022505 | www advikgroup.com
Annexure -V Accounting Policies and Notes to restated Financial 5
(a) Accounting Policies to restated financial statements
1. STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE
The financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023 have been prepared by the Company in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards
(“ind AS") notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended from time to time, and other applicable regulatory
norms/guidelines/framework. The Standalone Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss and Statement of Changes in Equity are prepared and
presented as per the requirements of Division Il of Schedule Il to the Companies Act. 2013 applicable for Non- Banking Financial Companies (NBFC)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The significant accounting policies applied in preparation of the Standalone Financial Statements are as given below:

2.1 Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements
These Standalone Financial Statements have been prepared on going concern basis following accrual system of accounting. The assets and liabilities
have been measured at historical cost or at amortised cost or at fair value at the end of each reporting period

2.2 Basis of Measurement

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for certain financial instruments that are measured at fair values at the
ena of each reporting pericd, defined benefit plan — plan assets measured at fair value, assets held for sale which is measured it lower of cost or fair
value less cost of sale. Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given for goods and services.

Fair value measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 as per Ind AS requirement, which are described as follows:

Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the

entity can access at the measurement date;

Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and
Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

2.3 Property, Plant and Equipment and Investment Property

Recognition and Measurement

Property, plant and equipment held for use or for administrative purposes, are stated in the balance sheet at cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses. The cost includes non-refundable taxes, duties, freight and other incidental expenses related to the acquisition and
installation of the respective assets. Assets having individual value of less than "5,000/- are charged to statement of Profit and Loss in the year of

Investment Property consists of building let out to earn rentals. The Company follows cost model for measurement of investment property.

Depreciation

Depreciation is provided using the written down value methad over the useful life as prescribed under Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013.
Depreciation is calculated on pro-rata basis, including the month of addition and excluding the month of sale/disposal. Leasehold improvements are
amortised over the underlying lease term on a straight line basis. Residual value in respect of Buildings and Vehicles is considered as 5% of the cost
and in case of other assets ‘Nil".

The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each

reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

De-recognition

An item of property, plant and equipment or investment property is de-recognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment or
investment property is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or
loss.

Capital work-in-progress

Capital work-in-progress are carried at cost, comprising direct cost and related incidental expenses to acquire property, plant and equipment. Assets
that are not ready to intended use are also shown under capital work— in-progress.

Valor>—~g
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2.4 Intangible Assets

Recognition and measurement

Intangible assets are recognized at cost of acquisition which includes a!! expenditure that can be directly attributed or allocated on a reasonable and
consistent basis, to create, produice or making the asset ready for its intended use

Amecrtisation
Amartisation is recognised on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. The estimated useful life and amortisation method are reviewed at
the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis.

De-recognition

An intangible asset is de-recognized on disposal, or when no future econemic benefits are expected from use or disposal, Gains or losses arising from
de- recognition of an intangible asset, measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset, is
recognised in profit or loss when the asset is de-recognized.

2.5 Revenue Recognition

Interest income on loans

The Company recognizes interest income using Effective Interest Rate (EIR) on ail financial assets subsequently measured at amortized cost or fair
value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI). EIR is calculated by considering any fees and all incremental costs that are directly attributable to
acquisition of a financial asset and it represents a rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments/receipts through the expected life of the
financial asset to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset or to the amortized cost of a financial liability.

The Company recognizes interest income by applying the EIR to the gross carrying amount of financial assets other than credit-impaired assets. In
case of credit-impaired financial assets regarded as 'Stage 3',the Company recognizes interest income on the net amortized cost of financial assets af
EIR.1f financial asset is no longer credit-impaired Company reverts tocalculating interest income on a gross basis.

Additional interest/overdue interest/penal charges are recognized only when it is reasonably certain that the ultimate collection will be made.

Commission income

Income from business correspondent services is recognized as and when the services are rendered as per agreed terms and conditions of the
contract

Dividend Income

Dividend income is recognized at the time when the right to receive is established by the reporting date.

Rental Income

Rental income from investment property is recognised as part of revenue from operations in profit or loss on a straight line basis over the term of the
lease except where the rentals are structured to increase in line with expected general inflation. Lease incentives granted are recognised as an integral
part of the total rental income, over the term of the lease. Rentai income from sub-leasing is also recognised in a similar manner and included under

Sale of Securities
Revenue from sale of securities is recognised to the extent that it can be reliably measured ard is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
company.

Miscellaneous Income
All other income is recognized on an accrual basis, when there is no uncertainty in the ultimate realization/ collection.

2.6 Borrowing costs
Borrowing cots consists of interest and other cost that the Company incurred in connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing costs charged to
the Statement of Profit and Loss on the basis of effective interest rate methoc.

2.7 Income Taxes

Current tax

Current tax is measured at the amount expected to be paid in respect of taxable income for the year in accordance with the Income Tax Act, 1961.
Current tax comprises the tax payable on the taxable income or loss for the year and any adjustment to the tax payable in respect of previous years It
is measured using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Current tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts and there is an intention to
settle the asset and liability on a net basis.

Deferred tax
Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable income. Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates based on the laws that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date, based on the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying amount of
assets/liabilities. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against liabilities. and
they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority

A deferred tax liability is recognised for all taxable temporary differences. A deferred tax asset is recognised for

all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which the deductible
temporary difference can be utilised. Deferred tax assets “ewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the extant that it is no longer
probable that the related tax benefit will be realised.

153



2.8 Employee benefits

Short term employee benefits
Short term employee benefits are expensed as the related service is provided. A iability is recognised for the amount expected to be paid if the

Company has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service provided by the empioyee and the obligatior.
can be estimated reliably.

Other long term employee benefits

Benefits under the Company’s leave encashment constitute other long term employee benefits. The Company's net obligation in respect of leave
encashment is the amount of future benefit that employees have present vaiue, and the fair value of any related assets is deducted. The calculation is
performed using the projected unit credit method. Any gains or losses are recognized in profit or loss in the period in which they arise

2.9 Cash and Cash Equivalent

Cash and comprises cash on hand and demand deposits. The Company considers cash equivalents as all short- term balances (with an original
maturity of three months or less from the date of acquisition), highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and
which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value

2.10 Equity Investment in Subsidiaries
Investments representing equity interest in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost in accordance with Ind AS 27 Separate Financial Statements

2.11 Provisions contingent assets and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognized only when there is a present obligation, as a result of past events, and when a reliable estimate of the amount of obligation
can be made at the reporting date. These estimates are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates. Provisions
are discounted to their present values, where the time value of money is material.

Contingent liability is disclosed for, Possible obligations which will be confirmed only by future events not

wholly within the control of the Company or Present abligations arising from past events where it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be
required to settle the obligation or a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation cannot be made

Contingent assets are not recognized but disclosed where an inflow of economic benefits is probable.

2.12 Leases
Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee All
other leases are classified as operating leases

The Company as lessor

Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are recognised as receivables at the amount of the Company's net investment in the leases Finance
lease income is allocated to accounting periods so as to reflect a constant periodic rate of return on the Company’s net investment outstanding in
respect of the leases.

Rental income from operating leases is generally recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Where the rentals are
structured solely to increase in line with expected general inflation to compensate for the Company's expected inflationary cost increases, such
increases are recognised in the year in which such benefits accrue

The Company as lessee

Rental expense from operating leases is generally recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Where the rentals are
structured solely to increase in line with expected general inflation to compensate for the lessor’s expected inflationary cost increases, such increases
are recognised in the year in which such benefits accrue. Contingent rentals arising under operating leases are recognised as an expense in the period
in which they are incurred.

2.13 Foreign currency

Functional And presentation currency

Htems included in the financial statement of the Company are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in which the entity
operates ('the functional currency'). The financial statements have been prepared and presented in Indian Rupees (INR), which is the Company's
functional and presentation currency.

Transaction and Balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency, by applying the exchange rates on the foreign currency amounts at the
date of the transaction. Foreign currency monetary items outstanding at the balance sheet date are converted to functional currency using the closing
rate. Non— monetary items denominated in a foreign currency which are carried at historical cost are reported using the exchange rate at the date of
the transaction.

Exchange differences arising on monetary items on settlement, or restatement as at reporting date, at rates different from those at which they were
initially recorded, are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the year in which they arise.

2 14 Segment reporting
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The Company identifies segment basis of the internal organization and management structure. The operating segments are the segments for
which separate financial information is availabie and for whichoperating profit/loss amounts are regularly reviewed by the CODM (‘chief operating
decision maker’) and in assessing performance. The accounting policies adopted for segment reporting are in line with the accounting policies of the
Company. Segment revenue, segment expenses, segment assets and segment liabilities have been identified to segments on the basisof their
relationship with the operating activities of the segment.

2.15 Use of Judgements and Estimates

In preparing these financial statements, management has made judgements, estimates and assumptions that

affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets and liabilities (including contingent liabilities and assets) as on the
date of the financial statements and the reported income and expenses for the reporting period. Management believes that the estimates used in the
preparation of the financial statements are prudent and reasonable. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongeing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised prospectively

2.16 Earning Per Share

Basic earnings per equity share is calculated by dividing the net proiit or loss attributable to equity shareholders of the Company by the
weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the

financial year.

To calculate diluted earnings per share, the net orofit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders

ana the weighted average number of shares nutstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares

2.17 Dividends
Final dividends are recorded as a liability en the date of approval oy the shareholders and interim dividends are
recorded as a liability on the date of declaration by the Board of Directors of the Company.

2.18 Impairment of Non-Financial Assets

At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether there is any indication that an asset may be impaired. If any such indication exists, the
Company estimates the recoverable amount of the asset. Recoverable amount is higher of an asset's net selling price and its value in use. If such
recoverable amount of the asset or the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit to which the asset belongs is less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount is reduced to its recoverable amount. The reduction is treated as an impairment loss and is recognized in the Statement of Profit and
Loss. If at the reporting date there is an indication that if a previously assessed impairment loss no longer exists, the recoverable amount is reassessed
and the asset is reflected at the recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognised in profit and loss. An impairment loss is reversed only to

the extent that the aszet's carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or
amortisation, if no impairment loss had been recognised .

2.19 Impairment of Financial Assets

The Company recognises impairment allowances for ECL on all the financial assets that are not measured at

FVTPL:

Financial assets that are debt instruments Lease receivables

Financial guarantee contracts issued Loan commitrnent issued

No impairment 'oss is recognised on equity investments

ECL are probability weighted estimate of credit losses. They are measured as follows.

Financial assets that are not credit impaired- as the present value of all cash shortfalls that are possible within

12 months after the reporting date

Financial assets with significant increase in credit nisk but not credit impaired - as the present value of all cash

shortfalls that result from all possible default events over the expected life of the financial asset.

Financial assets that are credit impaired — as the difference between the gross carrying amount and the present

value of estimated cash flows

With respect to trade receivables and other financial assets, the Company measures the loss allowance at an

amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses.

Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortised cost are deducted from the gross carrying

amount of the assets. For financial assets at FVTOCL the loss allowance is recognised in OCL

Loan assets- The Company follows a ‘three-stage’ model for impairment based on changes in credit quality

since initial recognition as summarized below:

Stage 1 includes loan assets that have not had a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition or that have low credit risk at the reporting
date.

Stage 2 includes loan assets that have had a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition but that do not have objective evidence of
impairment.

Stage 3 includes loan assets that have objective evidence of impairment at the reporting date.

The Expected Credit Loss (ECL) is measured at 12-month ECL for Stage 1 loan assets and at lifetime ECL for Stage 2 and Stage 3 loan assets.

Write-off
Financial assets are written off either partially or in their entirety to the extern that there is no realistic prospect of recovery. Any subsequent recoveries
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2.20 Financial instruments
A Financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of another entity.

Initial recognition and ement

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the financial instrument
and are measured initially at fair vaiue adjusted for transaction costs. Subsequent measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities is described
below.

(A) Non-derivative financial assets

Subsequent Measurement

Financial assets carried at amortized cost - a financial asset is measured at the amortized costif both the following conditions are met:

The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows, and

Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI) onthe principal
amount outstanding

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective

interest rate (EIR) method. Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an
integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortization is included in interest income in the Statement of Profit and Loss

Financial assets (debt instruments e.g. loans) are measured at FVOCI when both of the following conditions

are met:

The instrument is held within a business model, the objective of which is achieved by both collecting contractual cash

flows and selling financial assets.

The contractual terms of the financial asset meet the SPPI test.

FVOCI debt instruments are subsequently measured at fair value with gains and losses arising due to changes in fair

value recognized in OCIL. Interest income are recognized in profit or loss in the same manner as for financial assets measured at amortized cost.

Financial assets measured at FVPL - FVPL is a residual category for debt instruments. Any debt instrument, which
does not meet the criteria for categorization as at amortized cost or as FVTOC], is classified as at FVTPL, with all changes recognized in the P&L

Derecognition of Financial Assets

Financial assets (or where applicable, a part of financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) are de- recognized (i.e. removed from the
Company's balance sheet) when the contractual rights to receive the cash flows from the financial asset have expired, or when the financial asset and
substantially all the risks and rewards are transferred. Further, if the Company has not retained control, it shall also de-recognize the financial asset
and recognize separately as assets or liabilities any rights and obligations created or retained in the transfer

(B) Non Derivatives Financial Liabilities
Subsequent Measurement
Subseguent to initial recognition, all non—derivative financial liabilities are measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method

Derecognition of Financial Liabilities .

A financial liability is de-recognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or canceled or expired. When an existing financial liability is
replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an
exchange or modification is treated as the de- recognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the
respective carrying amounts is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

2.21 Fair value measurement

The Company measures financial instruments at fair value at each balance sheet date using valuation techniques. Fair value is the price that would be
received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value
measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction tc sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

a) In the principal market for the asset or liability, or

b)  Inthe absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair value,
maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs. All assets and liabilities for which fair value is
measured are categorized with fair value hierarchy into Level I, Level Il and Level Il based on level of input

2.22 Offsetting of financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet when the Company has a legally enforceable
right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
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ADVIK CAPITAL LIMITED

Regd Office: G-3, Vikas House, 34/1, East Punjabi Bagh, New Delhi-110026
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Annexure -V Accounting Policies and Notes to restated Financial Statements

a) Investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures

Particulars As at As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Investments measured at Amortised Cost
(a) Quoted
(b) Unquoted
(i) Subsidiaries
Advik Optoelectronics Limited 148.44 148.44 148.44
(869800 Equity Shares of Rs.10 representing 57.99% holding)
Advikca Finvest Limited 15.00
(1500000 Equity Shares of Rs.1 representing 100% holding)**
(ii) Assoicates
(iii) Others
163.44 148.44 148.44
Investments measured at Amortised Fair Value through Other
comprehensive Income
(a) Quoted -
(b) Unquoted
(ii) Assoicates
(iii) Others B
(Brij Gopal Construction Private Limited) 2,533.00
Add/Less:Fair Value gain/(loss) on remeasuremnet through OCL (1,198.45)
1,334.55 -
Total 1,497.99 296.88 296.88
(i) Investments in India 1,497.99 148.44 148.44
(i) Investments outside India % ¥ 8
Total 1,497.99 148.44 148.44
* Includes 400 Equity Shares held by Nominee Share Holders as follows:
**Inciudes 6 Equity Shares held by Nominee Share Holders
b) Carrying value and market value of q d and unquoted inv are as below:
Particulars As at As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
(a) Investment in subsidiary companies
Aggregate carrying value of quoted investments - -
Aggregate market value of quoted investments : . -
Aggregate carrying value of unquoted investments 163.44 148.44 148.44
{b) Investment in associate companies
(¢) Investment in Others - -

Aggregate carrying value of unquoted investments 2,533.00
Add/Less:Fair Value gain/(loss) on remeasuremnet through OCI (1,198.45) -

Aggregate market value of unquoted investments 1,334.55 B -
Total 1,497.99 148.44 148.44
1.4 : Restated Other Financial Assets (Rs. in Lakhs)

As at As at As at

Particulars

March 31, 2023

March 31, 2022

March 31, 2021

Unsecured, considered good

Accrued Income 81.26 4870 43.83
Security Deposits 99.68 4968
Less: Fair Value Measurement (17.50)

8218 49.68
Income Tax Refund 2 497
Other Receivables 57.32 -
Total SPUALN 220.76 100.79 48.80

***Security deposits are primarily in relation to public utility ;M s and @ depositries, exchanges and other similar entities,
= . ey
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Annexure -V Accounting Policies and Notes to restated Financial Statements

L5 : Restated Inventories (Rs.in Lakhs)

Particulars As at Asat Asat
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

(As valued and certified by the management) = -
Securities held for trade 11230 5163
Total 112.30 91.63 -
L6 : Restated Current Tax Assets/ (Liabilities) (Net) (Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars As at Asat As at
Income Tax Liabilities (Net) 28832 n 258
Total 288.32 3.7 2.58
L7 : Restated Deferred Tax Liability (Net) (Rs. in Lakhs)
[Particulars As at As at As at
1(3) Deferred Tax Assets

On Account of Fair Value Measurement 447

©On account of Fair Value Changes through OCI 30163
(b) Deffered Tax Liability

On Account of Depreciation of Property Plant and Equipment 285 203 0.64
|Net deferred tax assets/ (liability) (a-b) 303.19 (2.03) (0.64)
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ADVIK CAPITAL LIMITED

Regd. Office: G-3, Vikas House, 34/1, East Punjabi Bagh, New Delhi-110026

CIN: L651000L1985PLC022505 | wwewr.advikgroup.com

18 : Restated Property, Plant and Equipment's (Rs. in Lakhs)
Gross Black Tangible Assets Intangible Total
Land  Building Plant & Computer  Furniture and __ Office Vehicles Total (A) Assets (A+B)
Machinery Fixtures Equipment’s ®
As at April 1, 2020 111.28 - 281 089 378 4376 16202 16202
Addition - - - .
Disposals = = s 43.16 43.16 4316
As at March 31, 2021 1128 S 281 089 378 - 11686 11886
Addition » . 5 .
Dispasals " - 3
‘As at March 31, 2022 - 111,28 - 291 0.89 378 - 118.86 - 118.86
“Addition 074 765 238 018 256
Disj E sals
As at March 31, 2023 1128 - 365 0.89 543 - 121.24 0.18 121.42
Accumulated Depreciation Tangible Assets Intangible Total
land  Building Plant & Computer  Fumnitureand _ Office Vehicles Total (A) fasely
Machinery Fixtures Equipment’s (8)
s at April 1, 2020 B - - 279 083 312 2091 4765 4765
for the period - - 002 001 009 - 012 012
Adjustments - - - 4091 4091 4091
As at March 31, 2021 - - 281 084 321 - 686 - 6.86
for the period 270 - - 001 018 - 289 - 289
Adjustments = & s x = d 5
As at March 31, 2022 - 2.70 - 281 0.85 339 - 9.75 - 9.75
for the period 619 038 001 089 748 01 759
Adjustments.
As at March 31, 2023 8.89 - 320 0.86 428 B 17.23 011 1734
Net Carrying Value Tangible Assets Intangible Total
Land Building Plant & Computer  Furniture and Office Vehicles Total (A) Assets
Machinery Fixtures Equipment's (B)
AS at March 31, 2021 111.28 - 0.10 005 057 11200 112.00
As at March 31, 2022 108.58 010 004 0.39 109.11 109.11
As at March 31, 2023 R, 045 003 1.15 10401 007 104.08
T
 Nevpze )2
LS

Y
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Annexure -V Accounting Policies and Notes to restated Financial Statements

1.9: Restated Other Non Financial Assets

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars As at As at As at
March 31, March 31, March 31,
2023 2022 2021
Unsecured, considered good
Balance with government authorities
Goods and Services Tax 14.76 375
Advance with Trade Payable 15.42
Prepaid Expenses 44.65
Others 241
Total 14.76 66.23 -

Security deposits are primarily in relation to public utility services and/or with depositries, exchanges and other similar entitie:

There are no outstanding debts from directors or other officers of the Company.

110 : Restated Trade Payables

Particulars As at As at As at
March 31, March 31, March 31,
2023 2022 2021
(a) Total outstanding dues of MSME
(b) Total outstanding dues other than MSME 0.80 -
Total 0.80 -
Ageing
Particulars As at As at As at
March 31, March 31, March 31,
2023 2022 2021
Disputed due - MSME Nil Nil Nil
Disputed due - Others Nil Nil Nil
Undisputed due - MSME Nil Nil Nil
Undisputed due - Others Nil Nil Nil
Outstanding for following period from due date of payment
Less than 1 year 0.80 Nil Nil
1-2 years Nil Nil Nil
2-3 years Nil Nil Nil
More than 3 years Nil Nil Nil
Total 0.80 -
L.11 :Restated Borrowings (Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars As at As at As at
March 31, March 31, March 31,
2023 2022 2021
Unsecured Loans
(a) Loan form Related Party
Loan form Directors 183.70 108.70
(b) Repayable on demand -
Intercorporate Loans 7,075.50 180.00 -
Total 7,259.20 288.70 -
(a) Term Loans 2,522.20
(b) Repayable on demand* 4,737.00 288.70
Total 7,259.20 288.70
(a) With in India 7,259.20 288.70 -
(b) Outside India - - -
Total 7,259.20 288.70 -
* Loans without specifying any terms or period of repayment are considered as repayable on demand.
L.12: Restated Other Financial Liabilities (Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars As at As at As at
March 31, March 31, March 31,
2023 2022 2021
Creditors for other Liabilities/Expenses - 0.99 143
Interest Payable 7393
Salary and Bonus Payable 6.95 2.00 1.33
ixpe.nses Payable ° \TAL 0.05
udit Fees Payable ()V ¢ P 0.75
Statutory Dues Payable o Z 3125 410
Total [=[ peLHl 1] 112.93 7.09
iy
s
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160



ADVIK CAPITAL LIMITED

Regd Cffice: G-3, Vikas House, 34/1, East Punjabi Bagh, New Delhi- 110026
CIN' L65100DL1985PLCO22505 | www .advikgroup.com

Annexure -V Accounting Policies and Notes to restated Financial Statements

1.13: Restated Non-Financial Liabilities (Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars As at As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Provision for Bad & Doubtful Debts®™ 8115 629 423
Security Received - 3 2.50
Total 81.15 6.29 6.73
1.14 : Restated Equity Share Capital (Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars As at As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Authorized Share Capital
25,00,00,000 Equity Shares (Previous Year 4,58,73,600)
Par Value of Each Equity Share is Re.1/- 2,500.00 2,500.00 458.74
2,500.00 2,500.00 458.74

Issued Share Capital

22,01,93,280 Equity Shares (Previous Year. 4,58,73,600)

Par Value of Each Equity Share is Re.1/- 2,201.93 458.74 45874
2,201.93 458.74 458.74

Subscribed and Fully Paid-up
22,01,93,280 Equity Shares (Previous Year: 4,58,73,600)

Par Value of Each Equity Share is Re.1/- 2,201.93 458.74 458.74
TOTAL 2,201.93 458.74 458.74
a) The details of Shareholders holding more than 5% shares :
Name of the Shareholders As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021
No. of shares % held No. of shares % held No. of shares % held
Virender Kumar Agarwal - - 1,38,00,000 30.08% 1,72,36,600 37.57%
Shakul Kumar Agarwal = - 35,84,000 7.81% 35,84,000 7.81%
Manju Agarwal = - 33,96,000 7.40%
Virender Kumar Agarwal HUF - - 23,97,500 5.23%
Vikas Garg 1,72,61,241 7.84%
Seema Garg 1,65,96,051 7.54%
Sukriti Garg 1,41,34,847 6.42%
Shyam Sunder Saraogi 1,40,00,000 6.36% 5.23%
b) Shareholding of p of the C
Name of the Shareholders As at (%) of As at (%) of As at
March 31, 2023 change during March 31, 2022 change during March 31, 2021
No. of shares % held the year No. of shares % held the year No. of shares % held
Virender Kumar Agarwal -30.08% 1,38,00,000 30.08% (749%) 1,72,36,600 37.57%
Shakul Kumar Agarwal -7.81% 35,84,000 781% - 35,84,000 781%
Manju Agarwal - - - (7.40%) 33,96,000 740%
Virender Kumar Agarwal HUF - - (5.23%) 23,97,500 5.23%
Rishab Kumar Agarwal - - - - (1.05%) 482,036 105%
Vikas Garg 1,72,61,241 7.84% 7.84%
Seema Garg 1,65,96,051 7.54% 7.54%
Sukriti Garg 1.41.34847 6.42% 6.42%

The Company's promoters Mr. Virender Agarwal and Mr. Shakul Kumar Agarwal entered into a Share Purchase Agreement on May 18, 2022 with Mr. Vikas Garg and Mrs. Seema
Garg (hereinafter referred as Acquirers) and Ms. Sukriti Garg (hereinafter referred as Person Acting in Concert), collectively known as Acquirers to sell their entire stake in Advik
Capital Limited (“the Company”). Thereafter, an Open Offer was made by the Acquirers to acquire upto 26% of the total Voting Shares of the Company from public shareholders
vide Letter of Offer dated February 09, 2023

Pursuant to the completion of the said open offer, and the Share Purchase Agreement, the Company was acquired by Mr. Vikas Garg, Mrs. Seema Garg and Ms. Sukriti Garg
(“the acquirers”) and they took over as Promoters of the Company.

<) The reconciliation of the number of shares ding as at year end is set out below :

Particulars As at March 31,2023 As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021
No. of shares No. of shares No. of shares

Equity Shares at the beginning of the year 4,58,73,600 4,58,73,600 4,58,73,600

Add : Fresh Equity Shares allotted during the year 17,43,19,680 - -

Add : Bonus Shares allotted during the year - -

Less : Equity Shares forfeited/ buy-back during the year - - -

Equity Shares at the end of the year TV 22,01,93,280 4,58,73.600 4,58,73,600

A
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Annexure -V Accounting Policies and Notes to restated Financial Statements

d) The Company has not issued any Bonus Share's during the last five Financial Years.
e) The Company has not buy-back any Share's during the last five Financial Years.

f) The Company has not forfeited Share's during the last five Financial Years.

g) The comoany has not issued any securities, which convertible into equity shares.

h) Terms attached to Equity Shares

The rights, powers and preference relating to each class of share and the qualifications limitations and restrictions thereof are
contained in the Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company.
The Company has only one class of Equity Shares having a par value of Rs.10 per shares. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to
one vote per share. Any shareholder whose name is entered in the Register of Members of the company shall enjoy the same rights
and be subject to the same liabilities as all other shareholders of the same class.

The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General

Meeting.

In the event of winding up/ liquidation of the company, Equity Shareholders will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the
company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. For the said purpose, the liquidator may set such value as he deems fair upon
any property to be divided and may determine how such division shall be carried out between the members.

1.15 :Restated Other Equity

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars

As at
March 31, 2023

As at
March 31, 2022

As at
March 31, 2021

(A) Reserves and Surplus
(a) Amalgmation Reserve

Opening Balance 447 44.17 4417

Add : Received/ utilised during the year - - -
Total (a) 44.17 4417 44.17
(b) Security Premium

Opening Balance 357.20 357.20 357.20

Add : Received/ utilised during the year 3,120.25 = :
Total (b) 3,477.45 357.20 357.20
(c) Retained Earnings

Balance at the beginning of the year 68.10 37.59 34.76

Add : Profit/(Loss) for the year 954.61 38.74 3.61

Less : Special Reserve 190.92 8.23 0.78
Total (c) 831.79 68.10 37.59
(d) Special Reserve*

Opening Balance 16.01 7.78 7.00

Add : Received/ utilised during the Year 190.92 8.23 0.78
Total (d) 206.93 16.01 7.78
Total (a+b+c+d) 4,560.34 485.48 446.74
(B) Equity Instruments through Other Comprehensive Incomes - -

(i) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss (1,198.45)
(i) Income Tax effect on herein above 301.63

Total (B) (896.82) - -
(C) Other Items of Other Comprehensive Incomes - - =
Total (A+B+C) 3,663.52 485.48 446.74

*Special Reserve as per RBI Norms

As per Section 45-IC (1) of Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934, every non-banking financial company shall create a reserve fund and
transfer therein a sum not less than twenty per cent. of its net profit every year as disclosed in the profit and loss account and before

any dividend is declared.
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11 - Restated Other Incomes (Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars Year ended Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Profit on Sale of Fixed Assets - 0.80
Other Non-Operating Incomes 7.15
Total 715 - 0.80
IL.2- Restated Finance Costs (Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars Year ended Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Interest on Unsecured Loans 276.59
Other Financial Charges 114 0.02
Total 271.73 0.02
-3 Restated Net gain/(loss) on fair value changes** (Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars Year ended Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
(A) Net gain/(loss) on financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss
(B) Others( to be specified)
-Security Deposits 17.50
-Others -
Total Net gain/(Gain) on fair value changes 17.50
Fair Value Changes:
-Realised
-Unrealised 17.50
Total Net gain/(Gain) on fair value changes 17.50 -
** Fair Value Changes in the schedule are other than those arising on account of accured interest income/expense.
IL4- Restated Purchases of Stock-in-Trade (Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars Year ended Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Purchases of Securities 33,066.35 3,944.10
Total 33,066.35 3,944.10
IL5- Restated Change in Inventories of Finished Goods, WIP and Stock-in-Trade (Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars Year ended Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Opening Stock
Securities held for trade 9163
9163
Closing Stock
Securities held for trade 112.30 91.63
112.30 9163 -
Total (20.67) (91.63) .
IL6 - Restated Employee Benefit Expenses (Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars Year ended Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Salaries, Wages and Bonus 15.59 17.52 137
Director Remuneration 27.86 13.50 18.00
Staff Welfare and Other Expense 0.40 0.13 044
Total 43.85 3115 32.15
n7- preci and A isati p (Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars Year ended Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Depreciation on Tangible Assets 759 289 0.12
Amortisation on Intangible Assets
Total 759 2.89 0.12
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I1.8- Restated Other Expenses (Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars Year ended Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Repair & Maintenance to others 017 - 0.28
Insurance Expenses 0.03 -
Rates and Taxes 133 0.12 5.17
Audit Fee 2.50 0.21 025
Business Promotional Expenses 1.14 0.05 099
Fee and Subscriptions 1.50 3N 048
Professional, Consultancy and Legal Expenses 37.07 139 232
Telephone and Internet Expenses 0.24 0.10 -
Travelling and Conveyance 1.74 0.21 034
Reserve for Bad & Doubtful Debts 74.86 206 0.26
Other Miscellaneous Expenses 234 3.19 1.21
Total 134.87 11.07 11.30
II.BA Payment to statutory auditors (Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars Year ended Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Statutory audit 250 015 0.15
Tax Audit 0.06 0.00
Other Matters 0.1 0.10
Total 2.61 021 0.25
11.9-Restated Earning per Share
Particulars As at As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Basic
Weighted average no of Equity Shares outstanding 2,202 459 459
Net Profit After Tax (Rs. in Lakhs) 57.79 3874 389
Basic Earnings per Share (Rs.) d 0.03 0.08 0.01
Diluted Earnings per Share
Weighted average no. of Diluted Equity Shares 2,202 459 459
Adjusted Profit After Tax (Rs. in Lakhs) 57.79 38.74 389
Diluted Earnings per Share (Rs.) 0.03 0.08 0.01
Nominal Value per Share (Rs.) 1.00 1.00 1.00
11.10 -Restated Contingent liabilities and commitments (to the extent not provided for) (Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars As at As at As at

March 31, 2023

Contingent liabilities

Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debt Nil
Collateral Security against subsidiaries 142.84
Other money for which the Company is contingently liable Nil
Commitments Nil

March 31, 2022

Nil
142.84
Nil
Nil

March 31, 2021

Nil
Nil
Nil
Nil

(a) As per contractual terms of sanction letter the company have a commitment to further disburse the loan amount of 810 Lakhs out of total loan
of Rs. 5510 lakhs sanctioned to Jind Gohana Highway Private Limited. As on year end 31st March 23, the company have disbursed loan to the value

of Rs. 4700 Lakhs

(b) As per contractual terms of sanction letter the company have a commitment to further disburse the loan amount of 2530 Lakhs out of total loan
of Rs. 5000 lakhs sanctioned to Gohana Sonepat Highway Private Limited. As on year end 31st March 23, the company have disbursed loan to the

value of Rs. 2470 Lakhs

11.11-Restated Foreign Currency Transactions Details

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars As at
March 31, 2023

As at
March 31, 2022

Expenditure in Foreign Currency:
Traveiling Expenses

As at
March 31, 2021

Professional and Consultancy Nil Nil Nil

Other Matters Nil Nil Nil
Earning In Foreign Currency:

Professional and Consultancy

Other Matters Nif Nii Nil
Asstes Nil Nil \¢ Nil
Liabilities Nil { NEW VAL | & Nil

= =
>| DEL m
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II.12 Restated Tax Expenses

Particulars Year ended Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Current Tax 357.98 1146 1.29
Income Tax for Earlier years R
Deferred Tax (Credit)/ charge (3.60) 1.39 0.01
Tax Expenses reported in the Statement of Profit and Loss Account 354.38 12.85 1.30

The major components of tax expense and its reconciliation to expected tax expense based on the enacted tax rate applicable to

(March 31, 2021: 25.168%) and the reported tax expense in statement of profit and loss are as follows:

the Company is 25.168%

Particulars Year ended Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Accounting (loss)/ profit before tax expenses 1,308.99 53.98 5.20

Income tax rate 25.168% 25.168% 25.168%

Expected tax expenses 32945 13.59 130

Tax Impact due to temporary differences 3.60

Tax Impact due to Permanent differences 2493

Tax effect of adjustments to reconcile expected income tax expenses to reported

Tax impact of expenses which is non deductible -

Tax impact on items exempt under income tax

Impact of change in tax rates - -

Income tax for earlier years .

Others (3.60) (0.74)

Tax Expenses 354.38 12.85 1.30

mi3:

Restated Details of dues to Micro and Small Enterprises as defined under

the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006. (Amount in Rs))

Particulars Year ended Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Principal amount remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of the Nil Nil Nil

accounting year

Interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of the Nil Nil Nil

accounting year

The amount of interest paid along with the amounts of the payment made to Nil Nil Nil

the supplier beyond the appointed day

The amount of interest due and payable for the year. Nil Nil Nil

The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of the Nil il Nil

accounting year

The amount of further interest due and payable even in the succeeding year, Nil Nil Nil

until such date when the interest dues as above are actually paid.

I1.14: Restated Capital Mar

The primary objective of the Company's capital management policy is to ensure that the Company complies with capital adequacy requirements required by the
Reserve Bank of India and maintain strong credit ratings and healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and to maximize shareholders value.

The Company's capital management objectives are :

~to ensure the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern

-to comply with externally imposed capital requirement and maintain strong credit ratings
~to provide an adequate return to shareholders

N

165



ADVIK CAPITAL LIMITED

Regd. Office: G-3, Vikas House, 34/1, East Punjabi Bagh, New Delh: 110026
CIN: L65100DL1985PLCO22505 | www.advikgroup.com

Annexure -V Accounting Policies and Notes to d Fi ial its

s

Management assesses the Company's capital requirements in order to maintain an efficient overall financing structure while avoiding excessive
leverage. This takes into account the sub-ordination levels of the Company's various classes of debt. The Company manages the capital structure
and makes adjustments to it in the light of changes in economic conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets (including
investments in Subsidiary companies). In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the amount of dividends
paid to shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new shares, or sell assets to reduce debt

Particulars As at As at As at
March 31, March 31, March 31,
Net Debt* 7.198.92 28191 -
Total Equity 5,865.45 944.22 905.48
Net debt to equity ratio 1.23 0.30 -

* Net debt includes debt securities + borrowings other than debt securities + sub-ordinated liabilities + interest accrued - cash and cash
equivalents — bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents.

[1.16 Maturity Analysis Of Assets And Liabilities
The table below shows an analysis of assets and liabilities analyzed according to when they are expected to be recovered or settled. Derivatives
have been classified to mature and/or be repaid within 12 months, regardless of the actual contractual maturities.

(Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021
hin 12 Months er 12 Months hin 12 Months er 12 Months _hin 12 Months er 12 Months
ASSETS
Financial Assets

(a) Cash and Cash Equivalents 134.21 - 6.79 - 161 -
(b) Bank Balances other than Cash and cash = - - . -
(c) Trade Receivables - - -
(d) Loans. 4,363.38 6,857.18 729.05 - 603.38 -

(e) Investments - 1,497.99 ; 148.44 - 148.44

() Others Financial Assets 138.58 82.18 51.11 49.68 48.80 -
4,636.17 8,437.35 786.95 198.12 653.79 148.44

Non-Financial Assets

(a) Inventories 112.30 91.63 - - -

(b) Current Tax Assets (Net) - 258 -

(c) Deferred Tax Assets (Net) 303.19

(d) Property, Plant and Equipment 104.08 - 109.11 - 112.00

(e) Capital Work-in-Progress - - -

(f) Other Non-Financial Assets 14.76 66.23 - 2 -

127.06 407.27 157.86 109.11 2.58 112.00

TOTAL ASSETS 4,763.23 8,844.62 944.81 307.23 656.37 260.44

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

Liabilities

Financial Liabilities

(a) Trade Payables

(i) Total Outstanding of MSME - - -

(i) Total Outstanding other than MSME 0.80 - - - - -

(b) Borrowings 4,737.00 2522.2 288.70 . % =

(c) Other Financial Liabilities 11293 - 7.09 = 3.6 -
4,850.73 2,522.20 295.79 - 3.96 -

Non Financial Liabilities

(a) Current Tax Liabilities (Net) 288.32 - 371 . . -

(b) Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net) - - 203 - 0.64

(¢) Other Non-Financial Liabilities 81.15 - 6.29 - 6.73 -

369.47 - 10.00 2.03 6.73 0.64
Total Liabilitites 5,220.20 2,522.20 305.79 2.03 10.69 0.64
Net Equity (456.97) 6,322.42 639.02 305.20 645.68 259.80
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11.17: Related Party Disclosures

a) List of related parties and relationship (as identified by the management).
i) Subsidiaries
Advik Optoelectronics Ltd.
Advikca Finvest Ltd

i) Key Management Personnel’s (KMP) :
Mr. Virender Kumar Agarwal
Mr. Ashwini Kumar

Mr. Shakul Kumar Aggarwal
Mrs. Manju Agarwal

Mr. Rishabh Aggarwal

Mr. Madhur Bansal

Mr. Vikas Garg

Mr. Devender Kumar Garg
Ms. Poonam Mehta

Ms. Rashika Gupta

Mr. Karan Bagga

Mr. Deepika Mishra

(Director, Ceased w.e.f 22.03,2023)

(Director, Ceased w.e.f 22.03.2023)

(Director cum CFO, w.e.f from
(Director, w.e.f 22.02.2023)
(Director, w.e.f 22.03.2023)

(Director, w.e.f 22.03.2023)
(Company Secretary w.e.f 12.01.2023)

iii) Enterprise over which KMP and their relatives exercise significant influence
Advik Global Limited
Vikas Ecotech Limited
Genesis Gas Solutions Provate Limited

(Whole Time Director & CFO, w.e.f 01.07.2022)
(Excecutive Director, Ceased w.e.f 22.03.2023)

(Chief financial officer, ceased from 07.04.2022)

(Company Secretary, ceased from 28.12.2021)
(Company Secretary, w.e.f from 28.12.2021, ceased w.e.f

b) Transactions with related parties: (Rs. in Lakhs)
Nature of Transaction Related Party Name Year ended Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31,2022 March 31, 2021
Remunerations Mr. Virender Kumar Agarwal 15.00 12.00 12.00
Mr. Shakul Kumar Agarwal 1.50 6.00
Mr. Ashwini Kumar 12.46
Ms. Rishabh Agarwal 6.00 6.00
Ms. Poonam Mehta 110 1.07
Ms. Rashika Gupta 461 130
Mr. Vikas Garg 040
Interest on Unsecured Loan Mr. Virender Kumar Agarwal 449
Mrs. Manju Agarwal 192
Receiveing of Loan Mr. Virender Kumar Agarwal 40.00 140.20 -
Mrs. Manju Agarwal 35.00 20.00 -
Repayment of Loan Mr. Virender Kumar Agarwal 51.50
Mrs. Manju Agarwal
Subscription of Shares Adbvikca Finvest Limited 15.00
Security Deposit Received Advik Optoelectronics Ltd = 250
Security Deposit Repaid Advik Optoelectronics Ltd. 2.50 -
€) _Balance as at the end of the year: (Rs. in Lakhs)
Nature of Balance As at As at As at

March 31, 2023

March 31,2022 March 31, 2021

Remuneration Payable
Mr. Shakul Kumar Agarwal

Mr. Vikas Garg 020
Mr. Ashwini Kumar 1.07
Mr. Virender Kumar Agarwal 495
Ms. Rishabh Agarwal .
Ms. Poonam Mehta

Ms. Rashika Gupta

Interest on Unsecured Loan

Mr. Virender Kumar Agarwal 404
Mrs. Manju Agarwal 173
Unsecured Loan

Mr. Virender Kumar Agarwal 128.70
Mrs. Manju Agarwal 55.00
Security Deposit

Advik Optoelectronics Limited

Investments

Advik Optoelectronics Limited 148.44

8 0.50
0.50 0.50
B 0.11
043
88.70
20.00
2.50

14844
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11.18: Financial Instruments

(A)

(B

©

inancial assets and liabilities
The carrving amounts of financial instrurments by category are as follows: (Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars Note No. As at As at As at
March 31,2023 March 31,2022  March 31, 2021

Financial assets measured at fair value
Investments L3 133455
Security Deposits 3250

Financial assets measured at amortized cost

Cash and cash equivalents L 134.21 6.79 1.61
Loans. 12 11,220.56 729.05 605.00
Investments 13 163.44 148 44 148.44
Others Financial Assets 14 18826 100.79 4383
Total 13,073.52 985.07 798.88
Particulars Note No. As at As at Asat

March 31, 2023 March 31,2022 March 31, 2021

Financial Liability measured at fair value
Finandial liabilities measured at amortized cost

Trade Payable 0.80

Borrowings 110 7,259.20 28870 -
Other Financial Liabilities L1 11293 7.09 143
Total 7,372.93 295.79 1.43

Fair values hierarchy
Financial assets and financial liabilities are measured at fair value in the financial statements and are grouped into three levels of a fair value
hierarchy. The three levels are defined based on the observability of significant inputs to the measurement, as follows.

The categories used are as follows.

Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) for identical instruments in an active market;

Level 2: Directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices) observable market inputs, other than Level 1inputs;
Level 3: Inputs which are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

Valuation technique used to determine fair value

The fair value of a finandial instrument on initial recognition is normally the transaction price (fair value of the consideration given or received).
Subsequent to initial recognition, the Company determines the fair value of financial instruments that are quoted in active markets using the
quoted bid prices (financial assets held) or quoted ask prices (finandial liabilities held) and using valuation techniques for other instruments.
Valuation technigues include discounted cash flows method, market comparable method, recent transactions happened in the Company and other
valuation models. The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data is available to
measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs

Valuation process and technique used to determine fair value
Specific valuation techniques used to value financial instruments include:

Eligible loans valued by discounting the aggregate future cash flows (both principal and interest cash flows) with credit risk-adjusted discounting
rate for the remaining portfolio tenor. The Company has considered the average valuation impact arrived using risk free, cost of funds and yield
free securitization approach.

The use of net asset value for certificate of deposits and mutual funds on the basis of the statement received from investee party.

Fair value of instruments measured at amortized cost
Fair value of instruments measured at amortized cost for which fair value is disclosed is as follows, these fair values are calculated using Level 3
inputs:
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Financial Assets measured at amortized cost (Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021
Carrying value Fair value  Carrying value Fair value  Carrying value Fair value
Cash and cash equwvalents 13421 134.21 679 679 161 161
Loans 11.220.56 11,220.56 729.05 729.05 605.00 605.00
Investments 16344 163.44 14844 148.44 148.44 159.01
Others Financial Assets 188.26 188.26 100.79 100.79 16.30 16.30
Total 11,706.47 11,706.47 985.07 985.07 771.35 781.92
Financial Liabilities measured at amortized cost
Particulars As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2022
Carrying value Fair value  Carrying value Fair value  Carrying value Fair value
Trade Payable 0.80 080 E - -
Borrowings 725920 7.259.20 288,70 288.70
Other Financial Liabilities 11293 11293 7.09 7.09 396 3.96
Total 7.372.93 7.372.93 295.79 295.79 3.96 3.96
Financial Assets Measured at Fair Value
Particulars As at March 31, 2023
Ca value Fair Value
Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Investments 253300 133455 133455
Security Deposits 50.00 3250 3250
Total 2,583.00 1.367.05 1,367.05
Particulars As at March 31, 2022
Carrying value Fair Value
Tota! Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Investments - o
Security Deposits -
Total = -
Particulars As at March 31, 2021
Carrying value Fair Value
Total Leve! 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Investments = -
Security Deposits =
Total = = s

e management assesced that fair values of cash and cash equivalents, other bank balances, trade receivables and trade payables approximate their respective carrying
amounts, largely due to the short-term maturities of these instruments.

IL19: Financial Risk Management
The Company's activities expose it to market risk, liquidity risk and credit risk. The Company's board of directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of
the Company risk managemant framework. The Company manages the risk basis policies approved by the board of directors. The board of directors provides written principles
for overall risk management.

A)  Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk that the Company will incur a loss because its customers or counterparties fail to discharge their contractual obligations. The Company’s exposure to
credit risk is influenced mainly by cash and cash equivalents, other bank balances, investments, loan assets, trade receivables and other financial assets. The Company
continuously monitors defaults of c and other parties and i P this information into its credit risk controls

Credit Risk Management

Based on business envirorment in which the Company operates, a default on a financial asset is considered when the counter party fails to make payments within the agreed
time period as per contract ‘The Company assesses and manages credit risk based on internal credit rating system Internal credit rating is performed for each class of
financial instruments with different characteristics. The Company has established a credit quality review process to provide early identification of possible changes in the
creditworthiness of counterparties, including regular collateral revisions. The Company assigns the following Credot ratings to each class of financial assets based on the
assumption, Input and factor specific to the class of financial assets.

(i) Low credit risk
i) Moderate credit risk
(iii) High credit risk

The company provides for expected credit loss based on the following:

Nature Assets covered Basis of

Low credit risk Cash and cash equivalents (excluding Life time expected
Moderate credit risk Loans and other financial assets Life time expected
High credit risk Loans Life time expected
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11.20: Segment Reporting

The Company operates in two reportable segment i.e. financing and Trade in securities, for the purpose of Ind AS 108 "Operating
segments” infromations related to such business segments have given below. The Company derives its major revenues from financing
activities and its customers are widespread. Further, the Company operates only in India which is considered as a single geographical

canmant

Standalone Segment Reproting for the year Ended March 31, 2023

(a) Infromation related to Balance Sheet items: (Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars Loans Trade in Un-allocable Total
Securities
As on March 31, 2023
Segment Assets 11,301.82 169.62 - 11,471.44
Unallocable Assets - - 2,136.41 2,136.41
Total Assets 11,301.82 169.62 2,136.41 13,607.85
Segment Liabilities 81.15 733313 - 741428
Unallocable Liabilities/Capital - - 6,193.57 6,193.57
Total Liabilities 81.15 7,333.13 6,193.57 13,607.85
(b) Infromation Related to Profit and Loss items: (Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars Loans Trade in Un-allocable Total
Securities
Interest income 698.94 - - 698.94
Rental Income = 6.00 6.00
Dividend Income - 0.13 - 0.13
Sale of Securities - 34,222.04 - 34,222.04
L Revenue From Operations 698.94 34,222.18 6.00 34,927.12
I Other Incomes 7.15 7.15
L. Total Income (1+11) 698.94 34,222.18 13.15 34,934.26
v, Expenses
(a) Finance costs 276.59 1.14 277.73
(b)Provision for impairment on financial Instrumer 98.05 - 98.05
(c) Loss in fair value Measurement - - 17.50 17.50
(d) Purchases of stock-in-trade - 33,066.35 - 33,066.35
(e) Changes in inventories of stock-in-trade - (20.67) ol (20.67)
(f) Employee benefits expenses - - 4385 43.85
(g) Depreciation and amortization exepenses - - 7.59 7.59
(h) Others expenses 74,86 13.08 4693 13487
Total Expenses (IV) 17291 33,335.35 117.01 33,625.27
1 Profit/ (Loss) Before Tax (V-VI) 526.03 886.83 (103.86) 1,308.99
VL Tax Expense: 354.38
Vil Profit/ (Loss) for the Period (VIII-IX) 954.61
Particulars Loans Trade in Un-allocable Total
Securities
As on March 31, 2022
Segment Assets T77.75 91.63 - 869.38
Unallocable Assets - = 382.66 382.66
Total Assets 771.75 91.63 382.66 1,252.04
Segment Liabilities 6.29 288.70 - 29499
Unallocable Liabilities/Capital - - 957.05 957.05
Total Liabilities 6.29 288.70 957.05 1,252.04

Y
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D)

The maximum exposure to credit risks is represented by the total carrying amount of these firancial assets (other than Loans) in the balance sheet

Particulars Note No. Asat31 March  Asat31March Asat31 March
2023 2022 2021

(a) Cash and Cash Equivalents 1 13421 679 161

(b) Investments 13 1497.99 14844 14844

(c) Other Financial Assets 14 220.76 100.79 48.80

Credit risk 1s the nisk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations
Credit risk 07 cash and cash equivaients and bank deposits is generally limited as the Company transacts with Banks having a high credit ratings assigned by domestic credit

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial liabilities (other than derivatives) that are settled by
delivering cash or another financial asset The Company's approach to managing liquidity is to ensure as far as possible. that it will have sufficient liquidity to meet its
liabilities when they are due

The Company maintains flexibility n funding by uncler credit lines. Management monitors the Company's liquidity positions (also
comprising the undrawn borrowing facilities) and cash and cash equivalents on the basis of expected cash flows. The Company also takes into account liquidity of the
market in which the entity operates.

The table below summarizes the maturity profile of the Company’s financial liabilities based on contractual undiscounted payments:

As at 31 March 2023

Carrying amourt Less than 6 6 to 12 months 1to 2 years > 2 years Total
(a) Trade Payables 080 0.80 0.80
(b) Borrowings 7.259.20 4,737.00 2522.20 - 7.259.20
(c) Other Financial Liabilities 112.93 11293 11293

As at 31 March 2022

Carrying amount Less than 6 6 to 12 months 1to 2 years > 2 years Total
a) Trade Payables B -
b) Borrowings 288.70 288.70 - - 288.70
) Other Financial Liabilities 7.09 7.09 7.09

Market Risk - Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The Company's exposure to the risk

Exposure to interest rate risks
The interest rate risk anses majorly from the borrowings carrying floating rate of interest These obligations exposes the entity to cash flow interest rate risk The company

does not have any borrowings bearing floating rate of interest.

Currency risk
Foreign currency nisk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Company is exposed
to currency risk on account of its borrowings, receivables and other payables in foreign currency. The functional currency of the company is Indian Rupee.

The foreign currency exchange management policy is to minimize economic and transactional exposures ansing from currency movements against the US dollar & Euro.

The Company manages the risk by netting off naturally-occurring opposite exposures wherever possible, and then dealing with any material residual foreign currency
exchange risks if any. The company does not have borrowings, receivables and other payables in foreign currency and hence does not have any currency risk.
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(b) Infromation Related to Profit and Loss items: (Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars Loans Trade in Un-allocable Total
Interest Income 5410 54.10
Rental Income 900 900
Fee and Commission Income 1450 1450
Sale of Securities 387182 - 387192
L Revenue From Operations 54.10 3,871.92 23.50 3,949.52
I Other Incomes . .
m Total Income (I+II) 54.10 3,871.92 23.50 3,949.52
v Expenses
(a) Finance Costs 002 002
(b)Provision for impairment on financial Instrumer 033 033
(c) Loss in fair value Measurement
(d) Purchases of stock-in-trade 3944.10 394410
(e) Change in Inventories of Stock-in-Trade (91.63) - (91.63)
(f) Emplovee Benefits Expenses 3115 3115
(g) Depreciation and Amortisation Expenses 289 289
(h) Other Expenses - - 11.07 11.07
Total Expenses (IV) 0.33 3,852.47 45.13 3,897.93
V. Profit/ (Loss) Before Tax (I-IV) 53.77 1945 (21.63) 5159
Vi Tax Expense: 1285
Vil Profit/ (Loss) for the Period (V-VI) 38.74
Standalone Seg Reproting for the year Ended March 31, 2021
(a) Infromation related to Balance Sheet items: (Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars Loans Trade in Un-allocable Total
As on March 31, 2021
Segment Assets 650.45 65045
Unallocable Assets - - 266.36 266.36
Total Assets 650.45 266.36 916.81
Segment Liabilities 289 289
Unallocable Liabilities/Capital 844 8.44
Total Liabilities 289 844 1133
(b) Infromation Related to Profit and Loss items: (Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars Loans Trade in Un-allocable Total
Interest Income 4771 - = 47.7
Rental Income -
Fee and Commission Income
Sale of Securities =
L Revenue From Operations 47.71 - . 47.7M
L Other Incomes - 0.80 0.80
I Total Income (I+I) 47.71 - 0.80 48.51
v Expenses
(a) Finance Costs
(b)Provision for impairment on financial Instrumer 0.03 003
(¢) Loss in fair value Measurement
(d) Purchases of stock-in-trade
(e) Change in Inventories of Stock-in-Trade -
(f) Employee Benefits Expenses 772 2443 3215
{g) Depreciation and Amortisation Expenses - 0.12 0.12
(h) Other Expenses 156 9.74 11.30
Total Expenses (IV) 2.31 - 34.29 43.60
v Profit/ (Loss) Before Tax (V-VI) 3840 (33.49) 491
VL Tax Expense: 1.30
VI Profit/ (Loss) for the Period (V-VI) 3.61

\
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[.21 Accounting Ratios

S. No. Particulars As at As at
March 31,2023 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

(a) Current Ratio, 3.09 12475

(b) Debt-Equity Ratio, 0.31

(c) Debt Service Coverage Ratio, 284450 171568

(d) Return on Equity Ratio, 0.04 -

(e) Inventory turnover ratio, 2155

f) Trade Receivables turnover ratio, -

q) Trade payables turnover ratio, -

h) Net capital turnover ratio, 6.18 0.05

i) Net profit ratio, 0.01 0.08

(0] Return on Capital employed, 0.06 0.01

(k) Return on Investment - =

Methodology:

. Current Ratio = Current Asset / Current Liability
. Debt-Equity Ratio = Total Debt / (Total Equity)
. Debt Service Coverage Ratio = EBITDA / Finance Cost

. Inventory Turnover Ratio = Sale / (Average Inventory)

1
2
3
4. Return on Equity Ratio = (Profit After Tax-Contingent Reserve) / (Total Equity-Contingent Reserve)
5
6.

Trade Receivable Turmover Ratio = Revenue from Operations / Trade Receivable
. Trade Payable Turnover Ratio = Purchase / Trade Payable

. Net Profit Ratio = Profit After Tax / Revenue
0O Return on Capital Employed= EBIT/ (Total Assets-Current Liabilities)

g
8. Net Capital Turnover Ratio = Revenue from Operations / (Current Asset - Current Liability)
9
1
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11.22 Additional Regulatory Information

i

The Company has neither any capital work in progress of Property, Plant and Equipment nor any intangible assets under
development.

During the year, the company has not borrowed any funds from banks.
During the year, the company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment's.

vi During the year, no proceedings have been initiated or pending against the company for holding any benami property under the
Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made there under.
v The Company has not provided any Loan to any person on behalf of other person other than its ordinary course of its NBFC
business, hence disclosure under section 186 is not applicable to the company.
vi During the year, the company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or any other lender.
vii  Details of significant investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures
(% of Direct holdings)
Particulars Country of As at As at As at
Incorporation March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Subsidiary companies
Advik Optoelectronics Limited India 57.99% 57.99% 57.99%
Advikca Finvest Limited India 100.00% 0.00% -
Associates companies Nil Nil Nil
Joint Ventures Nil Nil Nil
ix  The Company does not have any Scheme of Arrangements, which has been approved by the Competent Authority in terms of
sections 230 to 237 of the Companies Act, 2013.
x  The company has utilized funds raised from the issue of securities or borrowings from banks & financial institutions for the specific
purposes, for which they were issued/taken
xi  The company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies) including foreign entities
(intermediaries) with the understanding that the intermediatory shall: -
i. Directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
company (ultimate beneficiaries) or
it. Provide any guarantees, securities or the like or on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries
xii  The Company has not received any funds from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entity(ies) (funding party) with the
i .rectly or indirécn;' lend or invest in other pers'ons or entities identified in Sny manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the funding
i Prcwid-e-any gn}aranﬁtees: securities or the like or on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries.
xii  During the year, the company has not traded, invest or perform any transaction in crypto or other virtual currency.
xiv In the opinion of the management, the realizable value of current assets, loans & advances, in the ordinary course of business,
would not be less than the amount at which they are stated.
xv  Capital to Risk Assets Ratio (CRAR).
Particulars Mar-23 Mar-22 Mar-21
(a) capital to risk weighted assets ratio: 4433% 75.57%
(b) Tier ICRAR 4433% 75.57%
(c)Tier I CRAR LS e =
(d) Liquidity Coverage Ratio 244.02% N/A N/A

Note: In computing the above information certain estimates, assumptions and adjustments have been made by the Management
# Estimated cash inflows exceeds the estimated cash outflows for the“year ended March 2022 over the next 30 days. Hence, ratio is
Mnthodkoiﬂ‘gAy:

(a) capital to risk weighted assets ratio-(Tier [ Capital+ Tier II capital)/Total Risk Weighted Assets

(b) Tier 1 CRAR-Tier I Capital/Total Risk Weighted Assets

(c)Tier I CRAR-Tier Il capital/Total Risk Weighted Assets

(d) Liquidity Coverage Ratio-High Quality Liquid Assets/Net Cash flow over 30 days period

xvi  There have been no material changes a
the financial year. ?.?
¢)

nts affecting the financial position of the company occurring after the end of

L(/
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11.23:

Disclosure of Expected Credit Loss and Provisions Required as per Income Recognition and Asset Classification Norms

Asset Classification as per RBI Assets Gross Loss Net Carrying Provisions Difference
Norms classifiction Carrying Allowances Amount required as per between Ind AS

as perInd Amount as (Provisions) as

IRACP norms 109 provisions

AS 109 per Ind AS required under and IRACP norms
109 Ind AS 109

Performing Assets
Standard Stage-1 11,320.56 100.00 11,220.56 100.00 -
Subtotal 11,320.56 100.00 11,220.56 100.00 -
Non-Performing Assets (NPA)
Substandard Stage-3 Z - -
Doubtful - up to 1 year Stage-3 : -
1to 3 years Stage-3 -
More than 3 years Stage-3 = - = -
Subtotal for doubtful Stage-3 - -
Loss Stage-3 B - = = =
Subtotal for NPA - - - - -
Other items such as guarantees, loan Stage-1 - -
commitments, etc. which are in the Stage-2 . . .
scope of Ind AS 109 but not covered
under current Income Recognition, Stage-3 - -
Asset Classification and Provisioning
(IRACP) norms
Subtotal - - - " =
Total 11,320.56 100.00 11,220.56 100.00 -

11.24: Disclosures Related to Non performing Assets
(a) Sector wise Non performing Assets

Particulars

(Percentage of NPAs to total advance to that sector)

As at As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31,2022  March 31, 2021

1 Agriculture and allied activities
2 MSME

3 Corporate borrowers

4 Services

5 Unsecured personal loans

6 Auto loans

7 Other personal loans

(b) Movement of NPAs

Particulars

Year ended Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

i) Net NPAs to net advance (%)
ii) Movement of NPAs
a) Opening balance
b) Addition during the year
¢) Reduction/ write off during the year
d) Closing balance
iii) Movement of provisions for NPAs
a) Opening balance
b) Addition during the year
c) Reduction/ write off during the year
d) Closing balance

(€) Detail of non-performing financial asset purchased/sold

The Company has not purchased/sold non—performing financial asset in the last three years.

\
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(C) Detail of non-performing financial asset purchased/sold

The Company has not purchased/sold nan-performing financial asset in the current and previous year

11.25 Additional Disclosures for RBI
(a) Owverseas assets (for those with Joint Ventures and subsidiaries abroad) - FY 2022-23: Nil. FY 2021-22 Nil, FY 2020-21 Nil

(b) Draw down from reserves:- FY 2022-23: Nil, FY 2021-22 Nil, FY 2020-21 Nil
(c) Disclosure of Penalties imposed by RBI & other regulators: FY 2022-23: Nil, FY 2021-22 Nil, FY 2020-21 Nil

(d) Registration obtained from other financial sector regulators:
The Company is registered with following other financial sector regulators:
(i) Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA)]
(i) Ministry of Finance (Financial Intelligence Unit)
(iii) Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI)
(iv) Central Registry of Securitization Asset Reconstruction and Security Interest of India (CERSAI)

(e

Details of financing of parent Company product
This disclosure is not applicable as the Company does not have any holding/parent Company

(f) Exposures
(i) Exposure to real state sector—As per Table Below

Loans & Advances Year ended Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Amount Amount Amount
Basant Projects Ltd 749.56 -
Fun City Developers Pvt Ltd 275.00
Gohana Sonepat Highway Pvi Ltd 2,470.00
Indian Realtors Pvt Ltd 200.00 -
Jind Gohana Highway Pvt Ltd 4,700.00 -
J P Shastri Construction Pvt Ltd 90.00 : .
New Horizon Builwell Pvt Ltd 350.00
Tarvinder Builder Pvt Ltd 190.00 - -
Uniexcel Developers Pvt Ltd 95.00 -

(i) Exposure to capital market:- FY 2022-23: Nil, FY 2021-22 Nil, FY 2020-21 Nil

.26 : Others

(a) Pursuant to section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, CSR is applicable to every company having net worth of Rs 500 crore or more, or a
turnover of over Rs 1,000 crore or a net profit exceeding Rs 5 crore in any financial year. Since the Company has not exceeded the limits
specified above, provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 is not applicable to the Company.

(b) The Company does not have any transactions with companies struck off under section 248 of the Companies Act, 2013 or section 560 of
Companies Act, 1956

(c) The company has utilized the borrowed funds for the purpose for which it has been borrowed.

(d) The company does not have any transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts but has been surrendered or disclosed as

(e) Other additional information pursuant to Schedule III to the Companies Act 2013 are either nil or not applicable.

(f) The Previous year's figures have been reclassified /re-grouped and / or rearranged wherever considered necessary.

(g) Figures have been rounded off to the nearest lakh and two decimal thereof.
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(A) Reconcilation between audited profit and restated profit

ot AT ar RTar |
March 31, | March 31, | March 31,
Particulars 2023 2022 2021
A. Profit after tax (as per audited financial statements) 57.79 4113 2.85
B. Add/(Less): Adjustments o account of-
1.Provision of Income Tax for Prior Period
2. Provision for impairment on financial Instruments (0.33) (0.03)
3. Reserve for Bad & Doubtful Debts (2.06)
4. Transfer to Special Reserve 0.79
5. Other Financial Charges
6. Other Miscellaneous Expenses
- (2.39) 0.76
C.Restated profit after Tax (A+B) 57.79 38.74 361

(B) Reconciliation of the Opening Balance of Surplus of Profit and Loss under Reserves and Surplus for the F.Y. 20-21

Particulars

1,2020

A. Opening Balance of Surplus

B. Add/(Less): Adjustments o account of

1. Amount transfer to contingency reserve.

2. Provision for impairment on financial Instruments
3. Reserve for Bad & Doubtful Debts

4. Transfer to Special Reserve

5. Other Financial Charges

6. Other Miscellaneous Expenses

36.35

(1.59),

Total Adjustment (B)

(1.59)

C.Restated Opening Balance of Surplus (A+B)

34.76

(C)Material Regrouping

Appropriate regroupings have been made in the Restated Statement of Assets and Liabilities, Restated Statement of Profit and
Loss and Restated Statement of Cash Flows, wherever required, by reclassification of the corresponding items of income,
expenses, assets, liabilities and cash flows, in order to bring them in line with the accounting policies and classification as per
Ind AS financial information of the Company for the period ended March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021 prepared in accordance
with Schedule I of Companies Act, 2013 and other applicable Ind AS principles and the requirements of the Securities and
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Annexure -VII RESTATED STATEMENT OF CAPITALISATION

Dre Invme Post Issue
Particulars 31.03.2023
Debt
Short Term Debt 4,737.00 [+]
Long Term Debt 2,522.20 [+]
Total Debt 7,259.20 [=]
Sharcholders' Fund (Equity)
Share Capital 2,201.93 [=]
Reserves & Surplus 3,663.52 [+]
Total Shareholders' Fund (Equity) 5,865.45 |=]
Long Term Debt/Equity 0.43 [=]
Total Debt/Equity 1.24 [*]

Notes:

1. Short term Debts represent which are expected to be paid/payable within 12 months

2. Long term Debts represent debts other than Short term Debts as defined above

3.The figures disclosed above are based on restated statement of Assets and Liabilities of the Company as at 31.03.2023

For and on behalf of the Board of
Advik Capital Limited
7

\J - Y
o> ey
Vikas Gaﬁ O -~

Pankaj
Director (Whole Time Director cb

~M. - DIN:00255413 DIN:10140086
Place: Delhi R m
Date: April 28, 2023 6&\!\\8/
UDIN: Deepika Mishra
(Company Secretary)

PAN: ECZP4298B
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF
FINANCIAL POSITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following discussion of our financial condition and results of operations should be read in conjunction with
the "Restated Financial Statements" beginning on page 104 of this Draft Letter of Offer.

Some of the information contained in the following discussion, including information with respect to our plans
and strategies, contain forward-looking statements that involve risks and uncertainties. You should also read
"Risk Factors" and "Forward Looking Statements" beginning on pages 22 and 14 respectively of this Draft
Letter of Offer, which discuss a number of factors and contingencies that could affect our financial condition and
results of operations.

Our financial statements included in this Draft Letter of Offer are prepared in accordance with Ind AS, which
differs in certain material respects from other accounting standards such as IFRS. Our financial year ends on
March 31 of each year. Accordingly, all references to a particular financial year are for the 12 months ended
March 31 of that year. Unless otherwise indicated or the context requires, the financial information for Fiscal
2023, 2022 and 2021 included herein is based on the Restated Financial Statements, included in this Draft Letter
of Offer. For further information, see "Restated Financial Statements" beginning on page 104 of this Draft Letter

of Offer.

Neither we, any of their affiliates or advisors, nor any other person connected with the Issue has independently
verified such information. For further information, see "Presentation of Financial and other Information"
beginning on page 12 of this Draft Letter of Offer.

SIGNIFICANT DEVELOPMENTS AFTER MARCH 31, 2023 THAT MAY AFFECT OUR FUTURE
RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

To the knowledge of our Company and except as disclosed herein, since the date of the last financial statements
contained in this Draft Letter of Offer, no other circumstances have arisen which would materially and adversely
affect or which would be likely to affect, our operations or profitability, or the value of our assets or our ability to
pay our material liabilities within the next 12 (twelve) months.

1. In Continuation to the Share Purchase Agreement (SPA) dated May 18, 2022, an Open Offer in terms of
Regulation 3(1) and Regulation 4 of SEBI (SAST) Regulations, 2011 was made and the said Open Offer
was closed on March 15, 2023. Total 1,57,98,916 shares were tendered by public sharecholders in Open
Offer.

2. Accordingly, erstwhile Promoters’ Mr. Virender Kumar Agarwal and Mr. Shakul Agarwal ceased to be
the Promoters/Member of Promoter Group and ceased to have management control of the Company in
terms of Offer Document circulated for the said Open Offer and Mr. Vikas Garg and Ms. Seema Garg
took over the management of the Company w.e.f. March 22, 2023.

3. The company in its Board Meeting held on April 11, 2023 has approved shifting of registered office of
the Company within same state i.e from Plot No. 84, Khasra No. 143/84, Ground Floor, Extended Lal
Dora, Kanjhawala Delhi North West 110081 to G-3, Vikas House, 34/1, East Punjabi Bagh, New Delhi
110026 w.ef. April 15, 2023 and the Company has already filed INC-22 for the same.

4. The Board of Directors of our Company has approved to raise funds through Rights Issue in the board
meeting held on April 11, 2023.

5. The Board of Directors of our Company has, at its meeting held on April 11, 2023, approved the
constitution of Fund-Raising Committee.
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FACTORS AFFECTING OUR RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Compliance with environmental laws and regulations

We are subject to central and state environmental laws and regulations, which govern the discharge, emission,
storage, handling and disposal of a variety of substances that may be used in or result from its operations. In case
of any change in environmental or pollution laws and regulations, we may be required to incur significant amounts
on, among other things, environmental monitoring, pollution control equipment and emissions management. In
addition, failure to comply with environmental laws may result in the assessment of penalties and fines against us

by regulatory authorities.

Results of Operations

The following table sets out selected data from the Restated Standalone Financial Statements for Period ended
Financial Year 2023, Financial Year 2022 and Financial Year 2021, together with the percentage that each line
item represents of our total revenue for the periods presented.

Particulars FY ended March FY ended March FY ended March
31,2023 31,2022 31,2021
Amount % of | Amount % of | Amount % of
(Rs. in Total (Rs. in Total (Rs. in Total
Lakh) Revenue | Lakh) | Revenue | Lakh) | Revenue

Revenue from Operations 34,927.11 | 99.98% | 3,949.52 | 100.00% | 47.71 98.35%
Other Income 7.15 0.02% - 0.00% 0.80 1.65%
Total Revenue 34,934.26 | 100.00% | 3,949.52 | 100.00% | 48.51 100.00%
Cost of Good Sold (i.e net of Change in | (20.67) -0.06% | (91.63) -2.32% - 0.00%
Inventories of Stock in Trade)
Excise Duty on Sale of Goods - 0.00% - 0.00% - 0.00%
Employee Benefits Expenses 43.85 0.13% 31.15 0.79% 32.15 66.27%
Finance Cost 277.73 0.80% 0.02 0.00% - 0.00%
Other expenses 33,316.77 | 95.37% | 3,955.50 | 100.15% | 11.33 23.36%
Depreciation and amortization expenses 7.59 0.02% 2.89 0.07% 0.12 0.25%
Total Expenditure 33,625.27 | 96.25% | 3,897.93 | 98.69% 43.60 89.88%
Profit before Tax and before exceptional | 1,308.99 3.75% 51.59 1.31% 491 10.12%
items
Exceptional items:Profit (Loss) on sale of - 0.00% - 0.00% - 0.00%
Fixed assets
Profit before Tax and after exceptional | 1,308.99 3.75% 51.59 1.31% 491 10.12%
items
Current Tax (Including tax adjustment for 357.98 1.02% 11.46 0.29% 1.29 2.66%
earlier years)
Deferred Tax (3.60) -0.01% 1.39 0.04% 0.01 0.02%
Total tax expenses 354.38 1.01% 12.85 0.33% 1.30 2.68%
Profit for the period 954.61 2.73% 38.74 0.98% 3.61 7.44%
Other Comprehensive Income
(A) (i) Items that will not be reclassified to | (1198.45) - - - - -
profit or loss
(i1) Income Tax effect on herein above 301.63 - - - - -
(B) (i) Items that will be reclassified to - - -
profit or loss
(i1) Income Tax effect on herein above - - - - - -
Total Other Comprehensive Income (A+B) | (896.82) - - - - -
Total Comprehensive Income/(Loss) for 57.79 - 38.74 - 3.61 -
the period (XI+XII)
Nominal Value per Equity Share 1 - 1 - 1 -
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Equity per Equity share - Basic 0.03 - 0.08 - 0.01 -

Equity per Equity share — Diluted 0.03 - 0.08 - 0.01 -

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accounting policies have been applied consistently to the periods presented in the Restated Financial
Statements. For details of our significant accounting policies, please refer section titled " Financial Information"
on page 104

CHANGE IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES IN PREVIOUS 3 YEARS

Except as mentioned in chapter "Financial Information" on page 104 , there has been no change in accounting
policies in last 3 years.

RESERVATIONS, QUALIFICATIONS AND ADVERSE REMARKS

For details, see section titled "Financial Information" on page 104.

PRINCIPAL COMPONENTS OF OUR STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT REVENUE
The following descriptions set forth information with respect to the key components of the Financial Statements
Comparison of Financial Year ended March 31, 2023 with Financial Year ended March 31, 2022

Revenue from Operations

Our turnover from Revenue from operation increased from %34,927.11 Lakhs in FY 2022-23 as compared to
3949.52 Lakhs in FY 2021-22.

Other Income

Our other income also Increased to ¥ 7.15 Lakhs in FY 2022-23 Other Income comprise mainly Interest and
other misc. income.

Other Expenses

Our other expenses increased by 126.66 % from X 11.07 Lakhs in financial year 2021-22 to X 134.87 Lakhs in
financial year 2022-23. Other expense mainly includes Audit Fees and other Business-related Expense.

OTHER MATTERS
1. Unusual or infrequent events or transactions

Except as described in this Draft Letter of Offer, during the periods under review there have been no
transactions or events, which in our best judgment, would be considered unusual or infrequent.

2. Significant economic changes that materially affected or are likely to affect income from
continuing operations

Other than as described in this Draft Letter of Offer to our knowledge there are not any significant
economic changes that materially affected or are likely to affect income from continuing operations

3. Known trends or uncertainties that have had or are expected to have a material adverse impact on
sales, revenue or income from continuing operations

Other than as disclosed in the section titled "Risk Factors" beginning on page 22 of this Draft Letter of

Offer to our knowledge there are no known trends or uncertainties that have or had or are expected to
have a material adverse impact on revenues or income of our Company from continuing operations.
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Future relationship between Costs and Income.

Our Company’s future costs and revenues will be determined by demand/supply situation, government
policies, subsidies available and prices of raw material.

The extent to which material increases in net sales or revenue are due to increased sales volume,
introduction of new products or services or increased prices.

Increase in revenue is by and large linked to increases in volume of business activity by the Company.
Total turnover of each major industry segment in which the issuer company operates.
Status of any publicly announced new products/projects or business segments

Our Company has not announced any new projects or business segments, other than disclosed in the
Draft Letter of Offer.

The extent to which the business is seasonal

Our Company’s business is not seasonal in nature.

Any significant dependence on a single or few suppliers or customers

There is no significant dependence on a single or few suppliers or customers

Competitive Conditions

We face competition from existing and potential organised and unorganized competitors which is

common for any business. We have, over a period of time, developed certain competitive strengths which
have been discussed in section titled "Our Business" on page 87 of this Draft Letter of Offer.
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MARKET PRICE INFORMATION

The Equity Shares are listed on the BSE. The Rights Equity Shares will be listed on the Stock Exchanges pursuant
to the Issue. For further details, please see "Terms of the Issue" on page 199 of this Draft Letter of Offer. We
have received in-principle approvals for listing of the Rights Equity Shares on the Stock Exchanges to be issued
pursuant to the Issue from the BSE by letter dated [®]. Our Company will also make application to BSE to obtain
the trading approval from the stock exchange for the Rights Entitlements as required under the SEBI Rights Issue
Circulars

For the purpose of this section, unless otherwise specified:

1. Year is a Financial Year;

2. Average price is the average of the daily closing prices of our Equity Shares for the year, or the month,
as the case maybe;

3. High price is the maximum of the daily high prices and low price is the minimum of the daily low prices
of our Equity Shares, for the year, the month, or the week, as the case may be; and

4. In case of two days with the same high/low/closing price, the date with higher volume has been
considered.

Stock Market Data of the Equity Shares

The following table sets forth the high, low and average market prices of the Equity Shares recorded on the BSE
during the preceding three years and the number of the Equity Shares traded on the days of the high and low prices
were recorded.

BSE
FY High <) Date of Volume Low () Date of Volume Average
High on date of Low on date of (€3]
high (No. low (No.
of Equity of Equity
Shares) Shares)
2022-23 6.3 April 22, 4119353 2.65 December 248113 4.475
2022 26,2022
2021-22 4.44 November 129219 1.3 April 12, 796 2.87
30, 2021 2021
2020-21 1.62 March 19, 2,290 0.35 November 533 0.985
2021 4, 2020

(Source: www.bseindia.com)
The high and low prices and volume of Equity Shares traded on the respective date on the BSE during the last six
months preceding the date of filing of this Draft Letter of Offer are as follows:

BSE
High <) Date of Volume on | Low R) Date of Volume on
High date of Low date of low
Monthly high (No. (No. of Average
of Equity Equity ®)
Shares) Shares)
Jun-23 2.3 05-Jun-23 1463791 2.01 20-Jun-23 777786 2.15
May, 2023 3.47 | 05-May-23 3318581 2 | 17-May-23 20,83,632 2.735
April, 2023 3.88 | 03-Apr-23 1668325 292 | 18-Apr-23 6822675 3.4
March,
2023 5.16 | 09-Mar-23 19,94,851 3.24 | 28-Mar-23 8,58,833 4.2
February,
2023 4.84 15-Feb-23 68,81,826 3.02 | 06-Feb-23 5,87,169 3.93
January,
2023 4.22 17-Jan-23 18,24,882 2.68 02-Jan-23 52,98,587 3.45

(Source: www.bseindia.com)
The total number of days trading during the past six months was 122. The average volume of Equity Shares traded on
the BSE was 194164 Equity Shares per day.
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SECTION VII - LEGAL AND OTHER INFORMATION
OUTSTANDING LITIGATIONS AND DEFAULTS

Our Company is subject to various legal proceedings from time to time, primarily arising in the ordinary course
of business. There is no outstanding litigation which has been considered material in accordance with our
Company’s ‘Policy for Determination of Materiality’, framed in accordance with Regulation 30 of the SEBI
Listing Regulations, and accordingly, there is no such outstanding litigation involving our Company that requires
disclosure in this Draft Letter of Offer. However, solely for the purpose of the Issue, the following outstanding
litigations have been disclosed in this section of this Draft Letter of Offer, to the extent applicable: any outstanding
civil litigation, including tax litigation, involving our Company, where the amount involved is 5% of Turnover or
Net Worth of the Company for the immediately preceding financial year ("Materiality Threshold") or above.

Except as disclosed below, there are no outstanding litigation with respect to (i) issues of moral turpitude or
criminal liability on the part of our Company, (ii) material violations of statutory regulations by our Company;
(iii) economic offences where proceedings have been initiated against our Company;(iv) any pending matters,
which if they result in an adverse outcome, would materially and adversely affect our operations or our financial
position.

Pre-litigation notices received by our Company from third-parties (excluding notices pertaining to any offence
involving issues of moral turpitude, criminal liability, material violations of statutory regulations or proceedings
related to economic offences) shall not be evaluated for materiality until such time our Company are impleaded
as defendants in litigation proceedings before any judicial forum.

I Litigation involving our Company
A. Litigation filed against our Company
1. Criminal proceedings
Nil
2. Outstanding actions by regulatory and statutory authorities
Nil
3. Civil proceedings
Nil
4. Litigation/Matters involving Tax Liabilities
NIL
B. Litigation filed by our Company
1. Criminal proceedings
Nil
2. Civil proceedings
Nil
3. Litigation Involving Actions by Statutory/Regulatory Authorities
NIL
4. Tax proceedings

186



I1.

I11.

Particulars
Direct Tax
Indirect Tax
Total

Litigation involving our Promoters
Litigation filed against our Promoter
Criminal proceedings

Nil

Outstanding actions by regulatory and statutory authorities

Nil
Civil proceedings

Nil

Litigation Involving Actions by Statutory/Regulatory Authorities

NIL

Litigation filed by our Promoter
Criminal proceedings

Nil

Civil proceedings

Nil

Litigation Involving Actions by Statutory/Regulatory Authorities

NIL

Tax proceedings

Particulars
Direct Tax
Indirect Tax
Total

Litigation involving our Directors
Litigation filed against our Director
Criminal proceedings

Nil

Outstanding actions by regulatory and statutory authorities

No. of cases
Nil
Nil
Nil

No. of cases
Nil
Nil
Nil

(in ¥ Lakhs)
Amount involved
Nil
Nil
Nil

(in %)
Amount involved
Nil
Nil
Nil
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Nil
3. Civil proceedings

Nil

4. Litigation Involving Actions by Statutory/Regulatory Authorities

NIL

B. Litigation filed by our Director
1. Criminal proceedings

Nil

2. Civil proceedings

Nil

3. Litigation Involving Actions by Statutory/Regulatory Authorities
Nil

4. Tax proceedings
(in %)
Particulars No. of cases Amount involved
Direct Tax Nil Nil
Indirect Tax Nil Nil
Total Nil Nil

Iv. LITIGATION INVOLVING OUR SUBSIDIARIES

1.  Against Directors of the Subsidiary Company: NIL
2. By Directors of the Subsidiary Company: NIL

V. Litigations Involving Company’s Group Entities

1. Against the Group Entities: NIL
2. By the Group Entities: NIL

VI Other litigations involving any other entities which may have a material adverse effect on the
Company.

There is no outstanding litigation, suits, criminal or civil prosecutions, statutory or legal proceedings
including those for economic offences, tax liabilities, prosecution under any enactment in respect of
the Companies Act, show cause notices or legal notices pending against the company whose outcome
could affect the operation or finances of the Company or have a material adverse effect on the position
of the Company.
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VIL Details of the past penalties imposed on the Company / Directors

Except as disclosed above, there are no cases in the last five years in which penalties have
been imposed on the Company or on Directors.

L Outstanding dues to creditors

Details of outstanding dues (trade payables) owed to micro, small and medium enterprises (as defined under
Section 2 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006), material creditors and other
creditors, as at March 31, 2023, by our Company, are set out below:

(< in lakhs)
Type of creditors Amount involved
Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises 0
Other creditors 0.80
Total 0.80

Material Developments

Other than as stated in the section entitled "Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and
Results of Operations — Material Developments Subsequent to March 31, 2023" on page 180 of this Draft Letter
of Offer, there have not arisen, since the date of the last financial information disclosed in this Draft Letter of
Offer, any circumstances which materially and adversely affect, or are likely to affect, our operations, our
profitability taken as a whole or the value of our consolidated assets or our ability to pay our liabilities within the
next 12 months.
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GOVERNMENT AND OTHER STATUTORY APPROVALS

Our Company has obtained necessary consents, licenses, permissions and approvals from governmental and
regulatory authorities that are material for carrying on our present business activities. Some of the approvals and
licenses that our Company requires for our business operations may expire in the ordinary course of business, and
our Company will apply for their renewal from time to time.

We are not required to obtain any licenses or approvals from any government or regulatory authority for the

objects of this Issue. For further details, please refer to the chapter titled "Objects of the Issue" at page 54 of this
Draft Letter of Offer.
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OTHER REGULATORY AND STATUTORY DISCLOSURES
Authority for the Issue

This Issue has been authorized through a resolution passed by our Board at its meeting held on April 11, 2023 to
raise funds by issuance and allotment of equity shares for aggregate amount of up to Rs. 50 Crore (Rupees Fifty
Crore), by way of QIP’s, ADR, GDR, FCCB or any other method or combination thereof including series of Right
Issue(s), on such terms to be decided by the Board or a duly constituted committee of the Board at a later date,
subject to the approval of shareholders, thereafter, the same was approved via Postal Ballot Notice dated May 18,
2023

Our Board/Rights Issue Committee, in its meeting held on [@] has resolved to issue the Equity Shares on rights
basis to the Eligible Equity Shareholders, at X [®] per Equity Share (including a premium of X [e] per Equity
Share) aggregating up to ¥ 4,995.00 lakhs. The Issue Price is X [®] per Equity Share and has been arrived at by
our Company in consultation with the Advisor to the Issue prior to determination of the Record Date.

Our Company has received in-principle approvals from BSE in accordance with Regulation 28(1) of the SEBI
Listing Regulations for listing of the Equity Shares to be allotted in this Issue pursuant to their respective letters
each dated [e#]. Our Company will also make applications to BSE to obtain their trading approvals for the Rights
Entitlements as required under the SEBI Rights Issue Circulars.

Our Company has been allotted the [@] for the Rights Entitlements to be credited to the respective demat accounts
of the Equity Shareholders of our Company. For details, see "Terms of the Issue" beginning on page 199 of this
Draft Letter of Offer.

Prohibition by SEBI or other Governmental Authorities

Our Company, our Promoter, our Directors, the members of our Promoter Group and persons in control of our
Company have not been prohibited from accessing the capital market or debarred from buying or selling or
dealing in securities under any order or direction passed by SEBI or any securities market regulator in any
jurisdiction or any authority/court as on date of this Draft Letter of Offer.

Further, our Promoter and our Directors are not promoter or director of any other company which is debarred
from accessing or operating in the capital markets or restrained from buying, selling or dealing in securities under
any order or direction passed by SEBI. None our Directors or Promoter is associated with the securities market
in any manner. Further, there is no outstanding action initiated against any of our Directors or Promoters by SEBI
in the five years preceding the date of filing of this Draft Letter of Offer.

Neither our Promoter nor our Directors have been declared as fugitive economic offender under Section 12 of
Fugitive Economic Offenders Act, 2018 (17 of 2018).

Prohibition by RBI

Neither our Company, nor our Promoter, and Directors have been categorized or identified as wilful defaulters
or fraudulent borrowers by any bank or financial institution or consortium thereof, in accordance with the
guidelines on wilful defaulters issued by the Reserve Bank of India. There are no violations of securities laws
committed by them in the past or are currently pending against any of them.

Compliance with Companies (Significant Beneficial Ownership) Rules, 2018

Our Company, our Promoter and the members of our Promoter Group are in compliance with the Companies
(Significant Beneficial Ownership) Rules, 2018 to the extent it may be applicable to them as on date of this Draft
Letter of Offer.

Eligibility for the Issue

Our Company is a listed company, incorporated under Companies Act, 1956. The Equity Shares of our Company
are presently listed on BSE. We are eligible to undertake the Issue in terms of Chapter III of the SEBI ICDR
Regulations. Pursuant to Clauses (1) and (2) of Part B of Schedule VI to the SEBI ICDR Regulations, our Company
is required to make disclosures in accordance with Part B-1 of Schedule VI to the SEBI ICDR Regulations.
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Compliance with Regulations 61 and 62 of the SEBI ICDR Regulations

Our Company is in compliance with the conditions specified in Regulations 61 and 62 of the SEBI ICDR
Regulations, to the extent applicable. Further, in relation to compliance with Regulation 62(1)(a) of the SEBI
ICDR Regulations, our Company undertakes to make an application to the Stock Exchanges for listing of the
Rights Equity Shares to be issued pursuant to the Issue. BSE Limited is the Designated Stock Exchange for the
Issue.

Compliance with Part B-1 of Schedule VI of the SEBI ICDR Regulations

Our Company is in compliance with the provisions specified in Clause (1) of Part B of Schedule VI of the SEBI
ICDR Regulations as explained below:

1. Our Company has been filing periodic reports, statements and information in compliance with the SEBI Listing
Regulations, as applicable for the last one year immediately preceding the date of filing of the Draft Letter of
Offer with the Designated Stock Exchange;

2. The reports, statements and information referred to above are available on the websites of BSE; and

3. Our Company has an investor grievance-handling mechanism which includes meeting of the Stakeholders’
Relationship Committee at frequent intervals, appropriate delegation of power by our Board as regards share
transfer and clearly laid down systems and procedures for timely and satisfactory redressal of investor grievances.

However, in terms of Clause (3) of Part B of Schedule VI of the SEBI ICDR Regulations, following issuers shall
mandatorily make disclosures in the draft letter of offer/letter of offer as specified in Part B-1 of this Schedule:

(a) an issuer whose management has undergone any change pursuant to acquisition of control in accordance with
the provisions of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers)
Regulations, 1997 or the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and
Takeovers) Regulations, 2011, as applicable and is making a rights issue of specified securities for the first time
subsequent to such change and a period of three full years has not elapsed since such a change;

(b) an issuer whose specified securities have been listed consequent to the relaxation granted by the Board under
sub-rule (7) of rule 19 of the Securities Contracts (Regulation) Rules, 1957 for listing of its specified securities
pursuant to a scheme sanctioned by a High Court under sections 391 to 394 of the Companies Act, 1956 or
approved by a tribunal under sections 230-234 of the Companies Act, 2013, as applicable, and is making a rights
issue of specified securities for the first time subsequent to such listing and a period of three full years has not
elapsed since such listing.

Since the management of our Company has undergone change pursuant to acquisition of control in accordance
with the provisions of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers)
Regulations, 2011, during the financial year 2022-23, the disclosures contained in the Draft Letter of Offer/Letter
of Offer have been mandatorily made in terms of Part B-1 of Schedule VI of the SEBI ICDR Regulations.

DISCLAIMER CLAUSE OF SEBI

THE PRESENT ISSUE, BEING LESS THAN 5,000 LAKHS, OUR COMPANY IS IN COMPLIANCE
WITH FIRST PROVISIO TO REGULATION 3 OF THE SEBI ICDR REGULATIONS AND OUR
COMPANY SHALL FILE A COPY OF THE DRAFT LETTER OF OFFER PREPARED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE SEBI (ICDR) REGULATIONS WITH SEBI FOR INFORMATION AND
DISSEMINATION ON THE WEBSITE OF SEBI FOR INFORMATIVE PURPOSES.

Disclaimer from our Company and our Directors

Our Company accept no responsibility for statements made otherwise than in this Draft Letter of Offer or in any
advertisement or other material issued by our Company or by any other persons at the instance of our Company

anyone placing reliance on any other source of information would be doing so at his own risk.

Investors who invest in this Issue will be deemed to have represented by our Company and their respective
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directors, officers, agents, affiliates and representatives that they are eligible under all applicable laws, rules,
regulations, guidelines and approvals to acquire Equity Shares of our Company and are relying on independent
advice / evaluation as to their ability and quantum of investment in this Issue.

Disclaimer in respect of Jurisdiction

This Draft Letter of Offer has been prepared under the provisions of Indian law and the applicable rules and
regulations thereunder. Any disputes arising out of the Issue will be subject to the jurisdiction of the appropriate
court(s) in New Delhi only.

Disclaimer Clause of BSE

BSE Limited ("the Exchange") has given vide its letter dated [e], permission to this Company to use the
Exchange’s name in this Draft Letter of Offer as the stock exchange on which this Company’s securities are
proposed to be listed. The Exchange has scrutinized this Draft Letter of Offer for its limited internal purpose of
deciding on the matter of granting the aforesaid permission to this Company. The Exchange does not in any
manner:

1. Warrant, certify or endorse the correctness or completeness of any of the contents of this Draft Letter
of Offer; or

ii. Warrant that this Company’s securities will be listed or will continue to be listed on the Exchange; or

1il. Take any responsibility for the financial or other soundness of this Company, its promoters, its

management or any scheme or project of this Company;

and it should not for any reason be deemed or construed that this Draft Letter of Offer has been cleared or
approved by the Exchange. Every person who desires to apply for or otherwise acquires any securities of this
Company may do so pursuant to independent inquiry, investigation and analysis and shall not have any claim
against the Exchange whatsoever by reason of any loss which may be suffered by such person consequent to or
in connection with such subscription/acquisition whether by reason of anything stated or omitted to be stated
herein or for any other reason whatsoever.

Designated Stock Exchange
The Designated Stock Exchange for the purposes of the Issue is BSE Limited.
Listing

Our Company will apply to BSE for final approval for the listing and trading of the Rights Equity Shares
subsequent to their Allotment. No assurance can be given regarding the active or sustained trading in the Rights
Equity Shares or the price at which the Rights Equity Shares offered under the Issue will trade after the listing
thereof.

Selling Restrictions

This Draft Letter of Offer is solely for the use of the person who has received it from our Company or from the
Registrar. This Draft Letter of Offer is not to be reproduced or distributed to any other person.

The distribution of this Draft Letter of Offer, Letter of Offer, Abridged Letter of Offer, Application Form, the
Rights Entitlement Letter and the issue of Rights Entitlements and Equity Shares on a rights basis to persons in
certain jurisdictions outside India is restricted by legal requirements prevailing in those jurisdictions. Persons into
whose possession this Draft Letter of Offer, Letter of Offer, Abridged Letter of Offer Application Form and the
Rights Entitlement Letter may come are required to inform themselves about and observe such restrictions. Our
Company is making this Issue on a rights basis to the Eligible Equity Shareholders of our Company and will
dispatch the Draft Letter of Offer, Letter of Offer, Abridged Letter of Offer Application Form and the Rights
Entitlement Letter only to Eligible Equity Shareholders who have provided an Indian address to our Company.

No action has been or will be taken to permit the Issue in any jurisdiction, or the possession, circulation, or
distribution of this Draft Letter of Offer, Letter of Offer, Abridged Letter of Offer or any other material relating to
our Company, the Equity Shares or Rights Entitlement in any jurisdiction, where action would be required for that
purpose, except that this Draft Letter of Offer has been filed with SEBI and the Stock Exchanges.
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Accordingly, the Rights Entitlement or Equity Shares may not be offered or sold, directly or indirectly, and this
Draft Letter of Offer or any offering materials or advertisements in connection with the Issue or Rights
Entitlement may not be distributed or published in any jurisdiction, except in accordance with legal requirements
applicable in such jurisdiction. Receipt of this Draft Letter of Offer will not constitute an offer in those
jurisdictions in which it would be illegal to make such an offer.

This Draft Letter of Offer and its accompanying documents are being supplied to you solely for your information
and may not be reproduced, redistributed or passed on, directly or indirectly, to any other person or published, in
whole or in part, for any purpose. If this Draft Letter of Offer is received by any person in any jurisdiction where
to do so would or might contravene local securities laws or regulation, or by their agent or nominee, they must
not seek to subscribe to the Equity Shares or the Rights Entitlement referred to in this Draft Letter of Offer.
Investors are advised to consult their legal counsel prior to applying for the Rights Entitlement and Equity Shares
or accepting any provisional allotment of Equity Shares, or making any offer, sale, resale, pledge or other transfer
of the Equity Shares or Rights Entitlement.

Neither the delivery of this Draft Letter of Offer nor any sale hereunder, shall under any circumstances create
any implication that there has been no change in our Company’s affairs from the date hereof or the date of such
information or that the information contained herein is correct as of any time subsequent to this date or the date
of such information. Each person who exercises Rights Entitlements and subscribes for Equity Shares, or who
purchases Rights Entitlements or Equity Shares shall do so in accordance with the restrictions set out below.
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NO OFFER IN THE UNITED STATES

THE RIGHTS ENTITLEMENTS AND THE EQUITY SHARES HAVE NOT BEEN AND WILL NOT
BE REGISTERED UNDER THE UNITED STATES SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS AMENDED (THE
"SECURITIES ACT"), OR ANY U.S. STATE SECURITIES LAWS AND MAY NOT BE OFFERED,
SOLD, RESOLD OR OTHERWISE TRANSFERRED WITHIN THE UNITED STATES, EXCEPT IN A
TRANSACTION EXEMPT FROM THE REGISTRATION REQUIREMENTS OF THE SECURITIES
ACT. THE RIGHTS ENTITLEMENTS AND EQUITY SHARES REFERRED TO IN THE DRAFT
LETTER OF OFFER ARE BEING OFFERED IN INDIA, BUT NOT IN THE UNITED STATES. THE
OFFERING TO WHICH THE DRAFT LETTER OF OFFER RELATES IS NOT, AND UNDER NO
CIRCUMSTANCES IS TO BE CONSTRUED AS, AN OFFERING OF ANY EQUITY SHARES OR
RIGHTS ENTITLEMENTS FOR SALE IN THE UNITED STATES OR AS A SOLICITATION
THEREIN OF AN OFFER TO BUY ANY OF THE SAID SECURITIES. ACCORDINGLY, DRAFT
LETTER OF OFFER SHOULD NOT BE FORWARDED TO OR TRANSMITTED IN OR INTO THE
UNITED STATES AT ANY TIME.

Neither our Company, nor any person acting on behalf of our Company, will accept a subscription or renunciation
from any person, or the agent of any person, who appears to be, or who our Company, or any person acting on
behalf of our Company, has reason to believe is, in the United States when the buy order is made. Envelopes
containing an Application Form should not be postmarked in the United States or otherwise dispatched from the
United States or any other jurisdiction where it would be illegal to make an offer under this Draft Letter of Offer.
Our Company is making this Issue on a rights basis to the Eligible Equity Shareholders and this Draft Letter of
Offer, Letter of Offer, Abridged Letter of Offer, Application Form and the Rights Entitlement Letter will be
dispatched to the Eligible Equity Shareholders who have provided an Indian address to our Company. Any person
who acquires the Rights Entitlements and the Equity Shares will be deemed to have declared, represented,
warranted and agreed, by accepting the delivery of the Draft Letter of Offer, (i) that it is not and that, at the time
of subscribing for the Equity Shares or the Rights Entitlements, it will not be, in the United States when the buy
order is made; and (ii) is authorised to acquire the Rights Entitlements and the Equity Shares in compliance with
all applicable laws, rules and regulations.

Our Company reserves the right to treat as invalid any Application Form which: (i) appears to our Company or
its agents to have been executed in or dispatched from the United States of America; (ii) does not include the
relevant certification set out in the Application Form headed "Overseas Shareholders" to the effect that the person
accepting and/or renouncing the Application Form does not have a registered address (and is not otherwise
located) in the United States, and such person is complying with laws of the jurisdictions applicable to such
person in connection with the Issue, among others; (iii) where our Company believes acceptance of such
Application Form may infringe applicable legal or regulatory requirements; or (iv) where a registered Indian
address is not provided, and our Company shall not be bound to allot or issue any Equity Shares or Rights
Entitlement in respect of any such Application Form.

None of the Rights Entitlements or the Equity Shares have been, or will be, registered under the United States
Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the "Securities Act”), or any state securities laws in the United States.
Accordingly, the Rights Entitlements and Equity Shares are being offered and sold only outside the United States
in compliance with Regulation S under the Securities Act and the applicable laws of the jurisdictions where those
offers and sales are made.

NO OFFER IN ANY JURISDICTION OUTSIDE INDIA

NO OFFER OR INVITATION TO PURCHASE RIGHTS ENTITLEMENTS OR RIGHTS EQUITY
SHARES IS BEING MADE IN ANY JURISDICTION OUTSIDE OF INDIA, INCLUDING, BUT NOT
LIMITED TO AUSTRALIA, BAHRAIN, CANADA, THE EUROPEAN ECONOMIC AREA, GHANA,
HONG KONG, INDONESIA, JAPAN, KENYA, KUWAIT, MALAYSIA, NEW ZEALAND,
SULTANATE OF OMAN, PEOPLE'S REPUBLIC OF CHINA, QATAR, SINGAPORE, SOUTH
AFRICA, SWITZERLAND, THAILAND, THE UNITED ARAB EMIRATES, THE UNITED KINGDOM
AND THE UNITED STATES. THE OFFERING TO WHICH THIS DRAFT LETTER OF OFFER
RELATES IS NOT, AND UNDER NO CIRCUMSTANCES IS TO BE CONSTRUED AS, AN OFFERING
OF ANY RIGHTS EQUITY SHARES OR RIGHTS ENTITLEMENT FOR SALE IN ANY
JURISDICTION OUTSIDE INDIA OR AS A SOLICIATION THEREIN OF AN OFFER TO BUY ANY
OF THE SAID SECURITIES. ACCORDINGLY, THIS DRAFT LETTER OF OFFER SHOULD NOT
BE FORWARDED TO OR TRANSMITTED IN OR INTO ANY OTHER JURISDICTION AT ANY
TIME.
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Consents

Consents in writing of: our Directors, Company Secretary and Compliance Officer, Chief Financial Officer, the
Lead Manager, legal advisor, Bankers to the Company, the Registrar to the Issue and the Bankers to the Issue to
act in their respective capacities, have been obtained and such consents have not been withdrawn up to the date
of this Draft Letter of Offer.

Our Company has received written consent dated July 01, 2023 from our Statutory Auditor to include their name
in this Draft Letter of Offer and as an ‘expert’ as defined under Section 2(38) of the Companies Act, 2013 in
relation to the Statement of Tax Benefits dated July 01, 2023 in the form and context in which it appears in this
Draft Letter of Offer. Such consent has not been withdrawn up to the date of this Draft Letter of Offer.

Expert Opinion

Our Company has received written consent dated July 01, 2023 from our Statutory Auditor to include their name
as required in this Draft Letter of Offer and as an ‘expert’ as defined under Section 2(38) of the Companies Act,
2013 in relation the Statement of Tax Benefits dated July 01, 2023 and such consent has not been withdrawn as
of the date of this Draft Letter of Offer. The term ‘expert’ and consent thereof, does not represent an expert or
consent within the meaning under the U.S. Securities Act.

Except for the abovementioned documents, provided by our Auditors, our Company has not obtained any expert
opinions.

Performance vis-a-vis objects — Public/Rights Issue of our Company

The Company has successfully completed the objects of the previous rights issue made in the financial year 2021-
22. There have been no instances in the past, wherein our Company has failed to achieve the objects in its previous
issues.

Performance vis-a-vis objects — Last issue of listed Subsidiaries or Associates

Our Company does not have any listed subsidiaries or associate companies as on the date of this Draft Letter of
Offer. Our Company has 2 public subsidiaries. Further, there have been no instances in the past.

Stock Market Data of the Equity Shares

Our Equity Shares are listed on BSE. Our Equity Shares are traded on BSE. For details in connection with the
stock market data of the Stock Exchanges, please refer to the chapter titled "Market Price Information"
beginning on page 184 of this Draft Letter of Offer.

NOTICE TO INVESTORS

NO ACTION HAS BEEN TAKEN OR WILL BE TAKEN THAT WOULD PERMIT A PUBLIC
OFFERING OF THE RIGHTS ENTITLEMENTS OR RIGHTS EQUITY SHARES TO OCCUR IN ANY
JURISDICTION OTHER THAN INDIA, OR THE POSSESSION, CIRCULATION OR DISTRIBUTION
OF THIS DRAFT LETTER OF OFFER OR ANY OTHER MATERIAL RELATING TO OUR
COMPANY, THE RIGHTS ENTITLEMENTS OR THE RIGHTS EQUITY SHARES IN ANY
JURISDICTION WHERE ACTION FOR SUCH PURPOSE IS REQUIRED. ACCORDINGLY, THE
RIGHTS ENTITLEMENTS OR RIGHTS EQUITY SHARES MAY NOT BE OFFERED OR SOLD,
DIRECTLY OR INDIRECTLY, AND NEITHER THIS DRAFT LETTER OF OFFER NOR ANY
OFFERING MATERIALS OR ADVERTISEMENTS IN CONNECTION WITH THE RIGHTS
ENTITLEMENTS OR RIGHTS EQUITY SHARES MAY BE DISTRIBUTED OR PUBLISHED IN OR
FROM ANY COUNTRY OR JURISDICTION EXCEPT IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE LEGAL
REQUIREMENTS APPLICABLE IN SUCH COUNTRY OR JURISDICTION. THIS ISSUE WILL BE
MADE IN COMPLIANCE WITH THE APPLICABLE SEBI REGULATIONS. EACH PURCHASER
OF THE RIGHTS ENTITLEMENTS OR THE RIGHTS EQUITY SHARES IN THIS IS SUE WILL BE
DEEMED TO HAVE MADE ACKNOWLEDGMENTS AND AGREEMENTS.
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Filing

SEBI vide the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) (Fourth
Amendment) Regulations, 2020 has amended Regulation 3(b) of the SEBI ICDR Regulations as per which the
threshold of filing of Draft Letter of Offer with SEBI for rights issues has been increased. The threshold of the
rights issue size under Regulation 3 (b) of the SEBI ICDR Regulations has been increased from Rupees ten crores
to Rupees fifty crores. Since the size of this Issue falls below this threshold, the Draft Letter of Offer has been
filed with the Stock Exchanges and not with SEBI. However, the Draft Letter of Offer will be submitted with
SEBI for information and dissemination and will be filed with the Stock Exchanges.

Mechanism for Redressal of Investor Grievances

Our Company has adequate arrangements for redressal of investor grievances in compliance with the SEBI
Listing Regulations. We have been registered with the SEBI Complaints Redress System (SCORES) as required
by the SEBI Circular no. CIR/ OIAE/ 2/ 2011 dated June 3, 2011 and shall comply with the SEBI circular no.
CIR/OIAE/1/2014 dated December 18, 2014 and the SEBI Master Circular on the redressal of investor grievances
through the SEBI Complaints Redress System (SCORES) platform dated November 7, 2022 (SEBI circular no.
SEBI/HO/OIAE/IGRD/P/CIR/2022/0150), in relation to redressal of investor grievances through SCORES.
Consequently, investor grievances are tracked online by our Company.

Our Company has a Stakeholders Relationship Committee which meets at least once a year and as and when
required. Its terms of reference include considering and resolving grievances of Shareholders in relation to
transfer of shares and effective exercise of voting rights. Skyline Financial Services Private Limited is our
Registrar and Share Transfer Agent. All investor grievances received by us have been handled by the Registrar
and Share Transfer Agent in consultation with the Company Secretary and Compliance Officer.

Investor complaints received by our Company are typically disposed of within 15 days from the receipt of the
complaint.

Investors may contact the Registrar or our Company Secretary and Compliance Officer for any pre-Issue
or post-Issue related matter. All grievances relating to the ASBA process may be addressed to the
Registrar, with a copy to the SCSBs (in case of ASBA process), giving full details such as name, address of
the Applicant, contact number(s), e mail address of the sole/ first holder, folio number or demat account
number, number of Equity Shares applied for, amount blocked (in case of ASBA process), ASBA Account
number and the Designated Branch of the SCSBs where the Application Form or the plain paper
application, as the case may be, was submitted by the Investors along with a photocopy of the
acknowledgement slip (in case of ASBA process). For details on the ASBA process, see "Terms of the Issue"
beginning on page 199 of this Draft Letter of Offer. The contact details of Registrar to the Issue and our
Company Secretary and Compliance Officer are as follows:

Registrar to the Company:

Name: Skyline Financial Services Private Limited
Address: D-153A, 1* Floor, Okhla Industrial Area,
Phase-I, New Delhi-110020

Telephone Number: 011-40450193/97

Contact person: Mr. Anuj Rana

Website: www.skylinerta.com

E-mail: Info@skylinerta.com

Investors may contact the Company Secretary and Compliance Officer at the below mentioned address for any
pre-Issue/ post-Issue related matters such as non-receipt of Letters of Allotment / share certificates/ demat credit/
Refund Orders etc.

Ms. Deepika Mishra, Company Secretary and Compliance Officer of our Company. Her contact details are set
forth hereunder:

Telephone: +91 9289119980

E- mail: advikcapital@gmail.com
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SECTION VIII - ISSUE INFORMATION
TERMS OF THE ISSUE

This section is for the information of the Eligible Equity Shareholders proposing to apply in this Issue. The Eligible
Equity Shareholders should carefully read the provisions contained in this Draft Letter of Offer, the Abridged
Letter of Offer, the Rights Entitlement Letter and the Application Form, before submitting the Application Form.
Our Company and the Lead Manager are not liable for any amendments or modifications or changes in applicable
laws or regulations, which may occur after the date of the Draft Letter of Offer. The Eligible Equity Shareholders
are advised to make their independent investigation and ensure that the Application Form is accurately filled up
in accordance with instructions provided therein and the Draft Letter of Offer. Unless otherwise permitted under
the SEBI ICDR Regulations read with the SEBI Relaxation Circulars, the Eligible Equity Shareholders proposing
to apply in this Issue can apply only through ASBA or by mechanism as disclosed in the Draft Letter of Offer.

The Eligible Equity Shareholders are requested to note that application in this issue can only be made through
ASBA.

OVERVIEW

This Issue is proposed to be undertaken on a rights basis and is subject to the terms and conditions contained in
this Draft Letter of Offer, the Abridged Letter of Offer, the Rights Entitlement Letter, the Application Form, and
the Memorandum of Association and the Articles of Association of our Company, the provisions of the Companies
Act, 2013, the FEMA, the FEMA Rules, the SEBI ICDR Regulations, the SEBI LODR Regulations and the
guidelines, notifications, circulars and regulations issued by SEBI, the Government of India and other statutory
and regulatory authorities from time to time, approvals, if any, from RBI or other regulatory authorities, the terms
of the Listing Agreements entered into by our Company with Stock Exchanges and the terms and conditions as
stipulated in the Allotment Advice.

IMPORTANT
L. DISPATCH AND AVAILABILITY OF ISSUE MATERIALS

In accordance with the SEBI ICDR Regulations, the SEBI Relaxation Circulars, the Abridged Letter of
Offer, the Application Form, the Rights Entitlement Letter and other Issue material will be sent/
dispatched only to the Eligible Equity Shareholders who have provided Indian address. In case such
Eligible Equity Shareholders have provided their valid e-mail address, the Abridged Letter of Offer, the
Application Form, the Rights Entitlement Letter and other Issue material will be sent only to their valid
e-mail address and in case such Eligible Equity Shareholders have not provided their e-mail address, then
the Abridged Letter of Offer, the Application Form, the Rights Entitlement Letter and other Issue material
will be dispatched, on a reasonable effort basis, to the Indian addresses provided by them.

Further, the Letter of Offer will be sent/ dispatched to the Eligible Equity Shareholders who have
provided Indian address and who have made a request in this regard. In case such Eligible Equity
Shareholders have provided their valid e-mail address, the Letter of Offer will be sent only to their valid
e-mail address and in case such Eligible Equity Shareholders have not provided their e-mail address, then
the Letter of Offer will be dispatched, on a reasonable effort basis, to the Indian addresses provided by
them.
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Shareholders can access the Letter of Offer, the Abridged Letter of Offer and the Application Form
(provided that the Eligible Equity Shareholder is eligible to subscribe for the Equity Shares under
applicable laws) on the websites of:

(1) our Company at www.advikgroup.com;

(ii) the Registrar at www.skylinerta.com;

(iii) the Lead Manager, i.e. http:/fifinsec.com ;

(iv) the Stock Exchanges at www.bseindia.com ; and

Eligible Equity Shareholders can also obtain the details of their respective Rights Entitlements from the
website of the Registrar (i.e., www.skylinerta.com ) by entering their DP ID and Client ID or Folio

Number (for Eligible Equity Shareholders who hold Equity Shares in physical form as on Record Date)
and PAN. The link for the same shall also be available on the website of our Company (i.e.,

www.advikgroup.com ).

Please note that neither our Company nor the Registrar nor the Lead Manager shall be responsible
for non-dispatch of physical copies of Issue materials, including the Letter of Offer, the Abridged
Letter of Offer, the Rights Entitlement Letter and the Application Form or delay in the receipt of
the Letter of Offer, the Abridged Letter of Offer, the Rights Entitlement Letter or the Application
Form attributable to non-availability of the e-mail addresses of Eligible Equity Shareholders or
electronic transmission delays or failures, or if the Application Forms or the Rights Entitlement
Letters are delayed or misplaced in the transit.

The distribution of the Letter of Offer, Abridged Letter of Offer, the Rights Entitlement Letter and the
issue of Equity Shares on a rights basis to persons in certain jurisdictions outside India is restricted by
legal requirements prevailing in those jurisdictions. No action has been, or will be, taken to permit this
Issue in any jurisdiction where action would be required for that purpose, except that the Letter of Offer
is being filed with the Stock Exchanges. Accordingly, the Rights Entitlements and Equity Shares may
not be offered or sold, directly or indirectly, and the Letter of Offer, the Abridged Letter of Offer, the
Rights Entitlement Letter, the Application Form or any Issue related materials or advertisements in
connection with this Issue may not be distributed, in any jurisdiction, except in accordance with and as
permitted under the legal requirements applicable in such jurisdiction. Receipt of the Letter of Offer, the
Abridged Letter of Offer, the Rights Entitlement Letter or the Application Form (including by way of
electronic means) will not constitute an offer, invitation to or solicitation by anyone in any jurisdiction
or in any circumstances in which such an offer, invitation or solicitation is unlawful or not authorised or
to any person to whom it is unlawful to make such an offer, invitation or solicitation. In those
circumstances, the Letter of Offer, the Abridged Letter of Offer, the Rights Entitlement Letter or the
Application Form must be treated as sent for information only and should not be acted upon for making
an Application and should not be copied or re-distributed.

Accordingly, persons receiving a copy of the Letter of Offer, the Abridged Letter of Offer, the Rights
Entitlement Letter or the Application Form should not, in connection with the issue of the Equity Shares
or the Rights Entitlements, distribute or send the Letter of Offer, the Abridged Letter of Offer, the Rights
Entitlement Letter or the Application Form in or into any jurisdiction where to do so, would, or might,
contravene local securities laws or regulations or would subject our Company or its affiliates or the Lead
Manager or their respective affiliates to any filing or registration requirement (other than in India). If the
Letter of Offer, the Abridged Letter of Offer, the Rights Entitlement Letter or the Application Form is
received by any person in any such jurisdiction, or by their agent or nominee, they must not seek to make
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an Application or acquire the Rights Entitlements referred to in the Letter of Offer, the Abridged Letter
of Offer, the Rights Entitlement Letter or the Application Form. Any person who makes an application
to acquire Rights Entitlements and the Equity Shares offered in the Issue, will be deemed to have
declared, represented and warranted that such person is authorized to acquire the Rights Entitlements
and the Equity Shares in compliance with all applicable laws and regulations prevailing in such person’s
jurisdiction and India, without requirement for our Company or our affiliates or the Lead Manager or
their respective affiliates to make any filing or registration (other than in India).

PROCESS OF MAKING AN APPLICATION IN THE ISSUE

In accordance with Regulation 76 of the SEBI ICDR Regulations, the SEBI Rights Issue Circulars and
the ASBA Circulars, all Shareholders desiring to make an Application in this Issue are mandatorily
required to use the ASBA process. Shareholders should carefully read the provisions applicable to such
Applications before making their Application through ASBA.

The Application Form can be used by the Eligible Equity Shareholders as well as the Renouncees, to
make Applications in this Issue basis the Rights Entitlement credited in their respective demat accounts
or demat suspense escrow account, as applicable. For further details on the Rights Entitlements and demat
suspense escrow account, see “Credit of Rights Entitlements in demat accounts of Eligible Equity
Shareholders” below.

Please note that one single Application Form shall be used by Shareholders to make Applications for all
Rights Entitlements available in a particular demat account or entire respective portion of the Rights
Entitlements in the demat suspense escrow account in case of resident Eligible Equity Shareholders
holding shares in physical form as on Record Date and applying in this Issue, as applicable. In case of
Shareholders who have provided details of demat account in accordance with the SEBI ICDR
Regulations, such Shareholders will have to apply for the Equity Shares from the same demat account in
which they are holding the Rights Entitlements and in case of multiple demat accounts, the Shareholders
are required to submit a separate Application Form for each demat account.

Shareholders may apply for the Equity Shares by submitting the Application Form to the Designated
Branch of the SCSB or online/electronic Application through the website of the SCSBs (if made available
by such SCSB) for authorising such SCSB to block Application Money payable on the Application in
their respective ASBA Accounts.

Shareholders are also advised to ensure that the Application Form is correctly filled up stating therein
the ASBA Account (in case of Application through ASBA process) in which an amount equivalent to
the amount payable on Application as stated in the Application Form will be blocked by the SCSB.

Applicants should note that they should very carefully fill-in their depository account details and PAN
in the Application Form or while submitting application through online/electronic Application through
the website of the SCSBs (if made available by such SCSB). Please note that incorrect depository account
details or PAN or Application Forms without depository account details shall be treated as incomplete
and shall be rejected. For details see “Grounds for Technical Rejection” below. Our Company, the
Lead Manager, the Registrar and the SCSBs shall not be liable for any incomplete or incorrect demat
details provided by the Applicants.

Additionally, in terms of Regulation 78 of the SEBI ICDR Regulations, the Eligible Equity Shareholders
may choose to accept the offer to participate in this Issue by making plain paper Applications. Please
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note that SCSBs shall accept such applications only if all details required for making the application as
per the SEBI ICDR Regulations are specified in the plain paper application and that Eligible Equity
Shareholders making an application in this Issue by way of plain paper applications shall not be permitted
to renounce any portion of their Rights Entitlements. For details, see “Making of an Application by
Eligible Equity Shareholders on Plain Paper under ASBA process” below.

Options available to the Eligible Equity Shareholders

The Rights Entitlement Letter will clearly indicate the number of Equity Shares that the Eligible Equity
Shareholder is entitled to.

If the Eligible Equity Shareholder applies in this Issue, then such Eligible Equity Shareholder can:

(1) apply for its Equity Shares to the full extent of its Rights Entitlements; or

(i1) apply for its Equity Shares to the extent of part of its Rights Entitlements (without renouncing
the other part); or

(ii1) apply for Equity Shares to the extent of part of its Rights Entitlements and renounce the other
part of its Rights Entitlements; or

(iv) apply for its Equity Shares to the full extent of its Rights Entitlements and apply for additional
Equity Shares; or

(V) renounce its Rights Entitlements in full.

Making of an Application through the ASBA process

Shareholders, wishing to participate in this Issue through the ASBA facility, is required to have an ASBA
enabled bank account with an SCSB, prior to making the Application. Shareholders desiring to make an
Application in this Issue through ASBA process, may submit the Application Form in physical mode to
the Designated Branches of the SCSB or online/ electronic Application through the website of the SCSBs
(if made available by such SCSB) for authorizing such SCSB to block Application Money payable on
the Application in their respective ASBA Accounts.

Shareholders should ensure that they have correctly submitted the Application Form and have provided
an authorisation to the SCSB, via the electronic mode, for blocking funds in the ASBA Account
equivalent to the Application Money mentioned in the Application Form, as the case may be, at the time
of submission of the Application.

For the list of banks which have been notified by SEBI to act as SCSBs for the ASBA process, please
refer to https://www.sebi.gov.in/sebiweb/other/OtherAction.do?doRecognisedFpi=yes&intmld=34.

Please note that subject to SCSBs complying with the requirements of the SEBI circular bearing reference
number CIR/CFD/DIL/13/2012 dated September 25, 2012, within the periods stipulated therein,
Applications may be submitted at the Designated Branches of the SCSBs. Further, in terms of the SEBI
circular bearing reference number CIR/CFD/DIL/1/2013 dated January 2, 2013, it is clarified that for
making Applications by SCSBs on their own account using ASBA facility, each such SCSB should have
a separate account in its own name with any other SEBI registered SCSB(s). Such account shall be used
solely for the purpose of making an Application in this Issue and clear demarcated funds should be
available in such account for such an Application.

202



The Lead Manager, our Company, its directors, its employees, affiliates, associates and their respective
directors and officers and the Registrar shall not take any responsibility for acts, mistakes, errors,
omissions and commissions etc., in relation to Applications accepted by SCSBs, Applications uploaded
by SCSBs, Applications accepted but not uploaded by SCSBs or Applications accepted and uploaded
without blocking funds in the ASBA Accounts.

Do’s for Shareholders applying through ASBA:

(a) Ensure that the details about your Depository Participant, PAN and beneficiary account are
correct and the beneficiary account is activated as the Equity Shares will be allotted in the
dematerialized form only.

(b) Ensure that the Applications are submitted with the Designated Branch of the SCSBs and details
of the correct bank account have been provided in the Application.

(©) Ensure that there are sufficient funds (equal to {number of Equity Shares (including additional
Equity Shares) applied for} X {Application Money of Equity Shares}) available in ASBA
Account mentioned in the Application Form before submitting the Application to the respective
Designated Branch of the SCSB.

(d) Ensure that you have authorised the SCSB for blocking funds equivalent to the total amount
payable on application mentioned in the Application Form, in the ASBA Account, of which
details are provided in the Application Form and have signed the same.

() Ensure that you have a bank account with an SCSB providing ASBA facility in your location
and the Application is made through that SCSB providing ASBA facility in such location.

63} Ensure that you receive an acknowledgement from the Designated Branch of the SCSB for your
submission of the Application Form in physical form or plain paper Application.

(2) Ensure that the name(s) given in the Application Form is exactly the same as the name(s) in
which the beneficiary account is held with the Depository Participant. In case the Application
Form is submitted in joint names, ensure that the beneficiary account is also held in same joint
names and such names are in the same sequence in which they appear in the Application Form
and the Rights Entitlement Letter.

Don’ts for Shareholders applying through ASBA:

(a) Do not submit the Application Form after you have submitted a plain paper Application to a
Designated Branch of the SCSB or vice versa.

(b) Do not send your physical Application to the Lead Manager, the Registrar, the Escrow
Collection Bank(s) (assuming that such Escrow Collection Bank is not an SCSB), a branch of
the SCSB which is not a Designated Branch of the SCSB or our Company; instead submit the
same to a Designated Branch of the SCSB only.

(©) Do not instruct the SCSBs to unblock the funds blocked under the ASBA process upon making
the Application.

(d) Do not submit Application Form using third party ASBA account.

Making of an Application by Eligible Equity Shareholders on Plain Paper under ASBA process
An Eligible Equity Shareholder in India who is eligible to apply under the ASBA process may make an
Application to subscribe to this Issue on plain paper in case of non-receipt of Application Form as

detailed above. In such cases of non-receipt of the Application Form through e-mail or physical delivery
(where applicable) and the Eligible Equity Shareholder not being in a position to obtain it from any other

203



source may make an Application to subscribe to this Issue on plain paper with the same details as per the
Application Form that is available on the website of the Registrar, Stock Exchanges or the Lead Manager.
An Eligible Equity Shareholder shall submit the plain paper Application to the Designated Branch of the
SCSB for authorising such SCSB to block Application Money in the said bank account maintained with
the same SCSB. Applications on plain paper will not be accepted from any Eligible Equity Shareholder
who has not provided an Indian address or is a U.S. Person or in the United States.

Please note that the Eligible Equity Shareholders who are making the Application on plain paper shall
not be entitled to renounce their Rights Entitlements and should not utilize the Application Form for any
purpose including renunciation even if it is received subsequently.

The Application on plain paper, duly signed by the Eligible Equity Shareholder including joint holders,
in the same order and as per specimen recorded with his/her bank, must reach the office of the Designated
Branch of the SCSB before the Issue Closing Date and should contain the following particulars:

(a) Name of our Company, being Advik Capital Limited;

(1) Name and address of the Eligible Equity Shareholder including joint holders (in the same order
and as per specimen recorded with our Company or the Depository);

(i1) Folio Number (in case of Eligible Equity Shareholders who hold Equity Shares in physical form
as on Record Date)/DP and Client ID;

(iii) Except for Applications on behalf of the Central or State Government, the residents of Sikkim
and the officials appointed by the courts, PAN of the Eligible Equity Shareholder and for each
Eligible Equity Shareholder in case of joint names, irrespective of the total value of the Equity
Shares applied for pursuant to this Issue

(iv) Number of Equity Shares held as on Record Date;

(v) Allotment option — only dematerialised form;

(vi) Number of Equity Shares entitled to;

(vii) Number of Equity Shares applied for within the Rights Entitlements;

(vii))  Number of additional Equity Shares applied for, if any (applicable only if entire Rights
Entitlements have been applied for);

(ix) Total number of Equity Shares applied for;

(x) Total amount paid at the rate of Rs. 1 per Equity Share;

(x1) Details of the ASBA Account such as the SCSB account number, name, address and branch of
the relevant SCSB;

(xii) In case of non-resident Eligible Equity Shareholders making an application with an Indian
address, details of the NRE/FCNR/NRO account such as the account number, name, address
and branch of the SCSB with which the account is maintained;

(xiii))  Authorisation to the Designated Branch of the SCSB to block an amount equivalent to the
Application Money in the ASBA Account;

(xiv)  Signature of the Eligible Equity Shareholder (in case of joint holders, to appear in the same
sequence and order as they appear in the records of the SCSB); and

(xv) All such Eligible Equity Shareholders are deemed to have accepted the following:

“I/ We will not offer, sell or otherwise transfer any of the Rights Equity Shares which may be
acquired by us in any jurisdiction or under any circumstances in which such offer or sale is not
authorized or to any person to whom it is unlawful to make such offer, sale or invitation except
under circumstances that will result in compliance with any applicable laws or regulations. We

satisfy, and each account for which we are acting satisfies, all suitability standards for
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Shareholders in investments of the type subscribed for herein imposed by the jurisdiction of our
residence.

1/ We understand and agree that the Rights Entitlement and Rights Equity Shares may not be
reoffered, resold, pledged or otherwise transferred except in an offshore transaction in
compliance with Regulation S, or otherwise pursuant to an exemption from, or in a transaction

not subject to, the registration requirements of the US Securities Act.

1/ We (i) am/ are, and the person, if any, for whose account I/ we am/ are acquiring such Rights
Entitlement and/ or the Rights Equity Shares is/ are, outside the U.S., (ii) am/ are not a “U.S.
Person” as defined in (“Regulation S”), and (iii) is/ are acquiring the Rights Entitlement and/
or the Rights Equity Shares in an offshore transaction meeting the requirements of Regulation
S.

1/ We acknowledge that the Company, the Lead Manager, its affiliates and others will rely upon
the truth and accuracy of the foregoing representations and agreements.”

In cases where Multiple Application Forms are submitted for Applications pertaining to Rights
Entitlements credited to the same demat account or in demat suspense escrow account, as applicable,
including cases where a Shareholders submits Application Forms along with a plain paper Application,

such Applications shall be liable to be rejected.

Shareholders are requested to strictly adhere to these instructions. Failure to do so could result in an
application being rejected, with our Company, the Lead Manager and the Registrar not having any
liability to the Shareholders. The plain paper Application format will be available on the website of the
Registrar at www.skylinerta.com .

Our Company, the Lead Manager and the Registrar shall not be responsible if the Applications are not
uploaded by the SCSB or funds are not blocked in the Shareholders” ASBA Accounts on or before the
Issue Closing Date.

Making of an Application by Eligible Equity Shareholders holding Equity Shares in physical form

Please note that in accordance with Regulation 77A of the SEBI ICDR Regulations read with the SEBI
Rights Issue Circulars, the credit of Rights Entitlements and Allotment of Equity Shares shall be made
in dematerialised form only. Accordingly, Eligible Equity Shareholders holding Equity Shares in
physical form as on Record Date and desirous of subscribing to Equity Shares in this Issue are advised
to furnish the details of their demat account to the Registrar or our Company at least two Working Days
prior to the Issue Closing Date, to enable the credit of their Rights Entitlements in their respective demat
accounts at least one day before the Issue Closing Date.

Prior to the Issue Opening Date, the Rights Entitlements of those Eligible Equity Shareholders, among
others, who hold Equity Shares in physical form, and whose demat account details are not available with
our Company or the Registrar, shall be credited in a demat suspense escrow account opened by our
Company.

Eligible Equity Shareholders, who hold Equity Shares in physical form as on Record Date and who have

opened their demat accounts after the Record Date, shall adhere to following procedure for participating
in this Issue:
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(a) The Eligible Equity Shareholders shall send a letter to the Registrar containing the name(s),
address, e-mail address, contact details and the details of their demat account along with copy
of self-attested PAN and self-attested client master sheet of their demat account either through
email to the RTA at ipo@skylinerta.com or by post, speed post, courier or hand delivery, so as
to reach to the Registrar no later than two Working Days prior to the Issue Closing Date;

(b) The Registrar shall, after verifying the details of such demat account, transfer the Rights
Entitlements of such Eligible Equity Shareholders to their demat accounts at least one day
before the Issue Closing Date;

(©) The remaining procedure for Application shall be same as set out in “- Making of an Application
by Eligible Equity Shareholders on Plain Paper under ASBA process” mentioned above.

Resident Eligible Equity Shareholders who hold Equity Shares in physical form as on the Record Date
will not be allowed renounce their Rights Entitlements in the Issue. However, such Eligible Equity
Shareholders, where the dematerialized Rights Entitlements are transferred from the suspense escrow
demat account to the respective demat accounts within prescribed timelines, can apply for additional
Equity Shares while submitting the Application through ASBA process.

Application for Additional Equity Shares

Shareholders are eligible to apply for additional Equity Shares over and above their Rights Entitlements,
provided that they are eligible to apply for Equity Shares under applicable law and they have applied for
all the Equity Shares forming part of their Rights Entitlements without renouncing them in whole or in
part. Where the number of additional Equity Shares applied for exceeds the number available for
Allotment, the Allotment would be made as per the Basis of Allotment finalised in consultation with the
Designated Stock Exchange. Applications for additional Equity Shares shall be considered and Allotment
shall be made in accordance with the SEBI ICDR Regulations and in the manner as set out in “Basis of
Allotment” mentioned below.

Eligible Equity Shareholders who renounce their Rights Entitlements cannot apply for additional Equity
Shares. Non-resident Renouncees who are not Eligible Equity Shareholders cannot apply for additional
Equity Shares.

Additional general instructions for Shareholders in relation to making of an application

(a) Please read the Letter of Offer carefully to understand the Application process and applicable
settlement process.

(b) Please read the instructions on the Application Form sent to you. Application should be
complete in all respects. The Application Form found incomplete with regard to any of the
particulars required to be given therein, and/or which are not completed in conformity with the
terms of the Letter of Offer, the Abridged Letter of Offer, the Rights Entitlement Letter and the
Application Form are liable to be rejected. The Application Form must be filled in English.

(©) In case of non-receipt of Application Form, Application can be made on plain paper mentioning
all necessary details as mentioned under the section “Making of an Application by Eligible
Equity Shareholders on Plain Paper under ASBA process” mentioned above.

(d) Applications should be submitted to the Designated Branch of the SCSB or made
online/electronic through the website of the SCSBs (if made available by such SCSB) for
authorising such SCSB to block Application Money payable on the Application in their
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respective ASBA Accounts. Please note that on the Issue Closing Date, (i) Applications through
ASBA process will be uploaded until 5.00 p.m. (Indian Standard Time) or such extended time
as permitted by the Stock Exchanges.

Applications should not be submitted to the Banker(s) to the Issue or Escrow Collection Bank(s)
(assuming that such Escrow Collection Bank is not an SCSB), our Company or the Registrar or
the Lead Manager.

All Applicants, and in the case of Application in joint names, each of the joint Applicants,
should mention their PAN allotted under the Income-tax Act, irrespective of the amount of the
Application. Except for Applications on behalf of the Central or the State Government, the
residents of Sikkim and the officials appointed by the courts, Applications without PAN will be
considered incomplete and are liable to be rejected. With effect from August 16, 2010, the demat
accounts for Shareholders for which PAN details have not been verified shall be “suspended for
credit” and no Allotment and credit of Equity Shares pursuant to this Issue shall be made into
the accounts of such Shareholders.

Ensure that the demographic details such as address, PAN, DP ID, Client ID, bank account
details and occupation (“Demographic Details™) are updated, true and correct, in all respects.
Shareholders applying under this Issue should note that on the basis of name of the
Shareholders, DP ID and Client ID provided by them in the Application Form or the plain paper
Applications, as the case may be, the Registrar will obtain Demographic Details from the
Depository. Therefore, Sharecholders applying under this Issue should carefully fill in their
Depository Account details in the Application. These Demographic Details would be used for
all correspondence with such Shareholders including mailing of the letters intimating
unblocking of bank account of the respective Sharcholders and/or refund. The Demographic
Details given by the Shareholders in the Application Form would not be used for any other
purposes by the Registrar. Hence, Shareholders are advised to update their Demographic Details
as provided to their Depository Participants. The Allotment Advice and the e-mail intimating
unblocking of ASBA Account or refund (if any) would be e-mailed to the address of the
Shareholders as per the e-mail address provided to our Company or the Registrar or
Demographic Details received from the Depositories. The Registrar will give instructions
to the SCSBs for unblocking funds in the ASBA Account to the extent Equity Shares are
not allotted to such Shareholders. Please note that any such delay shall be at the sole risk
of the Shareholders and none of our Company, the SCSBs, Registrar or the Lead Manager
shall be liable to compensate the Shareholders for any losses caused due to any such delay
or be liable to pay any interest for such delay. In case no corresponding record is available
with the Depositories that match three parameters, (a) names of the Shareholders
(including the order of names of joint holders), (b) DP ID, and (c) Client ID, then such
Application Forms are liable to be rejected.

By signing the Application Forms, Shareholders would be deemed to have authorised the
Depositories to provide, upon request, to the Registrar, the required Demographic Details as
available on its records.

For physical Applications through ASBA at Designated Branches of SCSB, signatures should
be either in English or Hindi or in any other language specified in the Eighth Schedule to the
Constitution of India. Signatures other than in any such language or thumb impression must be
attested by a Notary Public or a Special Executive Magistrate under his/her official seal. The
Shareholders must sign the Application as per the specimen signature recorded with the SCSB.
Shareholders should provide correct DP ID and Client ID/ Folio number (for Eligible Equity
Shareholders who hold Equity Shares in physical form as on Record Date) while submitting the
Application. Such DP ID and Client ID/ Folio number should match the demat account details
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in the records available with Company and/or Registrar, failing which such Application is liable
to be rejected. Shareholders will be solely responsible for any error or inaccurate detail provided
in the Application. Our Company, the Lead Manager, SCSBs or the Registrar will not be liable
for any such rejections.

In case of joint holders and physical Applications through ASBA process, all joint holders must
sign the relevant part of the Application Form in the same order and as per the specimen
signature(s) recorded with the SCSB. In case of joint Applicants, reference, if any, will be made
in the first Applicant’s name and all communication will be addressed to the first Applicant.
All communication in connection with Application for the Equity Shares, including any change
in contact details of the Eligible Equity Shareholders should be addressed to the Registrar prior
to the date of Allotment in this Issue quoting the name of the first/sole Applicant, Folio number
(for Eligible Equity Shareholders who hold Equity Shares in physical form as on Record
Date)/DP ID and Client ID and Application Form number, as applicable. In case of any change
in contact details of the Eligible Equity Shareholders, the Eligible Equity Shareholders should
also send the intimation for such change to the respective depository participant, or to our
Company or the Registrar in case of Eligible Equity Shareholders holding Equity Shares in
physical form.

Shareholders are required to ensure that the number of Equity Shares applied for by them do
not exceed the prescribed limits under the applicable law.

Do not apply if you are ineligible to participate in this Issue under the securities laws applicable
to your jurisdiction.

Do not submit the GIR number instead of the PAN as the application is liable to be rejected on
this ground.

Avoid applying on the Issue Closing Date due to risk of delay/ restrictions in making any
physical Application.

Do not pay the Application Money in cash, by money order, pay order or postal order.

Do not submit multiple Applications.

No investment under the FDI route (i.e. any investment which would result in the Shareholders
holding 10% or more of the fully diluted paid-up equity share capital of the Company or any
FDI investment for which an approval from the government was taken in the past) will be
allowed in the Issue unless such application is accompanied with necessary approval or covered
under a pre-existing approval from the government. It will be the sole responsibility of the
Shareholders to ensure that the necessary approval or the pre-existing approval from the
government is valid in order to make any investment in the Issue. The Lead Manager and our
Company will not be responsible for any allotments made by relying on such approvals.

An Applicant being an OCB is required not to be under the adverse notice of RBI and in order
to apply for this issue as an incorporated non-resident must do so in accordance with the FDI
Circular 2020 and Foreign Exchange Management (Non-Debt Instrument) Rules, 2019.

Grounds for Technical Rejection

Applications made in this Issue are liable to be rejected on the following grounds:

(a)

(b)

DP ID and Client ID mentioned in Application does not match with the DP ID and Client ID
records available with the Registrar.

Details of PAN mentioned in the Application does not match with the PAN records available
with the Registrar.
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Sending an Application to our Company, the Lead Manager, Registrar, Escrow Collection
Bank(s) (assuming that such Escrow Collection Bank is not a SCSB), to a branch of a SCSB
which is not a Designated Branch of the SCSB.

Insufficient funds are available in the ASBA Account with the SCSB for blocking the
Application Money.

Funds in the ASBA Account whose details are mentioned in the Application Form having been
frozen pursuant to regulatory orders.

Account holder not signing the Application or declaration mentioned therein.

Submission of more than one Application Form for Rights Entitlements available in a particular
demat account.

Multiple Application Forms, including cases where a Shareholders submits Application Forms
along with a plain paper Application.

Submitting the GIR number instead of the PAN (except for Applications on behalf of the Central
or State Government, the residents of Sikkim and the officials appointed by the courts).
Applications by persons not competent to contract under the Indian Contract Act, 1872, except
Applications by minors having valid demat accounts as per the Demographic Details provided
by the Depositories.

Applications by SCSB on own account, other than through an ASBA Account in its own name
with any other SCSB.

Application Forms which are not submitted by the Shareholders within the time periods
prescribed in the Application Form and the Letter of Offer.

Physical Application Forms not duly signed by the sole or joint Shareholders, as applicable.
Application Forms accompanied by stock invest, outstation cheques, post-dated cheques,
money order, postal order or outstation demand.

If a Shareholders is (a) debarred by SEBI; or (b) if SEBI has revoked the order or has provided
any interim relief then failure to attach a copy of such SEBI order allowing the Shareholders to
subscribe to their Rights Entitlements.

Applications which: (i) appears to our Company or its agents to have been executed in,
electronically transmitted from or dispatched from the United States (other than from persons
in the United States who are U.S. QIBs and QPs) or other jurisdictions where the offer and sale
of the Equity Shares is not permitted under laws of such jurisdictions; (ii) does not include the
relevant certifications set out in the Application Form, including to the effect that the person
submitting and/or renouncing the Application Form is (a) both a U.S. QIB and a QP, if in the
United States or a U.S. Person or (b) outside the United States and is a non-U.S. Person, and in
each case such person is eligible to subscribe for the Equity Shares under applicable securities
laws and is complying with laws of jurisdictions applicable to such person in connection with
this Issue; and our Company shall not be bound to issue or allot any Equity Shares in respect of
any such Application Form.

Applications which have evidence of being executed or made in contravention of applicable
securities laws.

Application from Shareholders that are residing in U.S. address as per the depository records
(other than from persons in the United States who are U.S. QIBs and QPs).

Applications by non-resident Shareholders.

(a)

Payment from third party bank accounts.
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. Multiple Applications

In case where multiple Applications are made using same demat account, such Applications shall be
liable to be rejected. A separate Application can be made in respect of Rights Entitlements in each demat
account of the Shareholders and such Applications shall not be treated as multiple applications. Similarly,
a separate Application can be made against Equity Shares held in dematerialized form and Equity Shares
held in physical form, and such Applications shall not be treated as multiple applications. Further
supplementary Applications in relation to further Equity Shares with/without using additional Rights
Entitlement will not be treated as multiple application. A separate Application can be made in respect of
each scheme of a mutual fund registered with SEBI and such Applications shall not be treated as multiple
applications. For details, see “Procedure for Applications by Mutual Funds” mentioned below.

In cases where Multiple Application Forms are submitted, including cases where (a) an Shareholders
submits Application Forms along with a plain paper Application or (b) multiple plain paper Applications
(c) or multiple applications through ASBA, such Applications shall be treated as multiple applications
and are liable to be rejected, other than multiple applications submitted by any of our Promoter or
members of the Promoter Group to meet the minimum subscription requirements applicable to this Issue
as described in “Capital Structure - Intention and extent of participation by our Promoter” mentioned
above.

Procedure for Applications by certain categories of Shareholders

Procedure for Applications by FPIs

In terms of applicable FEMA Rules and the SEBI FPI Regulations, investments by FPIs in the Equity
Shares is subject to certain limits, i.e., the individual holding of an FPI (including its Shareholders group
(which means multiple entities registered as foreign portfolio Shareholders and directly and indirectly
having common ownership of more than 50% of common control)) shall be below 10% of our post-Issue
Equity Share capital. In case the total holding of an FPI or Shareholders group increases beyond 10% of
the total paid-up Equity Share capital of our Company, on a fully diluted basis or 10% or more of the
paid-up value of any series of debentures or preference shares or share warrants that may be issued by
our Company, the total investment made by the FPI or Shareholders group will be re-classified as FDI
subject to the conditions as specified by SEBI and RBI in this regard and our Company and the
Shareholders will also be required to comply with applicable reporting requirements.

FPIs are permitted to participate in this Issue subject to compliance with conditions and restrictions which
may be specified by the Government from time to time. FPIs who wish to participate in the Issue are
advised to use the Application Form for non-residents. Subject to compliance with all applicable Indian
laws, rules, regulations, guidelines and approvals in terms of Regulation 21 of the SEBI FPI Regulations,
an FPI may issue, subscribe to or otherwise deal in offshore derivative instruments (as defined under the
SEBI FPI Regulations as any instrument, by whatever name called, which is issued overseas by an FPI
against securities held by it that are listed or proposed to be listed on any recognised stock exchange in
India, as its underlying) directly or indirectly, only in the event (i) such offshore derivative instruments
are issued only to persons registered as Category I FPI under the SEBI FPI Regulations; (ii) such offshore
derivative instruments are issued only to persons who are eligible for registration as Category 1 FPIs
(where an entity has an investment manager who is from the Financial Action Task Force member
country, the investment manager shall not be required to be registered as a Category I FPI); (iii) such
offshore derivative instruments are issued after compliance with ‘know your client’ norms; and (iii)
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compliance with other conditions as may be prescribed by SEBI.

An FPI issuing offshore derivative instruments is also required to ensure that any transfer of offshore
derivative instruments issued by or on its behalf, is carried out subject to inter alia the following

conditions:

1. such offshore derivative instruments are transferred only to persons in accordance with the SEBI
FPI Regulations; and

2. prior consent of the FPI is obtained for such transfer, except when the persons to whom the
offshore derivative instruments are to be transferred to are pre — approved by the FPI.

No investment under the FDI route will be allowed in the Issue unless such application is accompanied
with necessary approval or covered under a pre-existing approval.

Procedure for Applications by AIFs, FVCIs, VCFs and FDI route

The SEBI VCF Regulations and the SEBI FVCI Regulations prescribe, among other things, the
investment restrictions on VCFs and FVCIs registered with SEBI. Further, the SEBI AIF Regulations
prescribe, among other things, the investment restrictions on AIFs.

As per the SEBI VCF Regulations and SEBI FVCI Regulations, VCFs and FVClIs are not permitted to
invest in listed companies pursuant to rights issues. Accordingly, applications by VCFs or FVClIs will
not be accepted in this Issue. Further, venture capital funds registered as Category I AlFs, as defined in
the SEBI AIF Regulations, are not permitted to invest in listed companies pursuant to rights issues.
Accordingly, applications by venture capital funds registered as category I AIFs, as defined in the SEBI
AIF Regulations, will not be accepted in this Issue. Other categories of AlFs are permitted to apply in
this Issue subject to compliance with the SEBI AIF Regulations. Such AIFs having bank accounts with
SCSBs that are providing ASBA in cities / centres where such AIFs are located are mandatorily required
to make use of the ASBA facility. Otherwise, applications of such AIFs are liable for rejection.

No investment under the FDI route (i.e any investment which would result in the Shareholders holding
10% or more of the fully diluted paid-up equity share capital of the Company or any FDI investment for
which an approval from the government was taken in the past) will be allowed in the Issue unless such
application is accompanied with necessary approval or covered under a pre-existing approval from the
government. It will be the sole responsibility of the Shareholders to ensure that the necessary approval
or the pre-existing approval from the government is valid in order to make any investment in the Issue.
The Lead Manager and our Company will not be responsible for any allotments made by relying on such
approvals.

Procedure for Applications by NRIs

Investments by NRIs are governed by the FEMA Rules. Applications will not be accepted from NRIs
that are ineligible to participate in this Issue under applicable securities laws.

As per the FEMA Rules, an NRI or Overseas Citizen of India (“OCI”) may purchase or sell capital
instruments of a listed Indian company on repatriation basis, on a recognised stock exchange in India,
subject to the conditions, inter alia, that the total holding by any individual NRI or OCI will not exceed
5% of the total paid- up equity capital on a fully diluted basis or should not exceed 5% of the paid-up
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value of each series of debentures or preference shares or share warrants issued by an Indian company
and the total holdings of all NRIs and OCIs put together will not exceed 10% of the total paid-up equity
capital on a fully diluted basis or shall not exceed 10% of the paid-up value of each series of debentures
or preference shares or share warrants. The aggregate ceiling of 10% may be raised to 24%, if a special
resolution to that effect is passed by the general body of the Indian company.

Further, in accordance with press note 3 of 2020, the FDI Policy has been recently amended to state that
all investments by entities incorporate in a country which shares land border with India or where
beneficial owner of an investment into India is situated in or is a citizen of any such country (“Restricted
Shareholders™), will require prior approval of the Government of India. It is not clear from the press note
whether or not an issue of the Rights Equity Shares to Restricted Shareholders will also require prior
approval of the Government of India and each Shareholders should seek independent legal advice about
its ability to participate in the Issue. In the event such prior approval has been obtained, the Shareholders
shall intimate our Company and the Registrar about such approval within the Issue Period.

Procedure for Applications by Mutual Funds

A separate application can be made in respect of each scheme of an Indian mutual fund registered with
SEBI and such applications shall not be treated as multiple applications. The applications made by asset
management companies or custodians of a mutual fund should clearly indicate the name of the concerned
scheme for which the application is being made.

Procedure for Applications by Systemically Important Non-Banking Financial Companies
(“NBFC-SI”)

In case of an application made by NBFC-SI registered with RBI, (a) the certificate of registration issued
by RBI under Section 451A of RBI Act, 1934 and (b) net worth certificates from its statutory auditors or
any independent chartered accountant based on the last audited financial statements is required to be
attached to the application.

Last date for Application

The last date for submission of the duly filled in the Application Form or a plain paper Application is,
[e], i.e., Issue Closing Date. Our Board or any committee thereof may extend the said date for such
period as it may determine from time to time, subject to the Issue Period not exceeding 30 days from the
Issue Opening Date (inclusive of the Issue Opening Date).

If the Application Form is not submitted with an SCSB, uploaded with the Stock Exchanges and the
Application Money is not blocked with the SCSB, on or before the Issue Closing Date or such date as
may be extended by our Board or any committee thereof, the invitation to offer contained in the Letter
of Offer shall be deemed to have been declined and our Board or any committee thereof shall be at liberty
to dispose of the Equity Shares hereby offered, as set out in “Basis of Allotment” mentioned below.

Please note that on the Issue Closing Date, applications through ASBA process will be uploaded until
5.00 p.m. (Indian Standard Time) or such extended time as permitted by the Stock Exchanges.

Please ensure that the Application Form and necessary details are filled in. In place of Application
number, Shareholders can mention the reference number of the e-mail received from Registrar informing
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about their Rights Entitlement or last eight digits of the demat account. Alternatively, SCSBs may

mention their internal reference number in place of application number.

Withdrawal of Application

Shareholders who have applied in this Issue may withdraw their Application at any time during Issue
Period by approaching the SCSB where application is submitted. However, no Shareholders applying
through ASBA facility, may withdraw their Application post the Issue Closing Date.

Disposal of Application and Application Money

No acknowledgment will be issued for the Application Money received by our Company. However, the
Designated Branches of the SCSBs receiving the Application Form will acknowledge its receipt by
stamping and returning the acknowledgment slip at the bottom of each Application Form.

Our Board reserves its full, unqualified and absolute right to accept or reject any Application, in whole
or in part, and in either case without assigning any reason thereto.

In case an Application is rejected in full, the whole of the Application Money will be unblocked in the
respective ASBA Accounts, in case of Applications through ASBA. Wherever an Application is rejected
in part, the balance of Application Money, if any, after adjusting any money due on Equity Shares
Allotted, will be refunded / unblocked in the respective bank accounts from which Application Money
was received/ASBA Accounts of the Shareholders within a period of 4 days from the Issue Closing Date.
In case of failure to do so, our Company shall pay interest at such rate and within such time as specified
under applicable law.

For further instructions, please read the Application Form carefully.

CREDIT OF RIGHTS ENTITLEMENTS IN DEMAT ACCOUNTS OF ELIGIBLE EQUITY
SHAREHOLDERS

> Rights Entitlements

As your name appears as a beneficial owner in respect of the issued and paid-up Equity Shares held in
dematerialised form or appears in the register of members of our Company as an Eligible Equity
Shareholder in respect of our Equity Shares held in physical form, as on the Record Date, you may be
entitled to subscribe to the number of Equity Shares as set out in the Rights Entitlement Letter.

Eligible Equity Shareholders can also obtain the details of their respective Rights Entitlements from the
website of the Registrar (i.e., www.skylinerta.com ) by entering their DP ID and Client ID or Folio
Number (for Eligible Equity Shareholders who hold Equity Shares in physical form as on Record Date)
and PAN. The link for the same shall also be available on the website of our Company (i.e.,
www.advikgroup.com).

In this regard, our Company has made necessary arrangements with NSDL and CDSL for crediting of
the Rights Entitlements to the demat accounts of the Eligible Equity Shareholders in a dematerialized
form. A separate ISIN for the Rights Entitlements has also been generated which is [e]. The said ISIN
shall remain frozen (for debit) until the Issue Opening Date. The said ISIN shall be suspended for transfer
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by the Depositories post the Issue Closing Date.

Additionally, our Company will submit the details of the total Rights Entitlements credited to the demat
accounts of the Eligible Equity Shareholders and the demat suspense escrow account to the Stock
Exchanges after completing the corporate action. The details of the Rights Entitlements with respect to
each Eligible Equity Shareholders can be accessed by such respective Eligible Equity Shareholders on
the website of the Registrar after keying in their respective details along with other security control

measures implemented thereat.

Rights Entitlements shall be credited to the respective demat accounts of Eligible Equity Shareholders
before the Issue Opening Date only in dematerialised form. Further, if no Application is made by the
Eligible Equity Shareholders of Rights Entitlements on or before Issue Closing Date, such Rights
Entitlements shall get lapsed and shall be extinguished after the Issue Closing Date. No Equity Shares
for such lapsed Rights Entitlements will be credited, even if such Rights Entitlements were purchased
from market and purchaser will lose the premium paid to acquire the Rights Entitlements. Persons who
are credited the Rights Entitlements are required to make an Application to apply for Equity Shares
offered under Rights Issue for subscribing to the Equity Shares offered under Issue.

If Eligible Equity Shareholders holding Equity Shares in physical form as on Record Date, have not
provided the details of their demat accounts to our Company or to the Registrar, they are required to
provide their demat account details to our Company or the Registrar not later than two Working Days
prior to the Issue Closing Date, to enable the credit of the Rights Entitlements by way of transfer from
the demat suspense escrow account to their respective demat accounts, at least one day before the Issue
Closing Date. Such Eligible Equity Shareholders holding shares in physical form can update the details
of their respective demat accounts on the website of the Registrar (i.e. https:/www.skylinerta.com ).
Such Eligible Equity Shareholders can make an Application only after the Rights Entitlements is credited
to their respective demat accounts.

In accordance with Regulation 77A of the SEBI ICDR Regulations read with the SEBI Rights Issue
Circulars, the credit of Rights Entitlements and Allotment of Equity Shares shall be made in
dematerialized form only. Prior to the Issue Opening Date, our Company shall credit the Rights
Entitlements to (i) the demat accounts of the Eligible Equity Shareholders holding the Equity Shares in
dematerialised form; and (ii) a demat suspense escrow account opened by our Company, for the Eligible
Equity Shareholders which would comprise Rights Entitlements relating to (a) Equity Shares held in the
account of the IEPF authority; or (b) the demat accounts of the Eligible Equity Shareholder which are
frozen or the Equity Shares which are lying in the unclaimed suspense account (including those pursuant
to Regulation 39 of the SEBI LODR Regulations) or details of which are unavailable with our Company
or with the Registrar on the Record Date; or (c) Equity Shares held by Eligible Equity Shareholders
holding Equity Shares in physical form as on Record Date where details of demat accounts are not
provided by Eligible Equity Shareholders to our Company or Registrar; or (d) credit of the Rights
Entitlements returned/reversed/failed; or (e) the ownership of the Equity Shares currently under dispute,
including any court proceedings, if any; or (f) non-institutional equity shareholders in the United States.

Eligible Equity Shareholders are requested to provide relevant details (such as copies of self- attested
PAN and client master sheet of demat account etc., details/ records confirming the legal and beneficial
ownership of their respective Equity Shares) to our Company or the Registrar not later than two Working
Days prior to the Issue Closing Date, i.e., by [®] to enable the credit of their Rights Entitlements by way
of transfer from the demat suspense escrow account to their demat account at least one day before the
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Issue Closing Date, to enable such Eligible Equity Shareholders to make an application in this Issue, and
this communication shall serve as an intimation to such Eligible Equity Shareholders in this regard. Such
Eligible Equity Shareholders are also requested to ensure that their demat account, details of which have
been provided to our Company or the Registrar account is active to facilitate the aforementioned transfer.

RENUNCIATION AND TRADING OF RIGHTS ENTITLEMENT

> Renouncees

All rights and obligations of the Eligible Equity Shareholders in relation to Applications and refunds
pertaining to this Issue shall apply to the Renouncee(s) as well

> Renunciation of Rights Entitlements

This Issue includes a right exercisable by Eligible Equity Sharcholders to renounce the Rights
Entitlements credited to their respective demat account either in full or in part.

The renunciation from non-resident Eligible Equity Shareholder(s) to resident Indian(s) and vice versa
shall be subject to provisions of FEMA Rules and other circular, directions, or guidelines issued by RBI
or the Ministry of Finance from time to time. However, the facility of renunciation shall not be available
to or operate in favor of an Eligible Equity Shareholders being an erstwhile OCB unless the same is in
compliance with the FEMA Rules and other circular, directions, or guidelines issued by RBI or the

Ministry of Finance from time to time.

The renunciation of Rights Entitlements credited in your demat account can be made either by sale of
such Rights Entitlements, using the secondary market platform of the Stock Exchanges or through an
off-market transfer.

> Procedure for Renunciation of Rights Entitlements

The Eligible Equity Shareholders may renounce the Rights Entitlements, credited to their respective
demat accounts, either in full or in part (a) by using the secondary market platform of the Stock
Exchanges (the “On Market Renunciation”); or (b) through an off-market transfer (the “Off Market
Renunciation”), during the Renunciation Period. The Shareholders should have the demat Rights
Entitlements credited/lying in his/her own demat account prior to the renunciation. The trades through
On Market Renunciation and Off Market Renunciation will be settled by transferring the Rights
Entitlements through the depository mechanism.

Shareholders may be subject to adverse foreign, state or local tax or legal consequences as a result of
trading in the Rights Entitlements. Shareholders who intend to trade in the Rights Entitlements should
consult their tax advisor or stock-broker regarding any cost, applicable taxes, charges and expenses
(including brokerage) that may be levied for trading in Rights Entitlements.

Please note that the Rights Entitlements which are neither renounced nor subscribed by the Shareholders
on or before the Issue Closing Date shall lapse and shall be extinguished after the Issue Closing Date.

The Lead Manager and our Company accept no responsibility to bear or pay any cost, applicable taxes,
charges and expenses (including brokerage), and such costs will be incurred solely by the Shareholders.
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(a) On Market Renunciation

The Eligible Equity Shareholders may renounce the Rights Entitlements, credited to their respective
demat accounts by trading/selling them on the secondary market platform of the Stock Exchanges
through a registered stock-broker in the same manner as the existing Equity Shares of our Company.

In this regard, in terms of provisions of the SEBI ICDR Regulations and the SEBI Rights Issue Circulars,
the Rights Entitlements credited to the respective demat accounts of the Eligible Equity Shareholders
shall be admitted for trading on the Stock Exchanges under ISIN [e] subject to requisite approvals. Prior
to the Issue Opening Date, our Company will obtain the approval from the Stock Exchanges for trading
of Rights Entitlements. No assurance can be given regarding the active or sustained On Market
Renunciation or the price at which the Rights Entitlements will trade. The details for trading in Rights
Entitlements will be as specified by the Stock Exchanges from time to time.

The Rights Entitlements are tradable in dematerialized form only. The market lot for trading of Rights
Entitlements is one Rights Entitlements.

The On Market Renunciation shall take place only during the Renunciation Period for On Market
Renunciation, i.e., from [e] to [e] (both days inclusive).

The Shareholders holding the Rights Entitlements who desire to sell their Rights Entitlements will have
to do so through their registered stock-brokers by quoting the ISIN [®] and indicating the details of the
Rights Entitlements they intend to trade.

The Shareholders can place order for sale of Rights Entitlements only to the extent of Rights Entitlements
available in their demat account.

The On Market Renunciation shall take place electronically on secondary market platform of BSE and
NSE under automatic order matching mechanism and on ‘T+2 rolling settlement basis’, where ‘T’ refers
to the date of trading. The transactions will be settled on trade-for-trade basis. Upon execution of the
order, the stock-broker will issue a contract note in accordance with the requirements of the Stock
Exchanges and the SEBI.

(b) Off Market Renunciation

The Eligible Equity Shareholders may renounce the Rights Entitlements, credited to their respective
demat accounts by way of an off-market transfer through a depository participant. The Rights
Entitlements can be transferred in dematerialised form only.

Eligible Equity Shareholders are requested to ensure that renunciation through off-market transfer is
completed in such a manner that the Rights Entitlements are credited to the demat account of the
Renouncees on or prior to the Issue Closing Date to enable Renouncees to subscribe to the Equity Shares
in the Issue.

The Shareholders holding the Rights Entitlements who desire to transfer their Rights Entitlements will

have to do so through their depository participant by issuing a delivery instruction slip quoting the ISIN
[®], the details of the buyer and the details of the Rights Entitlements they intend to transfer. The buyer
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of the Rights Entitlements (unless already having given a standing receipt instruction) has to issue a
receipt instruction slip to their depository participant. The Shareholders can transfer Rights Entitlements
only to the extent of Rights Entitlements available in their demat account.

The instructions for transfer of Rights Entitlements can be issued during the working hours of the
depository participants.

The detailed rules for transfer of Rights Entitlements through off-market transfer shall be as specified by
the NSDL and CDSL from time to time.

MODE OF PAYMENT

All payments against the Application Forms shall be made only through ASBA facility. The Registrar
will not accept any payments against the Application Forms, if such payments are not made through
ASBA facility.

In case of Application through the ASBA facility, the Shareholders agrees to block the entire amount
payable on Application with the submission of the Application Form, by authorizing the SCSB to block
an amount, equivalent to the amount payable on Application, in the Shareholders” ASBA Account. The
SCSB may reject the application at the time of acceptance of Application Form if the ASBA Account,
details of which have been provided by the Shareholders in the Application Form does not have sufficient
funds equivalent to the amount payable on Application mentioned in the Application Form. Subsequent
to the acceptance of the Application by the SCSB, our Company would have a right to reject the
Application on technical grounds as set forth in the Letter of Offer.

After verifying that sufficient funds are available in the ASBA Account details of which are provided in
the Application Form, the SCSB shall block an amount equivalent to the Application Money mentioned
in the Application Form until the Transfer Date. On the Transfer Date, upon receipt of intimation from
the Registrar, of the receipt of minimum subscription and pursuant to the finalization of the Basis of
Allotment as approved by the Designated Stock Exchange, the SCSBs shall transfer such amount as per
the Registrar’s instruction from the ASBA Account into the Allotment Account(s) which shall be a
separate bank account maintained by our Company, other than the bank account referred to in sub-section
(3) of Section 40 of the Companies Act, 2013. The balance amount remaining after the finalisation of the
Basis of Allotment on the Transfer Date shall be unblocked by the SCSBs on the basis of the instructions
issued in this regard by the Registrar to the respective SCSB.

In terms of RBI Circular DBOD No. FSC BC 42/24.47.00/2003- 04 dated November 5, 2003, the stock
invest scheme has been withdrawn. Hence, payment through stock invest would not be accepted in this
Issue.

Mode of payment for Resident Shareholders

All payments on the Application Forms shall be made only through ASBA facility. Applicants are
requested to strictly adhere to these instructions.

Mode of payment for Non-Resident Shareholders

As regards the Application by non-resident Shareholders, payment must be made only through ASBA
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facility and using permissible accounts in accordance with FEMA, FEMA Rules and requirements
prescribed by RBI and subject to the following:

1. In case where repatriation benefit is available, interest, dividend, sales proceeds derived from
the investment in Equity Shares can be remitted outside India, subject to tax, as applicable
according to the Income-tax Act. However, please note that conditions applicable at the time of
original investment in our Company by the Eligible Equity Shareholder including repatriation
shall not change and remain the same for subscription in the Issue or subscription pursuant to
renunciation in the Issue.

2. Subject to the above, in case Equity Shares are Allotted on a non-repatriation basis, the dividend
and sale proceeds of the Equity Shares cannot be remitted outside India.

3. In case of an Application Form received from non-residents, Allotment, refunds and other
distribution, if any, will be made in accordance with the guidelines and rules prescribed by RBI
as applicable at the time of making such Allotment, remittance and subject to necessary
approvals.

4. Application Forms received from non-residents/ NRIs, or persons of Indian origin residing
abroad for Allotment of Equity Shares shall, amongst other things, be subject to conditions, as
may be imposed from time to time by RBI under FEMA, in respect of matters including Refund
of Application Money and Allotment.

5. In the case of NRIs who remit their Application Money from funds held in FCNR/NRE
Accounts, refunds and other disbursements, if any shall be credited to such account.

6. Non-resident Renouncees who are not Eligible Equity Shareholders must submit regulatory
approval for applying for additional Equity Shares.

BASIS FOR THIS ISSUE AND TERMS OF THIS ISSUE

The Equity Shares are being offered for subscription to the Eligible Equity Shareholders whose names
appear as beneficial owners as per the list to be furnished by the Depositories in respect of our Equity
Shares held in dematerialised form and on the register of members of our Company in respect of our
Equity Shares held in physical form at the close of business hours on the Record Date.

For principal terms of Issue such as face value, Issue Price, Rights Entitlement ratio, see “The Issue”
beginning on mentioned above.

> Fractional Entitlements

Since the Equity Shares are being offered on a rights basis to existing Eligible Equity Shareholders in
the ratio of 1:1 (1Equity Share for every 1 Equity Shares) held as on the Record Date. Accordingly, no
circumstance would arise which would result in fractional entitlement.

> Ranking

The Equity Shares to be issued and Allotted pursuant to this Issue shall be subject to the provisions of
the Letter of Offer, the Abridged Letter of Offer, the Rights Entitlement Letter, the Application Form,
and the Memorandum of Association and the Articles of Association, the provisions of the Companies
Act, 2013, FEMA, the SEBI ICDR Regulations, the SEBI LODR Regulations, and the guidelines,
notifications and regulations issued by SEBI, the Government of India and other statutory and regulatory
authorities from time to time, the terms of the Listing Agreements entered into by our Company with the
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Stock Exchanges and the terms and conditions as stipulated in the Allotment advice. The Equity Shares
to be issued and Allotted under this Issue shall rank pari passu with the existing Equity Shares, in all
respects including dividends.

> Listing and trading of the Equity Shares to be issued pursuant to this Issue

Subject to receipt of the listing and trading approvals, the Equity Shares proposed to be issued on a rights
basis shall be listed and admitted for trading on BSE. Unless otherwise permitted by the SEBI ICDR
Regulations, the Equity Shares Allotted pursuant to this Issue will be listed as soon as practicable and all
steps for completion of necessary formalities for listing and commencement of trading in the Equity
Shares will be taken within such period prescribed under the SEBI ICDR Regulations. Our Company has
received in-principle approval from the BSE through letter bearing reference number [®] dated [®]. Our
Company will apply to BSE for final approvals for the listing and trading of the Equity Shares subsequent
to their Allotment. No assurance can be given regarding the active or sustained trading in the Equity
Shares or the price at which the Equity Shares offered under this Issue will trade after the listing thereof.

The existing Equity Shares are listed and traded on BSE (Scrip Code: 539773) under the
ISIN:INE178T01024 . The Equity Shares shall be credited to a temporary ISIN which will be frozen
until the receipt of the final listing/ trading approvals from the Stock Exchanges. Upon receipt of such
listing and trading approvals, the Equity Shares shall be debited from such temporary ISIN and credited
to the regular ISIN for the Equity Shares and thereafter be available for trading and the temporary ISIN
shall be permanently deactivated in the depository system of CDSL and NSDL.

The listing and trading of the Equity Shares issued pursuant to this Issue shall be based on the current
regulatory framework then applicable. Accordingly, any change in the regulatory regime would affect
the listing and trading schedule.

In case our Company fails to obtain listing or trading permission from the Stock Exchanges, our
Company shall refund through verifiable means/unblock the respective ASBA Accounts, the entire
monies received/blocked within four days of receipt of intimation from the Stock Exchanges, rejecting
the application for listing of the Equity Shares, and if any such money is not refunded/ unblocked within
four days after our Company becomes liable to repay it, our Company and every director of our Company
who is an officer-in-default shall, on and from the expiry of the fourth day, be jointly and severally liable
to repay that money with interest at rates prescribed under applicable law.

> Subscription to this Issue by our Promoter and members of the Promoter Group

For details of the intent and extent of subscription by our Promoter and members of the Promoter Group,
see “Capital Structure - Intention and extent of participation by our Promoter” mentioned above.

> Rights of Holders of Equity Shares of our Company

Subject to applicable laws, Shareholders who have been Allotted Equity Shares pursuant to the Issue
shall have the following rights:

a. The right to receive dividend, if declared;
b. The right to receive surplus on liquidation;
c. The right to receive offers for rights shares and be allotted bonus shares, if announced;
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d. The right to free transferability of Equity Shares;
The right to attend general meetings of our Company and exercise voting powers in accordance
with law, unless prohibited / restricted by law and as disclosed in the Letter of Offer; and

f. Such other rights as may be available to a shareholder of a listed public company under the
Companies Act,2013, the Memorandum of Association and the Articles of Association.

GENERAL TERMS OF THE ISSUE

> Market Lot

The Equity Shares of our Company shall be tradable only in dematerialized form. The market lot for
Equity Shares in dematerialised mode is One Equity Share.

> Joint Holders

Where two or more persons are registered as the holders of any Equity Shares, they shall be deemed to
hold the same as the joint holders with the benefit of survivorship subject to the provisions contained in
our Articles of Association. In case of Equity Shares held by joint holders, the Application submitted in
physical mode to the Designated Branch of the SCSBs would be required to be signed by all the joint
holders (in the same order as appearing in the records of the Depository) to be considered as valid for
allotment of Equity Shares offered in this Issue.

> Nomination

Nomination facility is available in respect of the Equity Shares in accordance with the provisions of the
Section 72 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 19 of the Companies (Share Capital and
Debenture) Rules, 2014.

Since the Allotment is in dematerialised form, there is no need to make a separate nomination for the
Equity Shares to be allotted in this Issue. Nominations registered with the respective DPs of the
Shareholders would prevail. Any Shareholders holding Equity Shares in dematerialised form and
desirous of changing the existing nomination is requested to inform its Depository Participant.

> Arrangements for Disposal of Odd Lots

The Equity Shares shall be traded in dematerialised form only and, therefore, the marketable lot shall be
One Equity Share and hence, no arrangements for disposal of odd lots are required.

> Notices

In accordance with the SEBI ICDR Regulations and the SEBI Relaxation Circulars, the Abridged Letter
of Offer, the Application Form, the Rights Entitlement Letter and other Issue material will be sent/
dispatched only to the Eligible Equity Shareholders who have provided Indian address. In case such
Eligible Equity Shareholders have provided their valid e-mail address, the Abridged Letter of Offer, the
Application Form, the Rights Entitlement Letter and other Issue material will be sent only to their valid
e-mail address and in case such Eligible Equity Shareholders have not provided their e-mail address, then
the Abridged Letter of Offer, the Application Form, the Rights Entitlement Letter and other Issue material
will be dispatched, on a reasonable effort basis, to the Indian addresses provided by them.

220



Further, the Letter of Offer will be sent/ dispatched to the Eligible Equity Shareholders who have
provided Indian address and who have made a request in this regard. In case such Eligible Equity
Shareholders have provided their valid e-mail address, the Letter of Offer will be sent only to their valid
e-mail address and in case such Eligible Equity Shareholders have not provided their e-mail address, then
the Letter of Offer will be dispatched, on a reasonable effort basis, to the Indian addresses provided by
them.

All notices to the Eligible Equity Shareholders required to be given by our Company shall be published
in one English language national daily newspaper with wide circulation and one Hindi language national
daily newspaper with wide circulation being the regional language of New Delhi, where our Registered
Office is situated.

The Letter of Offer, the Abridged Letter of Offer and the Application Form shall also be submitted with
the Stock Exchanges for making the same available on their websites.

> Offer to Non-Resident Eligible Equity Shareholders/Shareholders

As per Rule 7 of the FEMA Rules, RBI has given general permission to Indian companies to issue Equity
Shares to non-resident Equity Shareholders including additional Equity Shares. Further, as per the Master
Direction on Foreign Investment in India dated January 4, 2018 issued by RBI, non-residents may,
amongst other things, (i) subscribe for additional shares over and above their Rights Entitlements; (ii)
renounce the shares offered to them either in full or part thereof in favour of a person named by them; or
(iii) apply for the shares renounced in their favour. Applications received from NRIs and non-residents
for allotment of Equity Shares shall be, amongst other things, subject to the conditions imposed from
time to time by RBI under FEMA in the matter of Application, refund of Application Money, Allotment
of Equity Shares and issue of Rights Entitlement Letters/ letters of Allotment/Allotment advice. If a non-
resident or NRI Shareholders has specific approval from RBI or any other governmental authority, in
connection with his shareholding in our Company, such person should enclose a copy of such approval
with the Application details and send it to the Registrar at www.skylinerta.com . It will be the sole
responsibility of the Shareholders to ensure that the necessary approval from the RBI or the governmental
authority is valid in order to make any investment in the Issue and the Lead Manager and our Company
will not be responsible for any such allotments made by relying on such approvals.

The Abridged Letter of Offer, the Rights Entitlement Letter and Application Form shall be sent only to
the Indian addresses of the non-resident Eligible Equity Shareholders on a reasonable efforts basis, who
have provided an Indian address to our Company and located in jurisdictions where the offer and sale of
the Equity Shares may be permitted under laws of such jurisdictions, Eligible Equity Shareholders can
access the Letter Offer, the Abridged Letter of Offer and the Application Form (provided that the Eligible
Equity Shareholder is eligible to subscribe for the Equity Shares under applicable securities laws) from
the websites of the Registrar, our Company, the Lead Manager and the Stock Exchanges. Further,
Application Forms will be made available at Registered and Corporate Office of our Company for the
non-resident Indian Applicants. Our Board may at its absolute discretion, agree to such terms and
conditions as may be stipulated by RBI while approving the Allotment. The Equity Shares purchased by
non- residents shall be subject to the same conditions including restrictions in regard to the repatriation
as are applicable to the original Equity Shares against which Equity Shares are issued on rights basis.
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In case of change of status of holders, i.e., from resident to non-resident, a new demat account must be
opened. Any Application from a demat account which does not reflect the accurate status of the Applicant
is liable to be rejected at the sole discretion of our Company and the Lead Manager.

Please also note that pursuant to Circular No. 14 dated September 16, 2003 issued by RBI, Overseas
Corporate Bodies (“OCBs”) have been derecognized as an eligible class of Shareholders and RBI has
subsequently issued the Foreign Exchange Management (Withdrawal of General Permission to Overseas
Corporate Bodies (OCBs)) Regulations, 2003. Any Shareholders being an OCB is required not to be
under the adverse notice of RBI and in order to apply for this issue as an incorporated non-resident must
do so in accordance with the FDI Circular 2020 and Foreign Exchange Management (Non-Debt
Instrument) Rules, 2019.

The non-resident Eligible Equity Shareholders can update their Indian address in the records maintained
by the Registrar and our Company by submitting their respective copies of self- attested proof of address,
passport, etc. at email id:

ALLOTMENT OF THE EQUITY SHARES IN DEMATERIALIZED FORM

PLEASE NOTE THAT THE EQUITY SHARES APPLIED FOR IN THIS ISSUE CAN BE
ALLOTTED ONLY IN DEMATERIALIZED FORM AND TO THE SAME DEPOSITORY
ACCOUNT IN WHICH OUR EQUITY SHARES ARE HELD BY SUCH SHAREHOLDERS ON
THE RECORD DATE. FOR DETAILS, SEE “ALLOTMENT ADVICE OR REFUND/
UNBLOCKING OF ASBA ACCOUNTS” AS MENTIONED ABOVE.

ISSUE SCHEDULE

LAST DATE FOR CREDIT OF RIGHTS [o]
ENTITLEMENT

ISSUE OPENING DATE [o]
LAST DATE FOR ON MARKET RENUNCIATION [o]
OF RIGHTS ENTITLEMENTS’

ISSUE CLOSING DATE* [o]
FINALISATION OF BASIS OF ALLOTMENT (ON [o]
OR ABOUT)

DATE OF ALLOTMENT (ON OR ABOUT) [o]
DATE OF CREDIT (ON OR ABOUT) [o]
DATE OF LISTING (ON OR ABOUT) [o]

# Eligible Equity Shareholders are requested to ensure that renunciation through off-market transfer is
completed in such a manner that the Rights Entitlements are credited to the demat account of the
Renouncees on or prior to the Issue Closing Date.

* Our Board or a duly authorized committee thereof will have the right to extend the Issue Period as it
may determine from time to time but not exceeding 30 days from the Issue Opening Date (inclusive of
the Issue Opening Date). Further, no withdrawal of Application shall be permitted by any Applicant after
the Issue Closing Date.

Please note that if Eligible Equity Shareholders holding Equity Shares in physical form as on Record
Date, have not provided the details of their demat accounts to our Company or to the Registrar, they are
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required to provide their demat account details to our Company or the Registrar not later than two
Working Days prior to the Issue Closing Date, i.c., [®] to enable the credit of the Rights Entitlements by
way of transfer from the demat suspense escrow account to their respective demat accounts, at least one
day before the Issue Closing Date, i.c., [@].

BASIS OF ALLOTMENT

Subject to the provisions contained in the Letter of Offer, the Abridged Letter of Offer, the Rights
Entitlement Letter, the Application Form, the Articles of Association and the approval of the Designated
Stock Exchange, our Board will proceed to allot the Equity Shares in the following order of priority:

a) Full Allotment to those Eligible Equity Shareholders who have applied for their Rights
Entitlements of Equity Shares either in full or in part and also to the Renouncee(s) who has or
have applied for Equity Shares renounced in their favour, in full or in part.

b) Allotment to the Eligible Equity Shareholders who having applied for all the Equity Shares
offered to them as part of this Issue, have also applied for additional Equity Shares. The
Allotment of such additional Equity Shares will be made as far as possible on an equitable basis
having due regard to the number of Equity Shares held by them on the Record Date, provided
there are any unsubscribed Equity Shares after making full Allotment in (a) and (b) above. The
Allotment of such Equity Shares will be at the sole discretion of our Board in consultation with
the Designated Stock Exchange, as a part of this Issue and will not be a preferential allotment.

c) Allotment to Renouncees who having applied for all the Equity Shares renounced in their
favour, have applied for additional Equity Shares provided there is surplus available after
making full Allotment under (a), (b) and (c) above. The Allotment of such Equity Shares will
be made on a proportionate basis in consultation with the Designated Stock Exchange, as a part
of this Issue and will not be a preferential allotment.

d) Allotment to any other person, subject to applicable laws, that our Board may deem fit, provided
there is surplus available after making Allotment under (a), (b), (c) and (d) above, and the
decision of our Board in this regard shall be final and binding.

After taking into account Allotment to be made under (a) to (d) above, if there is any unsubscribed
portion, the same shall be deemed to be ‘unsubscribed’.

Upon approval of the Basis of Allotment by the Designated Stock Exchange, the Registrar shall send to
the Controlling Branches, a list of the Shareholders who have been allocated Equity Shares in this Issue,

along with:

1. The amount to be transferred from the ASBA Account to the separate bank account opened by
our Company for this Issue, for each successful Application;

2. The date by which the funds referred to above, shall be transferred to the aforesaid bank account;
and

3. The details of rejected ASBA applications, if any, to enable the SCSBs to unblock the respective
ASBA Accounts.
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ALLOTMENT ADVICE OR REFUND/ UNBLOCKING OF ASBA ACCOUNTS

Our Company will send/ dispatch Allotment advice, refund intimations or demat credit of securities
and/or letters of regret, only to the Eligible Equity Shareholders who have provided Indian address. In
case such Eligible Equity

Shareholders have provided their valid e-mail address, Allotment advice, refund intimations or demat
credit of securities and/or letters of regret will be sent only to their valid e-mail address and in case such
Eligible Equity Shareholders have not provided their e-mail address, then the Allotment advice, refund
intimations or demat credit of securities and/or letters of regret will be dispatched, on a reasonable effort
basis, to the Indian addresses provided by them; along with crediting the Allotted Equity Shares to the
respective beneficiary accounts (only in dematerialised mode) or in a demat suspense account (in respect
of Eligible Equity Shareholders holding Equity Shares in physical form on the Allotment Date) or issue
instructions for unblocking the funds in the respective ASBA Accounts, if any, within a period of 4 days
from the Issue Closing Date. In case of failure to do so, our Company and our Directors who are “officers
in default” shall pay interest at 15% p.a. and such other rate as specified under applicable law from the
expiry of such 4 days’ period.

The Rights Entitlements will be credited in the dematerialized form using electronic credit under the
depository system and the Allotment advice shall be sent, through an e-mail, to the e-mail address
provided to our Company or at the address recorded with the Depository.

In the case of non-resident Shareholders who remit their Application Money from funds held in the NRE
or the FCNR Accounts, unblocking and/or payment of interest or dividend and other disbursements, if
any, shall be credited to such accounts.

Where an Applicant has applied for additional Equity Shares in the Issue and is allotted a lesser number
of Equity Shares than applied for, the excess Application Money paid/blocked shall be
refunded/unblocked. The unblocking of ASBA funds / refund of monies shall be completed be within
such period as prescribed under the SEBI ICDR Regulations. In the event that there is a delay in making
refunds beyond such period as prescribed under applicable law, our Company shall pay the requisite
interest at such rate as prescribed under applicable law.

PAYMENT OF REFUND

> Mode of making refunds

The payment of refund, if any, including in the event of oversubscription or failure to list or otherwise
would be done through Unblocking amounts blocked using ASBA facility.

> Refund payment to non-residents

The Application Money will be unblocked in the ASBA Account of the non-resident Applicants, details
of which were provided in the Application Form.
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ALLOTMENT ADVICE OR DEMAT CREDIT OF SECURITIES
> Receipt of the Equity Shares in Dematerialized Form

The demat credit of securities to the respective beneficiary accounts will be credited within 15 days from
the Issue Closing Date or such other timeline in accordance with applicable laws.

PLEASE NOTE THAT THE EQUITY SHARES APPLIED FOR UNDER THIS ISSUE CAN BE
ALLOTTED ONLY IN DEMATERIALIZED FORM AND TO (A) THE SAME DEPOSITORY
ACCOUNT/ CORRESPONDING PAN IN WHICH THE EQUITY SHARES ARE HELD BY
SUCH SHAREHOLDERS ON THE RECORD DATE, OR (B) THE DEPOSITORY ACCOUNT,
DETAILS OF WHICH HAVE BEEN PROVIDED TO OUR COMPANY OR THE REGISTRAR
AT LEAST TWO WORKING DAYS PRIOR TO THE ISSUE CLOSING DATE BY THE
ELIGIBLE EQUITY SHAREHOLDER HOLDING EQUITY SHARES IN PHYSICAL FORM
AS ON THE RECORD DATE.

Shareholders shall be allotted the Equity Shares in dematerialized (electronic) form. Our Company has
signed an agreement dated August 10, 2015 with NSDL and an agreement dated August 03, 2023 with
CDSL which enables the Shareholders to hold and trade in the securities issued by our Company in a
dematerialized form, instead of holding the Equity Shares in the form of physical certificates.

SHAREHOLDERS MAY PLEASE NOTE THAT THE EQUITY SHARES CAN BE TRADED
ON THE STOCK EXCHANGES ONLY IN DEMATERIALIZED FORM.

The procedure for availing the facility for Allotment of Equity Shares in this Issue in the dematerialized
form is as under:

1. Open a beneficiary account with any depository participant (care should be taken that the
beneficiary account should carry the name of the holder in the same manner as is registered in
the records of our Company. In the case of joint holding, the beneficiary account should be
opened carrying the names of the holders in the same order as registered in the records of our
Company). In case of Shareholders having various folios in our Company with different joint
holders, the Shareholders will have to open separate accounts for such holdings. Those
Shareholders who have already opened such beneficiary account(s) need not adhere to this step.

2. It should be ensured that the depository account is in the name(s) of the Shareholders and the
names are in the same order as in the records of our Company or the Depositories.

3. The responsibility for correctness of information filled in the Application Form vis-a- vis such
information with the Shareholders depository participant, would rest with the Shareholders.
Shareholders’ should ensure that the names of the Shareholders and the order in which they
appear in Application Form should be the same as registered with the Shareholders’ depository
participant.

4. If incomplete or incorrect beneficiary account details are given in the Application Form, the
Shareholders will not get any Equity Shares and the Application Form will be rejected.

5. The Equity Shares will be allotted to Applicants only in dematerialized form and would be
directly credited to the beneficiary account as given in the Application Form after verification
or demat suspense account (pending receipt of demat account details for resident Eligible Equity
Shareholders holding Equity Shares in physical form/ with IEPF authority/ in suspense, etc.).
Allotment advice, refund order (if any) would be sent directly to the Applicant by e-mail and,
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>

if the printing is feasible, through physical dispatch, by the Registrar but the Applicant’s
depository participant will provide to him the confirmation of the credit of such Equity Shares
to the Applicant’s depository account.

6. Non-transferable Allotment advice/ refund intimation will be directly sent to the Shareholders
by the Registrar, by e-mail and, if the printing is feasible, through physical dispatch.

7. Renouncees will also have to provide the necessary details about their beneficiary account for
Allotment of Equity Shares in this Issue. In case these details are incomplete or incorrect, the
Application is liable to be rejected.

IMPERSONATION

As a matter of abundant caution, attention of the Shareholders is specifically drawn to the provisions of
Section 38 of the Companies Act, 2013 which is reproduced below:

“Any person who makes or abets making of an application in a fictitious name to a company for
acquiring, or subscribing for, its securities;, or makes or abets making of multiple applications to a
company in different names or in different combinations of his name or surname for acquiring or
subscribing for its securities; or otherwise induces directly or indirectly a company to allot, or register
any transfer of, securities to him, or to any other person in a fictitious name, shall be liable for action
under Section 447.”

The liability prescribed under Section 447 of the Companies Act, 2013 for fraud involving an amount of
at least Rs. 0.1 crore or 1% of the turnover of the company, whichever is lower, includes imprisonment
for a term of not less than six months extending up to 10 years (provided that where the fraud involves
public interest, such term shall not be less than three years) and fine of an amount not less than the amount
involved in the fraud, extending up to three times of such amount. In case the fraud involves (i) an amount
which is less than Rs. 0.1 crore or 1% of the turnover of the company, whichever is lower; and (ii) does
not involve public interest, then such fraud is punishable with an imprisonment for a term extending up
to five years or a fine of an amount extending up to Rs. 0.5 crore or with both.

UTILISATION OF ISSUE PROCEEDS
Our Board declares that:

All monies received out of this Issue shall be transferred to a separate bank account;

Details of all monies utilized out of this Issue referred to under (A) above shall be disclosed, and continue
to be disclosed till the time any part of the Issue Proceeds remains unutilised, under an appropriate
separate head in the balance sheet of our Company indicating the purpose for which such monies have
been utilised; and

Details of all unutilized monies out of this Issue referred to under (A) above, if any, shall be disclosed
under an appropriate separate head in the balance sheet of our Company indicating the form in which
such unutilized monies have been invested.
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1)

2)

3)

UNDERTAKINGS BY OUR COMPANY

Our Company undertakes the following:

The complaints received in respect of this Issue shall be attended to by our Company expeditiously and
satisfactorily.

All steps for completion of the necessary formalities for listing and commencement of trading at all Stock
Exchanges where the Equity Shares are to be listed will be taken by our Board within seven Working
Days of finalization of Basis of Allotment.

The funds required for making refunds / unblocking to unsuccessful Applicants as per the mode(s)
disclosed shall be made available to the Registrar by our Company.

Where refunds are made through electronic transfer of funds, a suitable communication shall be sent to
the Shareholders within 4 days of the Issue Closing Date, giving details of the banks where refunds shall
be credited along with amount and expected date of electronic credit of refund.

In case of refund / unblocking of the Application Money for unsuccessful Applicants or part of the
Application Money in case of proportionate Allotment, a suitable communication shall be sent to the
Applicants.

Adequate arrangements shall be made to collect all ASBA Applications.

Our Company shall comply with such disclosure and accounting norms specified by SEBI from time to

time.

SHAREHOLDERS GRIEVANCES, COMMUNICATION AND IMPORTANT LINKS

Please read the Letter of Offer carefully before taking any action. The instructions contained in the
Application Form, Abridged Letter of Offer and the Rights Entitlement Letter are an integral part of the
conditions of the Letter of Offer and must be carefully followed; otherwise the Application is liable to
be rejected.

All enquiries in connection with the Letter of Offer, the Abridged Letter of Offer, the Rights Entitlement
Letter or Application Form must be addressed (quoting the Registered Folio Number in case of Eligible
Equity Shareholders who hold Equity Shares in physical form as on Record Date or the DP ID and Client
ID number, the Application Form number and the name of the first Eligible Equity Shareholder as
mentioned on the Application Form and super scribed “ADVIK CAPITAL LIMITED — Rights Issue” on
the envelope and postmarked in India or in the e- mail) to the Registrar at the following address:

Skyline Financial Services Private Limited

D-153A, 1st Floor, Okhla Industrial Area, Phase-I, New Delhi-110020
Telephone: 011-40450193/97

Email: ipo@skylinerta.com,

Website: www.skylinerta.com

Investor grievance e-mail: grievances@skylinerta.com

SEBI Registration No.: INR000003241;

Validity of Registration: Permanent

Contact Person: Mr. Anuj Rana

In accordance with SEBI Rights Issue Circulars, frequently asked questions and online/ electronic

dedicated Shareholders helpdesk for guidance on the Application process and resolution of difficulties
faced by the Shareholders will be available on the website of the Registrar www.skylinerta.com . Further,
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b)

¢)

helpline number provided by the Registrar for guidance on the Application process and resolution of
difficulties is 011- 42541952.

The Shareholders can visit following links for the below-mentioned purposes:

Frequently asked questions and online/ electronic dedicated Shareholders helpdesk for guidance on the
Application process and resolution of difficulties faced by the Shareholders: www.skylinerta.com
Updation of Indian address/ e-mail address/ phone or mobile number in the records maintained by the
Registrar or our Company: www.skylinerta.com

Updation of demat account details by Eligible Equity Shareholders holding shares in physical form:
www.skylinerta.com

Submission of self-attested PAN, client master sheet and demat account details by non- resident Eligible
Equity Shareholders at email id at ipo@skylinerta.com.

This Issue will remain open for a minimum 15 days. However, our Board will have the right to extend

the Issue Period as it may determine from time to time but not exceeding 30 days from the Issue Opening
Date (inclusive of the Issue Closing Date).
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RESTRICTIONS ON FOREIGN OWNERSHIP OF INDIAN SECURITIES

Foreign investment in Indian securities is regulated through the Consolidated FDI Policy and FEMA. The FDI
Policy prescribes the limits and conditions subject to which foreign investment can be made in different sectors
of the Indian economy and FEMA regulates the precise manner in which such investment may be made.

The government bodies responsible for granting foreign investment approvals are the concerned
ministries/departments of the Government of India and the RBI. Pursuant to the press release dated May 24, 2017,
the Union Cabinet phased out the FIPB and it was replaced by the Foreign Investment Facilitation Portal (FIFP)
to speed up the FDI inflow and to increase the transparency in the FDI approvals in the country. The DIPP issued
the Standard Operating Procedure (SOP) for Processing FDI Proposals on June 29, 2017 (the "SOP"). The SOP
provides a list of the competent authorities to grant approvals for foreign investment for sectors/activities
requiring Government approval. For sectors or activities that are currently under the automatic route but which
required Government approval earlier as per the extant policy during the relevant period, the concerned
Administrative Ministry/Department shall act as the competent authority (the "Competent Authority") for the
grant of post facto approval for foreign investment. In circumstances where there is a doubt as to which
department shall act as the Competent Authority, the DIPP will identify the Competent Authority.

The Government of India, from time to time, has made policy pronouncements on Foreign Direct Investment
("FDI") through press notes and press releases. The DIPP, has issued a consolidated FDI Policy DPIIT File
Number 5(2)/2020-FDI Policy Dated the October 15, 2020 ("FDI Policy 2020"), which consolidates and
supersedes all previous press notes, press releases and clarifications on FDI policy issued by the DIPP that were
in force till that date. The Government of India proposes to update the consolidated circular on FDI policy once
every year and therefore, the FDI Policy 2020 will be valid until the DIPP issues an updated circular.

Under the FDI Policy, unless specifically restricted, foreign investment is freely permitted in all sectors of the
Indian economy up to 100% without any prior approvals, however the foreign investor must follow certain
prescribed procedures for making such investment. Accordingly, the process for foreign direct investment
("FDI") and approval from the Government of India will now be handled by the FIFP.

The transfer of shares between an Indian resident and a non-resident does not need prior approval of the RBI,
provided that (i) the activities of the investee company falls under the automatic route as provided in the FDI
Policy and FEMA, and the transfer does not attract the provisions of the SEBI Takeover Regulations; (ii) the non-
resident shareholding is within the sectoral limits under the FDI Policy; and (iii) the pricing is in accordance with
the guidelines prescribed by SEBI and RBI.

As per the extant policy of the Government of India, erstwhile OCBs cannot participate in this Issue. OCBs or
Overseas Corporate Bodies have been derecognised as a class of investor entity in India with effect from
September 16, 2003.

Overseas Corporate Body means a company, partnership firm, society and other corporate body owned directly
or indirectly to the extent of at least sixty per cent by Non- Resident Indians and includes overseas trust in which
not less than sixty percent beneficial interest is held by Non-resident Indians directly or indirectly but irrevocably,
which was in existence as on September 16, 2003 and was eligible to undertake transactions pursuant to the
general permission granted under FEMA. Any investment made in India by such entities will be treated as
investments by incorporated non-resident entities, i.e. a foreign company.

The Issue, if renounced by our sharecholders, may include offers within India, to Indian institutional, non-
institutional and retail investors in offshore transactions as defined in, and made in reliance upon exemptions from
the registration requirements under the United States Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the "U.S. Securities
Act"), including the exemption under Regulation S ("Regulation S") of the U.S. Securities Act.

The above information is given for the benefit of the Applicants / Investors. Our Company and the Lead Manager
is not liable for any amendments or modification or changes in applicable laws or regulations, which may occur
after the date of this Draft Letter of Offer. Investors are advised to make their independent investigations and
ensure that the number of Equity Shares applied for do not exceed the applicable limits under laws or regulations.
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SECTION IX - STATUTORY AND OTHER INFORMATION

Please note that the Rights Equity Shares applied for under this Issue can be allotted only in dematerialized form
and to (a) the same depository account/ corresponding pan in which the Equity Shares are held by such Investor
on the Record Date, or (b) the depository account, details of which have been provided to our Company or the
Registrar at least two working days prior to the Issue Closing Date by the Eligible Equity Shareholder holding
Equity Shares in physical form as on the Record Date.
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MATERIAL CONTRACTS AND DOCUMENTS FOR INSPECTION

The copies of the following contracts which have been entered or are to be entered into by our Company (not
being contracts entered into in the ordinary course of business carried on by our Company or contracts entered
into more than two years before the date of this Draft Letter of Offer) which are or may be deemed material have\
been entered or are to be entered into by our Company. Copies of the documents for inspection referred to
hereunder, would be available on the website of the Company at www.advikgroup.com in from the date of this
Draft Letter of Offer until the Issue Closing Date.

1.

(1)
(i1)
(iii)
(iv)
v)

(vi)

0.

10.

Material Contracts for the Issue

Registrar Agreement dated [®] between our Company and the Registrar to the Issue.

Bankers to the Issue Agreement dated [®] among our Company, the Registrar to the Issue and the
Bankers tothe Issue.

Tripartite Agreement between our Company, NSDL and the Registrar to the Company.

Tripartite Agreement between our Company, CDSL and the Registrar to the Company

Memorandum of Understanding dated July 13, 2023 between our Company and Fast Track Finsec
Private Limited, Lead Manager to the Issue;

Escrow Agreement dated [®] amongst our Company, the Registrar to the Issue and the Bankers to the
Issue/ Refund Bank.

Material Documents

Certified true copy of Certificate of Incorporation, the Memorandum of Association and Articles of
Association of our Company, as amended.

Resolutions of the Board of Directors dated April 11, 2023 in relation to the Issue and other related
matters.

Copies of Annual Reports of our Company for the Financial Year ending March 31, 2023, March 31,
2022, March 31, 2021.

Resolution of Shareholder dated May 18, 2023 approving the issue .

Copy of the Resolution of Fund Raising Committee dated [e], finalizing the terms of the Issue
including Issue Price, Record Date and the Rights Entitlement Ratio.

Resolution of our Fund Raising Committee dated [*] approving the Letter of Offer.
Consents of our Promoters, Directors, Company Secretary and Compliance Officer, Statutory
Auditors, Bankers to our Company, Bankers to the Issue, Legal Advisor to the Issue, and the Registrar

to the Issue for inclusion of their names in the Draft Letter of Offer to act in their respective capacities.

Statement of Tax Benefits dated July 01, 2023 for our Company from the Statutory Auditors of our
Company.

Audit Report for financial year ending on March 31, 2023, March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021.

In-principle approval issued by BSE dated [e].

Any of the contracts or documents mentioned in this Draft Letter of Offer may be amended or modified at any
time if so required in the interest of our Company or if required by the other parties, without reference to the
shareholders subject to compliance of the provisions contained in the Companies Act and other relevant statutes.
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DECLARATION

We hereby declare that all relevant provisions of the Companies Act 2013 and the rules, regulations and guidelines
issued by the Government of India, or the rules, regulations or guidelines issued by the SEBI, established under
Section 3 of the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992, as the case may be, have been complied with
and no statement made in this Draft Letter of Offer is contrary to the provisions of the Companies Act 2013, the
Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956, the Securities Contract (Regulation) Rules, 1957 and the Securities
and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992, each as amended, or the rules, regulations or guidelines issued thereunder,
as the case may be. We further certify that all the statements and disclosures made in this Draft Letter of Offer are
true and correct.

SIGNED BY THE DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL OF OUR COMPANY

Sd/- Sd/-

Vikas Garg Devender Kumar Garg

(Promoter Director, Executive Category) (Non-Executive Independent Director)
Sd/- Sd/-

Karan Bagga Gunjan Jha

(Chief Executive Officer, Whole Time Director) (Non-Executive Independent Director)
Sd/- Sd/-

Pankaj Swati Gupta

(Chief Financial Officer, Whole Time Director) (Non-Executive Independent Director)
Sd/- Sd/-

Deepika Mishra Sony Kumari

(Company Secretary and Compliance Officer) (Non-Executive Independent Director)

Date: July 18, 2023
Place: New Delhi
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